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INTRODUCTION

Unless otherwise indicated, references in this ahraport to:

“ADR¢ are to the American depositary receipts that evidesur ADSs
“ADS¢ are to our American depositary shares, each oftwiEipresents five ordinary shar

“China” or the“"PRC” are to the People’Republic of China, excluding, for the purpose¢hi$é annual report only, Taiwan and
special administrative regions of Hong Kong and da

“conversion efficiency”are to the ability of photovoltaic, or PV, produdts convert sunlight into electricity, anddnversiol
efficiency rates”are commonly used in the PV industry to measurepiteentage of light energy from the sun that iwalty
converted into electricity

“cost per watt” and“price per watt” are to the method by which the cost and price ofgPMlucts, respectively, are commc
measured in the PV industry. A PV product is pribaded on the number of watts of electricity it ganerate

“GW’ are to gigawatt, representing 1,000,000,000 wattsyit of powe-generating capacity or consumpti

“MW” are to megawatt, representing 1,000,000 wattsjtafipowergenerating capacity or consumption. In this anmejabrt, it i
assumed that, based on a yield rate of 97%, 42@@B6hm x 125mm or 247,820 156mm x 156mm siliconensafre required
produce PV products capable of generating 1 MW, ¢éhah 125mm x 125mm and 156mm x 156mm PV cellrg¢ee 2.4 W ar
4.16 W of power, respectively, and that each PV ul®dontains 72 125mm x 125mm PV cells or 54 1560kB6mm PV cells

“PV’ are to photovoltaic. The photovoltaic effect isragess by which sunlight is converted into eledtrjc
“RME" and“ Renmink” are to the legal currency of Chir
“series A convertible preference shé’ are to our series A convertible preference sha@syalue US$0.0001 per sha

“shares” or “ordinary shares” are to our ordinary shares, par value US$0.0001sheare. For the purpose of computing
reporting our outstanding ordinary shares and asidor diluted earnings per share, (i) the remairi,014,075 ADSs we issuec
facilitate the convertible bond offering in Janu&B08; (ii) the remaining 20,062,348 ordinary skase issued to Hanwha Sola
connection with Hanwha Solar'’purchase of 36,455,089 ordinary shares of oumpeom in September 2010 are not consid
outstanding; and (iii) the ADSs which have beermesd by our company to allow for the participatiorthe ADS program by o
employees pursuant to our equity incentive plaosftime to time

“W' are to watt, a unit of pow-generating capacity or consumption;

“USY and“ U.S. dollar” are to the legal currency of the United Sta

References in this annual report on FormP2@-our annual manufacturing capacity assume 24shaf operation per day for 350 days

year.

Unless the context indicates otherwise, “we,” “Ustir company”, “Hanwha SolarOne” and “ougfer to Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.,
predecessor entities and its consolidated subwdiar

We completed the initial public offering of 12,0000 ADSs, each representing five ordinary sharesDenember 26, 2006. (
December 20, 2006, we listed our ADSs on the Na&laljal Market, which are traded under the symibt$OL.”
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On January 29, 2008, we closed an offering of US%L.million 3.50% convertible senior notes due 20482018 convertible bonds,
qualified institutional buyers pursuant to Rule Addnder the Securities Act of 1933, as amendedherSecurities Act, and received
proceeds of US$167.9 million. Concurrently withstldonvertible bond offering, we closed an offerioig9,019,611 ADSs, represent
45,098,055 ordinary shares, to facilitate the caiive bond offering. We did not receive any pratgeother than the par value of the AL
from such offering of ADSs. A portion of these AD&sre subsequently repurchased as described below.

From July 17, 2008 to August 12, 2008, we issuebsaid 5,421,093 ADSs with an aggregate sale pifit¢S$73.9 million.
From September 17, 2009 to November 18, 2009, sueéand sold 3,888,399 ADSs with an aggregatepsiake of US$23.1 million.

In September 2010, we issued and sold to Hanwhar Slalldings Co., Ltd., or Hanwha Solar, 36,455,08%inary shares for an aggrec
sale price of US$78.2 million. Concurrently witketblosing of this offering, we issued 30,672,688imary shares to Hanwha Solar at par v
of the ordinary shares and subsequently an additibh,407,330 ordinary shares at par value, whieties were to remain outstanding so
as and to the extent that the 9,019,611 ADSs weedsto facilitate our convertible bond offeringJianuary 2008 remain outstanding. A potr
of these ordinary shares were subsequently repsedhas described below. At the same time, Hanwkar Sompleted the acquisitions fri
Good Energies Il LP and Yonghua Solar Power Investniolding Ltd., the company owned by Mr. Yonghua our former chairman, of
total of 120,407,700 ordinary shares and 1,281 ADSs of our company, representing all of the ordinshares and ADSs held by th
Hanwha Solar, a company that engages in solar éssiris a wholly owned subsidiary of Hanwha Chehtmaporation, a leading chemi
producer publicly traded on the Korea Exchange whmincipal activities are the production of chédkali, or CA, polyethylene, or PE, &
polyvinyl-chloride, or PVC, products.

In November 2010, we issued and sold 9,200,000 Aifis an aggregate sale price of US$82.8 millianotder for Hanwha Solar
maintain after this offering the same level of fezi@ ownership in our company before this offeyinve also issued and sold to Hanwha ¢
45,981,604 ordinary shares for an aggregate sile pf US$82.8 million.

In October 2011, we repurchased and cancelled B865ADSs and the ordinary shares represented &ty ADSs, which were issu
pursuant to a share issuance and repurchase agregated January 23, 2008 to facilitate our coriblerthoond offering in January 2008, fr
Morgan Stanley & Co. International PLC. We alsourghased and cancelled 25,017,671 ordinary shatésh were issued pursuant to a sl
issuance and repurchase agreement dated Septe®#1D, from Hanwha Solar. These ADSs and ordisheres were repurchased at
value of US$0.0005 per ADS and US$0.0001 per orgishare, respectively.

In 2012, we repurchased our 2018 convertible bamdstotal principal amount of US$71.9 million.
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PART I
ITEM 1 IDENTITY OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT ANDADVISORS
Not applicable.
ITEM 2 OFFER STATISTICS AND EXPECTED TIMETABLE
Not applicable.
ITEM 3 KEY INFORMATION

A. Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial datecept for “Other Operating Datayave been derived from our audited consolic
financial statements, which have been audited mgtE® Young Hua Ming LLP, an independent registepedllic accounting firm. The rep
of Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP on our consolidateidahncial statements as of December 31, 2011 an@ 200 for the years enc
December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 is included elsewim this annual report on Form BO-The consolidated statement of comprehei
income data for the years ended December 31, 2002@09 and the consolidated balance sheet dathecember 31, 2008, 2009 and 2
have been derived from our audited consolidateginfifal statements, which are not included in thisual report on Form 2B- The selecte
consolidated financial information for those pesahd as of those dates are qualified by referemti®ose financial statements and the re
notes, and should be read in conjunction with therd with “ltem 5. Operating and Financial Reviewd @rospects.’"Our consolidate
financial statements are prepared and presentadciordance with United States generally acceptedusting principles, or U.S. GAAP. C
historical results do not necessarily indicate r@sults expected for any future periods.

Year Ended December 31
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (US$)
(In thousands, except share and per share dat

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Incorr

Data
Net revenue

Third parties 4,950,31! 3,443,81. 7,072,78! 5,832,62i 2,639,45! 423,66:

Related partie — 336,48! 475,75t 583,85 1,038,92 166,75¢
Total net revenue 4,950,31! 3,780,29i 7,548,54! 6,416,48! 3,678,38! 590,42(
Cost of revenue (4,887,07) (3,309,96) (5,869,50) (6,633,54) (4,003,88) (642,66
Gross profit (loss 63,24¢ 470,32¢ 1,679,04: (217,05) (325,50) (52,24
Operating expenst
Selling expense (105,98 (137,42) (269,209 (279,78)) (348,56¢) (55,949
General and administrative expen (143,340 (177,266 (172,171 (340,409 (278,03) (44,629
Provision for doubtful accounts receivable and pthe

receivables — (3,729 27¢ (56,239 (137,67) (22,099
Research and development exper (19,679 (32,02% (53,500 (68,217 (90,820) (14,579
Impairment of goodwil — — (134,73 — —
Total operating expens (269,009 (350,439 (494,54) (879,379 (855,09) (137,25)
Operating profit (loss (205,76() 119,89« 1,184,50. (1,096,43) (1,180,600 (189,50()
Interest expens (103,149 (157,90 (161,67 (171,059 (299,51) (48,079
Interest incom 10,00« 5,00z 6,141 11,76 15,84 2,54:
Exchange gains (losse (35,230 (23,819 (89,277) (3,965 8,87¢ 1,42t
Changes in fair value of derivative contrg 83,09( 9,59/ 77,531 (70,779 5,32¢ 85E

1
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Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (US$)
(In thousands, except share and per share dat
Changes in fair value of conversion feature of
convertible bond — (73,887 31,62:¢ 264,38 (5,697) (919
Loss on extinguishment of de — — — (82,717 (13,27¢)
Other income 17,24 11,96¢ 12,39¢ 5,14« 9,26t 1,48
Other expense (25,60¢) (11,83%) (5,909 (14,109 (18,39)) (2,957)
Income (loss) before income tax (259,399 (120,98 1,055,34i (1,075,04) (1,547,60) (248,40)
Income tax benefit/(expense (6,519 (23,929 (297,98 144,94! (15,255 (2,449
Net income (loss (265,919 (144,914 757,35’ (930,109  (1,562,85) (250,85¢)
Net (income) loss attributable to r-controlling
interest (14,577 (317 — — — —
Net income (loss) attributable to shareholc (280,49 (145,22) 757,35’ (930,109  (1,562,85) (250,85¢)
Net income (loss) attributable to shareholders
share Hanwha SolarOne Co., L
— Basic (2.1)) (0.59) 2.4% (2.2 (3.70) (0.59)
— Diluted (1.1)) (0.59) 2.3¢€ (2.2)) (3.70) (0.59)
Number of shares used in computation of
income (loss) per sha
— Basic 252,659,61 274,067,76 311,263,30 420,325,70 422,167,50 422,167,50
— Diluted 252,659,61 274,067,76 357,272,60 420,325,70 422,167,50 422,167,50
Net income (loss) per AD
— Basic (5.55) (2.65) 12.17 (11.0%) (18.5)) (2.99)
— Diluted (5.55) (2.65) 11.82 (11.0%) (18.5)) (2.97)
Number of ADS used in computation of |
income (loss) per AD.
— Basic 50,531,92 54,813,55 62,252,66 84,065,14  84,433,50 84,433,50
— Diluted 50,531,92 54,813,55 71,454,52 84,065,14  84,433,50 84,433,50
Year Ended December 31
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (US$)
Other Financial Data
Gross margir 1.2% 12.4% 22.2% (3.9% (8.9% (8.9%
Operating margil (4.2% 3.2% 15.7% (17.)% (32.0)% (32.1)%
Net margin (5.7% (3.9% 10.(% (14.5% (42.5% (42.5%
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activifie:
thousands (674,04() 688,89! 266,76( 255,49: (1,052,21) (168,89
Other Operating Data
Year Ended December 31
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
(MW) (MW) (MW) (MW) (MW)
Amount of PV modules shipped
(including PV module processin 172.¢ 313.¢ 797.¢ 844.¢ 829.¢
Year Ended December 31
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
(RMB/W) (RMB/W) (RMB/W) (RMB/W) (RMB/W) (US$/W)
Average selling price of PV modules
(excluding PV module processin 26.71 15.27 11.5¢ 8.87 4.47 0.72
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As of December 31
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (US$)
(In thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivale 410,90: 645,72( 1,630,77 1,976,55! 676,47¢ 108,58:
Restricted cas 88,13’ 60,53¢ 100,49( 281,62t 150,46: 24,15
Accounts receivabl— net 319,53 587,48 1,282,80 537,54( 956,96 153,60:
Notes receivabl — — 10,00( 60,20¢ 2,681 43C
Inventories— net 731,70¢ 783,97 790,77 684,04¢ 838,72 134,62!
Advance to supplie— net 1,145,61. 540,14! 764,06: 475,64! 166,83t 26,77¢
Other current asse 481,74! 180,31! 255,43 528,57 356,78 57,26¢
Deferred tax asse— net 62,48 76,90¢ 108,37( 281,08: 257,60: 41,34¢
Derivative contract 39,66! 7,36( 7,48¢ 29,09: — —
Amount due from related parti— net 19 12,45¢ 27,81¢ 241,45: 420,61( 67,51
Long-term prepayment — 439,61 394,28. 204,57( 184,06! 29,54
Amount due from related parties — non-current

portion — — 15,00( — — —
Fixed asset— net 1,492,57! 1,586,28. 2,084,02 4,715,96: 4,779,87. 767,22:
Intangible asset— net 212,73t 208,56 205,76: 334,98 335,04 53,77¢
Long-term deferred expens 37,46" 33,15¢ 27,27: 49,70: 25,20( 4,04¢
Goodwill 134,73 134,73! 134,73! — — —
Total asset 5,157,32. 5,297,25: 7,839,101 10,401,04 9,151,33 1,468,89
Shor-term bank borrowing 1,098,83; 404,76 318,91¢ 1,764,25. 1,162,37 186,57«
Long-term bank borrowings, current porti 30,00( 120,00( 215,00( 242,60: 467,20: 74,99
Accounts payabl 217,02t 441,76¢ 478,12¢ 1,024,94 1,061,72: 170,41¢
Notes payabli 39,34: 186,92: 181,26! 462,60: 314,51 50,48
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 189,02¢ 191,89! 404,82t 375,23t 400,53 64,29
Customer deposi 9,49¢ 59,68! 33,53¢ 84,87 36,31« 5,82¢
Deferred tax liabilitie: 28,57: 26,56¢ 25,97% 25,381 24,79¢ 3,98(
Unrecognized tax bene 27,38t 27,38t 143,47: 143,47: 143,47: 23,02¢
Derivative contract 5,792 1,14¢ 8,041 30,67( 17,31: 2,77¢
Amount due to related parti 39,76¢ 16,76" 13,18 42,34: 72,04t 11,56¢
Long-term bank borrowing 170,00( 350,00( 135,00( 1,352,37. 2,285,101 366,78t
Long-term payable — — — 50,00( 50,00( 8,02¢
Convertible bond 1,178,96' 658,65 687,43! 498,64t 368,59( 59,16
Total liabilities 3,034,20. 2,485,55! 2,644,79: 6,097,40. 6,403,99i 1,027,91.
Redeemable ordinary shal 55 55 55 24 24 4
Total shareholde’ equity 2,123,06! 2,811,65: 5,194,25: 4,303,61! 2,747,31 440,97
Total liabilities, redeemable ordinary shares and

shareholde’ equity 5,157,32. 5,297,25i 7,839,101 10,401,04 9,151,33. 1,468,89

Exchange Rate Information

This annual report on Form Z0-contains translations of certain RMB amounts ibt&. dollar amounts at specified rates. Ur
otherwise stated, the translations of RMB into W@&lars have been made at the exchange rate &srtsebn December 31, 2012 in the
statistical release of the Federal Reserve Boahithwas RMB6.2301 to US$1.00. We make no reprasient that the RMB or U.S. doll
amounts referred to in this annual report couldehiasen or could be converted into U.S. dollars diBRas the case may be, at any partic
rate or at all. See “ltem 3.D. Risk Factors — RiBiedated to Our Company and Our Industry —

3
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Fluctuations in exchange rates could adverselycafiar business as well as result in foreign cuyeexchange losses” anétém 3.D. Risl
Factors — Risks Related to Doing Business in Chin&estrictions on currency exchange may limit outitgtlio receive and use our revel
effectively” for discussions of the effects of fluctuating exuofpa rates and currency control on the value ofAddBs. On April 19, 2013, tt
exchange rate as set forth in the H.10 statistedabse of the Federal Reserve Board was RMB6.1rd&$1.00.

The following table sets forth information concempiexchange rates between the RMB and the U.Srdoll the periods indicated. Thi
rates are provided solely for your convenience amgdnot necessarily the exchange rates that weinghis annual report or will use in 1
preparation of our periodic reports or any othéorimation to be provided to you.

Renminbi per U.S. Dollar Noon Buying Rate(%)

Period
End Average(@) Low High
2008 6.822¢ 6.919: 7.294¢ 6.780(
2009 6.825¢ 6.829¢ 6.847( 6.817¢
2010 6.600( 6.760: 6.833( 6.600(
2011 6.293¢ 6.463( 6.636¢ 6.293¢
2012 6.230: 6.299( 6.387¢ 6.222:
October 201 6.237: 6.262° 6.287" 6.237:
November 201! 6.226¢ 6.233¢ 6.245:¢ 6.222:
December 201 6.230: 6.232¢ 6.250: 6.225!
January 201: 6.218¢ 6.221¢ 6.230: 6.213¢
February 201: 6.221: 6.232: 6.221: 6.243¢
March 2013 6.210¢ 6.215¢ 6.210¢ 6.224¢
April 2013 (through April 19, 201z 6.177: 6.192" 6.172( 6.207¢

Notes:

(1) For periods prior to January 1, 2009, the exchaatgs reflect the noon buying rates as reportethbyFederal Reserve Bank of N
York. For periods after January 1, 2009, the exgbarates reflect the exchange rates as set fortheirH.10 statistical release of
Federal Reserve Boal

(2) Annual averages are calculated from masid-rates. Monthly averages are calculated usiacatterage of the daily rates during
relevant period

B. Capitalization and Indebtedness

Not Applicable.

C. Reasons for the Offer and Use of Proceeds

Not Applicable.
D. Risk Factors
Risks Related to Our Company and Our Industry
Demand for our PV products has been, and may contrto be, adversely affected by volatile market amtlistry trends.

Demand for our PV products has been affected blyagleconomic conditions, capital markets fluctuagiand credit disruptions. Duri
the second half of 2008 and the first half of 20®@ny of our key markets, including Germany, Sgaid the United States, and other nati
economies experienced a period of economic comdract significantly slower economic growth. Thelghl financial crisis, weak consur
confidence and diminished consumer and businesglspgehave contributed to a significant slowdownha market demand

4
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for PV products due to decreased energy requiresnémiddition, many of our customers and many esets of our PV products depenc
debt financing to fund the initial capital expemdé required to purchase our PV products. Duriegdilibbal credit crisis, many of our custon
and many endsers of our PV products experienced difficultiesbtaining financing, and even if they were ablebtain financing, the cost
such financing had increased. As a result, thepgba their decision or changed the timing of teicision to purchase our PV products. T
can be no assurance that our customers ousers will be able to obtain financing on a timeasis or on reasonable terms, which could h
negative impact on their demand for our productsing interest rates may make it difficult for enslers to finance the cost of PV systems
therefore limit the demand for our PV products ant#ad to a reduction in the average selling poiceur PV products.

Since 2011, a decrease in payment to PV productugeys, in the form of feeid-tariffs and other reimbursements, and a redaodti
available financing have caused a decrease in thwtly in a number of PV projects in the Europearrkeis. Payments to PV prod
producers decreased as governments in Europe, ymessure to reduce sovereign debt levels, redsabdidies such as feau-tariffs.
Furthermore, many downstream purchasers of PV pteduere unable to secure sufficient financing Rdf projects due to the global cre
crunch. These market conditions were exacerbatedrbpversupply of PV products driven by increased manufaogucapacity, whic
adversely affected the prices of PV products. Araaied disruption in the ability of our customé&ssobtain financing, economic downturr
an increase in manufacturing capacity of the P\ustiy has led to, and may continue to have, a gct#d material adverse effect on
business, financial condition and results of openst In addition, since we have substantially éased our production capacity in the pasi
years, the decrease in demand for our producttedas, and may continue to result in, idle capacihe reduction in demand has resulte
and may continue to lead to, a significant amotimiup capacity not being utilized, and our asseiadpimpaired.

The average selling price of our PV products mayntiaue to decrease.

Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2008, the supphyPV products has increased significantly as mamanufacturers of PV produ
worldwide, including our company, have engagedigmificant production capacity expansion in recgears. As a result, this state of over
supply has resulted in reductions in the prevaifimgyket prices of PV products as manufacturers hesreced their average selling prices i
attempt to obtain sales. The average selling mfaaur PV modules per watt decreased from RMB11n53010 to RMB8.87 in 2011, and
RMB4.47(US$0.72) in 2012. Our net profit margin lieed from a positive margin of 10.0% in 2010 toegative margin of 14.5% in 20:
and declined further to a negative margin of 42i6%2012. The average selling prices of our PV potslunay decline further, which cor
cause our sales and/or our profit margins to dedind have a material adverse effect on our busifieancial condition, results of operati
and prospects.

As silicon supply increases, the corresponding iease in the global supply of PV modules may advigrsdfect our ability to increase (
maintain our market share. Fluctuation in silicon fice may also adversely impact our business anditessof operations.

Silicon is an essential raw material used in thedpction of solar cells and modules. Prior to mi&, there was an industwyide
shortage of silicon. Increases in the price oteili have in the past increased our production casi$ any significant price increase in
future may adversely affect our business and rexfltoperations. Due to the historical scarcitysiiton, supply chain management
financial strength were the key barriers to enlimylate 2008 and 2009, however, newly availablieail capacity has resulted in an incre:
supply of silicon, which resulted in downward pregson the price of silicon. Although the silicorice rebounded between the third quart:
2010 and the first quarter of 2011 due to the regpef demand for PV products in certain markédts, dilicon price has decreased significe
again starting from the second quarter of 201lhasrésult of increased silicon manufacturing capdorr silicon and the pressure from
decreasing average selling price of PV modules20d2, the polysilicon price continued to declined amached a historical low
approximately US$14 per kilogram in November 20hZaddition, on July 20, 2012, the Ministry of Comroe of Peopla’ Republic of Chin
or MOFCOM, initiated an anti-dumping investigation imports of



Table of Contents

solar grade polysilicon originating in the Unitetht®s and South Korea and an auiidsidy investigation on the same products fromihigec
States. On November 1, 2012, MOFCOM initiated ati-dumping and an ansubsidy investigation on the same products origigain the
EU. On November 26, 2012, MOFCOM launched an ingatbn to determine whether amtitmping duties, or AD, and countervailing dut
or CVD, on polysilicon imported from the United &8s, South Korea and the European Union, if angulishbe levied retroactively. Accordi
to the updated timeline, MOFCOBlpreliminary determinations are scheduled to sgeid by late June 2013 and the time of the finaisam:s
is yet unclear but should in no case be later tharend of 2013. Since polysilicon is one of oujaneaw materials and we have one mykiau
supply agreement with an overseas supplier in bloz@listed countries, if there is any AD or CVDpiased, whether retroactively or not,
cost of production for solar modules may be advratfected. Partly due to China’'s AD and astibsidy investigations against the Un
States, South Korean and European polysilicon nzatwfes, polysilicon prices rebounded slightly siliecember 2012 and remained be
US$20 per kilogram as of the date of this annuadrie We cannot assure you that the price of siliadl continue to decline or remain at
current levels, especially if the global solar powearket regains its growth momentum. As the slgertaf silicon eases, industry barrier
entry become less significant and the PV market bempme more competitive. If we fail to competecgssfully, our business may suffer
we may lose or be unable to gain market share andirancial condition and results of operationsyrba materially and adversely affeci
Such price reductions could have a negative impaciur revenues and net income, and materiallyaaiversely affect our business and re:
of operations.

The reduction or elimination of government subsidi@nd economic incentives for ogrid solar energy applications could have a mate
adverse effect on our business and prospects.

We believe that the near-term growth of the mafket‘on-grid” applications, where solar energy ised to supplement a custonger’
electricity purchased from the electric utility,padads in large part on the availability and sizg@fernment subsidies and economic incent
The ongrid market, the reduction or elimination of gowment subsidies and economic incentives may hiridegtowth of this market, whi
could decrease demand for our products and reduceseenue.

The cost of solar energy currently exceeds the abpbwer furnished by the electric utility grid many countries. As a result, fede
state and local governmental bodies in many castrnost notably Germany, Spain, Italy, the Un@¢ates, Australia, Korea, France anc
Czech Republic, have provided subsidies and ecandmgientives in the form of rebates, tax creditsl ather incentives to end ust
distributors, system integrators and manufactuoérBV products to promote the use of solar energprigrid applications and to redt
dependency on other forms of energy. Governmemao@ incentives are set to be reduced and magddeced further, or eliminated. |
instance, further to the reductions in feeddriffs in 2009 and 2010, the German governmentédsced solar subsidies since April 1, 201
2010, 2011 and 2012, Germany accounted for 62.5368% and 40.5% of our net revenues, respectivegspide the fact that Germe
installed 7,634MW of PV modules in 2012, up 2% fr@01 1, its fourth quarter installations in 2012 f&f 66% compared with the fou
quarter of 2011. According to Gestore dei Serviagéigetici, the annual PV incentives paid out haached €.57 billion as of February 20:
The current funding cap will be reached once theuahincentives paid out reacl6.€ billion. The Italian government increased itsren
subsidy funding cap by only €700 million comparedgtevious years.

In addition, political changes in a particular ctryncould result in significant reductions or elimations of subsidies or econol
incentives. Electric utility companies that havgndficant political lobbying powers may also sedlacges in the relevant legislation in tl
markets that may adversely affect the developmedt@mmmercial acceptance of solar energy. The teduor elimination of governme
subsidies and economic incentives forgrig solar energy applications, especially thos®un target markets, could cause demand fo
products and our net revenues to decline, and hawmterial adverse effect on our business, findraadition, results of operations ¢
prospects.
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Our ability to adjust our raw material costs may tienited as a result of our entering into multfear supply agreements with many of «
silicon and silicon wafer suppliers, and it may lofficult for us to respond in a timely manner taapidly changing market conditions, whi
could materially and adversely affect our cost @évenues and profitability.

Prior to mid-2008, there was an industry-wide siget of siliconrelated materials including silicon, silicon wafensd PV cells, whic
resulted in significant increases in the pricesheSe raw materials. To secure an adequate anty thugply of siliconrelated materials durii
the earlier periods of supply shortage, we entareda number of multirear supply agreements. The prices in the agresmenentered in
prior to mid-2008 were generally pdetermined, but some of these agreements provategdfustments in subsequent years to reflect
in market conditions or through mutual agreemeirtic&the fourth quarter of 2008, the market prifmssilicon+elated materials have be
decreasing significantly. Spot market prices dtsii-related materials have fallen below the priweshave contracted for with our lomerT
suppliers and continued to decline in 2009. Duthéocontinuous significant decrease in priceslafasi-related materials, we have continue
renegotiate all of our multi-year supply agreemesitee 2009. After re-negotiation, the pricing terof such multiyear agreements we
generally subject to review either periodicallyupon significant changes in prices on the spot etafkhe pricing terms of each of these multi
year agreements were adjusted to be more in litle syot market pricing at the time of the-negotiation. In addition, the quantity anc
timing of deliveries were also adjusted in eactedasreflect our updated purchase requirementsrasudt of the changes in market condit
and our capacity expansion. We did not enter imyp @ew multi-year supply agreement in 2012 and aeehrenegotiated all of existir
agreements to lower the unit price of the silicelated materials due to the significant decreagkérprice of silicon related materials in 2(
While we have obtained reduced prices and othecessions from our suppliers, we cannot assure lyauvie will be able to obtain reduc
prices from all of our suppliers in the futureth prices of silicon-related materials continugégarease in the future and we are unable to |
negotiate the prices of our existing muyléar supply agreements, we may not be able to tadjusmaterials costs, and our cost of reve
could be materially and adversely affected. In &oldj the prices of our non-silicaelated raw materials are also subject to marketet
beyond our control. If the prices of these materiacrease in the future, our non-silicalated cost of revenues could be materially
adversely affected.

Furthermore, other PV module manufacturers maytbe @ purchase silicorelated materials on the spot market at lower priteu
those we have contracted for with our suppliers.Wilecontinue to purchase a significant amounsiiton-related materials pursuant to
multi-year supply agreements. In the event we ai@ble to reaegotiate or fulfill our obligations under our slypgreements, we may
subject to significant inventory build-up and mag tequired to make further inventory wridewns and provision for these commitme
which could have a material adverse effect on ausirtess, financial condition, results of operatiansl prospects. We recorded inven
write-downs of RMB134.5 million, RMB583.1 million and RMNR6.1 million (US$52.3 million) in 2010, 2011 an@12, respectively. If tt
prices we pay for siliconelated materials are significantly higher than phiees paid by our competitors, our competitivetcadvantage
producing modules could decrease. Our inabilityetduce a key manufacturing cost to the same dezgemur competitors could advers
affect our ability to price our products competiy and our profit margins.

We may be subject to legal proceedings in connectigth the multiyear supply agreements we entered into previouslgt auch proceeding
can be both costly and time consuming and may sfigaintly divert the efforts and resources of our magement personnel.

During the course of renegotiation of some of thdtRyear supply agreements we entered into previougdymay be subject to leg
administrative or other proceedings if mutual agreet cannot be reached between us and our supgtierexample, on June 8, 2009, LI
one of our silicon suppliers, submitted an arbibratrequest to the Shanghai Arbitration Commissitieging that we failed to perform un
the terms of a multyear framework supply agreement, seeking to enfotceperformance and claiming monetary relief. {2agiies of silicol
under the agreement halted in early 2009 and hatveenommenced. In the hearing held by the Shamytw@iration Commission on March 2
2012, all claims filed by LDK were dismissed andK as
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required to refund the deposit amounting to RMBfrion to us within 30 days from the date of theahing. We have not received the rel
from LDK as of the date of this report. While we= grursuing the enforcement of the awards, LDK stieohia new and separate arbitra
request to the Shanghai Arbitration Commission tipdaits arbitration claim to seek damages of RMB84dillion plus legal cost for o
alleged failure to perform the aforesaid multi-yé@mework supply agreement on April 26, 2012. Stmm 8. Financial Information —A.
Consolidated Statements and Other Financial Infooma— Legal & Administrative Proceedings.”

There is no assurance that we will be able to ssfally defend or resolve such legal or administeaproceedings in the near future ¢
all. Such legal and administrative proceedings lmamoth costly and time consuming and may signifigadivert the efforts and resources
our management personnel. If there are any adyedggnents, our financial condition, results of gigms and liquidity could be materie
and adversely affected.

Prepayments we have provided to our silicon aniteih wafer suppliers expose us to the credit andfpamance risks of such suppliers ai
may not be recovered.

Most of our multiyear supply agreements that we entered into dutiegearlier periods of supply shortage requiredtaisnake
prepayments of a portion of the total contractetiz our suppliers without receiving collateral $mch prepayments. As of December 31, 2
2011 and 2012, we had advanced RMB1,158.3 millRmB680.2 million and RMB350.9 million (US$56.3 nidh), respectively, to o
suppliers. We recorded charges to cost of reveafi@vB0.1 million, RMB287.7 million and RMB186.0 #ion (US$29.9 million) in 201(
2011 and 2012, respectively, to reflect the probdbss arising from the supplieri&ilure to perform under the contracts. In additiore
reclassify advances to other current assets whygh proceedings have commenced where we are clgianbreach of contract and are see
monetary recovery of the remaining deposit. We ndet charges to general and administrative expeatesl, RMB54.5 million an
RMB50.0 million (US$8.0 million) in 2010, 2011 a2@12, respectively, to provide for losses in refatio prepayments to suppliers that v
in contractual default where we have terminatiahts that require repayment of the remaining dépobi the event that a supplier fails
fulfill its delivery obligation or we have disputegth any of our suppliers and we are unable tahean agreement on terms acceptable 1
we may not be able to recover our prepayments nmdeich suppliers. For example, Hoku Corporatiod Bioku Materials, Inc., or Hol
collectively, have failed to fulfill their deliverpbligations under their multiear framework polysilicon supply agreement entergd or
November 19, 2007 and refused to return our prepayof US$49 million. Se“ltem 8. Financial Information —A. Consolidated Stateme
and Other Financial Information — Legal & Admingtive Proceedings.”

Most of our claims for prepayments are unsecuredmd, which expose us to the credit risks of oysp$iers in the event of the
insolvency or bankruptcy. Our claims against thiadking suppliers would rank below those of seduceeditors which would undermine «
chances of obtaining the return of our prepaymeéhtaich suppliers fail to fulfill their deliveryldigations under the contracts or if there is
dispute between us and such suppliers that jegmdiur ongoing relationship, we may have to reeopdlovision relating to or write do
prepayments made to such suppliers, which coulémadly and adversely affect our financial conditiand results of operations.

Evaluating our business and prospects may be difficbecause of the rapid changes in our industryndhour past results may not
indicative of our future performance.

We began operations in August 2004 and shippedimirPV modules and our first PV cells in Februaf05 and November 20(
respectively. With the rapid growth of the PV inttysprior to the fourth quarter of 2008, our busisegrew and evolved at a rapid rate
subsequently experienced a slowdown in 2011 an@.20ar shipment volume in 2011 grew by 5.8% comgbdoea growth rate of 154.6%
2010 and our shipment volume in 2012 decreased. ¥ tompared to 2011. As a result, our historigadrating results may not provid
meaningful basis for evaluating our business, firgrperformance and prospects and we may not leetalachieve growth in future perio
Therefore, you should consider our business anspeus in light of
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the risks, expenses and challenges that we wil ésca company in a competitive industry seekindgteelop and manufacture new produc
a rapidly growing market, and you should not ratyonir past results or our historic rate of growdtaa indication of our future performance.

Our future success substantially depends on ourlidpito manage our production effectively and todece our manufacturing costs. O
ability to achieve such goals is subject to a numbérisks and uncertainties.

Our future success depends on our ability to mawageroduction and facilities effectively and &duce our manufacturing costs.
efforts to reduce our manufacturing costs inclumledring our silicon and auxiliary material costsproving manufacturing productivity a
processes, and improving product quality. If we @mable to achieve these goals, we may be unaldlediase our costs per watt, to mait
our competitive position or to improve our profitié. Our ability to achieve such goals is subj¢ot significant risks and uncertainti
including:

» our ability to continue to ~negotiate our existing mu-year supply agreemen

» our ability to maintain our quality level and keggce with changes in technolog

e our ability to source various raw materic

e our ability to adjust inventory levels to respondapidly changing market demar

» delays in obtaining or denial of required approvslselevant government authorities; ¢
» diversion of significant management attention athegtoresources to other matte

If we are unable to establish or successfully mak@ovements to our manufacturing facilities oréduce our manufacturing costs, ¢
we encounter any of the risks described above, axelme unable to improve our business as planned.

We depend on a limited number of customers and doi@s for a high percentage of our revenues and tlass of, a significant reduction i
orders from, or failure to collect payments fromng of these customers or countries, if not immedigtreplaced, would significantly redu
our revenue and decrease our profitability.

We currently sell a substantial portion of our PMducts to a limited number of customers and coemtiOur five largest custom:
accounted for an aggregate of 51.9%, 45.0% and29f8ur net revenues in 2010, 2011 and 2012, otispdy. Our largest customer in 20
2011 and 2012 accounted for 33.6%, 15.1% and 7f&8@ranet revenues, respectively. In 2012, all of five largest customers are membel
Hanwha Group. Members of Hanwha Group accounted®82% of our net revenues in 2012. Most of ougdacustomers are locatec
Europe, particularly in Germany, Italy and Greelee2010, 2011 and 2012, Germany accounted for 624&28% and 40.5% of our 1
revenues, respectively. In 2012, Germany, the drfel China were the top three countries in termpestentage contribution to our
revenues. The loss of sales to any one of thederass or countries would have a significant negaiinpact on our business. Sales to
customers are mostly made through mowlusive arrangements. Due to our dependenceliomtad number of customers and countries,
one of the following events may cause materialtélatons or declines in our net revenues and havatarial adverse effect on our finan
condition and results of operations:

* reduction, delay or cancellation of orders from onenore of our significant custome
» selection by one or more of our significant custmsya our competito’ products;

» loss of one or more of our significant customers aur failure to identify additional or replacementstomers, including as a re:
of the insolvency or bankruptcy of our custom

« any adverse change in local policies toward salajepts in countries where we receive most orc
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» any adverse change in the bilateral or multilatérede relationships between China and the Unitate$ or European countri
particularly Germany

* any duty imposed on import of PV products as altefuanti-dumping measures or other measures against urddi practice
and

» failure of any of our significant customers to maikeely payment for our product

We face payment collection difficulties with respég certain customers. For example, on July 18,22Qve submitted an arbitrati
request to Guangzhou Arbitration Commission reqgitGuangdong Guo Hua New Energy Investment Co., btrdGuo Hua, owner of a f
project for which we acted as an engineering, p@oent and construction contractor, or an EPC aotdr, to pay a total amount
RMB92 million including, among others, overdue payrnof the EPC contract price, accrued intereshadges and legal costs in accord:
with the EPC contract dated September 21, 2010AQ@yust 5, 2012, Guo Hua filed a counterclaim to @moou Arbitration Commissit
alleging that we have substantially breached th€ Efhtract, and Guo Hua requested to terminat&B@ contract and demanded us to ¢
total amount of RMB187 million for breach of cordtaSee “Item 8. Financial Information A- Consolidated Statements and Other Fina
Information — Legal & Administrative Proceedingsihere is no assurance that we will prevail in ttlsm or similar claims against ¢
customers for payment collections and if we faistmceed in such claims, we may not be able tovexdbe fees due to us, which may ha
material adverse effect on our results of operation

We expect our operating results to continue to dépm sales to a relatively small number of custsnoe countries for a high percent
of our revenue for the foreseeable future, as agethe ability of these customers to sell PV pregltieat incorporate our PV products.

We enter into framework agreements with many of austomers that set forth our customgrgichase goals and the general condi
under which our sales are to be made. However, sachework agreements are only binding to the d@xéepurchase order for a spec
amount of our products is issued. In addition, aiarkey sales terms of the framework agreements neagdjusted from time to time.
addition, we have in the past megotiated some of our framework agreements dubedalisagreements with our customers relating ¢
volumes, delivery schedules and pricing terms donathin such agreements. However, it may not alvieys our best interests to megotiati
our framework agreements and disagreements on teayescalate into formal disputes that could caiss®e experience order cancellation
harm our reputation.

Furthermore, our customer relationships have besreldped over a relatively short period of time. ¥mnot be certain that ths
customers will generate significant revenue foiruthe future or if these customer relationship @antinue to develop. If our relationsh
with customers do not continue to develop, we matybe able to expand our customer base or maintaircrease our customers and revenue

Our dependence on a limited number of suppliers Bosubstantial majority of silicorrelated materials may prevent us from deliveringr
products in a timely manner to our customers in thequired quantities, which could result in ordermacellations, decreased revenue ¢
loss of market share.

In 2010, 2011 and 2012, our five largest silicortemial suppliers supplied in the aggregate 40.006% and 72.4%, respectively, of
total silicon and silicon wafer purchases. If wi i develop or maintain our relationships witlesle or our other suppliers and we are unal
obtain these materials from alternative sources fimely manner or on commercially reasonable temgsmay be unable to manufacture
products in a timely manner or at a reasonable ocostt all, and as a result, we may not be abbietiver our products to our customers in
required quantities, at competitive prices and ooeptable terms of delivery. Problems of this koawlld cause us to experience o
cancellations, increased manufacturing costs, dserkrevenue and loss of market share. In addgiome of our suppliers have a limi
operating history and limited financial resourcesd the contracts we entered into with these seqgptio not clearly provide for adeqt
remedies to us in the event any of these supp$ierst able to, or otherwise does not, deliveg timely manner or at all,

10
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any materials it is contractually obligated to deli Furthermore, the global economic crisis anel rilsulting decrease in availability
financing had a significant negative impact orcsiti material suppliers. Suppliers typically reqursignificant amount of capital to fund tt
operating activities, expand their manufacturingilittees, and conduct research and developmentvities. The inability of our suppliers
access capital or the insolvency of our suppliengicc lead to their failure to deliver silicon ma#ds to us. Any disruption in the supply
silicon materials to us may adversely affect owibess, financial condition and results of opereio

Our failure to obtain sufficient quantities of sitionrelated materials in a timely manner could disrupur operations, prevent us fro
operating at full capacity or limit our ability texpand as planned, which would reduce, and limietgrowth of, our manufacturing outpt
and revenue.

We depend on the timely delivery by our suppliefssiticon-related materials in sufficient volumddntil mid-2008, there was
industry-wide shortage of silicon-related materi@srrently, the market is experiencing an overacity of siliconfelated materials. While v
do not believe a shortage of silicon-related matenvill re-occur in the short term because of current mar&atlitions and the expansion
silicon and silicon wafer manufacturing capacityrécent years, we cannot assure you that markelitcmms will not again rapidly change
we will always be able to obtain sufficient quaiest of siliconrelated materials in a timely manner. We may exgmex actual shortages
silicon-related materials or late or failed deliwvéor the following reasons:

» the terms of our silicon and silicon wafer contsaeith, or purchase orders to, our suppliers magiteazed or cancelled as a resu
our ongoing r-negotiations with therr

» there are a limited number of silicon and silicoafev suppliers, and many of our competitors alschmse silicorrelated materia
from these suppliers and may have longer and stramdationship with these suppliers than we

« some of our silicon and silicon wafer suppliersnid manufacture silicon themselves, but insteadhmase their requirements fr
other vendors. It is possible that these suppheis not be able to obtain sufficient silicon orlison wafers to satisfy the
contractual obligations to us; a

» our purchase of silicorelated materials is subject to the business risiuo suppliers, one or more of which may go oubwosines
for any one of a number of reasons beyond our abimthe current economic environme

If we fail to obtain delivery of silicomelated materials in amounts and according to s8oteedules that we expect, we may be forc
reduce production, which will adversely affect eevenues. Our failure to obtain the required anmmofisiliconfelated materials on time &
at commercially reasonable prices could substdyntlahit our ability to meet our contractual obligans to deliver PV products to ¢
customers. Any failure by us to meet such obligegticould have a material adverse effect on ourtat¢ipn, retention of customers, mai
share, business and results of operations and ofggcs us to claims from our customers and othgpudes.

We currently have a significant amount of debt otaeding. Our substantial indebtedness may limit ofuture financing capabilities an
could adversely affect our business, financial catioh and results of operations.

The principal amount of our total bank borrowinggstanding was RMB3,914.7 million (US$628.4 milljaas of December 31, 2012
which RMB1,162.4 million (US$186.6 million) were aftrterm bank borrowings. In addition, we had US$106ikion principal amount ¢
convertible bonds, with carrying value of RMB36&lion (US$59.2 million), outstanding as of Deceenl31, 2012. Our debt could hav
significant impact on our future operations anchdd@w, including:

e making it more difficult for us to fulfill paymerand other obligations under our outstanding deletuding repayment of our long-
and shorterm credit facilities should we be unable to abtaxtensions for any such facilities before theytureg as well as o
obligations under our convertible bon
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» triggering an event of default, if we fail to complith any of our payment or other obligations @néd in our debt agreements
fail to obtain waivers, which could result in cratsfaults causing all or a substantial portion af @ebt to become immediately ¢
and payable and other penalties. We had remediatedefault of longerm loan agreements as of December 31, 2012 tayntt
waivers from the bank:

* reducing the availability of cash flow to fund waorg capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions arder general corpore
purposes, and adversely affecting our ability ttawbadditional financing for these purpos

» potentially increasing the cost of any additionahhcing; anc

e putting pressure on our ADS price due to concefruo inability to repay our debt and making it radtifficult for us to condu
equity financings in the capital marke

Our ability to meet our payment and other obligadionder our outstanding debt depends on ouryatnligenerate cash flow in the fut
or to refinance such debt. We may not be able teigge sufficient cash flow from operations to deals to meet our obligations under
outstanding debt and to fund other liquidity nedtisie are not able to generate sufficient castwfto meet such obligations, we may nee
refinance or restructure our debt, to sell our tasse reduce or delay our capital investmentsp@eek additional equity or debt financing.
cannot assure you that future financing will beilabde in amounts or on terms acceptable to ustiéll. In addition, the incurrence
additional indebtedness would result in increasadrést rate risk and debt service obligations, @nad result in operating and financ
covenants that would further restrict our operagiand limit our ability to obtain the financing teged to fund future capital expenditures
working capital. As a result, our ability to plaor for react effectively to, changing market coiotis may be adversely and materially affected

We require a significant amount of capital to funour operations as well as meet future capital reqements. If we cannot obtain addition
capital when we need it, our growth prospects antufe profitability may be materially and adversefffected.

We typically require a significant amount of capita fund our operations. We also require cash galyeto meet future capit
requirements, which are difficult to plan in theidly changing PV industry. The principal amountoafr total bank borrowings outstand
was RMB3,914.7 million (US$628.4 million) as of ecber 31, 2012. We cannot assure you that futur@nding will be available «
satisfactory terms, or at all. Our ability to obtaixternal financing in the future is subject teagiety of uncertainties, including:

» our future financial condition, results of operascand cash flow:
» general market conditions for financing activittgsmanufacturers of PV and related products;
e economic, political and other conditions in the P& elsewhere in the worl

If we are unable to obtain necessary financing timaly manner or on commercially acceptable teronst all, our growth prospects ¢
future profitability may decrease materially.

We face risks associated with the marketing, distiiion and sale of our PV products internationallyand if we are unable to effective
manage these risks, our expansion may be materiaty adversely affected.

A substantial majority of our revenue has been gead by sales to customers outside of China. Taketing, distribution and sale
our PV products overseas expose us to a numbesksf including:

« fluctuations in currency exchange rates of the ddlar, Euro and other foreign currencies agaimstRenminbi
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» difficulty in engaging and retaining distributorachagents who are knowledgeable about, and catidaneffectively in, overse:
markets;

» increased costs associated with maintaining manfgetnd sales activities in various countr

« difficulty and costs relating to compliance withfdrent commercial and legal requirements in thiesglictions in which we offer o
products;

« inability to obtain, maintain or enforce intelleatyproperty rights; an

» trade barriers, such as export requirements, $atéfkes and other restrictions and expenses, vdoigld increase the prices of
products and make us less competitive in some desr

If we are unable to effectively manage these riskis,ability to conduct or expand our business athrwould be impaired, which may
turn have a material adverse effect on our busjrigsscial condition, results of operations andspects.

Changes in international trade policies and intertianal barriers to trade may material adversely aft our ability to export our produc
worldwide.

As a result of a petition filed on October 19, 2@¥/1U.S. producers of solar crystalline silicon 8alls, or solar panels, the Departmer
Commerce, or the DOC, published an Antidumping Doitder, or an AD Order, and a Countervailing Dutyl®, or a CVD Order, on so
panels imported from China on December 7, 2012.s€guently, imports of solar panels from SolarOndo@g are subject to a combir
effective AD and CVD deposit rate of 29.18%, of alhil5.24% is attributable to the CVD. Imports ofasganels from SolarOne Hong Kc
are subject to a combined effective rate of 254.6&¥%ich is comprised of an AD of 239.42% and a C¥D15.24%. Actual AD and CV
ultimately due will be determined by the DOC aftsrreview of actual transactions. Such review safdace annually in the anniversary mc
of the publication of the AD and CVD Orders, andes the preceding ongar period. SolarOne Qidong is undertaking effttprotect itse
against the potential increases of AD and CVD msthreviews. SolarOne Qidong is challenging the 3Ji@al ruling at the United Sta
Court of International Trade and also has joindtkt in challenging the final determination of mateinjury made by the United Sta
International Trade Commission, or the USITC, in effort to overturn these decisions. There is nsuemce that we will succeed
overturning the final rulings of the DOC and thelDS or that the AD and CVD will be eliminated arftetduty deposit rates will be reduc
The imposition of the AD and CVD and any increasé¢hie rate of AD or CVD or their respective depwatios will significantly increase t
price of our products, negatively affect our satethe U.S. and adversely affect our results ofrafens.

On September 6 and November 8, 2012, the Europeamtission initiated an antidumping proceeding andaatisubsidy proceedir
concerning imports of crystalline silicon PV moduland key components, such as cells and wafeiginating in China. We have tak
necessary steps to deploy a vigorous defense $e fh®ceedings in order to annul the European Cesioms refusal to consider the claims
market economy treatment, which would allow usdoeeive an individual reduction in the calculatidnA® duties. On March 11, 2013, ¢
concerned subsidiaries filed an application forahaulment of Regulation (EU) No. 1168/2012 of Eheopean Parliament and of the Cou
of December 12, 2012 amending Council Regulatidd)(Eo. 1225/2009 on Protection against Dumped Itsploom Countries not Membg
of the European Community (OJ 2012 L 344/1), ins@fs it was applied to the relevant subsidiaries| af the European Commissian’
decision on January 3, 2013 refusing consideraifaihe above-mentioned subsidiarietaims for market economy treatment. It is diffictd
predict the AD rates that may apply to our exptotshe EU. Consequently, at this point of time, ave unable to assess the impact of t
proceedings on our exports to the European UniakehaAn unfavorable outcome of such proceedingacdtsignificantly increase the price
our products, negatively affect our sales in theoBaan Union market and adversely affect our resaflbperations.
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It is also possible that other AD or CVD or otherpiort restrictive proceedings may be initiated theo jurisdictions. For example,
November 2012, India initiated AD investigationsaaugt solar cell imported from China, the Unitedt8$, Malaysia and Taiwan. We car
guarantee that the proceeding will be determineduinfavor. Violations of laws of AD and CVD cansudt in significant additional duti
imposed on exports of our products into these e@stwhich could increase our costs of accessitigéd additional markets.

In response to increasing trade tensions in therational solar market, we are undertaking effartavoid or alleviate the impacts fr
the present and foreseeable AD and CVD proceediig&ever, we cannot assure you that these effoittsoer successful due to poten
policy changes or other changes in the activitiebs @ractices of the various national trade auttesritesponsible for AD and CVD enforcem

If we are unable to compete in the highly compet&iPV market, our revenue and profits may decreasd we may lose market shar

The PV market is very competitive. We face comjmstitfrom a number of PV manufacturers, includingnéstic, foreign ar
multinational corporations. We believe that thenpipal competitive factors in the markets for otmducts are:

* manufacturing capacit

» power efficiency:

» product offerings and quality of produc

e price;

» strength of supply chain and distribution netwt
» aftersales services; ar

» brand name recognitio

Many of our current and potential competitors hdweger operating histories, access to larger custobases and resources
significantly greater economies of scale than we Idgparticular, many of our competitors are depeig and manufacturing solar ene
products based on new technologies that may ukindtave costs similar to, or lower than, our pctge costs. In addition, our competil
may be able to respond more quickly to changingotasr demands or devote more resources to theageweht, promotion and sales of tl
products than we can. Furthermore, competitors witine diversified product offerings may be bettesiponed to withstand a decline in
demand for PV products. Some of our competitorseteso become vertically integrated, with businesaaging from upstream silicon we
manufacturing to solar power system integration.&ee only recently expanded our business to irchafar power system integration anc
may not have the same level of expertise and custbase as our competitors, which may affect oilityato successfully expand this busin
line. It is possible that new competitors or alties among existing competitors could emerge anidllyapcquire significant market sha
which would harm our business. For instance, séwwamiconductor manufacturers have already annauticeir intention to commen
production of PV cells and PV modules. If we faildompete successfully, our business would sufiervae may lose or be unable to ¢
market share and our financial condition and resaflioperations would be materially and adversticted.

In addition, the PV market in general competes witier sources of renewable energy as well as coioval power generation. If pric
for conventional and other renewable energy ressudecline, or if these resources enjoy greatdcypsupport than solar power, the
market and our business and prospects could beiaigtand adversely affected.
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Our profitability depends on our ability to resportd rapid market changes in the PV industry, inclung) by developing new technologies ¢
offering additional products and services.

The PV industry is characterized by rapid changebe diversity and complexity of technologies,dqurcts and services. In particular,
ongoing evolution of technological standards resgiiproducts with improved features, such as mdieiesft and higher power output ¢
improved aesthetics. As a result, we expect thatvilleneed to develop, or obtain access to, advaimedechnologies on a continuous bas
order for us to respond to competitive market ctioié and customer demands. In addition, advamceschnologies typically lead to declin
average selling prices for products using oldehretgies or make our current products less coniyetor obsolete. As a result,
profitability of any given product, and our overpibfitability, may decrease over time.

In addition, we will need to invest significant éincial resources in research and development totamaiour competitiveness and k
pace with technological advances in the PV indusiigwever, commercial acceptance by customerswfpreducts we offer may not occul
the rate or level expected, and we may not be tableuccessfully adapt existing products to effedyivand economically meet custor
demands, thus impairing the return from our investts. We may also be required under the applicatdeunting standards to recogni:
charge for the impairment of assets to the extanegisting products become uncompetitive or olisoler if any new products fail to achit
commercial acceptance. Any such charge may havateria adverse effect on our financial conditio aesults of operations.

Moreover, in response to the rapidly evolving ctinds in the PV industry, we started to expand lousiness downstream to prov
system integration products and services in 20b@s &xpansion requires significant investment ath@agement attention from us, and we
likely to face intense competition from companibatthave extensive experience and wsliablished businesses and customer bases
system integration sector. We cannot assure ydumeavill succeed in expanding our business doveastr. If we are not able to bring qua
products and services to market in a timely and-efisctive manner and successfully market and kel products and services, our abili
continue penetrating the PV market, as well agesults of operations and profitability, will be tedally and adversely affected.

Our future success also depends on our ability take strategic acquisitions and investments and &iablish and maintain strateg
alliances, and failure to do so could have a matdradverse effect on our market penetration, revengrowth and profitability. In additior
such strategic acquisitions, alliances and investite themselves entail significant risks that couldaterially and adversely affect o
business.

We are pursuing expansion into PV system integnatirvices through our subsidiary, Hanwha Solar(&manghai) Co., Ltd., or So
Shanghai, and we may pursue upstream silicon feeldstourcing through strategic partnerships anéstments in the future. We may ¢
establish strategic alliances with third partieshi@ PV industry to develop new technologies anexpand our marketing channels. These t
of transactions could require that our managemeneldp expertise in new areas, make significanéstments in research and developn
manage new business relationships and attractype bf customers. They may also require signifiegtention from our management, wt
could have a material adverse effect on our abiitynanage our business. We may also experienfieutties integrating acquisitions a
investments into our existing business and operatémd retaining key technical and managerial pexsioof acquired companies.

Strategic acquisitions, investments and alliancits third parties may be expensive to implement aodld subject us to a numbel
risks, including risks associated with sharing pietary information and loss of control of operatiahat are material to our business. We
assume unknown liabilities or other unanticipatecgenés or circumstances through acquisitions andestments. Moreover, strate
acquisitions, investments and alliances subjet¢bube risk of norperformance by a counterparty, which may in tuadléo monetary loss
that materially and adversely affect our businéss.a result, we may not be able to successfully ensiich strategic acquisitions
investments or to establish strategic allianceh tiird parties that will be effective or benefidiar our business. Any difficulty we face in t
regard could have a material adverse effect ommaurket penetration, results of operations and tadoifity.
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Problems with product quality or product performaacould result in a decrease in customers and raxerunexpected expenses and los
market share. In addition, product liability or waanty claims against us could result in adverse fiaglly and potentially significan
monetary damages.

Prior to 2012, our PV products were typically solith a two to five-year warranty for technical deffis and a 1Q<ar limited warrant
against declines of greater than 10% and y&2B-limited warranty against declines of greatemt20%, in their initial power generat
capacity. Since January 2012, we started to extendanaterial and workmanship warranty for PV modute 12 years and replace our exis
warranty for power generation capacity with an ioyed 25-year linear warranty. Under the newy2as linear warranty, we guarantee no
than 97% of the nominal power generation capadatydur typical multicrystalline PV modules and 9&%the nominal power generati
capacity for our typical monocrystalline PV modulesthe first year and an annual output degradatbmo more than 0.7% for bc
multicrystalline and monocrystalline PV modulesréadter. By the end of the 25th year, the actualgyooutput shall be no less than 82% o
nominal power generation capacity. Since our prtalbave been in use for only a relatively shortiqekrour assumptions regarding
durability and reliability of our products may ¢ accurate. We consider various factors when m@terg the likelihood of product defec
including an evaluation of our quality controlsghaical analysis, industry information on compagatdbmpanies and our own experience.
estimate the amount of our warranty obligation prity based on the results of technical analysas historical warranty claims experien
the warranty accrual practices of comparable comegaand the expected failure rate and future dossgrvice failed products. The result
the technical analyses support the future operatiefficiency of the PV modules at levels signifidgt above the minimum guaranteed le'
over the respective warranty periods. The estirotwarranty costs is affected by the estimated artdal product failure rates, the cost
repair or replace failed products and potentiaviserand delivery costs incurred in correcting adorct failure. Based on the considerat
above and managementbility and intention to provide repairs, replaeats or refunds for defective products, we haweusd for warrant
costs for the 2 to 1gear warranty against technical defects based orofl%evenue for PV modules. No warranty cost adchazs bee
recorded for the 10-year and 20 toy&ar warranties for decline from initial power geat®n capacity because we determined the likelihal
claims arising from these warranties to be remasel on internal and external testing of the PVutesdand strong quality control procedi
in the production process. Based on the resulésalysis and technical testing, the revision towarranty policy in January 2012 did not h
a material effect on our warranty accrual rate. basis for the warranty accrual will be reviewed gdically based on actual experience. A
December 31, 2010 and 2011, our accrued warrardis ¢otaled RMB131.7 million and RMB162.1 millioarfthe two to five year warrar
against technical and material defects, respegtiaid as of December 31, 2012, totaled RMB17718omi(US$28.6 million) for the five 1
12 year warranty against technical and materiadctef

If our PV modules fail to perform to the standaofishe performance guarantee, we could incur sakiateexpenses and substantial
outlays to repair, replace or provide refunds far tindemperforming products, which could negatively impaat overall cash position. A
increase in the defect rate of our products wondgase the amount of our warranty costs and wernogllave adequate warranty provisio
cover such warranty costs, which would have a meg@npact on our results of operations.

In addition, we purchase silicomiated materials and other components that wénuser products from third parties. Unlike PV moels
which are subject to certain uniform internatios@ndards, silicomelated materials generally do not have uniforrenmational standards,
it is often difficult to determine whether prodwt#fects are caused by defects in silicon, silicafievs or other components of our produc
caused by other reasons. Even assuming that odugiraefects are caused by defects in raw materisdsmay not be able to recover
warranty costs from our suppliers because the aggets we entered into with our suppliers typicatiyitain no or only limited warranties. 1
possibility of future product failures could causeto incur substantial expense to provide refuwrdesolve disputes with regard to warr:
claims through litigation, arbitration or other mesaor damage our market reputation and causeates ®© decline.

As with other PV product manufacturers, we are sgpao risks associated with product liability eiaiif the use of the PV products
sell results in injury, death or damage to propafie cannot predict whether
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product liability claims will be brought against imsthe future or the effect of any resulting n@gapublicity on our business. See “We haw
limited insurance coverage and may incur lossadtieg from product liability claims or businesgenruptions.”

If PV technology is not suitable for widespread autmn, or sufficient demand for PV products doestraevelop or takes longer to deve
than we anticipated, our sales may not continuerorease or may even decline, and our revenue anafipability would be reduced.

The PV market is at a relatively early stage ofadepment and the extent to which PV products wéllvkidely adopted is uncerta
Furthermore, market data in the PV industry are awteadily available as those in other more dstedd industries, where trends car
assessed more reliably from data gathered ovemgetgperiod of time. If PV technology, in particuthe type of PV technology that we h
adopted, proves unsuitable for widespread adomiahdemand for PV products fails to develop siéfintly, we may not be able to grow
business or generate sufficient revenue to sustaiprofitability. In addition, demand for PV prozta in our targeted markets, including Ch
may not develop or may develop to a lesser extwan tve anticipated. Many factors may affect théilitg of widespread adoption of F
technology and demand for PV products, including:

» cos-effectiveness of PV products compared to conveatiand other nc-solar energy sources and produ
» performance and reliability of PV products compa@donventional and other r-solar energy sources and produ

» availability of government subsidies and incentitessupport the development of the PV industry trep energy resour
industries;

» success of other alternative energy generatiomt#obies, such as fuel cells, wind power and biay

« fluctuations in economic and market conditions thfi¢ct the viability of conventional and neoar alternative energy sourc
such as increases or decreases in the pricesariaibther fossil fuels

» capital expenditures by end users of PV produdisciwtend to decrease when the overall economysstiwn; anc
» deregulation of the electric power industry andiheader energy industr

One of our existing shareholders has substantiaflirence over our company and its interests may attays be aligned with the interests
our other shareholders.

Hanwha Solar owns approximately 49.48% of our amiding share capital as of April 12, 2013. Pursuard shareholder agreem
between Hanwha Solar and our company dated Septei6p2010, Hanwha Solar has the right to desigtiate directors to our board ¢
veto major corporate actions. Hanwha Solar hastantial influence over our business, including diexis regarding mergers, consolidat
and the sale of all or substantially all of ouredsselection of directors and other significampooate actions. This concentration of owner
may discourage, delay or prevent a change in coofrour companywhich could deprive our shareholders of an oppattuto receive
premium for its shares as part of a sale of ourpgaomy and might reduce the price of our ADSs. Initaafd without the consent of Hanw
Solar, we could be prevented from entering intadegtions that could be beneficial to us. HanwharSunay cause us to take actions tha
opposed by other shareholders as its interestsdifi@y from those of other shareholders. Hanwhaupra company that controls Hany
Solar, has several subsidiaries in the solar imgusbme of which are our key customers. How Han®haup positions our company within
subsidiary group could have a material impact onresults of operations. Hanwha Grosistrategic plan involving our company may
always be aligned with the interests of our otlarsholders.
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Existing regulations and policies governing the etecity utility industry, as well as changes to galations and policies affecting P
products, may adversely affect demand for our prothuand materially reduce our revenue and profi

The electric utility industry is subject to exterssiregulation, and the market for PV products avilg influenced by these regulations
well as the policies promulgated by electric ugkt These regulations and policies often affesttelkity pricing and technical interconnect
of enduser power generation. As the market for solarahdr alternative energy sources continues to eythese regulations and policies
being modified and may continue to be modified. t6uer purchases of, or further investment in redeand development of, solar and o
alternative energy sources may be significanthe@fd by these regulations and policies, which daignificantly reduce demand for «
products and materially reduce our revenue andtprof

Moreover, we expect that our PV products and tinstallation will be subject to oversight and regjidn in accordance with national
local ordinances relating to building codes, safetwironmental protection, utility interconnectiand metering and related matters in vai
countries. We also have to comply with the requeets of individual localities and design equipmémtcomply with varying standar
applicable in the jurisdictions where we conductibass. Any new government regulations or utilityigies pertaining to our PV products n
result in significant additional expenses to ug, distributors and end users and, as a resultdooalise a significant reduction in demanc
our PV products, as well as materially and advgra#éct our financial condition and results of cgg®ns.

The lack or inaccessibility of subsidies or finamgj for off-grid solar energy applications could cae our sales to decline.

Some of our products are used for “off-grigiblar energy applications in developed and devepgountries, where solar energ
provided to end users independent of an electricitlysmission grid. In some countries, governmegenaies and the private sector have,
time to time, provided subsidies or financing oefprred terms for rural electrification programse Welieve that the availability of financi
could have a significant effect on the level oksabf offgrid solar energy applications, particularly in d®ping countries where users may
have sufficient resources or credit to otherwisquae PV systems. If existing subsidies or finagcjprograms for offyrid solar energ
applications are eliminated or if financing beconieaccessible, the growth of the market for gifid solar energy applications may
materially and adversely affected, which may causgesales to decline.

Our failure to protect our intellectual property ghts may undermine our competitive position, antigation to protect our intellectu:
property rights may be costl

We rely primarily on patents, trademarks, traderetsc copyrights and other contractual restrictitmgrotect our intellectual propet
Nevertheless, these afford only limited protectiord the actions we take to protect our intellechraperty rights may not be adequate
particular, implementation of PRC intellectual peag-elated laws has historically been lacking, pritydbecause of ambiguities in the P
laws and difficulties in enforcement. Accordingigtellectual property rights and confidentialityopections in China may not be as effectiv
in the United States or other countries. Policimgquthorized use of our proprietary technologies lwardifficult and expensive. In additic
litigation may be necessary to enforce our intéllat property rights, protect our trade secretdleiermine the validity and scope of
proprietary rights of others. We also cannot asyorethat the outcome of any such litigation wobéin our favor. An adverse determina
in any such litigation will impair our intellectuglroperty rights and may harm our business, praspmud reputation. Furthermore, any ¢
litigation may be costly and may divert managenagtantion away from our business as well as requsreo expend other resources. We |
no insurance coverage against litigation costsvemald have to bear all costs arising from suclgdition to the extent we are unable to rec
them from other parties. The occurrence of anyheffbregoing could have a material adverse effacour business, financial condition :
results of operations.
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We may be exposed to infringement or misappropoaticlaims by third parties, particularly in jurisditions outside China which,
determined adversely against us, could disrupt dwsiness and subject us to significant liability tbird parties, as well as have a matel
adverse effect on our financial condition and ressilof operations.

Our success depends, in large part, on our alidityse and develop our technologies and khow-without infringing the intellectu
property rights of third parties. As we continuentarket and sell our products internationally, asditigation becomes more common in
PRC, we face a higher risk of being the subjeatlaims for intellectual property infringement, aglivas having indemnification relating
other partiesproprietary rights held to be invalid. Our currenfpotential competitors, many of which have sultihresources and have m
substantial investments in competing technologiesy have or may obtain patents that will preventitlor interfere with our ability to mak
use or sell our products in the European UnionRRE or other countries. The validity and scopelaims relating to PV technology pate
involve complex, scientific, legal and factual qumss and analysis and, therefore, may be highlgettain. In addition, the defense
intellectual property claims, including patent inffement suits, and related legal and adminisggpinoceedings can be both costly and
consuming, and may significantly divert the effoetssd resources of our technical and managemenbmegk Furthermore, an adve
determination in any such litigation or proceediogvhich we may become a party could cause us to:

e pay damage award

» seek licenses from third partie
* pay ongoing royalties

e redesign our products;

* be restricted by injunction

each of which could effectively prevent us fromsuing some or all of our business and result incoistomers or potential customers defel
or limiting their purchase or use of our produgthjch could have a material adverse effect on manfcial condition and results of operations.

We may not be able to obtain sufficient patent gotion on the technologies embodied in the PV produwe currently manufacture ar
sell, which could reduce our competitiveness andrigase our expense

Although we rely primarily on trade secret laws aoditractual restrictions to protect the technaegn the PV cells and PV modules
currently manufacture and sell, our success anlityatd compete in the future may also depend wigmificant degree on obtaining pal
protection for our proprietary technologies. AsAgiril 26, 2013, we had 40 issued patents and 1#lipgrpatent applications in the PRC.

We do not have, and have not applied for, any pafien our proprietary technologies outside the PREthe protections afforded by «
patents are effective only in the PRC, our competiand other companies may independently develbgtantially equivalent technologies
otherwise gain access to our proprietary technelkygand obtain patents for such technologies iargthisdictions, including the countries
which we sell our products. Moreover, our patergligations in the PRC may not result in issued pateand even if they do result in iss
patents, the patents may not have claims of thpeseee seek. In addition, any issued patents maghladlenged, invalidated or decla
unenforceable. As a result, our present and fytatents may provide only limited protection for éechnologies, and may not be sufficier
provide competitive advantages to us.

We depend on our key personnel, and our businesd gnowth may be severely disrupted if we lose thegrvices or fail to recruit ne
qualified personnel.

Our future success depends substantially on theéncmd services of some of our directors and kescatives. If we lose the services
one or more of our current directors and executffieers, we may not be
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able to replace them readily, if at all, with sbigor qualified candidates, and may incur add#@l@xpenses to recruit and retain new dire:
and officers, particularly those with a significamix of both international and Chirzmsed PV industry experience similar to our cu
directors and officers, which could severely disropr business and growth. In addition, if any of directors or executives joins a compe
or forms a competing company, we may lose someuofcostomers. Each of these directors and execulifreers has entered into
employment agreement with us, which contains cenfiidlity and norcompetition provisions. However, if any disputesabetween the
directors or executive officers and us, it is netac the extent to which any of these agreementkidze enforced outside of the United St:
where most of these directors and executive officeside and hold some of their assets, partiguiladight of uncertainties associated with
PRC legal system. See “— Risks Related to Doingir&iss in China —Uncertainties with respect to the PRC legal systemid have
material adverse effect on ugzurthermore, as we expect to continue to expandoperations and develop new products, we will ne
continue attracting and retaining experienced mamegnt and key research and development personnel.

Competition for personnel in the PV industry in @iis intense, and the availability of suitable gudlified candidates is limited.
particular, we compete to attract and retain gigalifesearch and development personnel with otieleBhnology companies, universities
research institutions. Competition for these indlivls could cause us to offer higher compensatimhaher benefits in order to attract
retain them, which could have a material adverfecebn our financial condition and results of gigems. We may also be unable to attra
retain the personnel necessary to achieve our égsiobjectives, and any failure in this regardadaelerely disrupt our business and growth.

Any failure to achieve and maintain effective inteal control could have a material adverse effect oar business, results of operations &
the market price of our ADSs.

The SEC, as required by Section 404 of the Sarb@mésy Act of 2002, or the Sarban@sdey Act, adopted rules requiring most pu
companies to include a management report on suctpaay's internal control over financial reporting in &snual report, which contai
management’s assessment of the effectiveness abthpanys internal control over financial reporting. In &éth, when a company meets
SEC's criteria, an independent registered publaoanting firm must report on the effectivenesshef tompanys internal control over financ
reporting.

Our management and independent registered puldauating firm have concluded that our internal conbver financial reporting as
December 31, 2012 was effective. However, we camasgetire you that in the future our management oriraiependent registered pul
accounting firm will not identify material weaknessduring the Section 404 of the Sarba@esy Act audit process or for other reason:
addition, because of the inherent limitations deinal control over financial reporting, includinige possibility of collusion or improg
management override of controls, material misstatémdue to error or fraud may not be preventedktected on a timely basis. As a resu
we fail to maintain effective internal control oviamancial reporting or should we be unable to prévor detect material misstatements di
error or fraud on a timely basis, investors couwsel confidence in the reliability of our financi&htements, which in turn could harm
business, results of operations and negatively étnjee market price of our ADSs, and harm our rafonn. Furthermore, we have incurred
expected to continue to incur considerable costk tanuse significant management time and otheruress in an effort to comply wi
Section 404 and other requirements of the Sarb@mésy Act.

We have limited insurance coverage and may incusdes resulting from business interruptions or praddiability claims.

We are subject to risk of explosion and fires, &ghly flammable gases, such as silane and nitroggsy, are generated in
manufacturing processes. While we have not expegikiio date any major explosion or fire, the riaksociated with these gases canni
completely eliminated. In addition, natural disasteuch as floods or earthquakes, or other unpat®il catastrophic events, including pc
interruption, telecommunications failures, equiptrfeiiures, explosions, fires, break-ins, terrodatticks or acts of war, could significantly
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disrupt our ability to manufacture our products andperate our business. If any of our producftawilities or material equipment were
experience any significant damage or downtime, vghtrbe unable to meet our production targets amdbasiness could suffer. Although
have obtained business interruption insurance,ay mot be able to fully cover losses caused bybtl@ness interruption because busi
interruption insurance available in China offersited coverage compared to that offered in mangratbuntries.

We are also exposed to risks associated with ptddnility claims in the event that the use of #A¥¢ products we sell results in inju
death or damage to property. Due to limited histdriexperience, we are unable to predict whethedymt liability claims will be broug
against us in the future or the effect of any rasgladverse publicity on our business. Moreovee, anly have limited product liabili
insurance and may not have adequate resourcesigfy sajudgment in the event of a successful clagainst us. The successful assertic
product liability claims against us could resultpiotentially significant monetary damages and nequs to make significant payments, wi
could materially and adversely affect our businéeancial condition and results of operations.

Any environmental claims or failure to comply withny present or future environmental regulations magquire us to spend addition
funds and may materially and adversely affect oumdncial condition and results of operation:

We are subject to a variety of laws and regulatiaiating to the use, storage, discharge and didpischemical by products of, &
water used in, our manufacturing operations anéates and development activities, including toxiojatile and otherwise hazard«
chemicals and wastes. We are in all material respecompliance with current PRC environmentaltations to conduct our business as
presently conducted. Although we have not sufferederial environmental claims in the past, failtwecomply with any present or futt
regulations could result in the assessment of damagimposition of fines against us, suspensigoraduction or a cessation of our operati
New regulations could also require us to acquirlg@quipment or to incur other significant expensAny failure by us to control the use
or to adequately restrict the discharge of, haasdsubstances could subject us to potentially fiigmit monetary damages and fine:
suspension of our business, as well as our finhooiaition and results of operations.

The use of certain hazardous substances, suchadsife various products is also coming under ingrggdy stringent governmen
regulation. Increased environmental regulationhis firea could adversely impact the manufacturesatel of solar modules that contain |
and could require us to make unanticipated enviertal expenditures. For example, the European Ubipective 2002/96/EC on Wa:
Electrical and Electronic Equipment, or the WEER€ebiive, requires manufacturers of certain eleatrend electronic equipment to
financially responsible for the collection, recyi treatment and disposal of specified producsed on the market in the European Unio
addition, European Union Directive 2002/95/EC oa Restriction of the use of Hazardous Substancekeairical and electronic equipment
the RoHS Directive, restricts the use of certaimandous substances, including lead, in specifiedlyts. Other jurisdictions are conside
adopting similar legislation. Currently, we are metuired under the WEEE or RoHS Directives toemill recycle or dispose any of
products. However, the Directives allow for fut@mendments subjecting additional products to thrediives’requirements. If, in the futul
our PV products become subject to such requiremesgtsnay be required to apply for an exemptionvdfwere unable to obtain an exempt
we would be required to redesign our PV productsriter to continue to offer them for sale withire tRuropean Union, which would
impractical. Failure to comply with the Directivesuld result in fines and penalties, inability &l our PV products in the European Un
competitive disadvantages and loss of net salesf ahich could have a material adverse effecoanbusiness, financial condition and res
of operations.

Our business benefits from certain PRC governmemtentives. Expiration of, or changes to, these intiges could have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations.

On March 16, 2007, the PRC government promulgdied_aw of the People’Republic of China on the Enterprise Income Taxhe
EIT, which took effect on January 1, 2008. Under FHT, domestically owned
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enterprises and foreign invested enterprises, Bs,Fdre subject to a uniform tax rate of 25%. Wtiik EIT equalizes the tax rates for FIEs
domestically owned enterprises, preferential t@atment continues to be granted to companies itaineencouraged sectors, and ent
classified as “high and new technology enterprises”entitled to a 15% EIT rate, whether domesticalined enterprises or FIEs. The

also provided a fivgrear transition period starting from its effectidate for those enterprises which were establiste¢ord the promulgatic
date of the EIT and which were entitled to a prxfiéal lower tax rate or tax holiday under the tleéiective tax laws or regulations. The
rate of such enterprises transitioned to the umiftax rate within a fiverear transition period and the tax holiday, whicisvenjoyed by sur
enterprises before the effective date of the Ebhtiaued to be enjoyed until the end of the holiddgnwha SolarOne (Qidong) Co., Ltd
SolarOne Qidong, our wholly owned operating subsidin China, was approved to be qualified as gtthind new technology enterprisa?
October 21, 2008. The “high and new technology rpnitee” status is valid for a period of three years from dlate of issuance of the certific
and is subject to an annual sedisiew process whereby a form is submitted to maievax authority for approval to use a benefiziabme ta
rate. If there are significant changes in the bessroperations, manufacturing technologies or aftiteria that cause the enterprise to no lo
meet the criteria as a “high and new technologgrpnise,” such status will be terminated from tlearyof such change. Théigh and ne
technology enterprise” status of SolarOne Qidong vemewed and approved in October 2011. If SolarQideng fails to qualify as ahigh
and new technology enterprisigl’ future periods, our income tax expenses wouddease, which could have a material and adverseteff
our net income and results of operations.

Any reduction or elimination of the preferentiak theatments currently enjoyed by us may signifigaimcrease our income tax expe
and materially reduce our net income, which cow@deha material adverse effect on our financial @@and results of operations.

Under the EIT, we may be classified as a “Residdmtterprise” of the PRC. Such classification would likely resuit negative ta
consequences to us and could result in negativedarsequences to our non-PRC shareholders and ADb&lérs.

Under the EIT, enterprises established under tiwvs taf non-PRC jurisdictions but whose “de facto agement bodyfs located in th
PRC are considered “resident enterprifes’PRC tax purposes and are subject to the EIToAting to the Implementation Regulations for
EIT of the PRC issued by the State Council on Ddxrs, 2007, a de facto management body is defasedn establishment that ex
substantial and comprehensive management and toméothe business operations, staff, accountisgets and other aspects of the enter
Since substantially all of our management is culydrased in the PRC, and may remain in the PR@earforeseeable future, it is likely that
will be regarded as a “resident enterpris@”a strict interpretation of the EIT and its Implntation Regulations. As of December 31, 201:
recorded unrecognized tax benefits of RMB143.5iaml(US$23.0 million), RMB27.4 million (US$4.4 miidin) of which was recorded beca
based on our judgment, we may be deemed as a BR€sident pursuant to the EIT. If Hanwha Solar@ue, Ltd., our holding company,
any of its non-PRC subsidiaries is treated as sidemt enterprisefor PRC tax purposes, Hanwha SolarOne or suchdiabgiwill be subject t
PRC income tax on worldwide income at a uniformrabe of 25%, which would have a material adveffecton our financial condition a
results of operations.

In addition, although the EIT provides that dividdncome payments between qualified “resident eniszs’are exempted from the 1(
withholding tax, it is not clear whether we will lbensidered as a qualified “resident enterprisedeurthe EIT. If we are considered a “non
resident enterprisedividends paid to us by our subsidiaries in the RB@ugh our holding company structure), if anygynie subject to tl
10% withholding tax. If we are deemed by the PR dathorities to be a “resident enterpriseid declare dividends, under the exis
Implementation Regulations of the EIT, dividend&day us to our shareholders and ADS holders, whireh“non-resident enterprisesiid d«
not have an establishment or place of businedseilPRC, or which have such an establishment oel&business but the relevant incorr
not effectively connected with the establishmenplace of business, might be subject to PRC witlihgltax at 10% or a lower treaty rate.
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Similarly, any gain realized on the transfer of ADS shares by non-PRC investors which are “noitkees enterprisesis also subject
PRC withholding income tax at 10% or a lower treatte if such gain is regarded as income deriveh fsources within the PRC.

According to the Law of the PeopseRepublic of China on the Individual Income Taxthe IIT, as amended, PRC income tax at the
of 20% is applicable to dividends payable to indibal investors if such dividends are regarded esnre derived from sources within the P
Similarly, any gain realized on the transfer of AD& ordinary shares by individual investors i®alabject to PRC tax at 20% if such gai
regarded as income derived from sources withinPlRE. If we are deemed by the PRC tax authorities ‘@ssident enterprisethe dividend
we pay to our individual investors with respecbto ordinary shares or ADSs, or the gain the imhliad investors may realize from the tran
of our ordinary shares or ADSs, might be treatethesme derived from sources within the PRC anduigect to PRC tax at 20% or a lo
treaty rate.

Fluctuations in exchange rates could adversely aff@ur business as well as result in foreign curignexchange losses.

Our financial statements are expressed in, andumational currency is Renminbi. The change in eadd the Renminbi against the L
dollar, Euro and other currencies is affected Inyo@ag other things, changes in Chmablitical and economic conditions. On July 21020the
PRC government changed its decattbpolicy of pegging the value of the Renminbilte U.S. dollar. Under the new policy, the Renmii
permitted to fluctuate within a narrow and manafadd against a basket of certain foreign currendibs change in policy has resultec
appreciation of the Renminbi against the U.S. dolldae PRC government may decide to adopt an evane fiexible currency policy in ti
future, which could result in a further and morgndficant appreciation of the Renminbi against thé&. dollar. An appreciation of t
Renminbi relative to other foreign currencies codttrease the per unit revenue generated fromnéemmational sales. If we increased
pricing to compensate for the reduced purchasivgepof foreign currencies, we may decrease the etampetitiveness, on a price basi
our products. This could result in a decrease mimernational sales and materially and advera#fsct our business.

A substantial portion of our sales is denominatedJiS. dollars and Euros, while a substantial partf our costs and expense
denominated in Renminbi. As a result, the revatunatif the Renminbi starting in July 2005 has inseek and further revaluations could fur
increase, our costs. The value of, and any dividgra/able on, our ADSs in foreign currency termi aso be affected. Conversely, if
decide to convert our Renminbi into U.S. dollarstfe purpose of making payments for dividends wnasdinary shares or ADSs or for ot
business purposes, an appreciation of the U.Sardaflainst the Renminbi would have a negative effadhe U.S. dollar amount available
us.

Fluctuations in exchange rates, particularly amtivegU.S. dollar, Renminbi and Euro, also affect guoss and net profit margins ¢
could result in fluctuations in foreign exchangel aperating gains and losses. We incurred netdoreurrency losses of RMB89.3 millic
RMB4.0 million and gains of RMB8.9 million (US$1million) in 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively. brticular, a substantial portion of «
net revenues is currently denominated in EuroseSibecember 2009, the Euro has fluctuated signifizaA depreciation of the Euro may a
have a negative impact on the selling prices of paducts in Renminbi terms. We cannot predict ithpact of future exchange ri
fluctuations on our financial condition and resaf®perations, and we may incur net foreign curydosses in the future.

While we started to enter into economic hedgingdaations in 2008 to minimize the impact of shertn foreign currency fluctuatio
on our revenues that are denominated in a curreth®r than Renminbi, the effectiveness of thesestretions may be limited and we may
be able to successfully hedge all of our exposure.

Our estimates of future revenues that are denoedniat foreign currencies may not be accurate, whalld result in foreign exchan
losses. Any default by the counterparties to thiesesactions could also
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adversely affect our financial condition and reswf operations. In addition, our foreign curremxzhange losses may be magnified by
exchange control regulations that restrict ourighib convert Renminbi into foreign currencies.

Risks Related to Doing Business in China

Adverse changes in political and economic policiglsthe PRC government could have a material adveedtect on the overall econonr
growth of China, which could reduce the demand four products and materially and adversely affectraxompetitive position

Substantially all of our operations are conducte€hina and some of our sales are made in Chineor8imgly, our business, financ
condition, results of operations and prospectsadfected significantly by economic, political angghl developments in China. The F
economy differs from the economies of most devedogmintries in many respects, including:

« the amount of government involveme
» the level of developmen

e the growth rate

» the control of foreign exchange; a

» the allocation of resource

While the PRC economy has grown significantly sitteelate 1970s, the growth has been uneven, latgrgphically and among varic
sectors of the economy. The PRC government hasimmgited various measures to encourage economidigeowd guide the allocation
resources. Some of these measures benefit thelloP&@ economy, but may also have a negative effactis. For example, our financ
condition and results of operations may be adversiécted by government control over capital inients or changes in tax regulations
are applicable to us.

The PRC economy has been transitioning from a jgldreconomy to a more markatented economy. Although the PRC governr
has in recent years implemented measures emplasimrutilization of market forces for economicomfi, the reduction of state ownershij
productive assets and the establishment of sourmbiaie governance in business enterprises, aasuladtportion of the productive asset
China is still owned by the PRC government. Thetiooled control of these assets and other aspectiseohational economy by the P
government could materially and adversely affectlusiness. The PRC government also exercisedisati control over economic growth
China through the allocation of resources, coritrgllpayment of foreign curren@enominated obligations, setting monetary policy
providing preferential treatment to particular istlies or companies. Efforts by the PRC governnersiow the pace of growth of the P
economy could result in decreased capital experadiiy solar energy users, which in turn could reddemand for our products.

Any adverse change in the economic conditions eegonent policies in China could have a materialease effect on the over
economic growth and the level of renewable enenggstments and expenditures in China, which in aauld lead to a reduction in dem:
for our products and consequently have a matedig¢rge effect on our business and prospects. ticplar, the PRC government has, in re
years, promulgated certain laws and regulationsi@itidted certain governme-sponsored programs to encourage the utilizatiomeof form:
of energy, including solar energy. We cannot asgorethat the implementation of these laws, regumat and government programs will
beneficial to us. In particular, any adverse changbe PRC governmerstpolicies towards the PV industry may have a nisdtadverse effe
on our operations as well as on our plans to expandbusiness into downstream system integrationcss.
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Uncertainties with respect to the PRC legal systemuld have a material adverse effect on us.

We conduct substantially all of our business thfoogr operating subsidiary in the PRC, SolarOneo@Qid a Chinese wholly foreign-
owned enterprise. SolarOne Qidong is generallyesaltp laws and regulations applicable to foreigrestment in China and, in particular, i
applicable to wholly foreigmwned enterprises. The PRC legal system is basewitten statutes, and prior court decisions maycibed fol
reference but have limited precedential value. &ib@79, PRC legislation and regulations have sigifly enhanced the protections affor
to various forms of foreign investments in Chinawéver, since these laws and regulations are velgtnew and the PRC legal sys!
continues to rapidly evolve, the interpretationsnmdny laws, regulations and rules are not alway®um and enforcement of these la
regulations and rules involve uncertainties, whichy limit legal protections available to us. In &iga, any litigation in China may |
protracted and result in substantial costs andrsiiwe of resources and management attention.

Limitations on the ability of our operating subsidry to pay dividends or other distributions to usuwtd have a material adverse effect on
ability to conduct our business.

We are a holding company and conduct substantdillgf our business through our operating subsjdi&olarOne Qidong, which is
limited liability company established in China. Thayment of dividends by entities organized inarify, China is subject to limitations.
particular, regulations in the PRC currently perpayment of dividends only out of accumulated psodis determined in accordance with |
accounting standards and regulations. SolarOnerQid@® also required to set aside at least 10%soaitnual aftetax profit based on PF
accounting standards each year to its generaMesentil the accumulative amount of such resergashes 50% of its registered capital. T
reserves are not distributable as cash dividemdaddlition, SolarOne Qidong is required to allocateortion of its aftetax profit to its stal
welfare and bonus fund at the discretion of itsraz directors. Moreover, if SolarOne Qidong iredeebt on its own behalf in the future,
instruments governing the debt may restrict itéitgdo pay dividends or make other distributionaus.

Restrictions on currency exchange may limit our &by to receive and use our revenue effective

A portion of our revenue and a substantial portbérour expenses are denominated in Renminbi. TheriRei is currently convertib
under the “current account,” which includes dividentrade and service-related foreign exchangesaaions, but not under thedpita
account,”which includes foreign direct investment and loaDarrently, SolarOne Qidong may purchase foreigmericies for settlement
current account transactions, including paymentdiwtlends to us, without the approval of the Statkninistration of Foreign Exchange,
SAFE. However, the relevant PRC government auilsrinay limit or eliminate our ability to purcha®eeign currencies in the future. Sinc
significant amount of our future revenue will bendminated in Renminbi, any existing and futurerieittns on currency exchange may li
our ability to utilize revenue generated in Renmtolfund our business activities outside China Hra denominated in foreign currencies.

Foreign exchange transactions by SolarOne Qidorgruthe capital account continue to be subjectigaificant foreign exchang
controls and require the approval of or need tastegwith PRC governmental authorities, includB@FE. In particular, if SolarOne Qido
borrows foreign currency loans from us or otheeifgn lenders, these loans must be registered vAFES and if we finance SolarOne Qidc
by means of additional capital contributions, theagital contributions must be approved by cergormernment authorities, including
National Development and Reform Commission, or M2RC, the Ministry of Commerce or their respectioeal counterparts. The
limitations could affect the ability of SolarOned@ing to obtain foreign exchange through debt oitgdimancing.
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PRC regulations relating to the establishment offsifore special purpose companies by PRC residensy rsubject our PRC reside
shareholders to personal liability and limit our dlty to acquire PRC companies or to inject capitimito our PRC subsidiary, limit our PR
subsidiary's ability to distribute profits to us, or otherwésmaterially and adversely affect us.

SAFE issued a public notice in October 2005, or $#d-E notice, requiring PRC residents, includindhbkegal persons and natt
persons, to register with the competent local SAFEhch before establishing or controlling any conypautside of China, referred to as
“offshore special purpose companygdr the purpose of acquiring any assets of or gguiterest in PRC companies and raising fund
overseas. In addition, any PRC resident that isstmreholder of an offshore special purpose compamgquired to amend its SA
registration with the local SAFE branch, with resipi that offshore special purpose company in eotion with any increase or decreas
capital, transfer of shares, merger, division, gguivestment or creation of any security inter@str any assets located in China. If any |
shareholder of any offshore special purpose comfeilsyto make the required SAFE registration améadment, the PRC subsidiaries of
offshore special purpose company may be prohifitad distributing their profits and proceeds fromyaeduction in capital, share transfe
liquidation to the offshore special purpose compavigreover, failure to comply with the SAFE reg&ton and amendment requirem
described above could result in liability under PR@s for evasion of applicable foreign exchangsrietions. Our current beneficial own
who are PRC residents have registered with thd B&&E branch as required under the SAFE notice. fallure of these beneficial owner:
amend their SAFE registrations in a timely mannespant to the SAFE notice or the failure of futbemeficial owners of our company v
are PRC residents to comply with the registratimtedures set forth in the SAFE notice may sutgach beneficial owners to fines and ¢
sanctions and may also result in a restriction onRRC subsidiarg ability to distribute profits to us or otherwisterially and adverse
affect our business. In addition, the NDRC promtddaa rule in October 2004, or the NDRC Rule, rengioverseas investment projects r
by PRC entities to be approved by NDRC. The NDRdeRaso sets out the approval procedures for oaserggvestment projects of Pl
individuals. However, uncertainties in terms ofepretation of the NDRC Rule with respect to itplagation to a PRC individuad’ overse:
investment remain, and in practice, we are not awdrany precedents that a PRC individsiaverseas investment has been approved |
NDRC or challenged by the NDRC based on the abseihae NDRC approval. Our current beneficial owngho are PRC individuals did r
apply for NDRC approval for investment in us. Wewmat predict how and to what extent this will affetir business operations or fut
strategy. For example, the failure of our sharefiddvho are PRC individuals to comply with the NDR@e may subject these persons ol
PRC subsidiary to certain liabilities under PRCdawhich could adversely affect our business.

We face uncertainties with respect to applicatiohtbe Circular on Strengthening the Administrationf Enterprise Income Tax for Shal
Transfer of Non-PRC Resident Enterprises.

Pursuant to the Notice on Strengthening Adminiigtnadf Enterprise Income Tax for Share TransferNonPRC Resident Enterpris
or SAT Circular 698, issued by the State Administraof Taxation on December 10, 2009 with retroeceffect from January 1, 2008, wh
a nonresident enterprise transfers its equity intergsts PRC resident enterprise indirectly via dispgsif the equity interests of an overs
holding company, or an Indirect Transfer, and somérseas holding company is located in a tax jigioh that (i) has an effective tax rate |
than 12.5% or (ii) does not tax foreign income tsf riesidents, the foreign investor shall reporthsirddirect Transfer to the competent
authority of the PRC resident enterprise. The P&Catuthority will examine the true nature of théitact Transfer, and if the tax autho
considers that the foreign investor has adoptedbaisive arrangement in order to avoid PRC taxjlitdisregard the existence of the over:
holding company and reharacterize the Indirect Transfer and, as a regalhs derived from such Indirect Transfer maysbbject to PR
withholding tax at the rate of up to 10%. SAT Cieru698 also provides that, where a riRIRC resident enterprise transfers its equity iste
in a PRC resident enterprise to its related padies price lower than the fair market value, thlevant tax authority has the power to ma
reasonable adjustment to the taxable gain of #resérction.
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There is uncertainty as to the application of SAfic@ar 698. The relevant PRC authority has notpremulgated any formal provisic
or formally declared or stated how to calculateeffective tax in a foreign jurisdiction and howaaeign investor shall report to the compe
tax authority an Indirect Transfer. SAT Circular868tates that it does not apply to purchases asgafl stock on a stock exchange. If
transfer our equity interest in our PRC subsidg&aewhen our non-resident investors transfer tlgdires, we or our naesident investors m
be taxed under SAT Circular 698 and may be requezkpend valuable resources to comply with SAc@ar 698 or to establish that we
our nonfesident investors should not be taxed under SAGuGr 698, which may have an adverse effect orfinancial condition and resu
of operations or such non-resident investors’ itmesit in us.

Labor laws in the PRC may adversely affect our réswf operations

On June 29, 2007, the PRC government promulgated.déibor Contract Law of the PRC, or the Labor CasitLaw, which becan
effective on January 1, 2008. The Labor Contracl limposes greater liabilities on employers and ifigantly impacts the cost of .
employers decision to reduce its workforce. Further, ituiegs certain terminations to be based upon séyiand not merit. In the event:
decide to significantly change or decrease our feock, the Labor Contract Law could adversely affag ability to enact such changes
manner that is most advantageous to our busindssaotimely and coseffective manner, thus materially and adverselgaiiig our financit
condition and results of operations.

We face risks related to health epidemics and othatbreaks.

Adverse public health epidemics or pandemics calisdupt business and the economics of the PRC #ret countries where we
business. From December 2002 to June 2003, Chidaotrer countries experienced an outbreak of alhigbntagious form of atypic
pneumonia now known as severe acute respiratorgregme, or SARS. Some Asian countries, includingn@hiencountered incidents of
H5N1 strain of bird flu, or avian flu in 2007 andrly 2008. In 2009, there were outbreaks of swingdaused by H1N1 virus, in certain regi
of the world, including China. Any future outbreak SARS, avian flu, swine flu or other similar adse public developments may, am
other things, significantly disrupt our businessluding limiting our ability to travel or ship oproducts within or outside China and forcing
to temporary close our manufacturing facilitiesrtRarmore, an outbreak may severely restrict thiellef economic activity in affected are
which may in turn materially and adversely affeat éinancial condition and results of operationse YWave not adopted any written prever
measures or contingency plans to combat any fututlereak of swine flu, avian flu, SARS or any otbpidemic.

Our auditor, like other independent registered pidbhccounting firms operating in China, is not petitted to be subject to inspection by
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, and asch, investors may be deprived of the benefitsudhsinspection.

Our independent registered public accounting finat issues the audit reports included in our anmedrts filed with the SEC, as
auditor of companies that are traded publicly i@ thnited States and a firm registered with the ieubbmpany Accounting Oversight Boe
or PCAOB, is required by the laws of the Unitedt&ao undergo regular inspections by PCAOB tosasde compliance with the laws of
United States and professional standards. Becawsaudlitor is located in China, a jurisdiction wadtCAOB is currently unable to cond
inspections without the approval of the PRC authesj our auditor, like other independent regigtgrablic accounting firms, is currently |
inspected by PCAOB.

Inspections of other firms that PCAOB has conduatetside of China have identified deficiencieshode firms’audit procedures a
quality control procedures, which may be addressepart of the inspection process to improve fuawdit quality. The inability of PCAOB
conduct inspections of auditors in China makesdtendifficult to evaluate the effectiveness of auditor’'s audit procedures or quality con
procedures. As a result, investors may be depi¥elde benefits of PCAOB inspections.
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We may be adversely affected by the outcome oftlrainistrative proceedings brought by the SEC agdifive accounting firms in China.

The SEC has brought administrative proceedingsnagéfive accounting firms in China recently, allegithat they refused to hand o
documents to the SEC for ongoing investigations itgrtain other Chinhased companies. We were not and are not subjeghytoSE(
investigations, nor are we involved in the procagdibrought by the SEC against the accounting fitdmsvever, the independent registe
public accounting firm that issues the audit repartiuded in our annual reports filed with the SE©ne of the five accounting firms name
the SEC’s proceedings and we may be adverselytaéfdry the outcome of the proceedings, along witleroU.S .listed companies audited
these accounting firms. If the SEC prevails in pmeceedings, our independent auditors and othar docounting firms in China that wt
named in the proceedings may be barred from pragticefore the SEC and hence unable to continueetthe auditors for Chinlaase:
companies like ourselves. If none of the China-basalitors are able to continue to be auditorCioinabased companies listed in the L
we will not be able to meet the reporting requirateaunder the Exchange Act, which may ultimatebulein our deregistration from the S
and delisting from NASDAQ.

Risks Related to Our Ordinary Shares and ADSs
The market price of our ADSs may be volatile.

The market price of our ADSs experienced, and noaficue to experience, significant volatility. Rbe period from December 20, 2(
to April 26, 2013, the trading price of our ADSs the Nasdaq Global Market has ranged from a loWw880.77 per ADS to a high
US$40.19 per ADS.

Numerous factors, including many over which we hawecontrol, may have a significant impact on tharket price of our ADS
including, among other things:

* announcements of technological or competitive dgwakents

» regulatory developments in our target markets #ffgas, our customers or our competitc

e announcements regarding patent litigation or thedaace of patents to us or our competit

» announcements of studies and reports relatinget@ahversion efficiencies of our products or thaseur competitors
» actual or anticipated fluctuations in our quartenperating results

e changes in financial estimates or other materiairoents by securities analysts relating to us, aumnpetitors or our industry
general;

e announcements by other companies in our industaimg to their operations, strategic initiativéisancial condition or financi
performance or to our industry in gene

* announcements of acquisitions or consolidationslinrg industry competitors or industry supplie
» changes in the economic performance or market tiahsaof other PV technology compani

» changes in international trade policies and intional barriers to trade

« addition or departure of our executive officers &g research personnel; &

» sales or perceived sales of additional ordinaryeshar ADSs

In addition, the stock market in recent years hgergenced extreme price and trading volume flutbna that often have been unrel:
or disproportionate to the operating performancmdividual companies. These broad market flucaratimay adversely affect the price of
ADSs, regardless of our operating performance.
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Our articles of association contain antakeover provisions that could have a material ateseffect on the rights of holders of our ordine
shares and ADS¢

Our amended and restated articles of associatioit the ability of others to acquire control of occompany or cause us to engag
change-ofeontrol transactions. These provisions could haeeeffect of depriving our shareholders of an opputy to sell their shares a
premium over prevailing market prices by discounggihird parties from seeking to obtain controlbof company in a tender offer or sim
transaction. For example, our board of directosstha authority, without further action by our saslders, to issue preferred shares in ol
more series and to fix their designations, pow@rgferences, privileges, and relative participatingtional or special rights and
qualifications, limitations or restrictions, inclag dividend rights, conversion rights, voting righterms of redemption and liquidat
preferences, any or all of which may be greaten tha rights associated with our ordinary shameshé form of ADS or otherwise. Prefer
shares could be issued quickly with terms calcdlatedelay or prevent a change in control of ounpany or make removal of managen
more difficult. If our board of directors decidesissue preferred shares, the price of our ADSs falhyand the voting and other rights of
holders of our ordinary shares and ADSs may benma#lfeand adversely affected.

Holders of ADSs have fewer rights than shareholdarsd must act through the depositary to exercisegé rights.

Holders of ADSs do not have the same rights assbareholders and may only exercise the voting siglith respect to the underlyi
ordinary shares in accordance with the provisiohshe deposit agreement. Under our amended andteestrticles of association,
minimum notice period required to convene an angeakral meeting or any extraordinary general mgeatalling for the passing of a spe
resolution is 20 days and the minimum notice perigluired to convene any other extraordinary gémeegting is 14 days. When a gen
meeting is convened, you may not receive sufficietice of a shareholdersieeting to permit you to withdraw your ordinary idsato allov
you to cast your vote with respect to any spedcifatter. If requested in writing by us, the depagitaill mail a notice of such a meeting to y
In addition, the depositary and its agents mayh®oable to send voting instructions to you or camuy your voting instructions in a time
manner. We will make all reasonable efforts to eatlre depositary to extend voting rights to yoa itimely manner, but you may not rece
the voting materials in time to ensure that you icatruct the depositary to vote your ADSs. Funthere, the depositary and its agents will
be responsible for any failure to carry out anyringions to vote, for the manner in which any visteast or for the effect of any such vote
a result, you may not be able to exercise yourt iglvote and you may lack recourse if your ADSs ot voted as you requested. In addi
in your capacity as an ADS holder, you will notdide to call a shareholders’ meeting.

You may be subject to limitations on transfers afuy ADSs.

Your ADSs are transferable on the books of the diégy. However, the depositary may close its fiemisooks at any time or from tir
to time when it deems expedient in connection whth performance of its duties. In addition, the asifary may refuse to deliver, transfe
register transfers of ADSs generally when our bomkthe books of the depositary are closed, omgttane if we or the depositary deer
advisable to do so because of any requirementvefdaof any government or governmental body, orasnany provision of the depc
agreement, or for any other reason.

Your right to participate in any future rights offiéengs may be limited, which may cause dilution toyr holdings, and you may not recei
distributions with respect to the underlying ordinashares if it is impractical to make them availiebto you.

We may from time to time distribute rights to otiaseholders, including rights to acquire our se¢msi However, we cannot make ric
available to you in the United States unless wéstegthe rights and the securities to which tlghts relate under the Securities Act o
exemption from the registration requirements idlaisée. Also, under the deposit agreement, the sliégmy will not make rights available to y
unless the
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distribution to ADS holders of both the rights aady related securities are either registered uttderSecurities Act, or exempted fr
registration under the Securities Act. We are umabeobligation to file a registration statementhwieéspect to any such rights or securities
endeavor to cause such a registration statemebe tdeclared effective. Moreover, we may not be dblestablish an exemption fri
registration under the Securities Act. Accordingtythe event we conduct any rights offering in fature, the depositary may not make ¢
rights available to you or may dispose of suchtagind make the net proceeds available to you. igésudt, you may be unable to participat
our rights offerings and may experience dilutiotydur holdings.

In addition, the depositary of our ADSs has agreepay to you the cash dividends or other distidns it or the custodian receives
our ordinary shares or other deposited securifiies deducting its fees and expenses. You will ikecéhese distributions in proportion to
number of ordinary shares your ADSs represent. itewehe depositary may, at its discretion, dedit# it is inequitable or impractical
make a distribution available to any holders of AD8s a result, the depositary may decide not tkenthe distribution and you will n
receive such distribution.

We are a Cayman Islands company and, because jadliprecedent regarding the rights of shareholdess more limited under Cayme
Islands law than under U.S. law, you may have Igsstection for your shareholder rights than you wtsbunder U.S. law

Our corporate affairs are governed by our amendéedestated memorandum and articles of associaionay be amended from time
time, the Cayman Islands Companies Law (as amerateti}he common law of the Cayman Islands. Thegighshareholders to take act
against the directors, actions by minority sharééi and the fiduciary responsibilities of our diogs to us under Cayman Islands law are
large extent governed by the common law of the Gayislands. The common law of the Cayman Islandglived in part from comparative
limited judicial precedent in the Cayman Islandsvadl as that from English common law, which hasspasive, but not binding, authority o
court in the Cayman Islands. The rights of our shalders and the fiduciary responsibilities of directors under Cayman Islands law are
as clearly established as they would be undertstatr judicial precedent in some jurisdictionghia United States. In particular, the Cay
Islands has a less developed body of securities than the United States. In addition, Cayman tidacompanies may not have standin
initiate a shareholder derivative action in a fedlepurt of the United States.

There is also uncertainty as to whether the caafrtse Cayman Islands would:

e recognize or enforce against us or our directoidginents of courts of the United States based daiceivil liability provisions o
U.S. securities laws; ar

* entertain original actions brought in the Caymdands, based on certain civil liability provisions U.S. securities laws that i
penal in nature

There is no statutory recognition in the Caymaarids of judgments obtained in the United Statekpagh the courts of the Cayn
Islands will generally recognize and enforce a penal judgment of a foreign court of competentsdiGtion without retrial on the merits.

As a result of all of the above, our public shatdas may have more difficulty in protecting theiterests in the face of actions ta
against management, members of the board of diseatacontrolling shareholders than they wouldreseholders of a U.S. public company.

You may have difficulty enforcing judgments obtaith@gainst us.

We are a Cayman Islands company and substantihlbf aur assets are located outside of the UnBéates. Substantially all of ¢
current operations are conducted in the PRC. litiaddmost of our directors and officers are na#ts and residents of countries other tha
United States. A substantial portion of the asstthese persons are located outside the UnitedsStAs a result, it may be difficult for you
effect service of
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process within the United States upon these persomay also be difficult for you to enforce in&J.courts judgments obtained in U.S. cc
based on the civil liability provisions of the Uf8deral securities laws against us and our offieerd directors, most of whom are not resic
in the United States and the substantial majoffitwliose assets are located outside of the Unitate&tin addition, there is uncertainty a
whether the courts of the Cayman Islands or the RRGId recognize or enforce judgments of U.S. ®lmdsed on certain civil liabili
provisions of U.S. securities laws.

ITEM 4 INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY

A. History and Development of the Company

We commenced operations through SolarOne Qidommefidy known as Jiangsu Linyang Solarfun Co., Liid.August 2004. SolarOi
Qidong was a 68%wned subsidiary of Jiangsu Linyang Electronics, @éd., or Linyang Electronics, at the time of éstablishment ¢
August 27, 2004. Linyang Electronics is one ofldaaling electricitymeasuring instrument manufacturers in China. Iicguation of our initia
public offering, we incorporated Hanwha SolarOrmenferly known as Solarfun Power Holdings Co., Lid.the Cayman Islands on May
2006 as our listing vehicle. To enable us to raigeity capital from investors outside of China, @gablished a holding company structur
incorporating Hanwha SolarOne Investment Holdind. Lor SolarOne BVI, in the British Virgin Islands May 17, 2006. SolarOne BVI
wholly owned by Hanwha SolarOne. SolarOne BVI pasgd all of the equity interests in SolarOne Qidongune 2, 2006. On May 16, 2C
SolarOne BVI established a wholly owned subsidiatgnwha SolarOne Hong Kong Limited, or SolarOne ¢dd€ong. In March 200
April 2006 and April 2007, we established three anigy-owned or wholly owned subsidiaries in China, HanwletarOne (Shanghai) Co., LI
formerly known as Shanghai Linyang Solar Technol@gy, Ltd., or Solar Shanghai, Sichuan Leshan digghéew Energy Co., Ltd., or Sicht
Jiayang, and Hanwha Solar Engineering ResearctDamdlopment Center Co., Ltd., or Solar R&D, respety, to expand our business i
new markets and sectors. We acquired a 52% intarddanwha SolarOne Technology Co., Ltd., or SoteQechnology, in July 2007 &
acquired the remaining 48% in August 2008. In Saptr 2007, we established a wholly owned subsididanwha SolarOne U.S.A. Inc.,
SolarOne U.S.A., as part of our plan to enter tmitdd States market. On November 30, 2007, Sola®vietransferred all of the equi
interests in SolarOne Qidong to SolarOne Hong Kfmrga consideration of US$199.0 million. In Febmapn08, we established a whc
owned subsidiary, Hanwha SolarOne GmbH in Germarsell solar products in the European markets. id(edated Sichuan Jiayang, one
our subsidiaries which historically has had limitgzerations, in July 2008. In November 2009, weuaegl the remaining 17% equity inter
in Solar Shanghai and Solar Shanghai became oullywwned subsidiary after the completion of thiantsaction. We established Han
Solar Electric Power Engineering Co., Ltd., or $dfagineering, in May 2010 under SolarOne Qidon@rgage in the solar power pro
business.

In September 2010, we issued and sold to Hanwhar Slalldings Co., Ltd., or Hanwha Solar, 36,455,08%inary shares for an aggrec
sale price of US$78.2 million. Concurrently witketblosing of this offering, we issued 30,672,688imary shares to Hanwha Solar at par v
of the ordinary shares and subsequently an additih 407,330 ordinary shares at par value, whichies were to remain outstanding so
as and to the extent that the 9,019,611 ADSs weeik$o facilitate our convertible bond offering January 2008 remain outstanding
October 2011, we repurchased and cancelled 25,01 B&linary shares from Hanwha Solar at par vafud3$0.0001 per ordinary share.
the same time, Hanwha Solar completed the acaprisitirom Good Energies Il LP and Yonghua Solar Rdweestment Holding Ltd., tl
company owned by Mr. Yonghua Lu, our former chainmef a total of 120,407,700 ordinary shares a@81,011 ADSs of our compal
representing all of the ordinary shares and AD3d hg them. Hanwha Solar, a company that engageslar business, is a wholly owr
subsidiary of Hanwha Chemical Corporation, a legdihemical producer publicly traded on the KoreaHlaxge whose principal activities
the production of CA, PE and PVC products.

In November 2010, we issued and sold 9,200,000 Aifis an aggregate sale price of US$82.8 millianotder for Hanwha Solar
maintain after this offering the same level of fezi@ ownership in our company before this offeyinve also issued and sold to Hanwha ¢
45,981,604 ordinary shares for an aggregate sale pf US$82.8 million.
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We changed our name from “Solarfun Power Holdings, Ctd.” to “Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltddh December 20, 2010 and our tic
from “SOLF” to “HSOL"” on February 15, 2011.

In April 2011, we established Nantong Hanwha Im@Export Co., Ltd., or Nantong Hanwha I&E, undexi&One Qidong to engage
import and export of PV products and technology ldadwha SolarOne (Nantong) Co., Ltd., or SolarOaething, under SolarOne Hong K
to develop, manufacture and sell PV products.

In February 2012, we established Hanwha Solar Gahad under SolarOne Hong Kong to sell solar petslin Canada.
In May 2012, we acquired Hanwha Solar AustralialRty from Hanwha Corporation to sell solar produict Australia.

Our principal executive offices are located at 838ang Road, Qidong, Jiangsu Province, 226200 pkRé&d Republic of China. O
telephone number at this address is (86-513) 8888-and our fax number is (86-513) 831367. Our registered office in the Cayman Isl:
is at the offices of Maples Corporate Services téhi P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY04, Cayman Islands.

Investor inquiries should be directed to us atdddress and telephone number of our principal @xecoffices set forth above. C
website ishttp://www.hanwha-solarone.corfihe information contained on our website does motstitute a part of this annual report.
agent for service of process in the United Stat&3Ti Corporation System, located at 111 Eighth AreetNew York, New York 10011.

We made capital expenditures of RMB669.2 millioiiB2,437.9 million and RMB534.5 (US$85.8 million) 2010, 2011 and 201
respectively, all of which related primarily to tperchases of manufacturing equipment and faaiidystruction costs for SolarOne Nantc
SolarOne Qidong and SolarOne Technology. Basechercairrent market conditions, we have no plan tdostantial capacity expansion
2013. We expect to incur capital expenditures gragimately US$50 million in 2013, which we planuse to pay for accrued expenses re
to our capacity expansion in 2011 and investmenizrocess improvements and equipment for researdtdavelopment activities. Howev
we will actively review our capacity expansion plam a regular basis as the business environmehtesvdNe plan to fund the balance of
capital expenditure requirements for 2013 with dasim operations, additional bank borrowings, atfteoforms of financing, if necessary.

B. Business Overview

Overview

We are a vertically integrated manufacturer oteili ingots, silicon wafers, PV cells and PV modufe€hina. We manufacture a vari
of silicon ingots, silicon wafers, PV cells and Pbodules using advanced manufacturing process témjiae that have helped us to rap
increase our operational efficiency. We also prevY module processing services. We sell PV cellsRV modules both directly to syst
integrators and through third party distributors.2012, we sold our products to over 120 custonmaostly in Germany, the United Sta
China, India, Korea, Japan and Italy. We conductmsiness in China through our operating subsidiar

As of April 1, 2013, we had 1.5 GW of annual PV miedproduction capacity and 1.3 GW of annual PV pedduction capacity. |
addition, we have achieved improvements in prot¢esbnology and product quality since we commenced commercial production
November 2005. Our monocrystalline and multicrystalPV cells achieved conversion efficiency rad€48.23% and 17.10%, respectively
2012. In addition, we had 800 MW of annual ingaicarction capacity and 800 MW of annual wire sawdagacity as of April 1, 2013.
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Our net revenues decreased from RMB7,548.5 miilin2010 to RMB6,416.5 million in 2011, and decreh$e RMB3,678.4 milliol
(US$590.4 million) in 2012. Our net income decrelaBem net income of RMB757.4 million in 2010 tonat loss of RMB930.1 million
2011, and decreased further to a net loss of RME1%Bmillion (US$250.9 million) in 2012.

Our Products and Services

Our products primarily include silicon ingots, sin wafers, PV cells and PV modules. Since 2008stantially all of the ingots, wafe
and PV cells we produced have been used for ourRWWwmodule production. We also provide PV modulecpssing services.

Our Products
PV Cells

A PV cell is a semiconductor device that conveuslight into electricity by a process known as gietovoltaic effect. The followir
table sets forth the specifications of two type®¥fcells we currently produce:

Conversior
Maximum
Dimensions Efficiency Thickness
PV Cell Type (mmxmm) (%) (EM) Power (W)
Monaocrystalline silicon ce 125 x 12! 18.23% 180-20C 2.82
Multicrystalline silicon cel 156 x 15! 17.1% 180-20C 4.1¢

The key technical efficiency measurement of PVscisllthe conversion efficiency rate. Assuming othérgs being the same, the hig
the conversion efficiency rate, the lower the paihin cost of PV modules per watt because more poae be incorporated into a given :
package. Our monocrystalline and multicrystallinedells achieved conversion efficiency rates o886 and 17.10%, respectively, in 2012.

We are now able to process wafers as thin as 18fns. In order to further lower our productiontspsve intend to focus on produc
PV cells with decreasing thickness levels.

PV Modules

A PV module is an assembly of PV cells that havenbalectrically interconnected and laminated iueable and weathgrroof package
We have been selling a wide range of PV modulesently ranging from 180W to 300W in power outppgsification, made primarily fro
the PV cells we manufacture. We are developing resdwith higher power to meet the rising demandofogrid configurations. The majori
of the PV modules we currently offer to our custesnenge in power between 240 W and 295 W. Weagrdtoximately 90.0% of our F
modules under our proprietary “SolarOrtgand names, and approximately 10.0%, respectieélgur PV modules under the brand name
our customers.

The following table sets forth the types of PV mieduve manufacture with the specifications indidate

Dimensions Weight Power
PV Module Manufactured with: (mm) (Kg) (W)
Monocrystalline silicor 1338 x 1000 x & 15.5+0.5 19C-21F

1580 x 808 x4  14.5+0.5 15C-19¢
1580 x 808 x 3 15+0.5 15C-20C
1652 x 1000 x 4 20+0.5 20C-25¢

Multicrystalline silicon 1494 x 1000 x 2 17+0. 17C-22¢
1652 x 1000 x 4 20+0.5 20(-25¢&
1966 x 1000 x £ 28.£+0.E 25(-30C
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We believe our PV cells and modules are competitiite other products in the PV market in terms ficeency and quality. We expe
to continue improving the conversion efficiency apower, and reducing the thickness, of our soladpcts as we continue to dev
significant financial and human resources in ourotes research and development programs.

Ingots and Wafer

We also manufacture ingots through SolarOne Tedgyolan ingot plant that commenced operations itokaar 2007. As of April :
2013, we achieved annual ingot production capamfit00 MW and annual wire sawing capacity of 800 MWe ingots manufactured
SolarOne Technology are generally used for our fizatwre of wafers. The wafers manufactured by nar Qidong are generally used
our manufacture of PV cells and PV modules.

Our Services

We provide PV module processing services to conkéftcells into PV modules on behalf of a relatedtypaFor these PV modt
processing services, we “purchase” PV cells froongtomer and at the same time agree to “sefipecified quantity of PV modules back to
same customer. The quantity of PV modules sold bat¢ke customer under this processing arrangemartnsistent with the amount of
cells purchased from the customer after factonmganversion efficiency. We record the amount eEreie from these processing transac
based on the amount received for PV modules sskltlee amount paid for the PV cells purchased filmencustomer. The production cc
incurred related to providing the module processieyices are recorded within our cost of revenues.

In response to the rapidly evolving conditions lire PV industry, we started to expand our businesgndtream to provide syst
integration services in 2010. Our PV system integnaservices may include services such as engimgeprocurement of permits a
equipment, construction management, monitoringraashtenance. We offer PV system integration sesviheough Solar Engineering.

Raw Materials Supply Management

Manufacturing of our solar products requires rdéakupplies of various raw materials, includindcsih wafers, ethylene vinyl acet¢
triphenyltin, tempered glass, connecting bandsdingl bands, silica gel, aluminum alloy and junctlmxes. We seek to diversify the sug
sources of raw materials and have not in the pgstreenced any material disruption of our manufaotuprocess due to insufficient supply
raw materials. The aggregate costs attributableutcfive largest silicon materials suppliers in 02011 and 2012 were 40.0%, 40.6%
72.4%, respectively, of our total silicon and siticwafer purchases.

We maintain different inventory levels of our rawaterials, depending on the type of product andl¢lael time required to obte
additional supplies. We seek to maintain reasonavientory levels that achieve a balance betweeretiarts to reduce our storage costs
optimize working capital on one hand, and the neeehsure that we have access to adequate suppligme other. As of December 31, 2(
2011 and 2012, we had RMB459.5 million, RMB194.0liori and RMB187.4 million (US$30.1 million), resptevely, of raw materials
inventory.

Silicon-based Raw Materials

Among the various raw materials required for ounafacturing process, silicon wafers are the mosgtirtant for producing PV cells.
silicon wafer is a flat piece of crystalline silitdhat can be processed into a PV cell. Siliconewgatised for PV cell production are gene
classified into two different types: monocrystadlirand multicrystalline silicon wafers. Compared rwnocrystalline silicon wafel
multicrystalline silicon wafers have a lower corsien rate but are less expensive. We currentlybtiseh and Gnch wafers in our productic
PV cells can be manufactured on our productiorslumging both types of silicon
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wafers with certain temporary adjustments to ttedpction line. We believe that the ability to maamtfire using both types of silicon wal
provides us with greater flexibility in procuringw materials, especially during periods of silicupply shortages.

We purchase all of our silicon and approximately486 of our silicon wafers and 12.6% of PV cellsnfrehirdparty suppliers. W
purchase silicon, wafers and cells from both domesid overseas suppliers, with the majority of purchases being made in the dom:
market. We use ingots manufactured by SolarOnefi@oby, one of our wholly owned subsidiaries, im manufacturing process. Curren
our principal silicon suppliers include Wacker ChenAG, or Wacker, Hemlock Semiconductor Corporation Hemlock, GCL Silico
Technology Holdings Limited, or GCL, and Chonggbggo New Energy Co., Ltd., or Dago.

We procure a significant portion of our silicon ailicon wafers from suppliers under mujar supply agreements. Each of our exi
multi-year supply agreements provides for adjustmentsitisequent years to reflect changes in market tonslior through mutual agreems
We procure our remaining silicon and silicon wafepplies from short-term supply agreements.

Prior to mid-2008, there was an industride shortage of silicon and silicon wafers, whiekulted in significant increases in the price
these raw materials. To secure an adequate andytdapply of silicon and silicon wafers during tkarlier periods of supply shortage,
entered into supply arrangements with a numbeiliobs and silicon wafer suppliers, including a §éar supply contract with Hoku, a seven
year supply contract with a n-PRC supplier and supply contracts with LDK andhEk Since the fourth quarter of 2008, the markitegs fo
silicon and silicon wafers have been decreasingifségntly. Spot market prices of silicon and silicwafers have fallen below the prices
have contracted for with our lortgrm suppliers and continued to decline in 2009 Buthe continuous significant decrease in prafeslicon
and silicon wafers, we have continued to re-net@td of our multi-year supply agreements sinceR®fter renegotiation, the terms of pri
of such multiyear agreements were generally subject to revidvereperiodically or upon significant changes iic@s on the spot market. ¢
“Iltem 3.D. Risk Factors — Risks Related to Our Campand Our Industry —Our ability to adjust our raw material costs maylibéted as |
result of our entering into multiear supply agreements with many of our silicon sifidon wafer suppliers, and it may be difficutr fus tc
respond in a timely manner to rapidly changing raargondition, which could materially and adversalfect our cost of revenues ¢
profitability” and “Item 3.D. Risk Factors — Risl®elated to Our Company and Our Industry\We may be subject to legal proceeding
connection with the multyear supply agreements we entered into previouslysaich proceedings can be both costly and timeuwrnimg an
may significantly divert the efforts and resouroésur management personnel.”

The key raw material for our production of ingogspiolysilicon. We purchase polysilicon primarilyiin Wacker, Hemlock, GCL a
Daqo.

Other Raw Materials

In addition to silicon and silicon wafers, we useagiety of other raw materials for our productids part of our continuing cost cont
efforts, we source a significant portion of theae materials locally. We believe that our policyuse primarily locally sourced raw mater
and our continuing price negotiations with our loawv material suppliers have made a significanitigbution to our profitability since v
commenced operations in 2004. The use of locallycsnl raw materials also shortens our lead order &ind provides us with better acce:
technical and other support from our suppliers.

Production

We manufacture our wafers, PV cells and PV modthesugh SolarOne Qidong, our wholly owned PRC siibsy, with facilitie:
occupying a gross floor area of 178,000 square ih@teQidong, Jiangsu Province, China. We commermeoadmercial production on our fi
PV cell production line in November 2005 and hdsl GW of annual PV module capacity, 1.3 GW of anriMlcell production capacity a
800 MW of annual
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wire sawing capacity of 800 MW as of April 1, 20M3e produce multicrystalline and monocrystallingcen wafers with a dimension of 1
mm x 156 mm and 125 mm x 125 mm, respectively. thiekness of our silicon wafers is 180 microns.

We manufacture our silicon ingots through Solar@eehnology, one of our wholly owned subsidiarieghviacilities occupying a gro
floor area of approximately 113,814 square metetsanyungang, Jiangsu Province, China. SolarOrehfi@ogy commenced its operation
October 2007. As of April 1, 2013, we achieved alringot manufacturing capacity of 800 MW.

We were able to lower our initial investment by ghasing key equipment with more sophisticated teldgy from overseas suppli
while procuring other equipment domestically. Warplour production on an annual, seannual and monthly basis in accordance
anticipated demand and make weekly adjustmentartproduction schedule based on actual ordersvedei

Production Proces:

The following diagram shows the general producsitages for our PV cells:

Rinsi Rinsing is the process during which ultrasonic cleaning is performed on
e silicon walers, followed by chemical treatment of the waler surface, which
reiluces the cells® reflection of sunlight and improves sunlight absorption
capacity,
Diffusi Diffusion is the process during which certain impurities are introduced info
PRl the silicon wafer through a thermal process to enable the formation of an
¢ electric field within the PV cell.
Etchin Etching is the process that is applied on the border of the wafers to prevent
i . . . . ,
& direct electrical shorting between the front and the back of each PV cell.
g 4 e Secondary rinsing is the process during which the waler surface is
Secondary rinsing chemically cleaned to remove the silicon dioxide that may have formed on
the surface of the wafer in order to improve the cell’s capacity to absorb
sunlight.
PECYD PECYTY is the process which produces a silicon nitride film on the wafer’s
’ surface in the front, which improves the PV cell’s capacity to
l absorh sunlight.

Throungh the screen-printing process, negative and positive metal contacts,

Screen printing or electrodes, are printed on the front and back surfaces of the FYV cell.

.

Firing

.

Testing and Sorting

Silicon and metal electrodes are connected throngh an electrade firing
process in a convevor belt furnace at high temperature.

PV cells are tested to determine their electrical performance and sorted
Irased on their conversion rate,
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The following diagram shows the production proceduor our PV modules:

Multiple PY cells are interconnected based on the desired electrical

Welding conligurations through welding.

'

Lamination

The interconnected cells are then laid oot and laminated in a vacuum
throngh a heating process, Through lamination, PY modules are
sealed in weatherproof packages that can withstand high levels of
ultraviolet radiation and moisture,

Aszsembled PV modules are packaged in protective aluminum frames

Framing prior to testing,
. PY modules are tested to determine their electrical performance.
lesting

The following diagram shows the general productitages for our ingots:

Melti Melting is the process during which we place reclaimed silicon raw
Melimg . . . . A R
- materials into a quartz crucible in a furnace, where the silicon is melted,

k4

. Crystal seed placing is the process doring which a thin erystal seed is
Crvstal seed y :

placing dipped into the molten silicon to determine the crystal orientation,

4

Formation is the process during which the cryvstal seed is rotated and then

Formation . .
. slowly extracted from the molten silicon to form a single crystal as the

malten silicon and erucible cool.

y

] } Omce the single cryvstals have been grown o pre-determined
Completion

specifications, they are surface-ground to produce ingots.

Quality Control and Certifications

Our finished PV cells and PV modules are inspected tested according to standardized procedureaddition, we have establist
multiple inspection points at key production stage&lentify product defects during the productmocess. Unfinished products that are fc
to be below standard are repaired or replaced.gDality control procedures also include raw materiglity inspection and testing. Moreoy
we provide regular training and specific guidelinesour operators to ensure that production presesseet our quality inspection and o
quality control procedures.

We maintain several certifications for our qualityntrol procedures, which demonstrate our compéiamith international and domes
operating standards. We believe that our qualitytrob procedures are enhanced by the use of sagatesd production system designs a
high degree of automation in our production proc@$® certifications we currently maintain inclut®O 9001:2008 quality managem
system certification for the process of design,dpation and sale of our PV modules, ISO 14001:260vironmental management sys
certification, OHSAS 18001:2007 occupational healtd safety management system certification andBBecertification for our PV modul
and the UL certification. The IEC certification issued by independent institutes TUV and VDE inr@ary to certify our PV modules :
qualified under IEC 61215 and IEC 61730 safety stahdards and consistent production quality inspes are performed periodical
Maintaining this certification has greatly enhanoed sales in European countries, as well as ciasntr Asia, the Middle East
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and South Africa. We obtained UL certification isduby Underwriters Laboratories Inc., an indepehgenductsafety testing and certificati
organization in the United States, which will ergabé to sell our products to customers in the NArtterica. Furthermore, in the United Sta
our modules have been certified by the Californiergy Commission, the staseprimary energy policy and planning agency, ardRloridz
Solar Energy Center, a regional energy researchcentification organization of the United Statese \WWbtained a certification issued
KEMCO, an independent produsafety testing and certification organization inr&m which will enable us to sell our products tistomers i
Korea. We obtained MCS certificate which enablesousell products to UK and Clean Energy Counstiirig for Australia market. We al
obtained JPEC listing and passed JET qualification for entitp the Japan market. Further, our PV lab wasgeized by VDE and CSA fi
Test Data Acceptable Program, which means thaladwis now qualified to conduct IEC and UL1703 itegtby ourselves and reflects our le
capabilities and management.

Capacity Expansion and Technology Upgrade Plans

As of April 1, 2013, we had 1.5 GW of annual PV nmledproduction capacity and 1.3 GW of annual PV pebduction capacity |
commercial operation. In December 2010, we entdmtéd an investment letter of intent with NantongoBomic and Technologic
Development Zone to build cell and module producterilities with an annual production capacity2o0&W in Nantong, Jiangsu Province.

The expansion plans and capacities indicated aboéndicative only of our current plans and argjestt to change due to a numbe
factors, including, among others, market conditiand demand for our products. Based on the cumamket conditions, we expect to in
capital expenditures of US$50 million for 2013, ethiwill be used primarily to pay for investmentgrocess improvements and equipmen
research and development activities. We plan tal fine balance of our capital expenditure requirdméar 2013 with cash from operatio
additional bank borrowings, and other forms of ficiag, if necessary.

Sales and Distribution

We sell our PV modules through distributors anedatiy to system integrators. Our customers includernational solar power syst
integrators and distributors. Our system integrat@mtomers provide valuedded services and typically design and sell cotegstems th
use our PV modules.

Customers that accounted for a significant portdmour total net revenues in 2012 included Hanwh@HEDLS Korea Corp, former
known as Hanwha SolarEnergy Co., Ltd, Hanwha Cagmr, Hanwha Japan Co., Ltd., Hanwha Q.Cells Grahtl Hanwha Europe Gmk
Our five largest customers accounted for an aggeeg@51.9%, 45.0% and 29.8% of our net revenue0itD, 2011 and 2012, respectiv
Our largest customer in 2010, 2011 and 2012 aceduior 33.6%, 15.1% and 7.6% of our net revenugkefespective year.
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We have established four wholly owned subsidiarieanely SolarOne U.S.A., SolarOne Australia, Soter@anada and SolarC
GmbH, to market our products and provide custornppsrt and service in these markets. The followalge sets forth our net revenues
geographic region, based on the location that puoices are sent to, and the percentage contribtfoeach of these regions to our
revenues, for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
Net % of Net Net % of Net Net Net % of Net
Revenues Revenues Revenues Revenues
Region (RMB) Revenue (RMB) Revenue (RMB) (US$) Revenue
(In thousands, except percentage:

Germany 4,706,76 62.4% 2,652,15 41.5%  1,489,49! 239,08: 40.5%
USA 436,74 5.8% 859,29( 13.4% 513,16: 82,36¢ 14.(%
PRC 612,69! 8.1% 599,24 9.2% 382,46¢ 61,39: 10.4%
India — — 136,24 2.1% 263,22¢ 42,25 7.2%
Korea 6,76¢ 0.1% 76,95/ 1.2% 260,88 41,87¢ 7.1%
Japar 83 0.1% 13,50¢ 0.2% 248,04 39,81« 6.7%
Italy 572,42( 7.€% 358,12: 5.€% 149,19¢ 23,94¢ 4.1%
Greece 19,22¢ 0.2% 44,93¢ 0.7% 80,38: 12,90: 2.2%
France 94,69 1.2% 303,32¢ 4.7% 62,50° 10,03: 1.7%
Belgium 83,43 1.1% 132,93: 2.1% 44,94 7,214 1.2%
Australia 407,26 5.4% 448,49¢ 7.C% 27,77 4,45¢ 0.8%
Spain 131,16t 1.7% 152,13: 2.4% 7,04: 1,13( 0.2%
Canade 92,06 1.2% 157,65( 2.5% 1,50¢ 24z 0.1%
Netherland: — — 330,92( 5.2% — — —
The Czech Republi 165,90¢ 2.2% 78t 0.1% — — —
Others 219,31¢ 2.1% 149,77 2.2% 147,74 23,718 3.8%
Total 7,548,54! 100.% 6,416,48 100.% 3,678,38! 590,42( 100.(%

In 2012, we shipped our products to over 120 custsimn 2010 and 2011, customers accounting fd%@r more of our net revent
collectively accounted for 33.6% and 25.9% of oat revenues, respectively. In 2012, no customeowds for 10.0% or more of our |
revenues. Sales to our largest customer accouoite38f6%, 15.1% and 7.6% of our net revenues, oéispdy. We seek to further diversify ¢
geographic presence and customer base in ordehteva a balanced and sustainable growth. The Cayngigned a supply agreement v
Cobra Electronics Corporation, Gransolar Group Kadsani Group to supply 155 MW PV modules to twtaisprojects in South Africa
December 2012. The delivery of PV modules undershpply agreement is expected to be completeldebgrid of June 2013.

Warranty

Prior to 2012, our PV products were typically swolith a two to five-year warranty for technical deffig and a 1Q<ar limited warrant
against declines of greater than 10% and ye2b-limited warranty against declines of greatemt20%, in their initial power generat
capacity. Since January 2012, we started to extendnaterial and workmanship warranty for PV modute 12 years and replace our exis
warranty for power generation capacity with an ioyad 25-year linear warranty. Under the newy2&+ linear warranty, we guarantee no
than 97% of the nominal power generation capadatydur typical multicrystalline PV modules and 9&%the nominal power generati
capacity for our typical monocrystalline PV modulesthe first year and an annual output degradatbmo more than 0.7% for bc
multicrystalline and monocrystalline PV modulesréadter. By the end of the 25th year, the actualgyamutput shall be no less than 82% o
nominal power generation capacity. Since our prtslb@ave been in use for only a relatively shoriiqeerour assumptions regarding
durability and reliability of our products may nm¢ accurate. We estimate the amount of our warmapligation primarily based on the res
of technical analyses, our historical warrantyrokai
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experience, the warranty accrual practices of coaipa companies, and the expected failure ratdnde costs to service failed products.
results of the technical analyses support the éutyperational efficiency of the PV modules at Isvsignificantly above the minimt
guaranteed levels over the respective warrantyo@sriThe estimate of warranty costs is affectedhleyestimated and actual product fai
rates, the costs to repair or replace failed prtsdand potential service and delivery costs inclimecorrecting a product failure. Based on
considerations above and managenseability and intention to provide repairs, replaeats or refunds for defective products, we haweust
for warranty costs for the 2 to }@ar warranty against technical defects based ownflS#venue for PV modules. No warranty cost addnaz
been recorded for the 10-year and 20 toy@&F warranties for decline from initial power geat®n capacity because we determinec
likelihood of claims arising from these warrantiesbe remote based on internal and external testirthe PV modules and strong que
control procedures in the production process. Basetthe results of analysis and technical testimg revision to our warranty policy in Janu
2012 did not have a material effect on our warraugrual rate. The basis for the warranty accrulhbe reviewed periodically based on ac
experience. Aftesales services for our PV modules and solar agjgitasystems covered by warranties are providedunyinternation:
customer support team. As of December 31, 201028dd, our accrued warranty costs totaled RMB13lillfom and RMB162.1 million fo
the two to five year warranty against technical amaterial defects, respectively, and as of Decer@beP012, totaled RMB177.9 (US$2
million) for the five to 12 year warranty againsthnical and material defects. In 2010, 2011 ari®2@e accrued RMB67.6 million, RMB6:
million and RMB33.1 million (US$5.3 million) in weanty costs, respectively.

Intellectual Property and Proprietary Rights

Our intellectual property is an essential elemémtur business. We rely on patent, copyright, tnagek, trade secret and other intellec
property law, as well as naempetition and confidentiality agreements with emiployees, suppliers, business partners and otioepsotec
our intellectual property rights.

As of April 26, 2013, we had been granted 40 patéytthe State Intellectual Property Office of Ghend had 11 patent applicati
pending in China. Our issued patents and penditenpapplications relate primarily to process tedbgies for manufacturing PV cells.

We have registered “Solarfungur trademark for our PV cells and modules, with tbhina Trademark Office and the Internati
Bureau of the World Intellectuéroperty Organization, which allow us to use théglémark in China, Singapore, the United Statestralia
the European Union, Japan and South Korea.

In 2011, we filed applications for the registratiami the trademark Manwha SolarOne GLOBAL ENERGY PRODUCTS
TECHNOLOGY” in 12 countries and regions and wets@to use this trademark in some of these cowntrie

On April 28, 2012, we registered “Shuo Warig”Chinese character, our trademark for our seagndiass modules, with the Ch
Trademark Office, which allows us to use this tradek in China.

We rely on trade secret protection and confideihfialgreements to protect our proprietary informatand knowhow. Our manageme
and each of our research and development persbianel entered into a standard annual employmentasintvhich includes confidential
undertakings and an acknowledgement and agreefma&nall inventions, designs, trade secrets, wofkauthorship, developments and o
processes generated by them on our behalf areropeny, and assigns to us any ownership rightsttiey may claim in those works. C
supply contracts with our customers also typicallsiude confidentiality undertakings. Despite th@secautions, it may be possible for tl
parties to obtain and use intellectual propertyt the own or license without consent. Unauthorized of our intellectual property by th
parties, and the expenses incurred in protectingirdellectual property rights, may materially aadversely affect our business, finan
condition, results of operations and prospects.“8em 3.D. Risk Factors — Risks Related to Our @amy and Our Industry -Our failure tc
protect our intellectual property rights may undigrenour competitive position, and litigation to ot our intellectual property rights may
costly.”
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Competition

Due to various government incentive programs imgleted in China, Europe, the United States, Japdrotier countries in recent ye:
the global PV market has been rapidly evolving hasl become highly competitive. In particular, géanumber of manufacturers have ent
the solar market.

Our main overseas competitors are, among othertsuMshi Electric Corporation, Sharp Corporation &unpower Corporation. C
primary competitors in China include Trina Solad .l tYingli Green Energy Holdings Co., Ltd., CanadBolar Inc., Jinko Solar Co., Ltd ¢
Suntech Power Holding Co., Ltd. We compete prirgaoih the basis of the power efficiency, qualityffpemance and appearance of
products, price, strength of supply chain and ifhstion network, aftesales service and brand image. Many of our congusthiave longt
operating histories and significantly greater ficiah or technological resources than we do andyegjeater brand recognition. Some of
competitors are vertically integrated and produgstream silicon and silicon wafers, nstteam PV cells and modules and downstream
application systems, which provide them with greatmergies to achieve lower production costs. muperiods when there was a suj
shortage of silicon and silicon wafers, we compétéehsely with our competitors in obtaining adegusupplies of silicon and silicon wafers.

Moreover, many of our competitors are developingtdgeneration products based on new PV technologiekiding amorphous silicc
transparent conductive oxide thin film, carbon mateand nancerystalline technologies, which, if successful,lwdmpete with the crystallil
silicon technology we currently use in our manufisicty processes. Through our research collaborstiae are also seeking to develop
technologies and products. If we fail to developriechnologies and products in a timely mannermag lose our competitive advantage.

We, like other solar energy companies, also facepatition from traditional nossolar energy industries, such as the petroleuncaa
industries. The production cost per watt of soleargy is significantly higher than other types nérgy. As a result, we cannot assure you
solar energy will be able to compete with otherrgnéndustries, especially if there is a reductasrtermination of government incentives
other forms of support.

Environmental Matters

Our manufacturing processes generate noise, weader,wgaseous wastes and other industrial wast@smanufacturing facilities a
subject to various pollution control regulationgtwiespect to noise and air pollution and the dispof waste and hazardous materials. W
also subject to periodic inspections by local emvinental protection authorities. We have estahblish@ollution control system and insta
various equipment to process and dispose of oursindl waste and hazardous materials. We belibaé we have obtained all requi:
environmental permits and approvals to conductbuginess. We also maintain an ISO 14001 envirormheminagement system certificati
which is issued by International Organization ftarlardization to demonstrate our compliance witerhational environmental standards.
have not been subject to any material proceedinfjses for environmental violations.

Insurance

We maintain property insurance for our equipmentpmobiles, facilities and inventory. A significaportion of our fixed assets
covered by these insurance policies. We also maiftasiness interruption insurance, product ligpilnsurance, product quality guarar
insurance and export credit insurance. We beliaseimsurance coverage is customary and standard¢dimpanies of comparable size
comparable industries in China. However, our exgstnsurance policies may not be sufficient to lasuius from all losses and liabilities t
we may incur.
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Regulation

This section sets forth a summary of the most B@mit regulations or requirements that affect business activities in China or «
shareholders’ right to receive dividends and othigiributions from us.

Renewable Energy Law and Other Government Direcsi

In February 2005, China’s Standing Committee ofidvetl Peoples Congress, or SCNPC, enacted the Renewable Ehavgywhich ha
become effective on January 1, 2006. On Decemhe2@®0, the Renewable Energy Law was amended byPECNhe Renewable Enel
Law, as amended, sets forth the national poliogrtcourage and support the development and usdasfastd other renewable energy anc
use of on-grid generation.

The law also sets forth the national policy to emage the installation and use of solar energy mi@ating systems, solar energy hee
and cooling systems, solar photovoltaic systemsahdr solar energy utilization systems. In additithe law provides financial incentiv
such as national funding, preferential loans argtaferences for the development of renewableggnemjects.

China’s Ministry of Construction also issued a directimeJune 2005 that sought to expand the use of swlargy in residential a
commercial buildings and encouraged the increaggication of solar energy in different townshipa. addition, Chinas State Counc
promulgated a directive in July 2005 that set fantinciples with regard to the conservation of ggeresources and the development and u
solar energy in the western part of China, whichiat been covered by electricity transmissiongyaidd rural areas.

In January 2006, the NDRC issued two implementinlgsr relating to the Renewable Energy Law: (1) Tm@al Measures on ti
Administration over the Pricing and Cost AllocatiohRenewable Energy Power Generation and (2) timiAistrative Regulations Relating
the Renewable Energy Power Generation. These ingpleény rules, among other things, set forth genpadities for the pricing of ogrid
power generated by solar and other renewable endéngwddition, the PRC Ministry of Finance issudtk tProvisional Measures
Administration of Specific Funds for DevelopmentRénewable Energy in June 2006, which providesttteaPRC government will establis
fund specifically for the purpose of supporting tfevelopment of the renewable energy industryuitiolg the PV industry.

On March 3, 2008, the NDRC issued the “11th FivedwYBlan for the Development of Energy Resourcesith announced the Pl
government’s support for the development of rendevahergy resources in China, including solar power

On March 23, 2009, Ching'Ministry of Finance promulgated the Interim Measufor Administration of Government Subsidy Fufa
Application of Solar Photovoltaic Technology in Rling Construction, or the Interim Measures, to gup the demonstration and
promotion of solar photovoltaic application in ChirLocal governments are encouraged to issue aptkrnent supporting policies for 1
development of PV technology. Under these Interimablures, the Ministry of Finance provides subsitbegrojects with individual sol
installations that are greater than 50 kilowsgtk in size and have more than 16% conversiocigfity for monocrystalline PV products, m
than 14% conversion efficiency for multicrystalli®®/ products and more than 6% conversion efficigiacyamorphous silicon PV produc
and gives priority support to solar PV technologtiegrated into building construction, gidnnected PV building applications and some p
PV building applications such as schools, hospiald offices. For 2009, the standard subsidy isss@&MB20 per watt in principle and 1
detailed standard is to be determined by factarkidting, but not limited to, the level of integiaii of building with PV and the technology
PV products. The Interim Measures do not applyrtgeets completed before March 23, 2009, the prgatidn date of the Interim Measures.

On April 16, 2009, the General Offices of the PR@istry of Finance and the PRC Ministry of Housimgd UrbanRural Developmel
jointly issued the Guidelines for Declaration ofrB@nstration Project of Soli
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Photovoltaic Building Applications. These guideBnget the subsidy given out in 2009 to qualifielhisprojects at no more than RMB20
watt for projects involving the integration of P\Wraponents into buildingsstructural elements and at no more than RMB15 et o1
projects involving the installation of PV comporgonto building rooftops and wall surfaces.

On May 27, 2010, the Ministry of Housing and Urldamral Development issued the City lllumination Adistration Provisions, or tl
lllumination Provisions, effective as of July 1,120 The Illlumination Provisions encourage the ifestian and use of renewable energy sys!
such as PV systems in the process of constructidirexconstruction of city illumination projects.

On March 8, 2011, the Notice on Further PromotibBuaildings with Renewable Energy, or the Noticegsaointly released by the PI
Ministry of Finance and the PRC Ministry of Housiagd UrbanRural Development. The Notice expressly specitiesgoal of promoting tt
application of renewable energy in buildings unither Twelfth FiveYear Plan to substantially improve the proportibmemewable energy us
in buildings, including solar energy, shallow gemthal energy and biomass energy, so that the cqtsumof renewable energy in buildir
shall account for over 15% of the total buildingeegy consumption by the end of 2020. The TwelftheRfear Plan provides that efforts st
be made to increase the gross floor areas of ng#dserviced by renewable energy to over 2.5 hilsquare meters and to use renew
energy to substitute 30 million tons of coal by émel of 2015.

In August 2011, the NDRC released a directive wisehforth a uniform national feed-tariff for the solar energy generated by pc
plants. The law also encourages the installatiah @se of solar energy water heating systems, solargy heating and cooling systems,
systems and other solar energy utilization systéhtantemplates and permits financial incentivas;h as governmental funding, prefere
loans and tax preferences for the developmentr&wable energy projects.

On February 24, 2012, the Twelfth FiYear Plan on the PV industry was issued by the RR@stry of Industry and Informatic
Technology. This plan specifies the goal of, by ¢nel of 2015, promoting (i) leading polysilicon guzers with annual production of at le
50,000 tons and large polysilicon producers withuah production of at least 10,000 tons, (ii) leadPV cell producers with annual produc
of at least 5 GW and large PV cell producers withuml production of at least 1 GW, and (iii) atdeane PV producer with sales revenue
least RMB100 billion per annum and three to five ftdducers each with sales revenue of at least RMibon per annum.

In July 2012, the Notice of Circulating Twelfth ER¥ear Plan on the PV Industry was issued by theeStatergy Bureau which sta
that priority shall be given to developing localignerated solar energy power.

In September 2012, the Notice of Applications fetdblishing Model Zones Utilizing Local Solar Engi@enerated Power By Scale \
issued by the State Energy Bureau, consistingnaitianwide plan to promote locally generated setargy power.

In October 2012, the Opinion of Administrating Gidnnection Services for Model of Distributed PMaRRo Generation was issued
the State Grid Company, with the purpose of opiimgizand simplifying grid connection procedures angroving service efficiency.

Environmental Regulations

We use, generate and discharge toxic, volatile theravise hazardous chemicals and wastes in ouangseand development &
manufacturing activities. We are subject to a \wara# governmental regulations related to the gferaise and disposal of hazardous mate
The major environmental regulations applicableganelude the Environmental Protection Law of thCR the Law of PRC on the Preven
and Control of Water Pollution, Implementation Rutdé the Law of PRC on the Prevention and ContfWater Pollution, the Law of PRC
the Prevention and Control of Air Pollution, thew.af PRC on the Prevention and Control of Solid Wdollution, and the Law of PRC on
Prevention and Control of Noise Pollution.
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Restriction on Foreign Businesse

The principal regulation governing foreign ownepshif solar photovoltaic businesses in the PRC ésRbreign Investment Industi
Guidance Catalogue (effective as of December 17R00nder the regulation, a PV business falls ithte category of encouraged fore
investment industry. However, the amended cataldgffective as of January 30, 2012) removed pabail production from the category
encouraged foreign investment industry, while othieras of solar photovoltaic businesses remainiwitie category of encouraged fore
investment industry.

Tax

PRC enterprise income tax is calculated basedxabka income determined under PRC accounting giesi On March 16, 2007, 1
National Peopl's Congress of the PRC passed the EIT, which tdekteds of January 1, 2008. In accordance wittElfie a unified enterpris
income tax rate of 25% and unified tax deducticandards are applied equally to both domestic-ieesnterprises and foreigmvester
enterprises, such as SolarOne Qidong. Enterprigablieshed prior to March 16, 2007 eligible for ferential tax treatment in accordance \
the former tax laws and administrative regulatiamgjer the regulation of the State Council, gragitz@came subject to the new tax rate oy
five-year transition period that started on the datefédctiveness of the EIT. In accordance with thetidéoof the State Council on 1
Implementation of the Transitional Preferential iBiek in respect of Enterprise Income Tax, foreigrested enterprises established pric
March 16, 2007 and eligible for preferential tagatiment, such as SolarOne Qidong, continued toy e¢hp preferential tax treatment in
manner and during the period as former laws andlagégns provided until such period expired. Whhe EIT equalizes the tax rates for F
and domestically owned enterprises, preferentialttaatment continues to be granted to companieseitain encouraged sectors an
companies classified as “high and new technolodggrprises,”which enjoy a tax rate of 15% as compared to théomm tax rate of 25%
SolarOne Qidong was approved to be qualified dsigh“and new technology enterprise” on October2BD8. The high and new technolo
enterprise” status is valid for a period of threans from the date of issuance of a “high and remhirtology enterprise” certificate. Theigh
and new technology enterprisetatus of SolarOne Qidong was renewed and appriov&ttober 2011. In addition, SolarOne Qidong
required to perform annual self-assessment of camge as a “high and new technology enterprifetfiere is any significant change in
company’s business operations, manufacturing tdobies or other areas that cause it to no longatifyuas a high and new technolo
enterprise”, such status will be terminated from ylear of such change.

From 2005 until the end of 2009, SolarOne Qidong w0 exempt from the 3% local income tax appledb foreigninvester
enterprises in Jiangsu Province. In addition, umdkvant PRC tax rules and regulations, SolarOiery was entitled to a twyear incom
tax exemption on income generated from additioma$tment in the production capacity of SolarOngo@g resulting from our contribution
SolarOne Qidong of funds we received through issearof series A convertible preference shares priwate placement in June ¢
August 2006, and was entitled to a reduced taxaaie.5% for the three years thereafter. In addijtiour subsidiaries, SolarOne Techno
and Solar Shanghai, are subject to an enterpriegrnia tax rate of 25% from 2008 onwards.

Pursuant to SAT Circular 698, issued by the Statienidistration of Taxation on December 10, 2009 widroactive effect frol
January 1, 2008, if a naesident enterprise transfers its equity interests PRC resident indirectly via disposing of thygiigy interests of ¢
overseas holding company, or Indirect Transfer, suth overseas holding company is located in gutgsdiction that (i) has an effective 1
rate less than 12.5% or (ii) does not tax forefggome of its residents, the foreign investor skegort such Indirect Transfer to the compe
tax authority of the PRC resident enterprise. TRERax authority will examine the true nature af thdirect Transfer, and if the tax autha
considers that the foreign investor has adoptedbaisive arrangement in order to avoid PRC taxjlitdisregard the existence of the over:
holding company and reharacterize the Indirect Transfer and, as a regalhs derived from such Indirect Transfer maysbbject to PR
withholding tax at the rate of up to 10%. SAT Clenu698 also provides that, where a non-PRC resigleterprise transfers
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its equity interests in a PRC resident enterpasiéstrelated parties at a price lower than therfarket value, the relevant tax authority ha:
power to make a reasonable adjustment to the teogaih of the transaction. SAT Circular 698 st#es it does not apply to purchases or ¢
of stock on a stock exchange.

Pursuant to the Provisional Regulation of Chinavatue-Added Tax and their implementing rules, all ensitend individuals that &
engaged in the sale of goods, the provision ofire@ad replacement services and the importatiogoofls in China are generally require
pay value-added tax at a rate of 17% of the grakssgroceeds received, less any deductible \sadded tax already paid or borne by
taxpayer. Furthermore, when exporting goods, tipoegr is entitled to a portion of or all the refuof valueadded tax that it has already f
or borne. Our imported raw materials that are dsednanufacturing export products and are depositdtbnded warehouses are exempt
import value-added tax.

Foreign Currency Exchange
Foreign currency exchange in China is primarily gyoed by the following regulations:
» Foreign Exchange Administration Rules (1996), asraaed; ant
* Regulations of Settlement, Sale and Payment ofifiofexchange (1996

Under the Foreign Exchange Administration Ruleg Benminbi is convertible for current account itenmgluding distribution ¢
dividends, payment of interest, trade and serwétated foreign exchange transactions. Conversiddeominbi for capital account items, si
as direct investment, loan, securities investmadtrapatriation of investment, however, is stibbget to the approval of SAFE.

Under the Regulations of Settlement, Sale and Payofd=oreign Exchange, foreignvested enterprises may only buy, sell and/or 1
foreign currencies at those banks authorized taecinforeign exchange business after valid comrakdmcuments are provided and, in
case of capital account item transactions, aftéining the approval from SAFE. Capital investmdntsoreigninvested enterprises outside
China are also subject to limitations, which inéwpprovals by the Ministry of Commerce, SAFE dre@lNDRC.

Dividend Distribution
The principal regulations governing distributionddfidends paid by wholly foreign-owned enterprigegude:
*  Wholly Foreigr-Owned Enterprise Law (1986), as amended;
*  Wholly Foreigr-Owned Enterprise Law Implementation Rules (1999 amendec

Under these regulations, wholly foreigmned enterprises in China may pay dividends onily af their accumulated profits, if al
determined in accordance with PRC accounting staisdand regulations. In addition, wholly foreignmed enterprises in China are require
set aside at least 10% of their aftax-profit based on PRC accounting standards eaahtg its general reserves until the accumulatecua
of such reserves reaches 50% of its registeredataphese reserves are not distributable as dagtedds. The board of directors of a foreign
invested enterprise has the discretion to alloaatertion of its aftetax profits to staff welfare and bonus funds, whichy not be distributed
equity owners except in the event of liquidation.

C. Organizational Structure

Hanwha Solar Holdings Co., Ltd., or Hanwha Sola&gadme our largest shareholder through a seriemmédctions in September 2C
Hanwha Solar, a company that engages in solar éssiris a wholly owned subsidiary of Hanwha Chehtmaporation, a leading chemi
producer publicly traded on the Korea Exchange whméncipal activities are the production of CA,,Riad PVC products. After Hanw
Solar
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became our largest shareholder, we changed our fiieome “Solarfun Power Holdings Co., Ltd.” to “HanawhSolarOne Co., Ltd.bn

December 20, 2010 and our ticker from “SOLF” to ‘BIS on February 15, 2011. We also changed the namesr&ubsidiaries. The diagr:
below sets forth the entities directly or indirgatbntrolled by us as of April 29, 2013.

Our Company

(Cayman [slands)

v b
Hanwha SalarOse _I by
USA [ne. Investme Iz
Led (BVI1)

Hanwha SolarlCine
Homg Kong Limiated

(Hong Kongl

Hanwha SolarOne Hanwha SclarCne Hanwha Solarine Hanwha Solar Hanwha Salar
{Mantong) Co, Led. (Qidong) Co., Lud. GimbH Ine, Australia Pry Lid
[PRC) (PRCY (Germnany) (Canada) { Australia)

1005 l 0% 100 0% l 0%
¥ ) ¥ Thps k4 )
Hanwha Hanwha Solar Hanwha Hanwha Salar Waniong
SolarDne Engineering SolarCh Electric Power Hanwha
(Shanghat) Co, Fesearch and lechnology Engineering Impeort &
Led Dievelopment Co, Led Ca., Ltd, Export Co,
(PRC) Center Co., [PRC) (PRC) Ltd.
Lid. (PRC)
(PRC)

D. Property, Plant and Equipment

Our corporate headquarters and manufacturing tiesilare located in the Linyang Industrial Parkddpig, Jiangsu Province, Chi
where we hold land use rights for a total area5#,217 square meters, which expire between 2052@6d. We own office and manufactur
facilities for a total gross floor area of approxriely 178,000 square meters in Qidong, JiangsuiftevWe leased manufacturing facili
with a total gross floor area of approximately 32 &quare meters in Qidong, Jiangsu Province. &asek will expire between April 2013 ;
December 2013. In addition, SolarOne Technologd$itdnd use rights for a total area of approxinys®@6,905 square meters and owns o
and manufacturing facilities for a total gross flawea of approximately 76,500 square meters inyiagang, Jiangsu Province. We have
renewed the lease having a gross floor area ofoappately 1,500 square meters for our Hanwha Salar@ngineering, Research
Development Center Co., Ltd. in Shanghai in May®@@hd the renewed lease will expire in May 2014. &ltered into a contract with Qidc
Huahong Electronics Co., Ltd., a company controbbgdMr. Yonghua Lu, our former chairman, to leaseoffice with a gross floor area

1,116 square meters from September 1, 2010 to Adjy2013. In 2010, 2011 and 2012, our rental eges were RMB9.4 million, RMB1(
million and RMB12.8 million (US$2.1 million), respively.
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As of April 1, 2013, we had an annual PV moduledoiion capacity of 1.5 GW and an annual PV ceddpction capacity of 1.3 G\
As of April 1, 2013, we also had 800 MW of annuajat production capacity and 800 MW of annual vgaging capacity.

We believe that our existing facilities are adeguatd suitable to meet our present needs. We areoastructing buildings in SolarO
Qidong and SolarOne Technology to accommodate tamnpd expansion of production capacity. In Decer@bd0, we entered into
investment letter of intent with Nantong Economid & echnological Development Zone to build cell amadule production facilities with
annual production capacity of 2 GW in Nantong, gsanProvince.

ITEM 4A UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 5 OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The following discussion should be read in conjuran with the rest of this annual report, includinghe consolidated financial statemel
and notes thereto contained elsewhere in this anhteport. The results discussed below are not neeely indicative of the results to |
expected in any future periods.

A. Operating Results

Overview

We are a vertically integrated manufacturer oteili ingots, silicon wafers, PV cells and PV modihe€hina. We manufacture a vari
of silicon ingots, silicon wafers, PV cells and Pvodules using advanced manufacturing process témiee that have helped us rap
increase our operational efficiency. Since 2008stantially all of the ingots, wafers and PV celis produced have been used for our ow
module production. We also provide PV module preesservices. We sell PV cells and PV modules biatctly to system integrators ¢
through third-party distributors and provide sagstem integration services.

We commenced operations on August 27, 2004 thr@aarOne Qidong. On August 27, 2004, Linyang Etatts, one of the leadi
electricity-measuring instrument manufacturers in China, ows&% of the equity interests of SolarOne Qidongamticipation of our initic
public offering, we incorporated Hanwha SolarOnéhi@a Cayman Islands on May 12, 2006 as our listilgicle. To enable us to raise eq
capital from investors outside of China, we estdigdd a holding company structure by incorporatiolgu®ne BVI in the British Virgin Islan
on May 17, 2006. SolarOne BVI is wholly owned bynMda SolarOne. SolarOne BVI purchased all of thétgdnterests in SolarOne Qida
on June 2, 2006 from Linyang Electronics and theetother shareholders of SolarOne Qidong for @gdeeconsideration of US$7.3 millic
This transaction was accounted for as a recapitidiz. On May 16, 2007, SolarOne BVI establishedhmlly owned subsidiary, SolarC
Hong Kong. In March 2006, April 2006 and April 2Q0we established three majoribyvned or wholly owned subsidiaries in China, S
Shanghai, Sichuan Jiayang and Solar R&D, respégtit@ expand our business into new markets antbsecWe acquired a 52% eqt
interest in Solar Technology in July 2007 and aeuihe remaining 48% in August 2008. In Septen20€7, we established a wholly owi
subsidiary, SolarOne U.S.A., as part of our plaerter the United States market. On November 307 28olarOne BVI transferred all of -
equity interests in SolarOne Qidong to SolarOnedHkinong for consideration of US$199.0 million. Inkfeary 2008, we established a wh
owned subsidiary, SolarOne GmbH in Germany, to salr products in the European markets. We ligeii&ichuan Jiayang, one of
subsidiaries which historically has had limited @i®ns, in July 2008. In November 2009, we acqlitee remaining 17% interest in St
Shanghai and Solar Shanghai became our wholly ovenedidiary after the completion of this transactigVe established Hanwha St
Electric Power Engineering Co., Ltd. in May 201@eanSolarOne Qidong to engage in the solar pow@egtr business.

We entered into a share purchase agreement on ABgA810 with Hanwha Chemical Corporation, or HaawChemical, a leadil
chemical producer publicly traded on the Korea Exge whose principal
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activities are the production of CA, PE and PVCduas. Under such share purchase agreement, Ha@Wwamical agreed to purch:i
36,455,089 ordinary shares from us at a price d82JB44 per ordinary share, which corresponds toice pf US$10.72 per ADS. Hanw
Chemical subsequently assigned and transferremjiitss and obligations under the share purchaseeaggnt to Hanwha Solar, a wholly ow
subsidiary of Hanwha Chemical and the sale andhase of these ordinary shares was consummatedpsenszer 16, 2010. In addition,
entered into a share issuance and repurchase agreemSeptember 16, 2010 with Hanwha Solar, untiéch we agreed to issue to Hanm
Solar a total of 45,080,019 ordinary shares atvphre of US$0.0001 per ordinary share, which shaege to remain outstanding so long as
to the extent that the 9,019,611 ADSs we issudddiitate our convertible bond offering in Janu@308 remain outstanding. Pursuant tc
share issuance and repurchase agreement, we igsitghwha Solar 30,672,689 ordinary shares on B#e16, 2010 and an additio
14,407,330 ordinary shares on March 10, 2011. &ta proceeds to us from these transactions amduotgdS$78.2 million. At the same tir
Hanwha Solar completed the acquisitions from Gooergies Il LP and Yonghua Solar Power Investmentdidg Ltd. of a total c
120,407,700 ordinary shares and 1,281,011 ADSsio€@mpany, representing all of the ordinary shares ADSs held by them. In conneci
with our public offering of 9,200,000 ADSs in Novbar 2010, we issued to Hanwha Solar an additioB®81,604 ordinary shares at a p
of US$1.80 per ordinary share pursuant to a shidehagreement we and Hanwha Solar entered inSeptember 16, 2010. In October 2(
we repurchased and cancelled 25,017,671 ordinangstirom Hanwha Solar Holdings Co., Ltd. at paneaf US$0.0001 per ordinary share.

We changed our name from “Solarfun Power Holdings Ctd.” to “Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltddh December 20, 2010 and our tic
from “SOLF” to “HSOL” on February 15, 2011. In April 2011, we establisNetitong Hanwha Import & Export Co., Ltd., or NamgaHanwh.
I&E, under SolarOne Qidong to engage in import ardort of PV products and technology and Hanwhar&bie (Nantong) Co., Ltd.,
SolarOne Nantong, under SolarOne Hong Kong to dpyehanufacture and sell PV products. In Febru@d22we established Hanwha S
Canada Inc. under SolarOne Hong Kong to sell smladucts in Canada. In May 2012, we acquired Han®&blar Australia Pty Ltd. fro
Hanwha Corporation to sell solar products in Aditra

We shipped 797.9 MW, 844.4 MW and 829.8 MW of PVdules (including PV module processing) in 2010, R@hd 201:
respectively. The average selling price of our Pddales (excluding PV module processing) was RMB31BMB8.87 and RMB4.£
(US$0.72) per watt in 2010, 2011 and 2012, respelgti In 2010, 2011 and 2012, 91.9%, 90.7% and%91@spectively, of our net reven
were attributable to sales to customers outsidihn@®fPRC. Moreover, in 2010 and 2011, customersuattay for 10.0% or more of our 1
revenues collectively accounted for 33.6% and 2508%ur net revenues, respectively. In 2012, ndaruer accounts for 10.0% or more of
net revenues.

Our net revenues decreased from RMB7,548.5 miilin2010 to RMB6,416.5 million in 2011, and decreh$e RMB3,678.4 milliol
(US$590.4 million) in 2012. Our net income decrelaBem a net income of RMB757.4 million in 2010amet loss of RMB930.1 million
2011, and decreased to a net loss of RMB1,5621&m{US$250.9 million) in 2012.

Limited Operating History

We have a limited operating history upon which yain evaluate our business. You should considerigke and difficulties frequent
encountered by companies with a relatively shoeraging history, such as us, in new and rapidlyhéng markets, such as the PV market.
rapid revenue growth since we started operatiosugust 2004 should not be taken as indicativéhefrate of revenue growth, if any, that
be expected in the future. In addition, our limitgmkrating history provides a limited historicablsato assess the impact that critical accou
policies may have on our business and our finapeegbrmance.
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Key Factors Affecting Our Financial Performance
The most significant factors affecting our finahgarformance are:
* industry demanc
» average selling price of our PV produc
e price and availability of silicon and silicon wade
* manufacturing capacity; ar
» process technologie
Industry Demand

Our business and revenue growth depends on PVtigdiesmand. There has been significant growth RN market in the past dece
However, beginning in the second half of 2008, mahgur key markets, including Germany, Spain dmel Wnited States, and other natic
economies have experienced a period of economitamion or significantly slower economic growth. particular, the current credit crit
weak consumer confidence and diminished consunthbasiness spending have contributed to a signifismwdown in the market deme
for PV products due to decreased energy requiresnéfany of our customers have experienced difficiftobtaining financing, and ever
they have been able to obtain financing, the cbstuoh financing has increased and our customeysahange their decision or change
timing of their decision to purchase our produgéts.a result, this lack of, and increase in the odsfinancing have lowered and may conti
to lower demand for our products and reduced otrrevenues. A protracted disruption in the abitifyour customers to obtain financing cc
lead to a significant reduction in their future ersi for our products, which in turn could have darial adverse effect on our business, finai
condition and results of operations. See “ltem Bk Factors — Risks related to Our Company and I@dustry —Demand for our P
products has been, and may continue to be, adyeaffektted by volatile market and industry trenBltdbm the second half of 2008 to the 1
half of 2009, increased manufacturing capacityhe industry also contributed to a decline in thiirge price of PV products. As glot
economic condition began improving in the seconfl #a2009, demand for PV products began to inceedisring 2010, which contributed
an increase in the selling price of PV product2040 along with the increased manufacturing capati2010. Such increase was offset by
sale of inventory accumulated during the economigrdurn. A large portion of our sales is denomidateEuros. The depreciation of Eurc
the first half of 2010 and the appreciation of Eirdhe second half of 2010 also contributed todhange of our average selling price per
of our PV modules in 2010. In 2011, a decreaseayment to PV product producers, in the form of faetariffs and other reimbursemet
and a reduction in available financing caused aedese in the growth in a number of PV projectshim European markets. Payments tc
product producers decreased as governments in &uoger pressure to reduce sovereign debt leeelaced subsidies such as féedariffs.
Furthermore, many downstream purchasers of PV pteduere unable to secure sufficient financingRdt projects due to the global cre
crunch. These market conditions were exacerbatethtywersupply of PV products driven by increased manufaegucapacity in 2011, whic
adversely affected the prices of PV products.

The average selling price per watt of our PV mosiullecreased from RMB11.58 in 2010 to RMB8.87 in120dnd to RMB4.4
(US$0.72) in 2012. The average selling price pet wfeour PV modules decreased from RMB6.29 inlés¢ quarter of 2011 to RMB4.22 ¢
RMB3.75, respectively, in the third and fourth deaiof 2012. The change in the average sellingegir watt of our PV modules is consis
with the industry trend.

Average Selling Price of Our PV Produc

PV products are priced based on the number of wétidectricity they can generate. Pricing of P\ddlucts is principally affected
manufacturing costs, including the costs of silieord silicon wafers, as well as the overall demantie PV industry. Increased economie
scale and advancement of process technologiestiowgrast decade have also led to a reduction irufaeturing costs and the prices of
products.
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We generally price our products based on the piiaganarket price at the time our customers issurelase orders, taking into accc
the size of the purchase order, the strength astriyi of our relationship with each customer and @apacity utilization. Beginning in t
fourth quarter of 2008, demand for PV products eéased as a result of the global financial crisig, the supply of PV products increa
significantly as many manufacturers of PV prodwetsldwide, including our company, engaged in siigaifit production capacity expansiol
recent years. This state of ovampply has resulted in reductions in the prevaitmayket prices of PV products as manufacturers hnegrece:
their average selling prices in an attempt to obtailes. The average selling prices of our prodsteited to decline in the fourth quarte
2008. The average selling price per watt of ourrtules (excluding PV module processing) decrefreed RMB11.58 in 2010 to RMB8.¢
in 2011, and to RMB4.47 (US$0.72) in 2012. The desnin the average selling prices of our PV modptasarily reflected the prevailit
market trend. We expect that the prices of PV pctslwill continue to decline over time due to iresed supply of PV products, redu
manufacturing costs from improving technology andr@mies of scale, and continuing decreases iprines of silicon and silicon wafers.

Price and Availability of Silicon and Silicon Wafer

Prior to mid-2008, there was an industvide shortage of silicon and silicon wafers, whielsulted in significant price increases.
secure an adequate and timely supply of silicon sliwbn wafers during the earlier periods of sypglhortage, we entered into a numbe
multi-year supply agreements. The prices in the@gents we entered into prior to mid-2008 were gdiyepre-determined, but some of th
agreements provided for adjustments in subsequemsyo reflect changes in market conditions augh mutual agreement.

Since the fourth quarter of 2008, the market pricessilicon and silicon wafers have been decraasignificantly. Spot market prices
silicon and silicon wafer prices have fallen beliw price we have contracted for with our Idegm suppliers and continued to decline in 2
The rapid declines in the prices of silicon anétsit wafers coupled with decreases in demand fopRMucts have hampered our abilit
pass on to our customers the cost of our raw nadgenihich were procured at higher prices duringehdier period of supply shortage. A
result, our writedown of inventories amounted to RMB134.5 millionVIB583.1 million and RMB326.1 million (US$52.3 miin) in 201C
2011 and 2012, respectively.

Due to the continuous significant decrease in grigfesilicon and silicon wafers since 2009, we hesmtinued to reregotiate all of ot
multi-year supply agreements. After re-negotiatithre terms of price of such muitear agreements were generally subject to revi¢hel
periodically or upon significant changes in prioesthe spot market and the unit price of the gilioelated materials has been lowered. Sil
and silicon wafers secured through such nydti supply agreements provided a significant poraf our silicon and silicon wafer need:
2012 and 2013. If we are unable to re-negotiateptices of our existing multear supply agreements and the prices of silicah slicor
wafers continue to decrease in the future, we naybe able to adjust our materials costs, and ost of revenues would be materially
adversely affected. See “Iltem 3.D. Risk Factors iskRRelated to Our Company and Our IndustryOur ability to adjust our raw mater
costs may be limited as a result of our enterinig multi-year supply agreements with many of our silicon sitidon wafer suppliers, anc
may be difficult for us to respond in a timely manmto rapidly changing market condition, which abuiaterially and adversely affect our «
of revenues and profitability” and “Item 3.D. RiBlactors — Risks Related to Our Company and Ourdimdu— We may be subject to leg
proceedings in connection with the muléar supply agreements we entered into previousilysaich proceedings can be both costly and
consuming and may significantly divert the effatsl resources of our management personnel.”

Because the oversupply situation of silicon mateties deteriorated in 2012, some of our mydtr suppliers are facing difficulties
continuing their business: some of our supplietg slown their factories for certain period of tine2012 and some of them are in a liquida
process. We may not receive our prepayments madier inose multi-year agreements if those suppliecome bankrupt. Some of our multi-
year agreement suppliers have the difficultiesuippdying us with silicon materials with fixed quéntor
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qualified materials and we have instituted legaicpedings against them. See “ltem 3.D. Risk FacteRisks Related to Our Company i
Our Industry —Prepayments we have provided to our silicon andosilwafer suppliers expose us to the credit amtbpeance risks of sut
suppliers and may not be recovered, which coutdrim have a material adverse effect on our liquitlit

The Chinese government has initiated an datiping investigation of polysilicon imported froBermany, the U.S. and Korea in 2!
and the tariff on polysilicon will be announcedthe second quarter of 2013. We have one nyeltir supply agreement with an over:
supplier in the above listed countries. As a regqatysilicon imported from this supplier in 2013ambe subject to tariffs. We are curre
negotiating with some Taiwan suppliers to estabdigiolysilicon tolling business to replace the entrsupplier mentioned above to reduce
exposure to potential polysilicon tariffs.

We also acquire a portion of our polysilicon anitsh wafers through shoterm supply arrangements for periods ranging freresa
months to one year. The prices we pay for silicoe silicon wafers pursuant to sheerm supply arrangements vary according to thegiliag
market price around the time of delivery, which bansubject to significant fluctuations.

Manufacturing Capacity

Capacity and capacity utilization are key factarsgrowing our net revenues and gross profit. Ineorih accommodate the grow
demand for our products, we had significantly exjeghour manufacturing capacity in the past. Anaase in capacity has a significant el
on our financial results, both by allowing us tamguce and sell more PV products and achieve higherevenues, and by lowering
manufacturing costs as a result of increased ecmsoof scale. However, since 2012, we have postpang capacity expansion plan
response to the oversupply of PV products.

We have been seeking to maximize the utilizatioonwfavailable manufacturing capacity as it comedire, so as to allow us to spre
our fixed costs over a higher production volumerdivy reducing our per unit and per MW fixed costs.we build additional producti
facilities, our fixed costs will increase, and theerall utilization rate of our production faciligould decline, which could negatively impact
gross profit. However, regardless of the capacitg particular manufacturing facility, our capacittilization may vary greatly depending
the mix of products we produce at any particulaeti

We expanded rapidly our manufacturing capacity fiam establishment in August 2004 until early 2@h2 have slowed down our p.
of capacity expansion since the beginning of 2@k?a result, we produced 758.9 MW, 939.5 MW and.@8BV of PV modules in 2010, 20
and 2012, respectively. The following table setshfdhe production volume of silicon ingots, wafey cells and PV modules for the peri
indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
(MW) (MW) (MW) (MW) (MW)
Volume of ingots produced 48.C 154.1 360.( 367.2 237.
Volume of wafer produce 23.t 164.¢ 387.¢ 383.1 242.¢
Volume of PV cells produced (including PV cell pessing) 191.51) 260.42) 502.43) 687.44) 708.45)
Volume of PV modules produced (including PV moduiecessing 177.% 342.¢ 758.¢ 939.t 856.(

Notes:
(1) Of which 190.5 MW was used in our PV module proahrct

(2) Of which 240.2 MW was used in our PV module proahrct
(3) Of which 490.4 MW was used in our PV module proahrct
(4) Of which 660.3 MW was used in our PV module proahrct
(5) Of which 704.7 MW was used in our PV module proahrct
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As of April 1, 2013, we had an annual PV moduledoiion capacity of 1.5 GW and an annual PV ceddpction capacity of 1.3 G\
As of April 1, 2013, we also had 800 MW of annuajat production capacity and 800 MW of annual vgaging capacity.

Process Technologie

Advancements of process technologies have imprtvedjuality of PV products and enhanced their cosive efficiencies. Assumil
other things being the same, high conversion efficies reduce the manufacturing cost per watt opRducts and coulthereby contribute -
increasing gross profit margins. For this reasaslarsenergy companies, including us, are continlyoueveloping advanced proc
technologies for large-scale manufacturing whikung costs to maintain and improve profit margins

We have achieved improvements in process techno&wyy product quality since we commenced our comialeproduction ii
November 2005. Our monocrystalline and multicryistal PV cells achieved conversion efficiency rateshe ranges of 17.8% to 18.4% .
16.2% to 17.2%, respectively, in 2012 and we am able to process wafers as thin as 180 microns.a@vanced ingot growing and we
sewing process technologies have also significantjyroved our productivity and increased the edfidy of our raw material usage, botl
which have led to the lowering of the cost per wéibur products and improved our gross profit nregg

Net Revenues

We currently generate a substantial majority of weir revenues from the production and sale of Pdutes. We also generate a sr
portion of our net revenues from the sale of PVscahd raw materials and scrap materials to thantigs.

We commenced manufacturing and selling PV moduieBebruary 2005, and had net revenues of RMB7,5#8lion, RMB6,416.!
million and RMB3,678.4 million (US$590.4 milliony 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively.

We began manufacturing PV cells in November 200®ngrily to supply our PV module production. Asesult, we only sold a sm
number of the total PV cells we manufactured tdatercustomers to maintain business relationst8pge our business strategy is focuse
increasing our own output of PV modules on a efftient basis, we plan to continue to use thestftial majority of our PV cells
manufacturing our PV modules and will maintain eate of PV cells to third parties at a relativedyllevel. In 2010, 2011 and 2012, our
revenues from the sale of PV cells were RMB100.ianj RMB49.2 million and RMB29.6 million (US$4.@illion), respectively.

We began to provide PV module processing servicggraduce PV modules from PV cells provided by oustomers in 2007. V
recorded the amount of net revenues on PV moduoleepsing transactions based on the amount reci@ada customer for PV modules s
less the amount paid for PV cells purchased fraarstime customer.

In the event we pay the shipping costs on behatfusfcustomers, we include the shipping costs pleseto our customers in our
revenues.

In 2010, 2011 and 2012, a small portion of ourregenues was derived from the sale of raw mateigadsir customers.

We record revenues net of all valadded taxes imposed by governmental authoritiecalected by us from customers concurrent
revenue-producing transactions.

We currently depend on a limited number of cust@tier a high percentage of our net revenues. Ciatomho individually account:
for more than 10% of our net revenues accountedrfaggregate of
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33.5% and 25.9% of our net revenues in 2010 and ,2@kpectively. In 2012, no customer accountslh0% or more of our net revent
From a geographic standpoint, Europe, particul@gymany, has been our largest market. Based dodhgon that our invoices are sent tc
2010, 2011 and 2012, our sales to European cussoacepunted for 79.6%, 66.1% and 52.9%, respegtieélour net revenues, with Gern
customers accounting for 62.4%, 41.3% and 40.5%pewively, in such periods. Although we anticiptitat our dependence on a limi
number of customers in a few concentrated geogeaglgions will continue for the foreseeable futwwe, are actively expanding our custo
base and geographic coverage through various niagketforts, especially in other developing PV negk such as the United States, Cli
India, Korea, Japan, Italy, Greece, France, Belgimch Australia.

Sales to our customers are typically made throumirexclusive, shorterm arrangements. Before the beginning of 2009germerall
required deposits of a certain percentage of th@ract price from our customers which we recordedien customer deposits in
consolidated balance sheets. Once the revenuenitioogcriteria are met, we then recognize thesgnmmmts as net revenues. In line \
market trends, this practice of requiring our costes to make deposits is on the decline. As of Bibes 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, we
received deposits of RMB33.5 million, RMB84.9 nuti and RMB36.3 million (US$5.8 million), respectiye

Cost of Revenues and Operating Expenses

Cost of Revenues

The following table sets forth our cost of revenand operating expenses and these amounts cattalatgercentages of our net revel
for the periods indicated.

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
% of Net % of Net Amount % of Net
Amount Amount
(RMB) Revenue (RMB) Revenue (RMB) (USs$) Revenue
(In thousands, except percentage:
Cost of revenue (5,869,50) 77.8%  (6,633,54) 103.% (4,003,88) (642,66 108.%
Operating expense
Selling expense (269,207 3.€% (279,789 4.4% (348,56) (55,949 9.4%
General and administrative expen (172,11) 2.2% (340,409 5.2% (278,03)) (44,629 7.€%
Provision for doubtful accounts receivable
and other receivabl¢ 27¢ — (56,239 0.€% (137,679) (22,099 3.7%
Research and development exper (53,500 0.7% (68,217 1.1% (90,82() (14,579 2.5%
Impairment of goodwil — — (134,73Y 2.1% — — —
Total operating expens (494,54) 6.€% (879,379 13.7% (855,09) (137,25) 23.2%

Our cost of revenues includes the cost of raw risseused for our PV module and PV cell productioidl PV module processing, sucl
silicon and silicon wafers, other direct raw maikyiand components including ethylene vinyl acetsifghenyltin, tempered glass, connec
bands, welding bands, silica gel, aluminum allogt amction boxes, inventory writdewn as a result of reduced cost or market assessmne
a regular provision for obsolescence, and provssion advance payments arising from the suppliaikire to perform under the contracts.
costs relating to providing the PV module procegsiarvices were recorded within cost of revenues.ekpect the cost of silicon and sili
wafers, our primary raw material for the manufaictgirof PV products, to continue constituting a sabsal portion of our cost of revenue:
the near future.
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Other items contributing to our cost of revenues direct labor, which includes salaries and besnédfit personnel directly involved
manufacturing activities, manufacturing overheadicl consists of utility, maintenance of productiegquipment, and other support expe
associated with the manufacturing of our PV prosluahd depreciation and amortization of manufactueiquipment and facilities.

We expect our cost of revenues to increase as gvease our production volume. Future increasesoredses in our suppliersdst o
silicon wafers may also contribute to fluctuatiamgost of revenues.

Silicon and silicon wafers are the most importaw materials for our products. We record the pusetgarice of silicon and silicon wafi
and other raw materials initially as inventory ir @onsolidated balance sheets, and then trarisfeamount to our cost of revenues aftel
raw materials are consumed in our manufacturinggs® and the finished products are sold and delivéks of December 31, 2010, 2011
2012, our inventory of raw materials totaled RMB4billion, RMB194.0 million and RMB187.4 millionJS$30.1 million), respectively,
which RMB286.3 million, RMB76.6 million and RMB83.6villion (US$13.4 million), respectively, represedtsilicon and silicon wafel
Silicon suppliers generally require prepaymentsnfies in advance of delivery. We classify such pyepmnts as advances to suppliers
record such prepayments under either ooment assets or current assets in our consolidatance sheets. However, if such suppliers é
fulfill their delivery obligations under the silioosupply agreements or if there is any dispute &etnwus and such suppliers that jeopardize
ongoing relationship, we may not be able to receueh prepayments and would suffer losses. Sem ‘3t®. Risk Factors —Risks Related 1
Our Company and Our Industry Prepayments we have provided to our silicon andosil wafer suppliers expose us to the credit
performance risks of such suppliers and may neebevered, which could in turn have a material astveffect on our liquidity.”

Operating Expenses
Our operating expenses consist of selling expeggegral and administrative expenses and reseadctesrelopment expenses.
Selling Expenses

Our selling expenses primarily consist of warraggts, shipping and handling costs for productd, smdvertising and other promotio
expenses, and salaries, commissions, travelingneggeand benefits for our sales and marketing peetoln 2010, 2011 and 2012, our sel
expenses were RMB269.2 million, RMB279.8 milliondaRMB348.6 million (US$55.9 million), respectivelAs we intend to pursue
aggressive marketing strategy to promote our prisdacdifferent geographic markets, we expect thatselling expenses will increase for
immediate future.

Prior to 2012, our PV products were typically solith a two to five-year warranty for technical deffis and a 1Q<ar limited warrant
against declines of greater than 10% and y&2B-limited warranty against declines of greatemt20%, in their initial power generat
capacity. Since January 2012, we started to extenanaterial and workmanship warranty for PV modute 12 years and replace our exis
warranty for power generation capacity with an ioyed 25-year linear warranty. Under the newy2as linear warranty, we guarantee no
than 97% of the nominal power generation capadatydur typical multicrystalline PV modules and 9&%the nominal power generati
capacity for our typical monocrystalline PV modulesthe first year and an annual output degradatbmo more than 0.7% for bc
multicrystalline and monocrystalline PV modulesréadter. By the end of the 25th year, the actualgyooutput shall be no less than 82% o
nominal power generation capacity. Since our prtalbave been in use for only a relatively shortiqeerour assumptions regarding
durability and reliability of our products may nm¢ accurate. We estimate the amount of our warmapligation primarily based on the res
of technical analyses, our historical warranty roiexperience, the warranty accrual practices afpewable companies, and the expe
failure rate and future costs to service faileddpieis. The results of the technical analyses stigherfuture operational efficiency of the
modules at levels significantly above the minimuoagnteed levels over the respective warranty geridhe estimate of warranty cost
affected by the estimated and actual product faifates, the costs to
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repair or replace failed products and potentiatiserand delivery costs incurred in correcting adorct failure. Based on the considerat
above and managementbility and intention to provide repairs, replaeats or refunds for defective products, we haweusd for warrant
costs for the 2 to 18ear warranty against technical defects based orofl¥evenue for PV modules. No warranty cost adchaes bee
recorded for the 10-year and 20 toy&&ar warranties for decline from initial power geat®n capacity because we determined the likelihal
claims arising from these warranties to be rematet on internal and external testing of the PVutesdand strong quality control procedt
in the production process. Based on the resulésalysis and technical testing, the revision towarranty policy in January 2012 did not h
a material effect on our warranty accrual rate. basis for the warranty accrual will be reviewediqgdically based on actual experience.
do not sell extended warranty coverage that israggy priced or optional. Aftesales services for our PV modules and solar agji
systems covered by warranties are provided bymiarnational customer support team. In 2010, 20112012, we accrued RMB67.6 millic
RMB64.7 million and RMB33.1 million (US$5.3 millignrespectively, in warranty costs.

General and Administrative Expenses

Our general and administrative expenses primadhsist of salaries and benefits of our administeasitaff, depreciation charges of fi;
assets used for administrative purposes, as weltasnistrative office expenses including consumaptraveling expenses, insurance, <
compensation expenses, and provision for doub#btsland losses in relation to prepayments to sipghat were in contractual default wt
we have asserted our termination rights that regqeipayment of the remaining deposits. In 20101201 2012, our general and administrz
expenses were RMB172.1 million, RMB340.4 milliorddRMB278.0 million (US$44.6 million), respectively.

Research and Development Exper

Our research and development expenses primarilgistoof salaries and benefits of our research awtldpment staff, other expen
including depreciation, materials used for researth development purposes, and the travel expéms@sed by our research and developr
staff or otherwise in connection with our reseaacid development activities. We expense our researdhdevelopment costs as incurret
2010, 2011 and 2012, our research and developmg&penses were RMB53.5 million, RMB68.2 million andMB90.8 million
(US$14.6 million), respectively. We believe thasearch and development is critical to our stratepiectives of enhancing our technoloc
reducing manufacturing costs and meeting the chgngequirements of our customers. As a result, weeet that our total research i
development expenses will be similar or will in@ean the future.

Share-based Compensation Charges

We adopted our 2006 share option plan in Novemb@é pursuant to which we may issue up to 10,799¢g88mary shares upon exerc
of awards granted under the plan. As of Decembg2812, options to purchase 1,641,150 ordinaryesh&iave been granted and v
outstanding under this plan.

We adopted our 2007 equity incentive plan in Au@®d7 which provides for the grant of options, niet#d stock, restricted stock un
stock appreciation rights, performance units andopmance stock to our employees, directors andsultents. The maximum aggrec
number of our ordinary shares that may be issuéémnitme 2007 equity incentive plan is 10,799,68%ddition, the plan provides for an ant
increase in the number of shares available foraissel on the first day of each fiscal year, begignuith our 2008 fiscal year, equal to 2%
our then outstanding ordinary shares or such lemswunt as our board of directors may determineoABecember 31, 2012, options
purchase 2,545,575 ordinary shares have been grantewere outstanding under this plan.

In 2010, 2011 and 2012, we recorded RMB32.0 miJliemMB38.3 million and RMB7.8 million (US$1.2 milliy, respectively, as share-
based compensation charges.
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Taxation
PRC Enterprise Income Ta

PRC enterprise income tax is calculated based xabka income determined under PRC accounting giesi On March 16, 2007, 1
National Peopl's Congress of the PRC passed the EIT, which tdektedis of January 1, 2008. On December 6, 20@7State Council of t
PRC issued Implementation Regulations regardingBHhe which took effect as of January 1, 2008. Irtadance with the EIT and
Implementation Regulations, a unified enterpriseoine tax rate of 25% and unified tax deduction daads are applied equally to b
domestic-invested enterprises and fordigrested enterprises such as SolarOne Qidong. [iiges established prior to March 16, 2007
eligible for preferential tax treatment in accordarwith the former tax laws and administrative tatians, under the regulations of the S
Council, gradually became subject to the new ta& ower a fiveyear transition period starting from the date déetiveness of the EIT.
accordance with the Notice of the State Councittenimplementation of the Transitional Preferenflalicies in respect of Enterprise Incc
Tax, foreigninvested enterprises established prior to March2D®7 and eligible for preferential tax treatmesuch as SolarOne Qidol
continue to enjoy the preferential tax treatmerthim manner and during the period as former lawdsaaiministrative regulations provided u
such period expires. While the EIT equalizes tixeréges for FIEs and domestically owned enterprigesferential tax treatment continues ti
granted to companies in certain encouraged seatmt$o companies classified as “high and new tdolggaenterprises,ivhich enjoy a tax ra
of 15% as compared to the uniform tax rate of 25%arOne Qidong was approved to be qualified dsigh“and new technology enterprise’
on October 21, 2008. The “high and new technolaggmprise” status is valid for a period of threargefrom the date of issuance oflagh
and new technology enterprise” certificate. If th&y any significant change in the companusiness operations, manufacturing technol
or other areas that cause it to no longer quatfa dhigh and new technology enterpris&lich status will be terminated from the year oth
change. SolarOne Qidong’s “high and new technokgerprise” status was renewed and approved inb@c011.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our consolidated financial statementoiformity with U.S. GAAP, which requires us to keaestimates and assumpti
that affect the reported amounts of, among othieg#h assets, liabilities, revenue and expensesb&ge our estimates on our own histo
experience and on various other factors that wielaelto be relevant under the circumstances. Acesllts may differ from these estim:
under different assumptions or conditions. Somewfaccounting policies require higher degreesidginent than others in their applicat
We consider the policies discussed below to bécalito an understanding of our financial staterneag their application places the n
significant demands on our management’s judgment.

Revenue Recoghnitio

Our primary business activity is to produce andl B&l modules. We periodically, upon special reqdesn customers, sell PV cells ¢
silicon ingots. We record revenue related to tHe s PV modules, PV cells and silicon ingots wtika criteria of Accounting Standa
Cadification, or ASC, 605-10, “Revenue Recogniti@uerall” are met. These criteria include all of the followimpersuasive evidence of
arrangement exists; delivery has occurred; thesgaiee is fixed or determinable; and collectifiig reasonably assured.

More specifically, our sales arrangements are exieé by either framework sales agreements and/anddyidual sales agreements
each transaction. The shipping terms of our sal@sgements are generally “Cost, Insurance andjRrgior CIF, and “Free on Boardgr
FOB, shipping point whereby the customer takes tithd assumes the risks and rewards of ownershipeoproducts upon delivery to
shipper. The customer bears all costs and riskgssfor damage to the goods from that point. Usdene sales arrangements, we requirt
customers to prepay prior to shipment. We perforrgoing credit assessment of each customer, ingudkéviewing the customes’lates
financial information and historical payment recamd performing necessary due diligence to deterragteptable credit terms. In instar
where we granted longer credit terms to certaitiorosrs, the timing of revenue recognition has r&rbimpacted as we have historically t
able
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to collect under the original payment terms withmaking concessions. Other than warranty obligatiove do not have any commitment
obligations to deliver additional products or seed to the customers. Based on the above, we reevethue related to product sales t
delivery of the product to the shipper, providedtthll other revenue recognition criteria are ntehat time.

We periodically enter into processing service ageanents to process PV cells into PV modules. Fesdhservice arrangements,
“purchase” PV cells from a customer and contempewasly agree to “selld specified quantity of PV modules back to the saostomer. Th
guantity of PV modules sold back to the customerden these processing arrangements is consistémitivé amount of PV cells purcha
from the customer based on current production cmiwe rates. In accordance with ASC 845-1A¢counting for Purchases and Sale
Inventory with the Same Counterpartye record the amount of revenue on these procesisingactions based on the amount received ft
modules sold less the amount paid for the PV peitshased from the customer. These sales are stdbjait of the aboveroted criteria relatir
to revenue recognition.

Revenue is recognized net of all valdded taxes imposed by governmental authoritiescatidcted from customers concurrent \
revenueproducing transactions. We do not offer implicitexplicit rights of return, regardless of whetheods were shipped to distributor:
shipped directly to the end-users, other than dyrdduct defects.

We recognize revenue related to solar systemsratieg services using the percentagesofapletion method. We estimate our revel
by using the cost-taost method, whereby we derive a ratio by compattiegcosts incurred to date to the total costs @epleto be incurred «
the project. We apply the ratio computed in thet-t@gost analysis to the contract price to determiredstimated revenues earned in
period. A contract may be regarded as substantgaliypleted if the remaining costs are not signiftda amount. When we determine that t
estimated costs will exceed total revenues unadeng&ract, we record a loss accordingly.

Fixed Assets, Net

Fixed assets are stated at cost net of accumulaf@eciation and are depreciated using the stréiighimethod over the estimated us
lives of the assets, as follows:

Buildings 20 years

Plant and machiner 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and office equipme 5 years

Computer softwar 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Leasehold improvemen Over the shorter of the lease term or their estohatseful lives

Repair and maintenance costs are charged to expeten incurred, while the cost of renewals antebaient that extend the useful
of fixed assets are capitalized as additions tor¢ifeted assets. Retirement, sale and disposassefs are recorded by removing the cos
accumulated depreciation with any resulting gaitoes reflected in the consolidated statement®wofprehensive income.

Costs incurred in constructing new facilities, irdihg progress payments, interest and other cetédimg to the construction ¢
capitalized and transferred to fixed assets upompbetion and depreciation commences when the @&saesilable for its intended use.

Interest costs are capitalized if they are incudladng the acquisition, construction or productmia qualifying asset and such ci
could have been avoided if expenditures for thetassave not been made. Capitalization of intezests commences when the activitie
prepare the asset are in progress and expendéndesorrowing costs are being incurred. Interestscare capitalized until the assets are t
for their intended use. Interest capitalized in 202011 and 2012 amounted to RMB5.4 million, RMEBG&illion and RMB41.1 millio
(US$6.6 million), respectively.
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Warranty Costs

We primarily provide standard warranty coverageoanPV modules sold to customers. Prior to 2012 stlandard warranty provided
a 2 to 5-year warranty against technical defectd)-gear warranty against a decline from initial poweneration capacity of more than 1
and a 20 to 2%ear warranty against a decline from initial powgeneration capacity of more than 20%. Since JanRatp, we started
extend our material and workmanship warranty forrflules to 12 years and replace our existing wrf@ar power generation capacity w
an improved 25-year linear warranty. Under the 2&uear linear warranty, we guarantee no less than 87#e nominal power generat
capacity for our typical multicrystalline PV modsland 96% of the nominal power generation capdoityour typical monocrystalline F
modules in the first year and an annual output aldgfion of no more than 0.7% for both multicryst&land monocrystalline PV modu
thereafter. By the end of the 25th year, the aqioaler output shall be no less than 82% of the nahpower generation capacity.

Our estimate of the amount of warranty obligatiempiimarily based on the following consideratiofig:the results of technical analys
including simulation tests performed on our produmy an industryecognized external certification body as wellraerinally developed dar
heat testing procedures conducted by our engirgeéem, (2) our historical warranty claims expecn(3) the warranty accrual practice
other companies in the industry that produce P\dpects that are comparable in engineering designmaterial input and functionality to ¢
products, and which sell products to a similarcleiscustomers, and (4) our expected failure ratefature costs to service failed products.
results of the technical analyses support the éutyperational efficiency of our PV modules at lsvslgnificantly above the minimt
guaranteed levels over the respective warrantyo@eriOur estimate of warranty costs will be affddbgy the estimated and actual prot
failure rates, the costs to repair or replace diaieoducts and potential service and delivery cimstisrred in correcting a product failure. Ba
on the above considerations and managemaiility and intention to provide repairs, replaests or refunds for defective products, we ac
for warranty costs for the two th2 year warranty against technical defects basel%rof net revenues for PV modules. No warrantyt
accrual has been recorded for the 10-year and 28y@ar warranties in place through 2012 because werrdimed the likelihood of clain
arising from these warranties to be remote basddtemal and external testing of our PV moduleg stnong quality control procedures in
production process. Based on the results of asabsil technical testing, the revision to our wagrgolicy in January 2012 did not hav
material effect on our warranty accrual rate.

If our PV modaules fail to perform to the standaodfishe performance guarantee, we could incur sanhbataexpenses and substantial
outlays to repair, replace or provide refunds f@ tindemperforming products, which could negatively impaat overall cash position. T
basis for the warranty accrual will be reviewedigdically based on actual experience. We do ndtesdended warranty coverage the
separately priced or optional.

Impairment of Lon¢-Lived Assets

We evaluate our lonlived assets or asset groups, including intangabkets with finite lives, for impairment wheneveemts or chang:
in circumstances (such as a significant adversegshto market conditions that will impact the fetwse of the assets) indicate that the car
amount of a group of lontived assets may not be recoverable. When thesgsuwecur, we evaluate for impairment by compatirgcarryin
amount of the assets to the future undiscountedas#t flows expected to result from the use ofageets and their eventual disposition. Ii
sum of the expected undiscounted cash flows isthessthe carrying amount of the assets, we waddgnize an impairment loss based ol
excess of the carrying amount of the asset groep itwfair value.

Goodwill

Gooduwill represents the excess of the purchase prier the fair value of the assets acquired aediabilities assumed of the acqui
business. Goodwill is reviewed at least annuallyiftpairment, or earlier if there is an indicatiohimpairment, in accordance with ASC 3
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” We assigil assess goodwill for impairment at the reporting level.
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The performance of the impairment test involvesastep process. The first step of the impairmentitestives comparing the fair val
of the reporting unit with its carrying amount, linding goodwill. Fair value is primarily determindy computing the future discounted c
flows expected to be generated by the reporting ifrthe reporting unit carrying value exceeds its fair value, goodwidlynibe impaired.
this occurs, we perform the second step of the gwdbitmpairment test to determine the amount of amment loss. The fair value of 1
reporting unit is allocated to its assets and liidos in a manner similar to a purchase priceatmn in order to determine the implied fair vi
of the reporting unit's goodwill. If the implied gdwill fair value is less than its carrying valtiee difference is recognize an impairment loss.

We determined the fair value of the reporting wmsing the income approach based on the discountgdcted future cash floy
associated with the reporting unit. The discourtash flows for the reporting unit were based oe-figar projections. Cash flow projectic
were based on past experience, actual operatindgigesd managemestbest estimates about future developments, asawalertain mark
assumptions. Cash flow after the fifth year wergmeted using a terminal value calculation, whicmsidered terminal value growth rate
3%, considering longerm revenue growth rates for entities in the ratevindustries in the PRC. The discount rate of@axmately 16% we
used in the valuations, which reflect the markseasment of the risks specific to our industry arelbased on the weightaglerage cost
capital for that particular reporting unit.

As of December 31, 2011, we had determined thatdne/ing value of the reporting unit exceedednitplied fair value, estimated usi
a discounted cash flow methodology, and recordedrgrairment loss of RMB134.7 million in 2011, which included in fmpairment o
goodwill” in our consolidated statements of comgmetive income.

Financial Instruments — Foreign Currency Derivativ€ontracts, Commodity Contracts and Interest Ratgep Contract

Our foreign currency derivative contracts, commydiérivative contracts and interest rate swap eshtare used to manage our fort
currency risks principally arising from sales cawts denominated in Euros, maintain the stabilitythe purchase prices for silver ¢
aluminum, the raw materials used in the productib®V products, and manage the interest rate gslofir longterm bank borrowings. V
record these derivative instruments as currentasseurrent liabilities, measured at fair value.

In 2010, 2011 and 2012, we entered into cmsgsency exchange rate agreements to receive Rénamd sell other currencies ¢
commodity agreements to purchase silver and alumjraund an interest rate swap agreement to pay fitedest rate rather than floating r.
Changes in the fair value of these derivative imagnts are recognized in our consolidated statem@htomprehensive income. We h
elected not to apply hedge accounting to thesevatére instruments. As of December 31, 2012, we tatdtanding crossurrency exchang
rate contracts with notional amounts of Euro44.0ioni and US$46.3 million, commodity contracts fb40,000 ounces of silver and nil
aluminum, and an interest rate swap contract wittional amount of US$50.0 million. We estimate fag value of our foreign currenc
commodity and interest rate swap derivatives uaipgcing model based on market observable inputs.

Share-based Compensation

We account for the share options granted unde2606 share option plan and our 2007 equity incenpilan in accordance with A!
718-10, “Share-Based Compensation” and ASC 505-B@¢counting for Equity Instruments that Are EnteredOffer the Employees f
Acquiring, or in conjunction with Selling Goods 8ervices,” respectively. In accordance with ASC-108 all grants of share options
recognized in the financial statements based oin grantdate fair values. We have elected to recognize emisgtion expense using
straight-line method for all share options grantéith services conditions that have a graded vestaigdule.
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With the assistance of an independent third-paatyer, we have applied the Bla8icholes option valuation model in determining thie
value of the options granted before January 1, 2008estimate expected volatility at the date aihgbased on a combination of historical
implied volatilities from comparable publicly listeeompanies. Forfeiture rate is estimated basddstarical forfeiture patterns and adjuste
reflect future change in facts and circumstandemy.

For share options and restricted stock units gdaatieer January 1, 2008, the fair value of eachigsaestimated on the date of grant u
a binomial-lattice model. Similar to the Black-S@®model, the binomidéttice option model takes into account variableshsas expectt
volatility, dividend yield, and risk-free interesttes. Risk-free interest rates are based on penpon U.S. riskree rates for the terms consis!
with the expected life of the award at the timent. Expected life is computed based on our egitim of exercise patterns which we beli
are representative of future behavior. Expecteddid yield is determined based on our historid@bénd payout rate. Expected volatility
estimated based on a combination of our histofealormance and the performance of comparable gybisted companies.

In addition, the binomialattice model considers the contractual term ofapton, the probability that the option will beeggised prior t
the end of its contractual life, and the probapitif termination or retirement of the option holdeicomputing the value of the option.

Accounting for Income Taxes and Uncertain Income X#&ositions

We account for income taxes in accordance with A8Q, “Accounting for Income TaxesUnder this method, deferred tax assets
liabilities are determined based on the differenetveen the financial reporting and tax bases sétasand liabilities using enacted tax r
that will be in effect in the period in which théfdrences are expected to reverse. We recordumiiah allowance to offset deferred tax as
if, based on the weight of available evidences itiore likely than not that some portion, or allthee deferred tax assets will not be reali
The effect on deferred taxes of a change in teesristrecognized in income in the period that ide&ithe enactment date.

We also apply ASC 740-10, “Accounting for Uncertgim Income Taxes"which prescribes the recognition threshold a tasitfmn i<
required to meet before being recognized in tharfomal statements. As of December 31, 2011 and,2@42ecorded unrecognized tax ben
of RMB143.5 million and RMB143.5 million (US$23.0iltion), respectively.

We have elected to classify interest and/or pezsaltelated to an uncertain position, if and whequired, as part ofdther operatin
expenses’in the consolidated statements of comprehensiveniec No such amounts have been incurred or acdtuedgh December 2
2012.

Based on existing PRC tax regulations, the taxsye@iuSolarOne Qidong, Solar Shanghai, SolarOne A@oly, Solar R&D, and Sol
Engineering for the years ended December 31, 2@@8gh 2012 remain open for examination by theatatkorities.

Advance to Suppliers and Lol-term Prepayments

Advance to suppliers and long-term prepaymentsesmt interesfiree cash deposits paid to suppliers for futurechases of ra
materials. According to the mulgiear framework supply agreements entered into ketwes with our suppliers, we were required to e
deposits to our suppliers in order to secure supplsilicon due to limited availability. The muliear framework supply agreements ent
into between us and our suppliers indicated mininguantities with associated pricing set for theumtrperiods under the agreements
deliveries to be made over a general timeframggesutp change based on our purchasing needs aheé/suppliers’ product availability.

As a result of a steep decline in the spot prigesfticon products since 2009, we have continuedetoegotiate all of our multiea
framework supply agreements through either suppi¢ahagreements or
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amended and restated mulgar framework supply agreements. Each of thessesuient agreements contains provisions which altw
reassessment of the purchase price for future etédiy under the agreements; however, the subseggergments generally did not adjusi
originally contracted purchase quantities. As sulel, multiyear framework supply agreements, original andnasnaled, effectively repres:
commitments to purchase minimum quantities. Oumpbers have been willing to adjust the pricing terof the original framework supy
agreement in order to maintain loteym business relations with us. Such renegotiatlave been common practice in the industry gihe
volatility in the silicon market beginning in laB908, which resulted in pricing that was vasthfatiént from the levels anticipated when
framework agreements were initially entered into.alddition, as such price adjustments have bedactiee of the thercurrent marke
conditions, the suppliers can continue to receitedompensation while avoiding the risks assodiaté#h seeking new customers and pote
adverse consequences to reputation in the midstafhly competitive and volatile market.

The supplemental agreements or amended and restaltieyear framework supply agreements have also remaveduse which wi
previously included in the original multi-year framork supply agreements that provide us with tktrio terminate the multiear framewor
supply agreements and to require repayments ofleposits in any event of defaults by our suppli#exmination of our rights to recall ¢
advances has indicated that these advances wjllentecovered through delivery from our supplighsch could range from one to four ye:
Accordingly, advances that can only be recoverest ahe year are similar to long-term assets andldibe classified as non-current.

The risk of loss arising from ngperformance by or bankruptcy of the suppliers geased prior to making the deposits and creditity
of the suppliers is continually assessed. If the@my deterioration in the creditworthiness of sh@pliers, we will seek to recover the adva
from the suppliers and provide for losses on adeanc cost of revenues because of the supplieability to fulfill their supply obligations. .
charge to cost of revenues will be recorded inbgod in which a loss is determined to be probabid the amount can be reason
estimated. We recorded a charge to cost of revenfu@$1B0.1 million, RMB287.7 million and RMB186.0itlion (US$29.9 million) in 201(
2011 and 2012, respectively, to reflect the probdds arising from the suppliers’ failure to pemnficunder the contracts.

In circumstances where a supplier is in contraatieéhult and we have termination rights that rezjuépayment of the remaining dep
and we have asserted such rights, the advancesdassified to other current assets in our codatdid balance sheets. Similarly, we recla
advances to other current assets when legal privggebdave commenced where we are claiming a brefacbntract and are seeking mone
recovery of the remaining deposit. A provision lass is recognized in general and administratiyeeazes in the period in which the los:
such assets is determined to be probable and tlo&irdncan be reasonably estimated. We recorded ehdoygeneral and administra
expenses of nil, RMB54.5 million and RMB50.0 mitligUS$8.0 million) in 2010, 2011 and 2012, respedii.

Effective January 1, 2011, we changed the methaatobunting for shipping and handling costs ancefracorded such expenses in
line item “operating expenses — selling expensegiur consolidated statements of comprehensivenigs while in prior years, shipping ¢
handling costs were recorded as part of “costwémae.” We believe the classification of shippimgl daandling costs as “operating expenses
selling expensesis preferable because it (1) better reflects thareaof the expenses; and (2) increases the colmfpigraf information witt
our competitors. Our comparative financial statetmenf prior years have been adjusted retrospewgtit@ireflect this reclassification a
enhance comparability between periods.
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Consolidated Results of Operations

Since substantially all of our revenues are deriveth the sale of PV products instead of the dejivef services, we presented our
revenues and cost of revenues for all product satea combined basis in accordance with U.S. GAWR. believe that this presentat
provides sufficient information in assessing oueming and financial performance. The followingléasets forth our summary consolid:

statements of comprehensive income for the peritdisated:

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensiv
Income Data

Net revenue

Third parties

Related partie

Total net revenue

Cost of revenue

Gross profit (loss

Operating expenses Selling exper

General and administrative expen

Provision for doubtful accounts receivable and

other receivable

Research and development exper

Impairment of goodwil

Total operating expens:

Operating profit (loss

Interest expens

Interest incomt

Exchange gains (losse

Changes in fair value of derivative contrg

Changes in fair value of conversion feature
convertible bond

Loss on extinguishment of de

Other income

Other expense

Income (loss) before income tax

Income tax expens

Net income (loss

Net income (loss) attributable to Hanw
SolarOne Co., Ltd. Shareholdt

Year Ended December 31
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2010 2011 2012
% of Net % of Net % of Net
(In RMB (In RMB (In RMB (nuss
Thousands) Revenue Thousands) Revenue Thousands) Thousands Revenue
7,072,78! 93.7% 5,832,62! 90.¢%  2,639,45 423,66: 71.8%
475,75¢ 6.4% 583,85 9.1% 1,038,92 166,75¢ 28.2%
7,548,54! 100.(% 6,416,48! 100.%  3,678,38l 590,42( 100.(%
(5,869,50) (77.9% (6,633,54) (103.9% (4,003,88) (642,66)  (108.9%
1,679,04; 22.2% (217,05)  (3.4% (325,50) (52,24 (8.9%
(269,207 (3.60%  (279,78)  (4.4% (348,569 (55,949 (9.9%
(172,11) (2.9%  (340,40)  (5.2% (278,03) (44,629 (7.6%
27¢ — (56,23)  (0.9% (137,67)  (22,09¢) (3.7)%
(53,500 (0.9)% (68,21)  (1.)% (90,820 (14,579 (2.9%
— — (134,73)  (2.1)% — — —
(494,54) (6.6% (879,379 (13.)%  (855,09) (137,25) (23.9%
1,184,50. 15.7%  (1,096,43) (17.1)% (1,180,60) (189,500 (32.1)%
(161,67) (2.1%  (171,05) (2.79)% (299,51) (48,079 (8.1%
6,141 0.1% 11,76 0.2% 15,84: 2,54: 0.4%
(89,279 (1.2% (3,96  (0.1)% 8,87t 1,42¢ 0.2%
77,53 1.C% (70,779  (1.1% 5,32¢ 85E 0.1%
31,62¢ 0.4% 264,38« 4.1% (5,697) (914 (0.2%
— — — (82,719 (13,279 (2.2%
12,39¢ 0.2% 5,14¢ 0.1% 9,26¢ 1,48 0.2%
(5,90%) (0.1)% (14,10  (0.2%  (18,39) (2,957) (0.5%
1,055,34 14.%  (1,075,04) (16.9% (1,547,60) (248,40) (42.9%
(297,98)) (3.9% 144,94! 2.%% (15,255 (2,449 (0.4)%
757,35 10.(% (930,109 (14.5% (1,562,85) (250,85()  (42.5%
757,35 10.(% (930,10)  (14.5% (1,562,85) (250,85() (42.5%



Table of Contents

2012 Compared to 2011
Net Revenue

Our total net revenues decreased by 42.7% to RMB34amillion (US$590.4 million) in 2012 from RMB@L8.5 million in 2011. Our n
revenues derived from our PV module business (eiduPV module processing) decreased by 42.4% t®B®BLO.7 million (US$531
million) in 2012 from RMB5,748.3 million in 2011 ué primarily to the decrease in the average seflinge of our PV modules from RMBS.
in 2011 to RMB4.47 (US$0.72) in 2012. In 2012, vegiged 90.0% of our total net revenues from the s&lPV modules, compared to 89.
in 2011.

Cost of Revenues and Gross Profit

Our cost of revenues decreased by 39.6% to RMB&Q@8lion (US$642.7 million) in 2012 from RMB6,63million in 2011. h
particular, we recorded charges to cost of reverafeRMB287.7 million and RMB186.0 million (US$29.Million) in 2011 and 201
respectively, to reflect the probable loss arisiram the suppliers’ failure to perform under thentacts, and an inventory writtswn o
RMB583.1 million and RMB326.1 million (US$52.3 niilh) in 2011 and 2012, respectively. In additidre tosts associated with PV moc
production decreased by 39.8% to RMB3,650.8 mill{pi$$586.0 million) in 2012 from RMB6,060.3 millian 2011, due primarily to tl
decrease in blended cost of goods sold takingdaotount the production cost (silicon and rsilicon) using internally sourced wafers, purct
costs and additional processing costs of extersallyced wafers and cells.

As a result of the foregoing, our gross profit wegative RMB325.5 million (US$52.2 million) in 2012ompared to gross profit
negative RMB217.1 million in 2011. Our gross prafiargin was negative 8.8% in 2012, compared totheyna.4% in 2011, primarily becat
the decrease in the average selling price of oumi®dules outpaced the decrease in the silicon-basedaterials.

Operating Expenses and Operating Profit (Loss)

Our operating expenses decreased by 2.8% to RMB86Hion (US$137.3 million) in 2012 from RMB879rillion in 2011. Ou
operating expenses as a percentage of our totadvertues increased to 23.2% in 2012 from 13.72011.

Our selling expenses primarily consist of warraggts, marketing and promotional expenses, shipaimbhandling costs and salar
commissions, shareased compensation charges, traveling expensebearaits of our sales and marketing personnel. s2lling expenst
increased by 24.6% to RMB348.6 million (US$55.9limil) in 2012 from RMB279.8 million in 2011, dueirarily to the increase in shippi
cost and expansion of our sales force. Selling eseeas a percentage of our total net revenuessased to 9.4% in 2012 from 4.4% in 2011.

Our general and administrative expenses primadhsist of salaries and benefits of our administeasitaff, depreciation charges of fi;
assets used for administrative purposes, as wedldasinistrative office expenses, including consulesbtraveling expenses, insurance
share compensation charges for our administratieesgmnel. Our general and administrative expensesredsed by 18.3%
RMB278.0 million (US$44.6 million) in 2012 from RME0.4 million in 2011, due primarily to the decreasf stock option expenses i
consulting service expenses. General and admitivg&raxpenses as a percentage of our total nehvegeincreased to 7.6% in 2012 from 5
in 2011.

Provision for doubtful debts and other receivabitesinly relate to provision made for losses for artareceivables and provision
losses in relation to advance to suppliers thaevirecontractual default where we have assertedesmination rights that require repaymer
the remaining deposits. Our provision for doubtfigbts and other receivables increased by 144.8% R&1B56.2 million to RMB137.
million (US$22.1 million). The increase was printadue to our dispute with Guo Hua to collect tkenaining accounts receivable undet
EPC contract.
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Our research and development expenses primarilyistoof materials used for research and developmamioses, salaries and benefil
our research and development staff, depreciati@mgels, and travel expenses incurred by our reseaatdevelopment staff or otherwise
connection with our research and development aietsvi Our research and development expenses iecrdas 33.1% to RMB90.8 millic
(US$14.6 million) in 2012 from RMB68.2 million in021. The increase was primarily because we expandedesearch and developmr
team and conducted additional research and develaipmrctivities. Research and development expernses percentage of our total
revenues increased to 2.5% in 2012 from 1.1% irl201

As a result of the foregoing, our operating loss WwaMB1,180.6 million (US$189.5 million) in 2012, mpared to an operating loss
RMB1,096.4 million in 2011. Our operating profit g decreased to negative 32.1% in 2012 from megaf7.1% in 2011.

Interest Expense, Exchange Losses, Other Incomamgek in Fair Value of Derivative Contracts and @fas in Fair Value of Conversi
Feature of Convertible Bonc

We generated interest income of RMB15.8 million $2% million) and incurred interest expense of RMBZ3 million (US$48.
million) in 2012, compared to interest income of BM..8 million and interest expense of RMB171.1 imillin 2011. The increase in inter
expense was due primarily to an increase in theuatnaf interest-bearing bank borrowings.

We incurred exchange gain of RMB8.9 million (US$tlion) in 2012, compared to exchange losses bfBR.0 million in 2011
primarily due to the fluctuation of the U.S. dolkard Euro against the Renminbi.

Our other income increased to RMB9.3 million (US$illion) in 2012 from RMB5.1 million in 2011 dugrimarily to compensatic
from insurance. Our other expenses increased to FavBmillion (US$3.0 million) in 2012 from RMB14rillion in 2011, due primarily to ¢
increase in bank charges.

We recorded RMB5.3 million (US$0.9 million) in chges in fair value of derivative contracts to refltéee realized and unrealized
gain arising from the changes of fair value of faneign currency derivative, commodity and intemagé swap contracts in 2012.

We recorded RMB5.7 million (US$0.9 million) in ctges in fair value of convertible feature of our werible bonds in 2012, d
primarily to the changes in our ADS price.

Income Tax Expens

Our income tax expense was RMB15.3 million (US$2iflion) in 2012, compared to an income tax benefitRMB144.9 million ir
2011, due primarily to the provision of valuatidioaance of deferred tax assets.

Net Loss

As a result of the cumulative effect of the aboaetdrs, we had a net loss of RMB1,562.9 million $250.9 million) in 2012, compar
to a net loss of RMB930.1 million in 2011. Our peofit margin decreased to negative 42.5% in 20@&hfnegative 14.5% in 2011.

2011 Compared to 2010
Net Revenue

Our total net revenues decreased by 15.0% to RMB&4million in 2011 from RMB7,548.5 million in 2010ur net revenues deri\
from our PV module business (excluding PV modulepssing) decreased by 13.7% to RMB5,748.3 milha2011 from RMB6,658.6 millic
in 2010, due primarily to the decrease in the ayeiselling price of our PV modules from RMB11.58 p&tt in 2010 to RMB8.87 per watt
2011. In 2011, we derived 89.6% of our total neeraies from the sale of PV modules, compared 2#881 2010.
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Cost of Revenues and Gross Profit

Our cost of revenues increased by 13.0% to RMB6%88lion in 2011 from RMB5,869.5 million in 2010n particular, we record:
charges to cost of revenues of RMBO0.1 million andB287.7 million in 2010 and 2011, respectively réflect the probable loss arising fr
doubtful recovery of advances to suppliers, andnaentory writedown of RMB134.5 million and RMB583.1 million in 20 and 201:
respectively. In addition, the costs associatech wev module production increased by 17.6% to RMB6.8 million in 2011 fror
RMB5,152.1 million in 2010, due primarily to an ne@ase in sales volume but partially offset by aelese in silicon-based raw materials.

As a result of the foregoing, our gross profit vaegative RMB217.1 million in 2011, compared to grpsofit of RMB1,679.0 million i
2010. Our gross profit margin was negative 3.4920t.1, compared to positive 22.2% in 2010, primdoigause the decrease in the ave
selling price of our PV modules outpaced the desgréia the silicon-based raw materials.

Operating Expenses and Operating Profit (Loss)

Our operating expenses increased by 77.8% to RMB&W8lion in 2011 from RMB494.5 million in 2010.UD operating expenses &
percentage of our total net revenues increased.®d.in 2011 from 6.6% in 2010.

Our selling expenses primarily consist of warracgts, marketing and promotional expenses, shipambhandling costs and salar
commissions, shareased compensation charges, traveling expensebarddits of our sales and marketing personnel. $ailling expenst
increased by 3.9% to RMB279.8 million in 2011 fr&tviB269.2 million in 2010, due primarily to increas@a salaries and benefits as a re
of the expansion of our sales force, and increaseghibition and advertising fees. Selling expanae a percentage of our total net reve
increased to 4.4% in 2011 from 3.6% in 2010.

Our general and administrative expenses primadhsist of salaries and benefits of our administeasitaff, depreciation charges of fi;
assets used for administrative purposes, as wedldasinistrative office expenses, including consulesbtraveling expenses, insurance
share compensation charges for our administragvegmnel. Our general and administrative expemsesased by 97.8% to RMB340.4 mill
in 2011 from RMB172.1 million in 2010, due primarilo increases in one-time shdrased compensation to two executives that ternd
employment relationships with us in 2011 of RMB1flion. General and administrative expenses peraentage of our total net rever
increased to 5.2% in 2011 from 2.3% in 2010.

Provision for losses is in relation to advanceupmiers that were in contractual default wherehaee asserted our termination rights
require repayment of the remaining deposits. Oowipion for doubtful debts and other receivablesoanted to RMB56.2 million in 201
compared to a reversal of such provision of RMB@iBion in 2010. The provision was primarily due ttee dispute with LDK to recover t
remaining deposits associated with a multi-yeapsuagreement.

Our research and development expenses primarilyistoof materials used for research and developmamioses, salaries and benefil
our research and development staff, depreciatiamgels, and travel expenses incurred by our reseadttdevelopment staff or otherwise
connection with our research and development aietsviOur research and development expenses iectdns27.5% to RMB68.2 million
2011 from RMB53.5 million in 2010. The increase wasnarily because we expanded our research andla@mwent team and conduc
additional research and development activitieseBeh and development expenses as a percentage toftal net revenues increased to 1
in 2011 from 0.7% in 2010.

As a result of the foregoing, our operating loss RMB1,096.4 million in 2011, compared to an ogagaprofit of RMB1,184.5 millioi
in 2010. Our operating profit margin decreaseddgative 17.1% in 2011 from positive 15.7% in 2010.
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Interest Expense, Exchange Losses, Other Incomemdel in Fair Value of Derivative Contracts and @ges in Fair Value of Conversi
Feature of Convertible Bonc

We generated interest income of RMB11.8 million amclrred interest expense of RMB171.1 million 812, compared to intert
income of RMB6.1 million and interest expense of RM61.7 million in 2010. The increase in interegpexse was due primarily to an incre
in accretion of interest expense of our convertiidads.

We incurred exchange losses of RMB4.0 million ih20compared to exchange losses of RMB89.3 miilio2010, primarily due to tt
fluctuation of the U.S. dollar and Euro against firenminbi.

Our other income decreased to RMB5.1 million in 2&/bm RMB12.4 million in 2010 due primarily to &cfease in government gre
received. Our other expenses increased to RMB14dlibmmn 2011 from RMB5.9 million in 2010, due pnarily to an increase in bank charg

We recorded negative RMB70.8 million in changedain value of derivative contracts to reflect themalized and unrealized net g
arising from the changes of fair value of our fgrecurrency derivative, commodity and interest sa¥ap contracts.

We recorded RMB264.4 million in changes in fairualof convertible feature of our convertible bomid2011, due primarily to tt
changes in our ADS price.

Income Tax Expen:

Our income tax benefit was RMB144.9 million in 20tbmpared to an income tax expense of RMB298.0amiin 2010, due primaril
to our taxable loss in 2011.

Net Loss

As a result of the cumulative effect of the abosetdrs, we had a net loss of RMB930.1 million il 20compared to net income
RMB757.4 million in 2010. Our net profit margin deased to negative 14.5% in 2011 from positive %0i® 2010.

Inflation

Since our inception, inflation in China has not enily affected our results of operations. Accoglto the National Bureau of Statis
of China, changes in the consumer price index im&tvere 3.3% , 5.4% and 2.6% in 2010, 2011 an@ 2@Epectively.

B. Liquidity and Capital Resources

We are a holding company, and conduct substantallpf our business through SolarOne Qidong, obolly owned PRC operatil
subsidiary. The payment of dividends by entitigganized in China is subject to limitations. CurrBRC regulations permit our subsidiarie
pay dividends to us only out of their accumulatedfits, if any, determined in accordance with PR€aunting standards and regulation:
addition, each of our subsidiaries in China is meglito set aside a certain amount of its aféerprofits each year, if any, to fund cer
statutory reserves. These reserves are not digthleu as cash dividends. As of December 31, 2012pta of RMB2,726.2 millio
(US$437.6 million) was not available for distritarito us in the form of dividends due to these P&fLilations.
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Liquidity
The following table sets forth a summary of ourtcisws for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (US$)
(In thousands)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi 266,76( 255,49: (1,052,21) (168,89)
Net cash used in investing activiti (669,159  (2,437,92) (534,51) (85,79¢)
Net cash provided by financing activiti 1,387,45! 2,528,20! 286,65: 46,01:
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 985,05° 345,77¢ (1,300,07) (208,67

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities primadbnsists of net income (loss), as adjusted forgash items such as change in
value of the conversion feature of our convertti@ds, depreciation and amortization, warranty ijsfox, sharébased compensation expen
provision for doubtful debts, provision for losdes advances to suppliers, deferred tax benefi, the effect of changes in certain opere
assets and liabilities line items such as inveamrother assets (including advance to suppliengierm prepayments and accounts receive
amounts due to related parties, accounts payalsé&mer deposits, accrued expenses and otheitlegil

Our net cash used in operating activities was RNMIBA.2 million (US$168.9 million) in 2012, which wakerived from net loss
RMB1,562.9 million (US$250.9 million), adjusted tteflect a net increase relating to noesh items and a net decrease relating to chan
operating assets and liabilities. The adjustmegltging to non-cash items were primarily comprisédn increase in writdown of inventorie
of RMB326.1 million (US$52.3 million), depreciatioand amortization of RMB373.2 million (US$59.9 nah), provision for doubtft
collection of advances to supplier of RMB170.0 il (US$27.3 million), amortization of convertibb®nds discount of RMB88.5 millic
(US$14.2 million) and provision for doubtful coltean of accounts receivable of RMB87.6 million (US$1 million). The adjustments relat
to changes in operating assets and liabilities,ciwhiesulted in a net decrease of RMB781.3 milliat$125.4 million), were primari
comprised of:

e an increase of RMB508.3 million (US$81.6 milliom) accounts receivable and an increase in amounfrdoerelated parties
RMB195.1 million (US$31.3 million), due primarilp greater sales near the end of the y

* an increase of RMB480.7 million (US$77.2 milliom)inventories primarily as a result of increaseisfied goods due primarily
a decrease in sales; a

» adecrease in advance to suppliers and temg-prepayments of RMB159.3 million (US$25.6 roitl), primarily due to the decre:
in silicon material price and smaller advances iregiuby suppliers

Our net cash provided by operating activities wagBR55.5 million in 2011, which was derived from rless of RMB930.1 millior
adjusted to reflect a net increase relating to cash items and a net decrease relating to changeperating assets and liabilities. -
adjustments relating to non-cash items were prignaamprised of an increase in writdwn of inventories of RMB583.1 million, deprecal
and amortization of RMB218.6 million, provision fdoubtful collection of advances to supplier of RB&.7 million, provision for doubtf
collection of other receivables of RMB54.0 milliamd impairment of goodwill of RMB134.7 million. Ttasljustments relating to change
operating assets and liabilities, which resulted iret increase of RMB184.3 million, were primadlymprised of:

» adecrease of RMB743.5 million in accounts recdeatiue primarily to a decrease in sa
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* anincrease of RMB476.4 million in inventories pairfy as a result of increased finished goods diragrily to a decrease in sale

e anincrease in notes payable of RMB260.0 milliod an increase in accounts payable of RMB121.9nildue primarily to cos
incurred as a result of our capacity expansiorfihl2 anc

e an increase of RMB206.4 million in other currensets, primarily because we were able to receivéiaddl cash refund of VA
tax due to an increase in acquisition of fixed esge2011.

Our net cash provided by operating activities wd&BR266.8 million in 2010, which was derived from rietome of RMB757.4 milliot
adjusted to reflect a net increase relating to cash items and a net decrease relating to changeperating assets and liabilities. -
adjustments relating to non-cash items were prignadmprised of an increase in wrid®@wn of inventories of RMB134.5 million a
depreciation and amortization of RMB187.6 millidrhe adjustments relating to changes in operatisgtasand liabilities, which resulted i
net decrease of RMB1,030.4 million, were primactymprised of:

* an increase of RMB695.0 million in accounts reckigaprimarily because we granted certain of owta@mers longer credit ter
to enhance the competitiveness of our PV prodi

* anincrease of RMB178.7 million in advance to sigspland longerm prepayments primarily as a result of incregzegpaymen
to our suppliers for purchases of both sili-based and other materials; ¢

* anincrease of RMB75.1 million in other currentessprimarily because the increase of tax rectera relation to the export t
rebates

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Our net cash used in investing activities primadbnsists of cash used for the acquisition of fiesdets and the acquisition ¢
subsidiary.

Our net cash used in investing activities was RMB53nillion (US$85.8 million) in 2012, primarily asisting of RMB598.0 millio
(US$96.0 million) of cash used for the acquisitdriixed assets, primarily our manufacturing maeinynand equipment.

Our net cash used in investing activities was RMB2,9 million in 2011, primarily consisting of RMBIO0.5 million of cash used 1
the acquisition of fixed assets, primarily our mi@eturing machinery and equipment.

Our net cash used in investing activities was RMBB6nillion in 2010, primarily consisting of RMB6®million of cash used for tl
acquisition of fixed assets, primarily our manufaictg machinery and equipment.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Our net cash generated from financing activitigmarily consists of capital contributions by shastglers and proceeds from shtetqr
bank borrowings, as offset by payments of shortitend long-term bank borrowings.

Our net cash provided by financing activities wagB286.7 million (US$46.0 million) in 2012. This wasainly attributable to procee
from short-term borrowings of RMB2,661.2 million $$427.1 million) and proceeds from lotegm borrowings of RMB1,369.4 millic
(US$219.8 million), partially offset by paymentsifort-term borrowings of RMB3,263.1 million (US$523nillion).
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Our net cash provided by financing activities wagB2,528.2 million in 2011. This was mainly attrilabie to proceeds from shdgrr
borrowings of RMB3,322.5 million and proceeds frtong-term borrowings of RMB1,595.0 million, partiabffset by payment of shoterrr
borrowings of RMB1,877.1 million.

Our net cash provided by financing activities wadB,387.5 million in 2010. This was mainly attriaiile to our proceeds from short:
term bank borrowings of RMB1,098.9 million, net peeds from issuance of ordinary shares to Hanwlear 86RMB1,059.8 million and n
proceeds from our ADS offering in November 2010R#¥B521.3 million, partially offset by payment of aftrterm bank borrowings
RMB1,184.8 million.

Capital Resources and Capital Expenditures

We have financed our operations primarily througkhcflows from operations and also through bankdaand relategharty loans ar
proceeds from our initial public offering, the cemtible bond offering in January 2008, the contimiADS offerings from July 2008
August 2008 and from September 2009 to Novembe® 28t our ADS offering in November 2010. We beliemg working capital i
sufficient for our present requirements.

As of December 31, 2012, we had sherm bank borrowings from various commercial banith an aggregate outstanding balanc
RMB1,162.4 million (US$186.6 million). Our shadrm bank borrowings bore average interest rates28%, 4.93% and 4.20% per ann
respectively, in 2010, 2011 and 2012. These dieont- bank borrowings have terms of five months e gear, and expire at various tir
throughout the year. Some of our shemm bank borrowings were secured by land use gightd building ownership. As of December
2012, the aggregate outstanding balance of themuportion of our londgerm bank borrowings was RMB467.2 million (US$78Dion),
which is due for repayment from January 1 to Decam30, 2013, and the aggregate outstanding batzfrtbe non-current portion of our long-
term bank borrowings was RMB2,285.1 million (US$36illion), which will be due from January 1, 20t September 30, 2016. Our long:
term bank borrowings outstanding as of DecembeB12 bore an average interest rate of 4.25% pmimanWe expect to continue to rollo
our bank borrowings when they become due. To thenéxve are unable to rollover our bank borrowifayswhatever reason, we will reg
such borrowings with cash generated from opera@iiyities or alternative funding sources.

We have been buying back our convertible bonds fiiome to time since January 1, 2012 and may coattowdo so in the future, subj
to market conditions and other factors. In 2012 reurchased our 2018 convertible bonds in a fofatipal amount of US$71.9 million. ,
of December 31, 2012, we had US$100.6 million ppaicamount of 2018 convertible bonds outstandifige holders of the 2018 converti
bonds have the right to require us to repurchdsera portion of the bonds on January 15, 201& e¢purchase price equal to 100% of
principal amount of the bonds to be repurchased; atcrued and unpaid interest, if any.

As of December 31, 2012, we had cash and cashagnots in the amount of RMB676.5 million (US$108#lion). Our cash and ca
equivalents primarily consist of cash on hand amdkbdeposits, which are unrestricted as to withdtaamd use. Our advance to suppliers
longterm prepayments in total decreased from RMB1,168lBn as of December 31, 2010 to RMB680.2 miilias of December 31, 20
and decreased to RMB350.9 million (US$56.3 milliais) of December 31, 2012. Our fixed assets incdeisen RMB2,084.0 million as
December 31, 2010, and to RMB4,716.0 million adDetember 31, 2011, and increased to RMB4,780.0omijUS$767.2 million) as
December 31, 2012.

As of December 31, 2012, we had commitments of@pprately RMB377.0 million (US$60.5 million) relateo the acquisition of fixe
assets. The commitment for acquisition of fixecetsss expected to be settled within 2013.
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Our capital expenditures were RMB669.2 million, RR/&37.9 million and RMB534.5 million (US$85.8 mil) in 2010, 2011 ai
2012, respectively, all of which related primarity the purchases of manufacturing equipment anititfaconstruction costs. Based on
current market conditions, we expect to incur @pxpenditures of approximately US$50 million @13, which we plan to use to pay
investments in process improvements and equipnuntebearch and development activities. Howeverwilleactively review our capaci
expansion plan on a regular basis as the busimegoement evolves. In December 2012, we enteréal anframework agreement with
Bank of Beijing for access of up to RMB3.0 billioficredit over the next twelveonth period. In January 2013, Hanwha SolarOne Hag
Limited entered into a subscription agreement v@ttmsung Securities (Asia) Ltd. and Kookmin Bank ¢ié&wong Ltd. to issue outside 1
United States US$100 million in floating rate notke January 1, 2016 guaranteed by Hanwha Che@argloration. The interest rate flo
with the threemonth LIBOR. We plan to fund the balance of ouridpexpenditure requirements for 2013 with casbirfroperation:
additional bank borrowings, and other forms of ficiag, if necessary.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Standardsuilp or the FASB, issued ASU No. 2012-02, or ASW202, Testing Indefinite-
Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment, which iseinded to reduce the cost and complexity of perfognthe impairment test for indefinite-
lived intangible assets other than goodwill by milowg entities an option to perform a qualitatives@ssment to determine whether fui
guantitative impairment testing is necessary. |eatity believes, as a result of its qualitativeessment, that it is more-likely-thaot that a
indefinite lived intangible asset is impaired, theantitative impairment test is required. Otheryise further testing is required. This stanc
is effective for annual and interim impairment segierformed for fiscal years beginning after Sepeni5, 2012, with early adopti
permitted. We have adopted ASU 2002-since January 1, 2013 and we do not expect dioptian to have a material impact on
consolidated financial statements and disclosures.

In January 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-01A%U 201301, Clarifying the Scope of Disclosures about Qffeg Assets ar
Liabilities, which clarifies that the scope of Aesding Standards Update No. 2011; Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Litéd
would apply to derivatives including bifurcated esdded derivatives, repurchase agreements and eenggrgrchase agreements, and sect
borrowing and securities lending transactions #inateither offset in accordance with Section 2142®r Section 815-185 or are subject tc
master netting arrangement or similar agreement) 281301 is effective for annual periods beginning orafber January 1, 2013 and inte
periods within those annual reports. Entities stiquiovide the disclosures required by this ASUastectively for all comparative peric
presented. We have adopted ASU 2013since January 1, 2013 and we do not expect doptian to have a material impact on
consolidated financial statements and disclosures.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013d02ASU 201302, Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accuaed Othe
Comprehensive Income, which requires an entityréwide information about the amounts reclassifiattaf accumulated other comprehen
income by component. In addition, an entity is iegglito present, either on the face of the statém#iere net income is presented or in
notes, significant amounts reclassified out of atglated other comprehensive income by the respettie items of net income but only if-
amount reclassified is required under U.S. GAABdaeclassified to net income in its entirety ie #ame reporting period. For other ama
that are not required under U.S. GAAP to be redladsin their entirety to net income, an entity risquired to crosseference to oth
disclosures required under U.S. GAAP that providditional detail about those amounts. For publitities, this standard is effecti
prospectively for reporting periods beginning afiecember 15, 2012. We have adopted ASU 2 3ince January 1, 2013 and we dc
expect the adoption to have a material impact arconsolidated financial statements and disclosures
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C. Research and Development, Patents and Licenses

The PV industry is characterized by rapidly evalvtechnology advancements. Achieving fast and naatitechnology improvements
of critical importance to maintaining our compeftitiadvantage. Our research and development effontsentrate on lowering production ct
per watt by increasing the conversion efficiendg ief our products and reducing silicon usage bycang the thickness of PV cells.

We have been developing advanced technologiespmira the conversion efficiency and reduce the petdn cost of our PV produc
We have successfully applied shallow emitters aptahtontacting pastes optimized for shallow emstte our production lines, and we h
implemented novel metallization patterns that redsdver usage. We have successfully tested addatexduring and rear passivat
technologies in our pilot line and are evaluatihg tost effectiveness of commercializing theseneldgies. We have demonstrated gooc
quality cells using low-cost poly silicon mixturé&’e have designed, built and tested new moduleygtatksigns that increase module sunligh
to-electricity conversion efficiency, decrease syt installation costs, increase module tolerariagon-uniform illumination, and facilitar
new applications, such as low-cost frameless lamimestallation and buildingitegrated installation. In 2010, 2011 and 2012,research ar
development expenses were RMB53.5 million, RMB68itilon and RMB90.8 million (US$14.6 million), resptively.

Our R&D department works closely with our manufaictg department to lower production costs by immgwur production efficienc
In July 2007, we established the SolarOne PV Emging Center. The SolarOne PV Engineering Centdodated near our manufactur
facilities in Qidong, Jiangsu Province, and equgpéth a pilot production line and various charaiz&ion tools. The center focuses
improving cell conversion efficiency and expandthg application of solar cells. We are also workiogether with universities and resez
institutes to develop new technology and products.

D. Trend Information

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in this annpairrewe are not aware of any trends, uncertaindesmands, commitments or eve
since January 1, 2013 that are reasonably likelyatee a material adverse effect on our net revennesme, profitability, liquidity or capit
resources, or that caused the disclosed finand@imation to be not necessarily indicative of fetoperating results or financial conditions.

E. Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have not entered into any financial guaranteesher commitments to guarantee the payment didigs of third parties. We have |
entered into any derivative contracts that are edeto our shares and classified as sharehol@epsity, or that are not reflected in
consolidated financial statements. Furthermore daeiot have any retained or contingent interesdsisets transferred to an unconsolid
entity that serves as credit, liquidity or markiskrsupport to such entity. We do not have anyalde interest in any unconsolidated entity
provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credupport to us or that engages in leasing, hedgingsearch and development services
us.

F. Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth our contractual ghtions as of December 31, 2012:

Payment Due by Perioc

More than
Less than 1
Total Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
(In RMB thousands)

Purchase obligations relating to raw mater 168,88: 168,88: — — —
Operating lease obligatiol 5,00( 3,991 1,00¢ — —
Long-term debt obligation 3,654,34! 540,84: 2,189,30' 924,19: —
Commitments relating to the acquisition of fixedets 376,97t 376,97t — — —
Unrecognized tax bene 143,47: 143,47: — — —
Total 4,348,67 1,234,161  2,190,31¢ 924,19 —
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G. Safe Harbor

This annual report on Form 20-F contains forwimaking statements that relate to future eventduiting our future operating results i
conditions, our prospects and our future finanpiiformance and condition, all of which are largefised on our current expectations
projections. The forward-looking statements aret@ioed principally in the sections entitled “ltenD3 Risk Factors,” Item 4. Information o
the Company” and “ltem 5. Operating and FinancieViBw and Prospects.” These statements are madg thel “safe harborprovisions o
the U.S. Private Securities Litigation Reform A¢t1®95. You can identify these forward-looking staents by terminology such as “may,

“will,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “future,” “intend,” “plan,” “believe,” “estimate,” “is/are likely to’or other and similar expressions. Forwarc

looking statements involve inherent risks and utadeties. A number of factors could cause actuallte to differ materially from tho
contained in any forward-looking statement, inchgdbut not limited to the following:

* our expectations regarding the worldwide demanctlectricity and the market for solar ener

» our beliefs regarding the effects of environmemtgulation, lack of infrastructure reliability ardng-term fossil fuel suppl
constraints

« our beliefs regarding the inability of traditiorfaksil fue-based generation technologies to meet the demardiefctricity;
» our beliefs regarding the importance of environralypfriendly power generatior

* our expectations regarding governmental supporth®ideployment of solar ener¢

» our beliefs regarding the acceleration of adoptibsolar technologie:

e our expectations with respect to advancementsiinemhnologies

» our beliefs regarding the competitiveness of olargoroducts

* our expectations regarding the scaling of our mactufing capacity

e our expectations with respect to revenue growthpaoéitability;

* our expectations with respect to our ability tolseaaw materials, especially silicon and silicoafevs, in the future
» competition from other manufacturers of PV prodwastd conventional energy supplie

« our future business development, results of opmratand financial condition; ai

» future economic or capital market conditio

This annual report on Form 20-F also contains dal&ted to the PV market worldwide and in Chinaetakrom thirdparty reports. Tt
PV market may not grow at the rates projected lyntiarket data, or at all. The failure of the matkegrow at the projected rates may ha
material adverse effect on our business and thkenhprice of our ADSs. In addition, the rapidly aging nature of the PV market subjects
projections or estimates relating to the growthspeets or future condition of our market to sigrafit uncertainties. If any one or more of
assumptions underlying the market data turns obetmcorrect, actual results may differ from thmejgctions based on these assumptions.
should not place undue reliance on these forwanllihg statements.

The forward-looking statements made in this anmepbrt on Form 2@ relate only to events or information as of theedan which th
statements are made in this annual report on FOrf. Except as
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required by law, we undertake no obligation to upda revise publicly any forwarndoking statements, whether as a result of newiméion
future events or otherwise, after the date on whehstatements are made or to reflect the ocaterefiunanticipated events. You should

this annual report on Form ZDcompletely and with the understanding that otwaduture results may be materially differentrfravhat we
expect.

ITEM 6 DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

A. Directors and Senior Management

Directors and Executive Officers

The following table sets forth information regamgliour directors and executive officers

Name Age Position/Title
Ki-Joon Honc 63 Chairman and Chief Executive Offic
Dong Kwan Kim 30 Director and Chief Strategy Offic
Min Su Kim 48  Director and Presidel

Thomas J. To' 58 Independent Directc

Ernst A. Bitler 68 Independent Directc

Yinzhang GL 75 Independent Directc

David N. K. Wancg 67 Independent Directc

Jung Pyo Se 47  Chief Financial Office

Jeong Eui (J.E.) Hon 47  Chief Technology Office

Directors

Mr. Ki-Joon Honghas served as our chairman of the board since Dese2®, 2010 and chief executive officer since Ad¢1. He is th
CEO of Hanwha Chemical Corporation. Prior to higrent position, Ki-Joon was the CEO of Hanwha Cleal's pharmaceutical and refin
businesses. Under his leadership, Hanwha Chemitatesl into solar energy and secondary batterynbases and also actively expande
overseas operations, forming a joint venture indb&wabia and building a PVC factory in Ningbo, #iheg. He received a B.S. in Chem
Engineering from Seoul National University.

Mr. Dong Kwan Kimhas served as our director since December 20, 2@#0chief strategy officer since December 2011.idHthe
Managing Director, Corporate Strategy of HanwhapOaation. His responsibilities include formulatiand execution of the Hanwha Grosip’
solar strategy across the entire value chain fratysgicon to downstream operations. Mr. Kim gainextensive leadership and stratt
development experience as an officer in the RepublKorea Air Force. He received a B.A. in Goveamnhfrom Harvard University.

Mr. Min Su Kimhas served as our president since October 2012@andirector since November 2012. Mr. Kim has o28ryears ¢
experience in corporate planning, finance, marketind sales. He most recently served as the vesidemt of the planning office of Hanw
Group Headquarters, responsible for developingtsiaod longterm strategic plans for the group. Mr. Kim senasdthe vice president of 1
corporate planning office of Hanwha Chemical Cogtion from 2008 to 2011, senior manager of PE & MArketing team of Hanw
Chemical Corporation from 2000 to 2008 and generahager of the marketing team of Kemira Chemicalsel Corporation from 1998
2000, and held various positions at Hanwha Chen@eaporation from 1987 to 1998. Mr. Kim received liachelos degree in busine
administration from Seoul National University in8@ and received his masterdegree in business administration from Londoniris
School in 2011.

Mr. Thomas J. Toyas served as our independent director since Nozefl96. He also serves as the chairman of out aadimittes
and corporate governance and nominating committdeaa a member of our
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compensation committee. His other current positionkide director of several privately held comganiMr. Toy is cdeunder and managii
director of PacRim Venture Partners, a venturetabfirm based in Menlo Park, California, since @9@nd is a venture partner/advisor
ICCP Ventures, a venture capital firm. Formerly wees a partner with SmartForest Ventures, a verdapial firm based in Portland, Ore(
and a partner and managing director of the Corpdrattance Division of Technology Funding, a ventcapital firm based in San Mat
California. From 1979 to 1987, Mr. Toy held sevepakitions at Bank of America National Trust and/iiBgs Association, including vir
president. He received his bachelor’'s and mastegsees from Northwestern University in the Unigtdtes.

Mr. Ernst A. Bltlerhas served as our independent director since Nosei9)6. He also serves as the chairman of our ensgtiol
committee and as a member of our audit committee Bltler has been an independent board membeuttanssince 2005. His other curr
positions include board member of Bank Frey & C&,Alrich, Frey Group Holding, Zurich, ImmNeuweg ARurich, and TIF Transpc
Infrastructure Fund Limited, Hamilton, Bermuda, atthirman of the board of Alegra Capital Ltd., £@i AA-Partners, Zirich and Lhot
Capital Advisors Limited, Hamilton, Bermuda, memioérthe board of XBiotech Switzerland AG, Zug andmber of the advisory board
XBiotech Inc., Austin, Texas. From 1999 to 2005, was a partner of Partners Group in Zug, the largetependent asset manage
alternative investments in Europe. Mr. Bltler spavdr 25 years with Credit Suisse and Credit Suisss Boston, with his last assignme
being managing director and co-head of Corporatelanestment Banking Switzerland. He received ehblx’s degree from the School
Economics and Business Administration in Zirich attgénded posgraduate programs at University of MassachusetthanUnited State
INSEAD European Institute of Business Administratin Paris, and MIT Massachusetts Institute of Tedbgy, Boston.

Mr. Yinzhang Guhas served as our independent director since Ji0ié Ble also serves as a member of our compensatiomittee an
corporate governance and nominating committee. Fi®@®2 to 1998, Mr. Gu worked for Eastern China fieity Administration, i
government agency overseeing power supply in gagthina, in various roles, including as deputy cive and director. Mr. Gu retired frc
Shanghai Electricity Administration in 1998. Mr. @taduated from Zhejiang University in 1962.

Dr. David N.K. Wandhas served as our independent director since 20fB. He also serves as a member of our audit ctie@ran
corporate governance and nominating committee\Wamg was an overseas advisor to the Ministry oéi®® and Technology of the People’
Republic of China and an advisor to the Greaten&lmnovation and Entrepreneurship project of St@hfniversity in the United States.
was also a member of the board of directors of Semnductor Equipment and Materials International N§Eand chairman of its Chit
Regional Advisory Board and a senior advisor toghairman of the board of Semiconductor Manufantuinternational Corporation (SMI(
From November 2009 to July 2011, Dr. Wang serveprasident and the chief executive officer of SMREom September 2005 to June 2!
Dr. Wang served as the chief executive officer abRong Group and concurrently chairman of HuahoBENa subsidiary of Huahong Gro
Prior to joining Huahong Group, Dr. Wang serveaascutive vice president of Applied Materials amesident of Applied Materials Asia. [
Wang was responsible for Applied Materiabsisiness strategy, planning and execution throughsia. Dr. Wang has also been a membe
chaired and helped found a variety of councils, mittees and associations related to technologyAeiaPacific business and economy.
received his Ph.D. degree in Materials Science fiteeriniversity of California, Berkeley.

Executive Officers

Mr. Jung Pyo Sebas served as our chief financial officer sincey A011. Prior to his current position, Mr. Seo sehas chief financi
officer and chief operating officer of Azdel In@, Virginia from 2008 to 2011. While with Azdel InadMr. Seo rebuilt the compars/tash ar
debt management systems and processes, implenentd ERP system, managed commercial bankingae$dtips, raised capital and hel
the company expand market share in a competitivkehavith rising raw material prices. He also pldysn important role in the acquisit
and post-acquisition integration of Azdel Inc. barkivha Corporation. Prior to that, Mr. Seo held dea of accounting, finance and sales
related positions at Hanwha Resorts Corporation and
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Hanwha Chemical Corporation for 12 years. Mr. Ssmeived an MBA with a concentration in Finance fritra University of Washington, a
a B.A. with a concentration in Finance and Accaumfrom Seoul National University.

Mr. Jeong Eui (J.E.) Hongas served as our chief technology officer sinceofiar 2012. In 2010, Mr. Hong joined Hanwha Chelh
Corporation to lead its Solar R&D Group. Prior ¢éinjng Hanwha Chemical Corporation, he held leddprpositions at Millinet Solar, Applie
Materials Korea and LG Semicon from 1992 to 20160. iNbng received his bachelsriegree in petroleum and mineral engineering fsaou
National University and his mas’s degree and Ph.D. in material science and engigefom the Korea Advanced Institute of Sciencd
Technology (KAIST).

B. Compensation
Compensation

In 2010, 2011 and 2012, we paid aggregate cash eosation of RMB7.6 million, RMB3.0 million and RMB® million
(US$1.5 million), respectively, to our directorsdagxecutive officers. For options granted to officand directors, see “2006 Share Optic
Plan” and “— 2007 Equity Incentive Plan.”

The purposes of our 2006 share option plan and 2@iity incentive plan are to attract and retaie tiest available personnel
positions of substantial responsibility, provideddidnal incentive to employees, directors and cdtasts and promote the success of
business. Our board of directors believes thatammpany’s longerm success is dependent upon our ability tocitiiad retain superi
individuals who, by virtue of their ability, experice and qualifications, make important contrimgito our business.

2006 Share Option Plan

We adopted our 2006 share option plan in Novem86620ur 2006 share option plan provides for trengof options to purchase «
ordinary shares, subject to vesting.

Administration.Our 2006 share option plan is administered by tmpensation committee of our board of directore Tommittee wi
determine the provisions, terms and conditionsawheoption grant, including, but not limited togtkxercise price for the options, ves
schedule, forfeiture provisions, form of paymenerércise price and other applicable terms. Theceseprice may be adjusted in the evel
certain share or rights issuances by our company.

Option ExerciseOur 2006 Share Option Plan requires the optiongdsted over five years in equal portions, except the vestin
schedule of options granted to certain of our msifenals, independent directors and advisors mdgdsethan five years if our compensa
committee deems it necessary and appropriate. ptiens, once vested, are exercisable at any tif@d&ovember 30, 2016, at which ti
the options will become null and void. The exer@sees of the options are determined by the cormsgion committee.

Termination of Award€Options granted under our 2006 share option plae bpecified terms set forth in a share option@gent. Eac
employee who has been granted options shall un@ettawork for our company for at least five yestarting from the grant date, or for s
term as is otherwise specified in the individualsare option agreement. In the event that the grap® employment with our compa
terminates without cause, the employee shall bdexhto exercise his or her vested options witthiree months of his or her termination,
any unvested options will be forfeited to our compaHowever, if instead the employsedmployment is terminated by our company for c;
all of his or her unexercised options, whetheregstr unvested, will be forfeited to our company.

Share Split or Combinatiohn the event of a share split or combination of outinary shares, the options, whether exercisatbrshal
be split or combined at the same ratio.
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Amendment and Termination of Plabur compensation committee may at any time amarmghend or terminate our 2006 share of
plan. Amendments to our 2006 share option plarsabgct to shareholder approval, to the extentiredy law, or by stock exchange rule
regulations. Any amendment, suspension or ternunaif our 2006 share option plan may not advera#figct awards already granted with
written consent of the recipient of such awards.

Our board of directors authorized the issuancepafoul0,799,685 ordinary shares upon exercise afdsvgranted under our 2006 sl
option plan. The following table sets forth certamformation regarding our outstanding options undar 2006 share option plan as
March 29, 2013.

Ordinary
Shares Underlying Exercise
Name Outstanding Option Price Grant Date Expiration Date
(US$/share
Ki-Joon Honc — — — —
Dong Kwan Kim — — — —
Min Su Kim — — — —
Thomas J. To' 120,00( 1.6 November 30, 20  November 30, 201
Verena Maria Butler (wife of Ernst A. Bitle 180,00( 1.6 November 30, 20  November 30, 201
Yinzhang GL 180,00( 1.9¢ August 16, 200° November 30, 201
David N.K. Wang — — — —
Jung Pyo Se — — — —
Jeong Eui (J.E.) Hon — — — —
Other individuals as a grot 288,90( 1.6 November 30, 20  November 30, 201
150,00( 2.0z August 16, 200° November 30, 201
100,00t 2.5¢ October 26, 200 November 30, 201
50,00( 2.7: November 1, 200 November 30, 201
100,00( 5.31 December 13, 20( November 30, 201
146,25( 2.1t March 6, 200¢ November 30, 201
Total 1,315,15

— No outstanding share option was held by such pe

2007 Equity Incentive Plan

We adopted our 2007 equity incentive plan in Au@@7. It provides for the grant of options, retad stock, restricted stock un

stock appreciation rights, performance units andopmance stock to our employees, directors andswitents. The maximum aggrec
number of our ordinary shares that may be issueémtne 2007 equity incentive plan is 10,799,685ddition, the plan provides for an ant
increase in the number of shares available foraisse on the first day of each fiscal year, begigmifith our 2008 fiscal year, equal to 2%
our then outstanding ordinary shares or such lesseunt as our board of directors may determine.

Administration.Different committees with respect to different goewf service providers, comprised of members oftmard or othe
individuals appointed by the board, may administer 2007 equity incentive plan. The administratas the power to determine wh
individuals are eligible to receive an award, tharis of the awards, including the exercise pri€ariy), the number of shares subject ti
award, the exercisability of the awards and thenfof consideration payable upon exercise.

Options.The exercise price of incentive stock options ngstt least equal to the fair market value of adinary shares on the date
grant; however, the overseas price of our atatutory stock options may be as determined byatiministrator. The term of an incentive si
option may not exceed ten years, except that wespect to any participant who owns 10% of the gppiower of all classes of our outstanc
shares as of
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the grant date, the term must not exceed five yaadshe exercise price must equal at least 1108tedfir market value on the grant date.
administrator determines the term of all other @mi Upon the termination of the service of a pgrdint, he or she may exercise his or
vested options for the period of time stated in dpdion agreement, and any unvested options afeitfd to our company. Generally
termination is due to death or disability, the optwill remain exercisable for twelve months. Ihaher cases, the option will generally ren
exercisable for three months. However, an optiaregaly may not be exercised later than the exipinatf its term.

Restricted StockRestricted stock awards are ordinary shares thstt imeaccordance with terms and conditions estaddisby th
administrator and set forth in an award agreememé administrator will determine the number of &lsaof restricted stock granted to
employee and may impose whatever conditions tangegtdetermines to be appropriate.

Stock Appreciation RightStock appreciation rights allow the recipient toaige the appreciation in the fair market valu®wif ordinan
shares between the date of grant and the exerei®e The exercise price of stock appreciation sigitanted under our plan may be
determined by the administrator. Stock appreciatigints expire under the same rules that applyptmos.

Performance Units and Performance Shar@srformance units and performance shares are awatsvill result in a payment tc
participant generally only if performance goalsabtished by the administrator are achieved. Theiridtrator will establish organizational
individual performance goals in its discretion, erhidepending on the extent to which they are miditdetermine the number and the valu
performance units and performance shares to beopaith participants.

Restricted Stock Unit&estricted stock units are similar to awards ofrieied stock, but are not settled unless the awastis. Restricte
stock units may consist of restricted stock, penfance share or performance unit awards, and thenedrator may set forth restrictions ba
on the achievement of specific performance goals.

Amendment and Terminatio®ur 2007 equity incentive plan will automaticallgrminate in 2017, unless we terminate it sooner.
board of directors has the authority to amendr,aiespend or terminate the plan provided suctomadioes not impair the rights of ¢
participant with respect to any outstanding awards.
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Our board of directors authorized the issuancepaoul0,799,685 ordinary shares upon exercise af@ngranted under our 2007 eq
incentive plan. The following table sets forth e@mtinformation regarding our outstanding optiomsler our 2007 equity incentive plan a:

March 29, 2013.

Ordinary
Shares Underlying Exercise
Name Outstanding Option Price Date of Grant Expiration Date
(USs$/share
Ki-Joon Honc — — — —
Dong Kwan Kim — — — —
Min Su Kim — — — —
Thomas J. To' — — — —
Ernst A. Bitler — — — —
Yinzhang GL — — — —
David N.K. Wang 300,00t 0.8¢ April 2, 2009 April 2, 2019
Jung Pyo Se — — — —
Jeong Eui (J.E.) Hon — — — —
Other individuals as a grot 20,00( 4.37¢ May 28, 200¢ May 28, 201¢
20,00( 2.4z September 26, 20( September 26, 201
527,30! 1.34¢ October 16, 200 October 16, 201
5,00( 1.34¢ March 17, 200¢ March 17, 201¢
55,00( 1.45:2 May 27, 200¢ May 27, 201¢
253,00( 1.18¢ September 11, 20( September 11, 201
239,50( 1.01 October 29, 200 October 29, 201
482,80( 1.37: December 3, 200 December 3, 201
50,00( 1.49¢ June 28, 201 June 28, 201
75,00( 2.04: October 29, 201 October 29, 202
Total 2,027,60!

— No outstanding share option was held by such pe
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The following table sets forth certain informaticegarding our granted restricted stock units urer2007 equity incentive plan as

March 29, 2013.

Name

Ordinary Shares
Underlying Granted
Restricted Stock Units

Date of Grant

Expiration Date

Ki-Joon Honc
Dong Kwan Kim
Min Su Kim

Thomas J. To' January 1, 201 January 1, 202
37,50( January 1, 201 January 1, 202
37,50( January 1, 201 January 1, 202
Verena Maria Biitler (wife of Ernst A. Blitle 37,50( January 1, 201 January 1, 202
37,50( January 1, 201 January 1, 202
37,50( January 1, 201 January 1, 202
Yinzhang Gu 37,50( January 1, 201 January 1, 202
37,50( January 1, 201 January 1, 202
37,50( January 1, 201 January 1, 202
David N.K. Wang 37,50( January 1, 201 January 1, 202
37,50( January 1, 201 January 1, 202
37,50( January 1, 201 January 1, 202
Jung Pyo Se — — —
Jeong Eui (J.E.) Hon — — —
Other individuals as a grot 160,00( February 28, 201 February 28, 202
112,50( April 28, 2011 April 28, 2021
225,00( May 31, 2011 May 31, 2021
112,50( July 28, 2011 July 28, 202!
112,50( October 28, 201 October 28, 202
412,50( November 29, 201 November 29, 202
337,50( April 30, 2012 April 30, 2022
1,762,501 June 28, 201 June 28, 202
Total 3,685,001

— No restricted stock units have been granted to pecton

C. Board Practices
Committees of the Board of Directors

Audit Committet

37,50(

Our audit committee consists of Mr. Thomas J. Tdy, Ernst A. Bitler and Mr. David N.K. Wang, anddsaired by Mr. Thomas J. T«
a director with accounting and financial managenexpiertise as required by the Nasdag corporatergamee rules, or the Nasdag Rules
of the members of our audit committee all satisfy tindependencefequirements of the Nasdaq Rules. The audit coraenittill oversee ol
accounting and financial reporting processes aadatldits of the financial statements of our compdine audit committee is responsible
among other things:

» selecting our independent auditors and pre-appgowih auditing and nomuditing services permitted to be performed by
independent auditor

» reviewing with our independent auditors any auditfpems or difficulties and managenrs response
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» reviewing and approving all proposed related padgsactions, as defined in Item 404 of Regula8-K under the Securities Ac
» discussing the annual audited financial statem&ittsmanagement and our independent audi

e reviewing major issues as to the adequacy of aiernial control and any special audit steps adoptdajht of material contre
deficiencies

» annually reviewing and reassessing the adequacyradudit committee charte

» such other matters that are specifically delegtatemir audit committee by our board of directomsrirtime to time
» meeting separately and periodically with manageraadtour internal and independent auditors;

e reporting regularly to our board of directa

Our audit committee has established a “whistlebldweporting system to allow individuals to make anooys communications to t
audit committee regarding financial and accountiragters relating to our company.

Compensation Committee

Our compensation committee consists of Mr. ErnsBitler, Mr. Thomas J. Toy and Mr. Yinzhang Gu, asdhaired by Mr. Ernst ,
Batler. All of the members of our compensation cattee satisfy the “independencedquirements of the Nasdag Rules. Our compen:
committee assists our board of directors in reuigmand approving the compensation structure ofloactors and executive officers, includ
all forms of compensation to be provided to ouediors and executive officers. Members of the carsggon committee are not prohibi
from direct involvement in determining their ownngpensation. Our chief executive officer may notpoesent at any committee mee
during which his compensation is deliberated. Tdmapensation committee is responsible for, amongrdtfings:

» approving and overseeing the compensation packagaif executive officers
» reviewing and making recommendations to our boautirectors with respect to the compensation ofditectors;

e reviewing and approving corporate goals and objestrelevant to the compensation of our chief etveewfficer, evaluating tt
performance of our chief executive officer in lightt those goals and objectives, and setting thepemsation level of our chi
executive officer based on this evaluation;

» reviewing periodically and making recommendatiom®otir board of directors regarding any ladegm incentive compensation
equity plans, programs or similar arrangementsyahibonuses, employee pension and welfare benefis)

Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee

Our corporate governance and nominating commitmesists of Mr. Thomas J. Toy, Mr. Dong Kwan Kim, .Miinzhang Gu ar
Mr. David N.K. Wang, and is chaired by Mr. Thomad dy. All of the members of our corporate goveg®and nominating committee, exc
Mr. Dong Kwan Kim, satisfy the “independencegquirements of the Nasdaq Rules. The corporatergamce and nominating commil
assists our board of directors in identifying indials qualified to become our directors and iredetning the composition of our board
directors and its committees. The corporate goveraand nominating committee is responsible fogragrother things:

« identifying and recommending nominees for electione-election to our board of directors, or for appoiantto fill any vacancy
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» reviewing annually with our board of directors asrrent composition in light of the characteristafsindependence, age, ski
experience and availability of service to

» identifying and recommending to our board the doecto serve as members of committt

» advising the board periodically with respect tongfigant developments in the law and practice afpooate governance as well
our compliance with applicable laws and regulaticsixsd making recommendations to our board of direscon all matters
corporate governance and on any corrective aatidrettaken; an

e monitoring compliance with our code of businessdrar and ethics, including reviewing the adequang affectiveness of o
procedures to ensure proper complial

Duties of Directors

Under Cayman lIslands law, our directors have acfaty duty to act honestly, in good faith and wattview to our best interests. (
directors also have a duty to exercise the sld@ytactually possess and such care and diligenta ttemsonably prudent person would exe
in comparable circumstances. In fulfilling theirtgwf care to us, our directors must ensure compéawith our memorandum and article:
association, as amended and restated from tinmiméo t

Terms of Directors and Executive Officers

Our directors are not subject to a term of officel &old office until such time as they resign o a@moved from office by ordine
resolution or the unanimous written resolution bshareholders. A director will be removed fronficd automatically if, among other thin
the director becomes bankrupt or makes any arraegiean composition with his creditors, or dies ©faund by our company to be or to h
become of unsound mind. Our officers are appoibtednd serve at the discretion of our board ofaties.

The service contracts of our directors do not mtevbr benefits upon termination of their directops
Employment Agreement

We have entered into employment agreements withfaur executive officers. Under these agreemesash of our executive officers
employed for a specified time period. We may teaterhis or her employment for cause at any timedotain acts of the employee.

Each executive officer has agreed to hold, botlindguaind subsequent to the terms of his or her aggat in confidence and not to L
except in pursuance of his or her duties in conoectith the employment, any of our confidentiaformation, technological secre
commercial secrets and kndwew. Our executive officers have also agreed telaée to us all inventions, designs and techniguesh
resulted from work performed by them, and to assigall right, title and interest of such invengpdesigns and techniques.

Additionally, our executive officers are typicalbound by norzompetition provisions contained in their employmagreements th
prohibit them from engaging in activities that catg with our business during and for a certainqeeafter their employment with ¢
company.

On June 29, 2007, China has adopted the New Emgloty@ontract Law, or the New Employment Law, whaame into effect ¢
January 1, 2008. The New Employment Law sets foettiain key requirements, such as the requirentena fwritten employment contra
limitations on probation period, and clauses oresmvwce pay that might marginally affect the costraployment in China. However, we do
expect the New Employment Law will substantiallyp@et our business.
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D. Employees

As of December 31, 2012, we had 6,252 full-time leyges. The following table sets forth the numbkepur full-time employees
function as of December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012:

As of December 31

2010 2011 2012
Manufacturing and engineering 8,70¢ 7,691 4,83¢
General and administratic 24C 351 30C
Quality control 794 921 63C
Research and developmt 15C 16t 104
Purchasing and logistic 29t 377 271
Marketing and sale 56 11¢ 10¢
Total 10,24.  9,62¢ 6,252

We offer our employees competitive compensatiork@ges and various training programs, and as atiesuhave generally been able
attract and retain qualified personnel.

As required by PRC regulations, we participate arious employee benefit plans that are organizedmipicipal and provinci
governments, including housing, pension, medicdl @memployment benefit plans. We are required uRdRC law to make contributions
the employee benefit plans at specified percentafee salaries, bonuses and certain allowancesioémployees, up to a maximum amt
specified by the local government from time to tilvkembers of the retirement plan are entitled peasion equal to a fixed proportion of tl
salaries. The total amount of contributions we mademployee benefit plans in 2010, 2011 and 2042 RMB52.4 million, RMB84.5 millio
and RMB79.5 million (US$12.8 million), respectively

We adopted our 2006 share option plan in Novemb@62which provides an additional means to attrancitivate, retain and rewe
selected directors, officers, managers, employedsosher eligible persons. An aggregate of 10, @® @ dinary shares has been reserve
issuance under this plan. As of December 31, 20iE2e were outstanding options to purchase 1,6810tdinary shares under our 2006 s
option plan.

We adopted our 2007 equity incentive plan in Au@@7. It provides for the grant of options, retad stock, restricted stock un
stock appreciation rights, performance units andopmance stock to our employees, directors andswitents. The maximum aggrec
number of our ordinary shares that may be issueémtme 2007 equity incentive plan is 10,799,685ddition, the plan provides for an ant
increase in the number of shares available foraisse on the first day of each fiscal year, begigmiith our 2008 fiscal year, equal to 2%
our then outstanding ordinary shares or such lems®unt as our board of directors may determineofABecember 31, 2012, there w
outstanding options to purchase 2,545,575 ordishayes under our 2007 share option plan.

We typically enter into a standard confidentialiiyd noneompetition agreement with our management and relseend developme
personnel. These contracts include a covenantptiodiibits these individuals from engaging in anyivdties that compete with our busin
during, and for three years after, the period efrtemployment with our company.

We believe we maintain a good working relationshith our employees, and we have not experiencedsamificant labor disputes
any difficulty in recruiting staff for our operatis. On March 29, 2013, SolarOne Qidong signed &atdle bargaining agreement
accordance with the guidelines of the PRC labot [Bwe collective bargaining agreement covers athefemployees of SolarOne Qidong \
are PRC citizens and is effective from March 29,2® March 28, 2014.
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E. Share Ownership

The following table sets forth information with pest to the beneficial ownership of our ordinargarels as of April 12, 2013, the lai
practicable date, by:

» each of our directors and executive officers;

» each person known to us to own beneficially moas t5.0% of our ordinary share

Shares Beneficially Ownec®)(2)

Number %
Directors and Executive Officers:
Ki-Joon Honc — —
Dong Kwan Kim — —
Min Su Kim — —
Thomas J. To' 369,99( 0.0%%
Verena Maria Biitler (wife of Ernst A. Bitle 429,99( 0.1(%
Yinzhang Gu 330,00t 0.0&%
David N.K. Wang 375,00( 0.0%%
Jung Pyo Se — —
Jeong Eui (J.E.) Hon — —
All Directors and Executive Officers as a Grc® — —
Major Shareholders:
Hanwha Solar Holdings Co., Lt® 209,249,44 49.48%

—  The person does not beneficially own any ordinéars or options exercisable within 60 days of the af this annual repol

Notes:

(1) Beneficial ownership is determined in accorgamdith Rule 13d3 of the General Rules and Regulations under tlar8ies Exchanc
Act of 1934, as amended, and includes voting ocestment power with respect to the securit

(2) The number of ordinary shares outstanding in catmg the percentages for each listed person ieslube ordinary shares underly
options exercisable by such person within 60 ddy&spoil 12, 2013. Percentage of beneficial ownepsbi each listed person is basec
422,854,332 ordinary shares outstanding as of ARil2013, as well as the ordinary shares undeylgirare options exercisable by <
person within 60 days of the date of this annuabreon Form 20-. This number excludes: (i) the remaining 4,018, 8DSs which wer
issued to facilitate our convertible bond offeringlanuary 2008; (ii) the remaining 20,062,348 mady shares issued to Hanwha Sol
par value of US$0.0001 per ordinary share, in cotioie with Hanwha Solas' purchase of 36,455,089 ordinary shares of oupeomir
September 2010; and (iii) the 108,220 ADSs whichehaeen reserved by our company as of April 123201allow for the participatic
in the ADS program by our employees pursuant toemuity incentive plans from time to time. We exig#d those shares as we do
believe that they will increase the number of catjnshares considered outstanding for the purpbsaloulating beneficial ownersh
Our total outstanding ordinary shares will be 4@8,355 if those numbers mentioned above are tadeded.

(3) Includes ordinary shares held by all of our dirextand senior executive officers as a group, a$ asethe ordinary shares underly
share options held by such directors and seniautixe officers exercisable within 60 days of treedof this annual report on Form 20
F.
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(4) Held 202,844,393 ordinary shares (excluding theaieing 20,062,348 ordinary shares issued to HarBdiar at par value of US$0.0(
per ordinary share, in connection with Hanwha Sslaurchase of 36,455,089 ordinary shares of oumpeomin September 2010) ¢
1,281,011 ADSs as of April 12, 2013. The addresblafiwha Solar Holdings Co., Ltd. is c/o Hanwha CioamCorporation, Hanwt
Building, 1, Janggy-dong, Jun-gu, Seoul 10-797, Korea. Hanwha Solar is a wholly owned subsjdid Hanwha Chemica

We entered into a share purchase agreement on ABg2910 with Hanwha Chemical, under which Hanv@taeemical agreed
purchase 36,455,089 ordinary shares from us aica pf US$2.144 per ordinary share, which corredgaio a price of US$10.72 per AL
Hanwha Chemical subsequently assigned and traedféts rights and obligations under the share @msehagreement to Hanwha Sole
wholly owned subsidiary of Hanwha Chemical andghte and purchase of these ordinary shares wasmomsted on September 16, 201(
addition, we entered into a share issuance andalease agreement on September 16, 2010 with HaBataa, under which we agreed to is
to Hanwha Solar a total of 45,080,019 ordinary sbat par value of US$0.0001 per ordinary sharégghndhares were to remain outstandin
long as and to the extent that the 9,019,611 AD8&ssaued to facilitate our convertible bond offgrin January 2008 remain outstand
Pursuant to the share issuance and repurchasaregreeve issued to Hanwha Solar 30,672,689 ordiglaayes on September 16, 2010 ar
additional 14,407,330 ordinary shares on March2@l1. The total proceeds to us from these tramsetamounted to approximat
US$78.2 million. At the same time, Hanwha Solar pteted the acquisition from Good Energies |l LP afwhghua Solar Power Investm
Holding Ltd. of a total of 120,407,700 ordinary stmand 1,281,011 ADSs of our company, represeifingf the ordinary shares and AL
held by them. In connection with our public offegiof 9,200,000 ADSs in November 2010, we issuedHémwha Solar an additior
45,981,604 ordinary shares at a price of US$1.8®pmbnary share pursuant to a shareholder agreeweiand Hanwha Solar entered intc
September 16, 2010. In October 2011, we repurchaséaancelled 25,017,671 ordinary shares, whiale vesued pursuant to a share issu
and repurchase agreement dated September 16, 26t0Hanwha Solar at par value of US$0.0001 peinarg share. As a result of th
transactions, Hanwha Solar owns an approximate888 equity interest in our company.

As of April 12, 2013, approximately 55.8% of ourtstanding ordinary shares, represented by appraglynd7,174,282 ADSs, were h
by 44 record holders in the United States.

ITEM 7 MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSATIONS
A. Major Shareholders

Please refer to “Item 6.E. Share Ownership.”

B. Related Party Transactions

After the completion of our initial public offeringn December 26, 2006, we adopted an audit comenittarter, which requires that
audit committee review all related party transatdion an ongoing basis and all such transactiomppeved by the committee.

Private Placement

In September 2010, we issued in a private placemertggregate of 36,455,089 ordinary shares to Harolar at a purchase price
US$2.144 per share for an aggregate sale priceS¥78.2 million. Concurrently with the closing ofighoffering, we issued 30,672,€
ordinary shares to Hanwha Solar at par value ofotlaénary shares and subsequently an addition&0¥4330 ordinary shares at par va
which shares were to remain outstanding so longnaisto the extent that the 9,019,611 ADSs we issoddcilitate our convertible bo
offering in January 2008 remain outstanding. Indbet 2011, we repurchased and cancelled 25,01 p/@ifdary shares from Hanwha Sola
par value of US$0.0001 per ordinary share.
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In connection with our public offering of 9,200,08MSs in November 2010, we issued in a private gif@ent to Hanwha Solar
additional 45,981,604 ordinary shares at a pricéJ8$1.8 per ordinary share for an aggregate sabe f US$82.8 million pursuant tc
shareholder agreement we and Hanwha Solar enteieedn September 16, 2010.

Registration Rights

Pursuant to the registration rights agreement edt@rto in connection with the private placemeansaction with Hanwha Solar
September 2010, we granted to Hanwha Solar cedgistration rights, which primarily include:

Demand Registratior. Upon request of Hanwha Solar to effect any regfisin with respect to the registrable securitidgeid the
outstanding having an anticipated aggregate offgpiice of at least US$15 million, we shall effeegistration with respect to st
registrable securities on a form other than ForBh (Bf any comparable form for a registration foradfering in a jurisdiction othi
than the United States), provided that we shaly bel obligated to effect three such registrati

Piggyback RegistrationsHanwha Solar and its permitted transferees ardlezhtio “piggyback’registration rights, whereby th
may require us to register all or any part of thgistrable securities that they hold at the timemvive register any of our ordin
shares

Registrations on Form -3. We have granted Hanwha Solar and its permittedstea@es the right to an unlimited numbe
registrations under Form F{or any comparable form for a registration irudsdiction other than the United States), for aljm
offering of registrable securities with a reasogabiticipated aggregate price to the public nat tkan US$10 million, to the ext
we are eligible to use such form to offer secusi

Equity Incentive Plan

See “Item 6.B. Compensation — 2006 Share Option"Riad “Item 6.B. Compensation — 2007 Equity Indemlan.”

Material Transactions with Certain Shareholders andAffiliated Companies

On February 5, 20 and 23, and April 27 and 30, 2@0arOne Qidong entered into five polysilicon ghase agreements with
An Yongwang Silicon Co., Ltd., or Yongwang, whichin the process of liquidation, a company cordgblby Hanwha Chemic
the holding company of Hanwha Solar, under whicta&ine Qidong purchased polysilicon from YongwamgRMB88.7 million.

On January 1, 2010, SolarOne Qidong entered infeamework purchase agreement with Linyang Elect®nunder whic
SolarOne Qidong agreed to purchase raw materiais finyang Electronics in 201

On January 3, 18 and 28, February 9 and March @1,2SolarOne Qidong entered into five equipmemtipase agreements w
Linyang Electronics, under which SolarOne Qidongchased certain equipment from Linyang Electroficsan aggregate amot
of RMB4.0 million.

On March 25, 2010, SolarOne Qidong entered intergice agreement with Nantong Huahong Ecologicaldéaing Co., Ltd.,
company controlled by Mr. Yonghua Lu, our formeaittman, under which SolarOne Qidong agreed to pagggregate amount
RMBO0.1 million to Nantong Linyang Ecological Gardieg Co., Ltd. for its provision of construction alatbor services

In April 2010, SolarOne Qidong entered into a leageement with Qidong Huahong Electronics Co.,,lddompany controlled
Mr. Yonghua Lu, our former chairman, for a tt-year term under which the annual rental paymeRM®81.5 million.
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» On April 30, 2010, SolarOne Qidong entered inteegnipment purchase agreement with SMIC Energy Taoly (Shanghai),
SMIC ET, a wholly owned subsidiary of SMIC, a compavhere David N.K. Wang, our independent direcsarves as preside
and chief executive officer. Under this agreem&udlarOne Qidong agreed to purchase a 25 MW ceadl fiom SMIC ET fo
US$4.25 million. SolarOne Qidong also signed a humesource service agreement with a orath term with SMIC ET |
connection with the equipment purchase agreemerteruwhich SMIC ET agreed to second employees tarGoe Qidong t
manage and operate the equipment sold by SMIC HIT SolarOne Qidong agreed to pay for those employemspensatiol
Pursuant to the equipment purchase agreement,BwaRidong also entered into a lease agreement SMIC (Shangha
Corporation, or SMIC Shanghai, to lease the presrésel facilities where the equipment is locatecaf@®2month term from May :
2010 to April 30, 2011. Such lease agreement wasnded on April 21, 2011 to extend the term of #esé to May 21, 2011.
addition, SolarOne Qidong assumed three PV celplgupontracts originally entered into between SMET Shanghai and
customers

* From September 13, 2010 to July 12, 2011, SolarQm®ng entered into several purchase orders withwha Chemical, tt
holding company of Hanwha Solar, to purchase muyhktalline PV cells from Hanwha Chemical for a taaount of US$12
million.

» On September 15, 2010, SolarOne Qidong enterediipiorchase agreement with Yongwang under whichrSolke Qidong agre
to purchase certain amounts of raw materials froomgWwang at a price adjusted monthly based on thekehagrice fron
October 2010 to October 2012. On August 1, 2014 tWo parties entered into a supplemental agreemeder which SolarOi
Qidong agreed to purchase polysilicon from YongwBmgRMB6.3 million (US$1.0 million)

* On October 26, 2010, SolarOne Qidong entered inpurahase agreement with Hanwha L&C Trading (Shaig8o., Ltd., o
Hanwha L&C, a company affiliated with Hanwha Solander which SolarOne Qidong purchased certain maaterials fror
Hanwha L&C for RMB1.1 million (US$0.2 million’

e On January 3, 2011, we entered into a consultimgicee agreement with Hanwha S&C Co., Ltd., or Haaw&C, a compar
affiliated with Hanwha Solar, under which Hanwha G&o., Ltd. provided various consulting servicelterl to informatio
strategic planning from January 3, 2011 to March2®1.1 for RMB1.5 million (US$0.2 million

* From January 18, 2011 to November 22, 2011, SolarQidong entered into several purchase agreemetitsHanwha L&C t
purchase EVA sheets from Hanwha L&C for a total ant@f US$11.6 million

e On May 17, 2011, SolarOne Qidong entered into alm@se agreement with Hanwha TechM Co., Ltd., orvii@n TechM,
company affiliated with Hanwha Solar, under whicbla8One Qidong agreed to purchase an auto modwstemylayout fror
Hanwha TechM for US$4.8 millio

e On May 19, 2011, June 21, 2011 and February 142,28anwha Corporation, the holding company of Haaolar, entered in
three purchase orders with Hanwha SolarOne to pseRV products from Hanwha SolarOne for a totaluarnof US$0.1 millio
and Euro3.0 million

« From May 26, 2011 to April 13, 2012, Hanwha Corpiora entered into several purchase orders with rf@sla Hong Kong
purchase PV products from SolarOne Hong Kong fimta amount of US$32.1 million and Euro1.9 millic

e On June 10, 2011, SolarOne Qidong entered intaehpee agreement with Hanwha TechM, under whichrSele Qidong agre
to purchase a mu-wire saw from Hanwha TechM for US$0.8 millic
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e From July 12, 2011 to December 22, 2012, Hanwhg@ation entered into several purchase orders @ilarOne Qidong -
purchase PV products from SolarOne Qidong fora &nount of US$81.8 million and Eurol.6 millic

* On July 15, 2011, SolarOne Qidong entered into AR Software endiser license agreement with Hanwha S&C, under v
SolarOne Qidong agreed to purchase SAP softwagrdi&s from Hanwha S&C for US$0.7 millic

e On July 20 and September 29, 2011, SolarOne Qidatgyed into two catering service management agreenwith Foodist Foc
Culture (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., a company affiliatégth Hanwha Solar, under whicolarOne Qidong agreed to engage Foodist
Culture (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. to provide cateringvimes for two cafeterias of SolarOne Qidong fromg#st 1, 2011 to July &
2012 and from September 30, 2011 to September(3B, 2espectively

e On September 1, 2011, we entered into an agreemitnHanwha S&C, under which Hanwha SolarOne agteezhgage Hanwl
S&C to build an eapproval system and a linkage system between thi® B#fierprise Resource Planning, or ERP, and gatéww
US$0.1 million.

e« On October 1, 2011, SolarOne Qidong entered intmresulting service agreement with Hanwha S&C, undbkich SolarOn
Qidong agreed to engage Hanwha S&C to provide uarimnsulting services related to ERP and infoimnatechnology frot
October 1, 2011 to February 28, 2012 for US$0. lionil

e« On March 7, 2012, SolarOne Qidong entered intoralase agreement with Hanwha L&C, under which &arQidong agreed
purchase EUA sheets from Hanwha L&C from Janua012 to December 31, 2012 at a unit price of U&s

e« On March 22, 2012, Hanwha Europe entered into &h@ase order with SolarOne Hong Kong to purchasepRducts fror
SolarOne Hong Kong for Euro2.6 millio

e On April 4 and April 5, 2012, Hanwha InternationdlC, a company affiliated with Hanwha SolarOne,ezatl into five purcha
orders with SolarOne Hong Kong to purchase PV prtsdfrom SolarOne Hong Kong for a total amount &30.9 million.

* On March 5 and July 10, 2012, Hanwha Q.Cells. Grahtéred into two purchase agreement with SolarGarggHKong to purcha:
PV products from SolarOne Hong Kong for US$27.5iamil

+ On May 1, 2012, SolarOne Hong Kong entered intaisirtess acquisition agreement with Hanwha Resouustalia Pty Ltd. t
acquire Hanwha Solar Australia Pty Ltd. from Hanv@@poration to sell solar products in AustraliaA4JD16,732.1.

* From May 18, 2012 to Oct 31, 2012, Hanwha Corporatntered into several purchase orders with SokrBong Kong t
purchase PV modules from SolarOne Hong Kong fata amount of US$6.0 million and Euro0.4 millic

e From May 11, 2012 to February 27, 2013, Hanwha p@irentered into several purchase orders with SokrBong Kong t
purchase PV products from SolarOne Hong Kong fiotal amount of Euro22.6 milliot

e  From May 11, 2012 to April 22, 2012, Hanwha Q CELK®rea Corp, formerly known as Hanwha SolarEnergy, Ctd., ¢
company affiliated with Hanwha Solar, entered iséveral purchase orders with SolarOne Qidong tohase PV products frc
SolarOne Qidong for a total amount of US$28.7 iwilli
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* From May 11, 2012 to April 22, 2012, Hanwha Q CELKS®rea Corp, formerly known as Hanwha SolarEnergy, Ctd., ¢
company affiliated with Hanwha Solar, entered inveral purchase orders with SolarOne Hong Kongutchase PV produc
from SolarOne Hong Kong for a total amount of US$&illion.

 From May 11, 2012 to April 22, 2012, Hanwha Q CELKS®rea Corp, formerly known as Hanwha SolarEnergy, Ctd., ¢
company affiliated with Hanwha Solar, entered iséwveral purchase orders with Solar R&D to purchageproducts from Sol.
R&D for a total amount of US$36,99

* From May 30, 2012 to March 7, 2013, Hanwha Japan IGd. entered into several purchase orders wittai®ne Hong Kong -
purchase PV products from SolarOne Hong Kong fimta amount of US$70.3 million and JPY866.4 miili

e On June 7, 2012, SolarOne Qidong entered into ahpse agreement with Hanwha TechM, a company afdi with Hanwh
Solar, under which SolarOne Qidong agreed to pwehanodule line from Hanwha TechM for US$570,(

e From June 4, 2012 to January 29, 2013, Hanwhanatienal LLC, a company affiliated with Hanwha S@lae, entered in
several purchase orders with SolarOne U.S.A. tolase PV products from SolarOne U.S.A. for a tatabunt of US$11.8 millior

e From June 22, 2012 to July 17, 2012, Komodo Enisgprinc., a company affiliated with Hanwha Corpiora entered into sevel
purchase orders with SolarOne U.S.A. to purchas@®ducts from SolarOne U.S.A. for a total amourt/8$1.0 million.

e On August 22, 2012, SolarOne Qidong entered irparahase agreement with Hanwha TechM, a compailiatgtl with Hanwh
Solar, under which SolarOne Qidong agreed to pweh@a module automation and packing system from Han®echM fo
US$3.25 million.

* On September 21, 2012, SolarOne U.S.A. entered an8PL Service Agreement with Hanwha InternationaC, a compan
affiliated with Hanwha SolarOne and KCC Transpoyst8ms, Inc., an independent third party, to pwehigistics service
including customs clearance and warehous

* On December 5, 2012, SolarOne Qidong entered iptoréhase agreement with Hanwha TechM, a compditiatafd with Hanwhi
Solar, under which SolarOne Qidong agreed to pweha automatic spraying equipment from Hanwha Mefoln US$95,000

C. Interests of Experts and Counsel

Not applicable.
ITEM 8 FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A. Consolidated Statements and Other Financial Infonation

We have appended consolidated financial statenfiggdsas part of this annual report.
Export Sales

Our export sales in 2010, 2011 and 2012 were RME®B®million, RMB5,817.2 million and RMB3,295.9 min (US$529.0 million)
respectively, and accounted for 92.1%, 90.7% an@%8®f our net revenues, respectively.
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Legal and Administrative Proceedings

Most of our multiyear supply agreements that we entered into dutiegearlier periods of supply shortage requiredtaisnake
prepayments of a portion of the total contracteti@ our suppliers without receiving collateral sarch prepayments. Due to doubtful reco
of advances to suppliers, we recorded a provisfdRMB186.0 million (US$29.9 million) in 2012 to dett the probable loss arising from
suppliers’failure to perform under the contracts. On Jun2(®9, LDK, one of our suppliers of silicon, submittan arbitration request to
Shanghai Arbitration Commission, alleging that veel tiailed to perform under the terms of a ldagn supply agreement, seeking to enf
our performance and claiming for monetary relieliizeries of silicon under the agreement haltedarly 2009 and have not recommenced
July 9, 2009, we submitted an arbitration requesthe Shanghai Arbitration Commission requestingt thDK refund the outstandil
prepayments of RMB104 million that we made unde¥ tlontract, plus compensation of RMB35 million frdtbK for estimated loss:
incurred by us as a result of the stoppage of daég under the framework supply agreement and fega of RMB4 million. On March 2
2012, a hearing was held by the Shanghai Arbitnaommission, and all the requests filed by LDK evdismissed. LDK was also requiret
refund the deposit amounting to RMB104 million ®within 30 days from the date of the hearing. Asdid not receive the refund from LI
within the required period, we have taken stepspialy for an enforcement of the award. The requdsts by us for compensation of RMB
million and legal fees of RMB4 million were disméss On April 26, 2012, LDK submitted a separate aed arbitration request to 1
Shanghai Arbitration Commission updating its adtitn claim to seek damages of RMB446 million plesal cost for our alleged failure
perform the aforesaid muljiear framework supply agreement. Based on othewaet supplementary agreements between the paritbd
light of the previous arbitration award in our fawehich was based on the same principal contragtfacts, we expect the outcome of the
arbitration to be positive. Even if we are heldl@aby the tribunal, we expect our liability to lmited and substantially lower than the cl:
made by LDK in the new arbitration. See “Item 3Hisk Factors — Risks Related to Our Company andi@austry —We may be subject
legal proceedings in connection with the mykar supply agreements we entered into previouslysaich proceedings can be both costly
time-consuming and may significantly divert theoef and resources of our management personnel.”

On July 26, 2012, we brought a lawsuit against HGkwuporation and Hoku Materials, Inc., or Hoku eotlvely, one of our polysilicc
suppliers, at the Los Angeles Superior Court fokii® failure to perform a multyear framework polysilicon supply agreement enténéa or
November 19, 2007. Hoku has never made any deligépolysilicon, and has also failed to return a$4$ million prepayment to us. \
demanded Hoku to return the prepayment. We havaaigly pursued our claims against Hoku and basetth@ underlying facts, we expet
positive outcome of the case. See “Item 3.D. Riaktéts — Risks Related to Our Company and Our lingus- Prepayments we ha
provided to our silicon and silicon wafer suppliesgpose us to the credit and performance risksuct suppliers and may not be recove
which could in turn have a material adverse eféecour liquidity.”

We face payment collection difficulties with resp&e certain customers, which may materially andeasely impact our profitability. F
example, on July 16, 2012, we submitted an artmatequest to Guangzhou Arbitration Commissionunéig Guo Hua, owner of a F
project for which we acted as an EPC, to pay d &steount of RMB92 million including, among otheos,erdue payment of EPC contract pt
accrued interest, damages and legal cost in acooedaith the EPC contract dated September 21, 2DaAugust 5, 2012, Guo Hua submi
an counterclaim to Guangzhou Arbitration Commisstiaging that we have substantially breached A€ Eontract, and Guo Hua reque
termination of the EPC contract and demanded psya total amount of RMB187 million for breachcoihtract. Based on the facts of the
and our discussion with our external counsels, wkebe the contract termination claim of Guo Huauidikely to be supported by t
Guangzhou Arbitration Commission and our liabifity damages, if any, would likely be limited andstantially lower than the claim made
Guo Hua in the arbitration. See “ltem 3.D. RisktBat — Risks Related to Our Company and Our InglustiWe depend on a limited numl
of customers and countries for a high percentageuofrevenues and the loss of, a significant rednan orders from, or failure to colle
payments from, any of these customers or countifiespt immediately replaced, would significantlgduce our revenue and decrease
profitability.”

89



Table of Contents

As a result of a petition filed on October 19, 2@¥/1U.S. producers of solar crystalline silicon 8alls, or solar panels, the Departmet
Commerce, or the DOC, published an Antidumping DQtger, or an AD Order, and a Countervailing Dutyl€, or a CVD Order, on so
panels imported from China on December 7, 2012.s€guently, imports of solar panels from SolarOndo@g are subject to a combir
effective AD and CVD deposit rate of 29.18%, of ahil5.24% is attributable to the CVD. Imports ofasganels from SolarOne Hong Kc
are subject to a combined effective rate of 254.66%ich is comprised of an AD of 239.42% and a C¥D15.24%. Actual AD and CV
ultimately due will be determined by the DOC aftsrreview of actual transactions. Such review sgii@ce annually in the anniversary mc
of the publication of the AD and CVD Orders, andes the preceding ongar period. SolarOne Qidong is undertaking efftatprotect itse
against the potential increases of AD and CVD iesthreviews. SolarOne Qidong is challenging the BJi@al ruling at the United Sta
Court of International Trade and also has joindtert in challenging the final determination of miateinjury made by the United Sta
International Trade Commission, or the USITC, in effort to overturn these decisions. There is nsuemnce that we will succeed
overturning the final rulings of the DOC and thelDS or that the AD and CVD will be eliminated arftetduty deposit rates will be reduc
The imposition of the AD and CVD and any increas¢hie rate of AD or CVD or their respective depoattos will significantly increase t
price of our products, negatively affect our satethe U.S. and adversely affect our results ofrafiens.

On September 6 and November 8, 2012, the Europeamr@ssion initiated an antidumping proceeding andaatisubsidy proceedir
concerning imports of crystalline silicon PV moduland key components, such as cells and wafeginating in China. We have tak
necessary steps to deploy a vigorous defense $e fir@ceedings in order to annul the European Cesiom’s refusal to consider the claims
market economy treatment, which would allow usetteive an individual reduction in the calculatidrA®. On March 11, 2013, our concert
subsidiaries filed an application for the annulmehtRegulation (EU) No. 1168/2012 of the Europearli@ment and of the Council
December 12, 2012 amending Council Regulation (8€)1225/2009 on protection against dumped imdoots countries not members of
European Community (OJ 2012 L 344/1), insofar agai$ applied to the relevant subsidiaries, andefEuropean Commissiandecision ¢
January 3, 2013 refusing consideration of the afogstioned subsidiarieglaims for market economy treatment. It is diffictd predict th
AD rates that may apply to our exports to the E0Ongequently, at this point of time, we are unabladsess the impact of these proceedin
our exports to the European Union market. An unfable outcome of such proceedings could signifigaintrease the price of our produ
negatively affect our sales in the European Uni@rkat and adversely affect our results of operati@ee “Item 3.D. Risk Factors Risks
Related to Our Company and Our IndustryGhanges in international trade policies and intiéonal barriers to trade may material adver
affect our ability to export our products worldwitle

Other than as described above, there are no nidtsya proceedings, regulatory inquiries or inigations pending or threatened age
us. We may from time to time be subject to varimgsl or administrative proceedings arising indh@inary course of our business.

Dividend Policy

We made a onéme cash dividend payment in the aggregate amoti®RMB7.2 million to the holders of the series Anwertible
preference shares on December 31, 2006. Excephéoforgoing, we have never declared or paid arsh aividends, nor do we have
present plan to pay any cash dividends on ouraagtidck in the foreseeable future. We currenttgrid to retain all of our available funds
any future earnings to operate and expand our essin

The holders of our ordinary shares are entitleduch dividends as may be declared by our boardre€tdrs subject to the Caymnr
Islands Companies Law. Even if our board of directibecides to pay dividends, the form, frequenay amount will depend upon our futi
operations and earnings, capital requirements arus, general financial condition, contractuatnetions and other factors that the boar
directors may deem relevant. If we pay any dividenee will pay our ADS holders to the same extentalders of our ordinary shares, sut
to the terms of the deposit agreement, includimegféles and expenses payable thereunder.
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B. Significant Changes

There have been no significant changes since Dezedih 2012, the date of the annual consolidatehfiial statements in this anr
report.

ITEM 9 THE OFFER AND LISTING
A. Offering and Listing Details

Our ADSs, each representing five of our ordinargreb, have been listed on the Nasdaq Global Maikee December 20, 2006. (
ticker symbol is “HSOL.”

In 2012, the trading price of our ADSs on the Nas@obal Market ranged from US$0.77 to US$2.514BS6.

The following table provides the high and low tragliprices for our ADSs on the Nasdag Global Mafée{1) each year of 2009, 20.
2011 and 2012, (2) each quarter in 2011 and 20d2renfirst quarter in 2013, and (3) each of th&t pax months.

Sales Price
High Low

Annually High and Low

2008 40.1¢ 2.67
2009 8.9t 2.27
2010 13.4¢ 5.61
2011 9.7¢ 0.91
2012 2.51 0.77
Quarterly High and Low

First Quarter 201 9.7¢ 6.9C
Second Quarter 201 7.6¢ 4.8%
Third Quarter 201. 6.41 2.2¢
Fourth Quarter 201 2.5(C 0.91
First Quarter 201, 2.51 1.0C
Second Quarter 201 1.37 0.81
Third Quarter 201. 1.3t 0.94
Fourth Quarter 201 1.1z 0.77
First Quarter 201 1.5 0.87
Monthly Highs and Lows

October 201: 1.1z 0.94
November 201! 1.0% 0.77
December 201 1.0¢ 0.8t
January 201: 1.4¢ 1.0
February 201. 1.52 1.12
March 2018 1.1¢ 0.87
April 2013 (through April 26, 201z 1.0¢ 0.8¢

B. Plan of Distribution

Not applicable.
C. Markets

Our ADSs, each representing five of our ordinargrel, have been listed on the Nasdaq Global Maiket December 20, 2006 and
under the symbol “HSOL.”
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D. Selling Shareholders

Not applicable.
E. Dilution
Not applicable.

F. Expenses of the Issue

Not applicable.
ITEM 10 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
A. Share Capital

Not applicable.

B. Memorandum and Articles of Association

We incorporate by reference into this annual reffatdescription of our amended and restated maerdana of association containec
our F-1 registration statement (File No. 383258), as amended, initially filed with the Corasidn on December 11, 2006. Our shareha
adopted our amended and restated memorandum acldsadf association by special resolutions passe®ecember 18, 2006. The amer
and restated memorandum and articles of associdgmame effective on December 26, 2006. Our shhtetso adopted some furtl
amendments to our amended and restated memoranudirariécles of association by special resolutioassed at an extraordinary gen
meeting on February 21, 2011. Such amendmentsdeabur name change, the increase of our authoskade capital from US$50,000
US$100,000 and the deletion of the requirementiof pnajority shareholder approval for issuancsludires in an amount equal to or more
20% of all the shares issued and outstanding.

C. Material Contracts

We have not entered into any material contractsrdtfian in the ordinary course of business andratien those described iftém 4
Information on the Company” or elsewhere in thiawal report on Form 20-F.

D. Exchange Controls

Foreign Currency Exchange
Foreign currency exchange in China is primarily ggmed by the following regulations:
* Foreign Exchange Administration Rules (1996), asraed; ant
* Regulations of Settlement, Sale and Payment ofiiotexchange (1996

Under the Foreign Exchange Administration Ruleg Benminbi is convertible for current account iterimgluding distribution ¢
dividends, payment of interest, trade and serétated foreign exchange transactions. Conversiddeominbi for capital account items, s
as direct investment, loan, securities investmadtrapatriation of investment, however, is stilbbget to the approval of SAFE.

Under the Regulations of Settlement, Sale and Payofd=oreign Exchange, foreignvested enterprises may only buy, sell and/or 1
foreign currencies at those banks authorized ta@eonforeign exchange business after valid comrakdncuments are provided and, in
case of capital account item transactions, aftéinimg the approval from SAFE. Capital investmdntdoreigninvested enterprises outside
China are also subject to limitations, which inédwpprovals by the Ministry of Commerce, SAFE dreiNDRC.
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E. Taxation
Cayman Islands Taxation

The Cayman Islands currently levies no taxes oivididals or corporations based upon profits, incpgans or appreciation and ther
no taxation in the nature of inheritance tax oatestuty. No Cayman Islands stamp duty will be peyanless an instrument is executel
brought to, or produced before a court of the Cayiistands. The Cayman Islands is not party to aoybte tax treaties that are applicabl
any payments made by or to our company. There@mexchange control regulations or currency resbristin the Cayman Islands.

PRC Taxation

Under the EIT, which took effect as of January Q& enterprises established under the laws ofAR@-jurisdictions but whosedé
facto management body” is located in the PRC ansidered “resident enterprises” for PRC tax purpo$ée EIT does not define the terde*
facto managementMowever, the Implementation Regulations for theefmise Income Tax Law of the PRC issued by théeSTauncil ol
December 6, 2007 defined de facto management bedn a&stablishment that exerts substantial and drapsive management and cor
over the business operations, staff, accountirggtasand other aspects of the enterprise. Sincgaslally all of our management is curre
based in the PRC, and may remain in the PRC ifotteseeable future, it is likely that we will begeeded as a “resident enterprisai a stric
interpretation of the EIT and its ImplementationgRlations. If Hanwha SolarOne or any of its non-PRM®sidiaries is treated as @esiden
enterprise’for PRC tax purposes, Hanwha SolarOne or suchdiabgiwill be subject to PRC income tax on worldeiidcome at a uniform t
rate of 25%, excluding the dividend income receifrech our PRC subsidiaries which should have bedest to PRC income tax already.

Moreover, the EIT provides that an income tax @ftd 0% is normally applicable to dividends payatdenonPRC investors who a
“non-resident enterprisestd the extent such dividends are derived from smkgithin the PRC. We are a Cayman Islands holdorgpan
and substantially all of our income may be derifredn dividends we receive from our operating sulasids located in the PRC (through
holding company structure). Thus, dividends paidusoby our subsidiaries in the PRC may be subjedhé 10% income tax if we ¢
considered a “non-resident enterprise” under the El

Similarly, any gain realized on the transfer of ADS& shares by such investors is also subject% RRBRC withholding income tax if su
gain is regarded as income derived from sourcasimihe PRC. If we are considered a “resident @nigz”, it is unclear whether the divider
we pay with respect to our ordinary shares or Alsthe gain you may realize from the transfer of ordinary shares or ADSs, would
treated as income derived from sources within fRE€ Bnd subject to PRC tax.

If we are deemed by the PRC tax authorities asesident enterpriseand declare dividends, under the existing Implemtéon
Regulations of the EIT, dividends paid by us to oltimate shareholders, which are “non-residen¢gmises’and do not have an establishn
or place in the PRC, or which have such an estabkst or place but the relevant income is not &ffely connected with the establishmen
place, might be subject to PRC withholding tax@&oclor a lower treaty rate.

According to the Law of the PeopseRepublic of China on the Individual Income Taxthe IIT, as amended, PRC income tax at the
of 20% is applicable to dividends payable to indibal investors if such dividends are regarded esnre derived from sources within the P
Similarly, any gain realized on the transfer of AD& ordinary shares by individual investors i®alabject to PRC tax at 20% if such gai
regarded as income derived from sources withinPiRE. If we are deemed by the PRC tax authorities ‘@ssident enterprisethe dividend
we pay to our individual investors with respecbto ordinary shares or ADSs, or the gain the imtliad investors may realize from the tran
of our ordinary shares or ADSs, might be treatethesme derived from sources within the PRC anduigect to PRC tax at 20% or a lo
treaty rate.
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U.S. Federal Income Taxation

The following discussion describes the material. JeSeral income tax consequences to U.S. Holdkfingd below) under present |
of an investment in the ADSs or ordinary sharess Smmary applies only to investors that holdARSs or ordinary shares as capital as
This discussion is based on the tax laws of théddnbtates as in effect on the date of this anrepdrt and on U.S. Treasury regulation
effect as of the date of this annual report, as agejudicial and administrative interpretationsréfof available on or before such date. All o
foregoing authorities are subject to change, whltdnge could apply retroactively and could affeetteix consequences described below.

The following discussion does not deal with thedarsequences to any particular investor or togmsri special tax situations such as:
» certain financial institutions
e insurance companie
* broker dealers
* U.S. expatriates
» traders that elect to meto-market;
e tax-exempt entities
» persons liable for alternative minimum t:
» persons whose functional currency is not the UoBad
« persons holding an ADS or ordinary share as paatsifaddle, hedging, conversion or integratedstetion; ol
» persons that actually or constructively own 10%nore of our voting stocl

The discussion below of the U.S. federal incomecaxsequences to “U.S. Holdersfll apply if you are a beneficial owner of ADSs
ordinary shares and you are, for U.S. federal iretam purposes:

* acitizen or resident of the United Stal

» a corporation (or other entity taxable as a corpamafor U.S. federal income tax purposes) orgathizeder the laws of the Unit
States, any state in the United States or theiftistf Columbia;

* an estate whose income is subject to U.S. fedecahie taxation regardless of its source

* a trust that (1) is subject to the primary supeovisof a court within the United States and onermre U.S. persons have
authority to control all substantial decisions bé ttrust or (2) was in existence on August 20, 19¢6s treated as a U.S. per
under the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, andetd, on the previous day and has a valid eleati@ffect under applicak
U.S. Treasury regulations to be treated as a &Sop.

If you are a partner in a partnership or othertgrniixable as a partnership for U.S. federal incaenepurposes that holds ADSs
ordinary shares, your tax treatment generally @épend on your status and the activities of thinpeship. If you are a partner or partner
holding ADSs or ordinary shares, you should congulir own tax advisors.
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The discussion below assumes that the represematmntained in the deposit agreement are truahaidhe obligations in the depc
agreement and any related agreement will be cothplith in accordance with their terms. If you ha\®Ss, you should be treated as
holder of the underlying ordinary shares represkbte those ADSs for U.S. federal income tax purpo&changes of ordinary shares
ADSs and ADSs for ordinary shares generally will Ine subject to U.S. federal income tax.

Taxation of Dividends and Other Distributions on ¢hADSs or Ordinary Shares

Subject to the passive foreign investment compamgsrdiscussed below, the gross amount of anyildision (including constructiy
dividends) to you with respect to the ADSs or oatynshares generally will be included in your grim&®ome as dividend income on the dat
actual or constructive receipt by the depositamythie case of ADSs, or by you, in the case of amjirshares, but only to the extent thai
distribution is paid out of our current or accuntath earnings and profits (as determined under &&&eral income tax principles). T
dividends will not be eligible for the dividendseeived deduction allowed to corporations in respé dividends received from other U
corporations.

With respect to certain non-corporate U.S. Holdémsluding individual U.S. Holders, dividends magnstitute ‘Gualified dividen
income” and be taxed at the lower applicable capital ga#tts, provided that (1) the ADSs or ordinary sheaaes readily tradable on
established securities market in the United Stdswe are not a passive foreign investment compdas discussed below) for either
taxable year in which the dividend was paid or pheceding taxable year, and (3) certain holdingogerequirements are met. Under |
Internal Revenue Service authority, ordinary shave#\DSs representing such shares, are considerdtle purpose of clause (1) above ti
readily tradable on an established securities nhankthe United States if they are listed on thesda, as our ADSs are. You should coi
your tax advisors regarding the availability of toever rate for dividends paid with respect to AIDSs or ordinary share

Dividends that you receive that do not constitutalified dividend income are not eligible for taat at the lower capital gains r
applicable to qualified dividend income. Insteaduymust include the gross amount of any such diddeaid by us out of our accumula
earnings and profits (as determined for U.S. fddecmme tax purposes) in your gross income, amdlitoe subject to tax at rates applicabl
ordinary income.

Dividends will constitute foreign source income 1drS. foreign tax credit limitation purposes andl wenerally constitute gassivi
category income” but could, in the case of certai. Holders, constitute “general category income.”

Subject to certain conditions and limitations, PRi@hholding taxes on dividends may be treated asido taxes eligible for credit agai
your U.S. federal income tax. Holders should carthalir own tax advisors regarding the creditapitif any PRC tax

To the extent that the amount of the distributi@oe®ds our current and accumulated earnings arfidspibwill be treated first as a tax-
free return of your tax basis in your ADSs or oatinshares, and to the extent the amount of thakdifon exceeds your tax basis, the ex
will be taxed as capital gain. We do not intenccédculate our earnings and profits under U.S. fald@come tax principles. Therefore, \
should expect that any distribution we make wilhgelly be treated as a dividend.

Taxation of Disposition of ADSs or Ordinary Shares

Subject to the passive foreign investment compatesrdiscussed below, you will recognize taxable galoss on any sale, exchang
other taxable disposition of an ADS or ordinaryrshequal to the difference between the amountzedifor the ADS or ordinary share
your tax basis in the ADS or ordinary share. Thi ga loss generally will be capital gain or losisyou are a no-corporate U.S. Holde
including an individual U.S. Holder, who has hehé tADS or ordinary share for more than one yeau, will be eligible for reduced tax rat
The deductibility of capital losses is subject itifations. Any such gain or loss that you recognwill generally be treated as U.S. sol
income or loss for foreign tax credit limitationrposes.
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If PRC withholding tax were to apply to a sale, lexege or other taxable disposition of an ADS ofiray share, as described ab
under “— PRC Taxation,you generally would only be able to claim a foretgw credit for the amount withheld to the extdrdttyou hav
foreign source income. However, in the event tHRE€Rax is withheld from a sale, exchange or otaralble disposition of an ADS or ordin
share, a U.S. Holder that is eligible for the béneif the income tax treaty between the UnitedeStand the PRC may be able to treat the
from such a disposition as foreign source for fgmeiax credit limitation purposes. If PRC tax ighkield, you should consult your own
advisor regarding your eligibility for the benefit$ the income tax treaty between the United Statesthe PRC and the creditability of
PRC tax.

Passive Foreign Investment Compa

We do not believe that we were a passive foreigastment company, or PFIC, for U.S. federal incdaxepurposes for the taxable y
that ended December 31, 2012, and we do not clyrexpect to be a PFIC for U.S. federal incomeparposes for our current taxable yee
the foreseeable future. Our actual PFIC statusi®icurrent taxable year ending December 31, 20310t be determinable until the close
the current taxable year ending December 31, 281@ accordingly, there is no guarantee that wenwillbe a PFIC for the current taxable
or any future taxable year. A non-U.S. corporat®oonsidered to be a PFIC for any taxable yeeitlifer:

e atleast 75% of its gross income is passive incam

» atleast 50% of the value of its assets (based@varage of the quarterly values of the asseiaglartaxable year) is attributable
assets that produce or are held for the produdfigrassive income

We will be treated as owning our proportionate shafrthe assets and our proportionate share ahtwme of any other corporation
which we own, directly or indirectly, more than 2%bl value) of the stock.

We must make a separate determination each yeanasether we are a PFIC. As a result, our PFI@istanay change. If we are a Pl
for any year during which you hold ADSs or ordinatyares, unless you make a “mark-to-marledgttion as discussed below, we gene
will continue to be treated as a PFIC for all seclieg years during which you hold ADSs or ordinsimares.

If we are a PFIC for any taxable year during whiolu hold ADSs or ordinary shares, you will be sabje special tax rules with resp
to any “excess distributionthat you receive and any gain you realize fromla sa other disposition (including a pledge) of thBSs o
ordinary shares, unless you make a “mark-to-mar&kittion as discussed below. Distributions you ikecen a taxable year that are gre
than 125% of the average annual distributions woeived during the shorter of the three precedimghile years or your holding period for
ADSs or ordinary shares will be treated as an exdesdribution. Under these special tax rules:

* the excess distribution or gain will be allocatathbly over your holding period for the ADSs orioaty shares

» the amount allocated to the current taxable yeat,amy taxable year prior to the first taxable yieavhich we became a PFIC, v
be treated as ordinary income; ¢

« the amount allocated to each other year will bgesuitio the highest tax rate in effect for thatryaad the interest charge gener
applicable to underpayments of tax will be imposadhe resulting tax attributable to each such.y

The tax liability for amounts allocated to year®pto the year of disposition or “excess distribat cannot be offset by any net opera
losses for such years, and gains (but not lossatiyed on the sale of the ADSs or ordinary sheagsot be treated as capital, even if you
the ADSs or ordinary shares as capital assets.
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Alternatively, a U.S. Holder of “marketable stodids defined below) in a PFIC may make a markatrket election for such stock ¢
PFIC to elect out of the tax treatment under theesx distribution regime. If you make a markytarket election for the ADSs or ordin
shares, you will include in income each year anwamhequal to the excess, if any, of the fair maxattie of the ADSs or ordinary shares ¢
the close of your taxable year over your adjust@sishin such ADSs or ordinary shares. You are altb& deduction for the excess, if any
the adjusted basis of the ADSs or ordinary shaves their fair market value as of the close of theable year. However, deductions
allowable only to the extent of any net markat@arket gains on the ADSs or ordinary shares indudeyour income for prior taxable ye:
Amounts included in your income under a markwtarket election, as well as gain on the actual salether disposition of the ADSs
ordinary shares, are treated as ordinary incoméin@ry loss treatment also applies to the dedweploirtion of any mark-toaarket loss on tt
ADSs or ordinary shares, as well as to any loskzezghon the actual sale or disposition of the AR$®rdinary shares, to the extent thai
amount of such loss does not exceed the net mariatket gains previously included for such ADSs mlirtary shares. Your basis in the Al
or ordinary shares will be adjusted to reflect angh income or loss amounts. The U.S. federal irmctam rules that apply to distributions
corporations that are not PFICs would apply toritiistions by us.

The mark-to-market election is available only fondrketable stock,” which is stock that is regularigded in other thade minimi:
guantities on at least 15 days during each calegdarter on a qualified exchange, including the ddas or other market, as definec
applicable U.S. Treasury regulations. The ADSsliated on the Nasdaqg, and we expect that theyamititinue to be regularly traded on
Nasdaq. Consequently, if you are a holder of ADss marl-to-market election should be available to you weeeto be or become a PFIC.

If you hold ADSs or ordinary shares in any yeamihich we are a PFIC, you will be required to fileSU Internal Revenue Serv
Form 8621 (or any other form to be specified byth8. Department of the Treasury) regarding distidms received on the ADSs or ordin
shares, any gain realized on the disposition ofAB&s or ordinary shares and any “reportable edattwith respect to the ADSs or ordini
shares in accordance with the instructions to $ach. In addition, each U.S. shareholder of a Pisl@&quired to file such annual informat
as is specified by the U.S. Treasury Departmentu ¥twould consult your own tax advisor concerning iteporting requirements that wo
apply if we were to be considered a PFIC for ampliée year.

In addition, if we are a PFIC, we do not intendptepare or provide you with the information necessa make a fualified electini
fund” election.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding and @er Reporting Requirement

Dividend payments with respect to ADSs or ordinsinares and proceeds from the sale, exchange anptida of ADSs or ordina
shares may be subject to information reportindhoW.S. Internal Revenue Service and possible hh&up withholding. Backup withholdi
will not apply, however, if you are a corporationaoU.S. Holder who furnishes a correct taxpayenidication number and makes any o
required certification or if you are otherwise exs#rfrom backup withholding. If you are a U.S. Haldeho is required to establish exel
status, you generally must provide such certiftzatin U.S. Internal Revenue Service FornDW3.S. Holders should consult their tax advi
regarding the application of the U.S. informatieparting and backup withholding rules.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Amaumtithheld as backup withholding may be creditedirgt your U.S. federal incor
tax liability, and you may obtain a refund of amcess amounts withheld under the backup withholdies by filing the appropriate claim
refund with the U.S. Internal Revenue Service amdishing any required information in a timely mann

Certain U.S. Holders who are individuals that hoddtain foreign financial assets (which may incldke ADSs or ordinary shares)
required to report information relating to sucheasssubject to certain exceptions. You should albysur own tax advisor regarding the eff
if any, of these rules on your ownership and digmosof the ADSs or ordinary shares.
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F. Dividends and Paying Agents

Not applicable.
G. Statement by Experts

Not applicable.

H. Documents on Display

You may read and copy documents referred to in dhisual report on Form 2B-that have been filed with the U.S. Securities
Exchange Commission at the Commisssopublic reference room located at 100 F Stredf,,NRoom 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549. PI
call the Commission at 1-800-SEC-0330 for furttoiimation on the public reference rooms and tbejpy charges.

The Commission allows us to “incorporate by refeegrthe information we file with the Commission. Thigams that we can disclc
important information to you by referring you toatimer document filed separately with the Commissibime information incorporated
reference is considered to be part of this anre@nt on Form 20-F.

|. Subsidiary Information

For a listing of our significant subsidiaries, séem 4.C. Organizational Structure.”
ITEM 11 QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Foreign Exchange Risk

A portion of our revenue and a significant portafrexpenses are denominated in Renminbi. The Rdmnnsircurrently convertible und
the “current account,” which includes dividendsdig and service-related foreign exchange transes;tlout not under the “capital account,
which includes foreign direct investment and loa@srrently, SolarOne Qidong may purchase foreigmericies for settlement of curn
account transactions, including payments of divitieto us, without the approval of SAFE. Howevee, thlevant PRC government authori
may limit or eliminate our ability to purchase famye currencies in the future. Since a significantoant of our future revenue will
denominated in Renminbi, any existing and futurgtrietions on currency exchange may limit our &pito utilize revenue generated
Renminbi to fund our business activities outsidén@lthat are denominated in foreign currencies.

In 2012, we entered into foreign currency derivatbontracts to manage risks associated with foreigrency fluctuations for our sa
contracts denominated in a currency other than RénmAs of December 31, 2012, a notional amountEafo44.0 million and US$4€
million was outstanding under these foreign curyetherivative contracts. We may enter into additidoavard contracts or enter into econo
hedges in the future.

Foreign exchange transactions by SolarOne Qidomfgruthe capital account continue to be subjectidaificant foreign exchang
controls and require the approval of or need téstegwith PRC governmental authorities, includB@§FE. In particular, if SolarOne Qido
borrows foreign currency loans from us or otheefon lenders, these loans must be registered vAFES and if we finance SolarOne Qidc
by means of additional capital contributions, theagital contributions must be approved by cergnernment authorities, including
NDRC, the Ministry of Commerce or their respectiweal counterparts. These limitations could affiet ability of SolarOne Qidong to obt
foreign exchange through debt or equity financing.

As of December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, we heldvalgmts of RMB1,282.8 million, RMB537.5 million dnRMB957.0 millior
(US$153.6 million) in accounts receivable, respedyi, of which RMB606.6 million, RMB223.0 million ral RMB130.6 millior
(US$21.0 million) were denominated in U.S. dollarsl RMB599.4 million, RMB194.3 million and RMB559%illion (US$89.7 million) wer
denominated in Euros in 2010, 2011 and 2012, réispdc
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Without taking into account of the effect of theeusf hedging or other derivative financial instruntse if there were a 10% apprecia
of Renminbi based on the foreign exchange rate ereBber 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, our accountsvedteidenominated in U.S. dollars
of December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 would have lEmminbi equivalents of RMB545.9 million, RMB200r7illion and RMB117.
million, respectively. These amounts representlogtes of RMB60.7 million, RMB22.3 million and RMBIL million, respectively, to o
accounts receivable denominated in U.S. dollacsf &ecember 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012.

Without taking into account of the effect of theeusf hedging or other derivative financial instruntse if there were a 10% apprecia
of Renminbi based on the foreign exchange rate ece®ber 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, our accountsvedeidenominated in Euro wo!
have been Renminbi equivalents of RMB539.5 milliBh\B174.8 million and RMB503.2 million, respectiyelThese amounts represent
losses of RMB59.9 million, RMB19.5 million and RMB® million, respectively, to our accounts receleadenominated in Euro as
December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012.

Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to interest rate risks relates taasteexpense incurred in connection with our sterrts and longerm borrowings, as we
as interest income generated by excess cash idviestiemand deposits and liquid investments witbial maturities of three months or le
As of December 31, 2012, our total interbstring borrowings were RMB3,914.7 million (US$6Raillion), of which RMB3,370.7 millio
(US$540.0 million) were denominated in U.S. dolldrs2012, we entered into an interest rate swapeagent to manage risk with respec
our longterm borrowings with a floating rate. We estimadte fair value of interest rate swap derivativesigs pricing model based on mai
observable inputs. We have not been exposed tajoare anticipate being exposed to, material rikkes to changes in interest rates. Howe
our future interest expense may increase due togeitain market interest rates.

ITEM 12 DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN EQUITYSECURITIES
A. Debt Securities

Not applicable.
B. Warrants and Rights

Not applicable.
C. Other Securities
Not applicable.

D. American Depositary Shares

The Bank of New York Mellon, the depositary of AAIDS program, collects its fees for depositing shayesurrendering ADSs for t
purpose of withdrawal or from intermediaries actfogthem. The depositary collects fees for makdmgfributions to investors by deduct
those fees from the amounts distributed or byrspki portion of distributable property to pay teed. The depositary may collect its annue
for depositary services by deducting from cashrihistions or by directly billing investors or by afying the boolentry system accounts
participants acting for them. The depositary mayegally refuse to provide fee-attracting servicesl its fees for those services are paid.
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Persons depositing or withdrawing shares must pay For:

$5.00 (or less) per 100 ADSs (or portion of 100 ADPS Issuance of ADSs, including issuances resultingnfeodistribution
of shares or rights or other property

Cancellation of ADSs for the purpose of withdraviatluding if
the deposit agreement termina

$0.02 (or less) per AD Any cash distribution to ADS holde

A fee equivalent to the fee that would be payabéecurities distributed
to you had been shares and the shares had beesitddgor issuance of Distribution of securities distributed to holdefsdeposited

ADSs securities which are distributed by the depositarDS holders
$0.02 (or less) per ADSs per calendar y Depositary service
Registration or transfer fees Transfer and registration of shares on our shayistex to or from

the name of the depositary or its agent when yqosieor
withdraw share:

Expenses of the depositary Cable, telex and facsimile transmissions (whene&sgly provided
in the deposit agreement)

Converting foreign currency to U.S. doll

Taxes and other governmental charges the depositdhe custodian As necessary
have to pay on any ADS or share underlying an AibSexample, stock
transfer taxes, stamp duty or withholding ta

Any charges incurred by the depositary or its agémt servicing the As necessary
deposited securitie

The fees described above may be amended from dirti@¢.

The depositary has agreed to reimburse us annfmllgur expenses incurred in connection with ADRgram. The amount of su
reimbursements is subject to certain limits, bet@imount of reimbursement available to us is rlated to the amounts of fees the depos
collects from investors. In 2012, we did not reeedny reimbursement from the depositary.
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PART II
ITEM 13 DEFAULTS, DIVIDEND ARREARAGES AND DELINQUENCIES
None.
ITEM 14 MATERIAL MODIFICATIONS TO THE RIGHTS OF SECURITY HOLDERS AND USE OF PROCEED!
See “Item 10. Additional Information” for a desdign of the rights of securities holders, which eemunchanged.

We completed our initial public offering of 60,0000 ordinary shares, in the form of ADSs, at US$Q2%er ADS on December :
2006, after our ordinary shares and American DeépgsReceipts were registered under the Secut@sThe aggregate price of the offer
amount registered and sold was US$150 million, loictv we received net proceeds of US$135.9 millidme effective date of our registrat
statement on Form F-1 (File number: 3B8258) was December 19, 2006. Goldman Sachs (Adia. was the sole global coordinator
bookrunner for the global offering of our ADSs.

The net proceeds from our initial public offeringMe been used as follows:
» approximately US$68.0 million to purchase or prefmyaw materials
» approximately US$40.0 million to expand our mantféng capacity
» approximately US$17.9 million to acquire SolarOreefnology; ant
» approximately US$10.0 million to invest in our reszh and development activitie

On January 29, 2008, we closed an offering of US%L.rillion 3.50% convertible senior notes due 20482018 convertible bonds,
qualified institutional buyers pursuant to Rule Addnder the Securities Act and received net proseefdUS$167.9 million. Holders m
convert the bonds into our ADSs. Concurrently witits convertible bond offering, we closed an ofigriof 9,019,611 ADSSs, represent
45,098,055 ordinary shares, to facilitate the catitde bond offering. We did not receive any pradgeother than the par value of the AL
from such offering of ADSs. The effective date afr gegistration statement on Form F-1 (File numB&3147627) was January 23, 20
Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated was the sole bamking manager of this offering. We have from titnetime been buying back ¢
convertible bonds since January 1, 2012 and masodo the future, subject to market conditions atebr factors.

The net proceeds from the January 2008 convettitrel offering have been used as follows:
» approximately US$95.6 million for wafer and polysiin pre-payments
» approximately US$37.4 million for capital expendélL

+ US$19.2 million to repay loans from Hong Kong Huiaex company controlled by Mr. Yonghua Lu, our rf@r chairman, i
SolarOne Hong Kong, our 100% indirect subsidiand

» the remainder for working capital and repaymerdwfexisting bank borrowing

From July 17, 2008 to August 12, 2008, we issuatisandd 5,421,093 ADSs with an aggregate sale pfi¢éS$73.9 million, of which w
received net proceeds of US$71.8 million. The ¢iffecdate of our registration statement on Form (R number: 33352005) was July 1
2008. Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated acted assailes agent. The net proceeds from this offehignge been used for silicon and sili
wafer pre-payments and working capital.
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From September 17, 2009 to November 18, 2009, sueéand sold 3,888,399 ADSs with an aggregatepsiale of US$23.1 million, «
which we received net proceeds of US$21.8 millibhe effective date of our registration statemenform F-3 (File number: 33852005
was July 16, 2008. Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorpatadeted as manager for the sale. The net proceeatsthis offering have been used
capital expenditures, working capital and partgdayment of our existing bank loans.

In September 2010, we issued and sold to Hanwher 8ok private placement 36,455,089 ordinary shaiith an aggregate sale price
US$78.2 million, of which we received net proceeddJS$76.0 million. The net proceeds from this ptes placement have been usec
capital expenditures and working capital.

In November 2010, we issued and sold 9,200,000 ADRiHs an aggregate sale price of US$82.8 milliohwhich we received n
proceeds of US$78.5 million. The effective dateoof registration statement on Form F-3 (File humi3&3-152005) was July 16, 20(
Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc and UBS Siims LLC acted as managers of the underwritergte sale. The net proceeds from
offering have been used for capital expenditureswaorking capital. In order for Hanwha Solar to mtain after this public offering the sa
level of beneficial ownership in our company asobefthe offering, we issued and sold to Hanwha rS&#2981,604 ordinary shares with
aggregate sale price of US$82.8 million. The neicpeds from this private placement have been usedapital expenditures and gen
working capital purposes.

As of December 31, 2012, our cash resources ambuotRMB676.5 million (US$108.6 million), comprigircash on hand and dem
deposits.

ITEM 15 CONTROLS AND PROCEDURE!
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatioroof management, including our chief executiveceifiand our chief financial offict
we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure ctéstamd procedures, as such term is defined undér Rai5(e) under the Securit
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Based on th&uagiam, our chief executive officer and chief fircéal officer have concluded that
disclosure controls and procedures were effectveféahe end of the period covered by this annejabrt.

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaititaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting, as such term is defir
under Rule 1345(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934am&nded, for our company. Internal control oveafficial reporting is
process designed to provide reasonable assuragaedigg the reliability of financial reporting arkde preparation of consolidated finan
statements in accordance with generally accepteduating principles and includes those policies @nocedures that (1) pertain to
maintenance of records that, in reasonable deiailrately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of a comparg/assets, (2) provi
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeecessary to permit preparation of consolidfut@acial statements in accordance 1
generally accepted accounting principles, anddh@impanys receipts and expenditures are being made ordgdardance with authorizatic
of a companys management and directors, and (3) provide reborassurance regarding prevention or timely dieteadf unauthorize
acquisition, use, or disposition of a company’'ststhat could have a material effect on the cadatdd financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, a system térimal control over financial reporting can provigldy reasonable assurance with res
to the preparation and presentation of consolidéitethcial statement and may not prevent or datg@sstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.
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As required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxlelyaid related rules as promulgated by the SECcommpanys management asses
the effectiveness of our internal control over fio@l reporting as of December 31, 2012 using iaitestablished in Internal Contrivitegrate
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@mations of the Treadway Commission. Based os dssessment, our company’
management concluded that our internal control éimancial reporting was effective as of Decembir2012.

Our independent registered public accounting fiEbmst & Young Hua Ming LLP, has audited the effeetiess of internal control o\
financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, atedtin its report, which is included immediatelyidve. Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP hi
also audited our consolidated financial statemfamtthe year ended December 31, 2012, as statitsl i@port which is included on page2fn
this annual report.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.

We have audited Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.’s (themi@any”)internal control over financial reporting as of Beter 31, 2012, bas
on criteria established in Internal Control ttegrated Framework issued by the Committee ofnSpong Organizations of the Tready
Commission (the “COSO criteria”). The Compamynanagement is responsible for maintaining effectnternal control over financ
reporting, and for its assessment of the effectgerof internal control over financial reportinglirded in the accompanying Management’
Annual Report on Internal Control Over FinanciapBeing. Our responsibility is to express an opinan the Company’internal control ovi
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting Oversight lo@Jnited States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform thetadadbbtain reasonable assurance about whethectigffeinternal control over financ
reporting was maintained in all material respe€@ar audit included obtaining an understanding ¢érimal control over financial reportir
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifecfeness of internal control based on
assessed risk, and performing such other procedisege considered necessary in the circumstancesbéleve that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is a@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranceliregdhe reliability o
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantfegeinerally accepted accounting princi
A companys internal control over financial reporting inclsdihose policies and procedures that (1) pertathéanaintenance of records tl
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflbet transactions and dispositions of the assetseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@amdgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoasizations of management :
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanaslsurance regarding prevention or timely deteatfounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtyver financial reporting may not prevent or d@étmisstatements. Also, projections
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomedénaate because of changes in conditior
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd. maintdinie all material respects, effective internal ttohover financial reporting as
December 31, 2012, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight BoéUnited States), tl
consolidated balance sheets of Hanwha SolarOne_€b.as of December 31, 2012 and
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2011, and the related consolidated statementsropezhensive income, changes in sharehold=yaity, and cash flows for each of the tl
years in the period ended December 31, 2012 of Han®8olarOne Co., Ltd., and our report dated A@ijl2013 expressed an unquali
opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP
Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China
April 29, 2013

Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes in our internal control divemcial reporting that occurred during the yeaded December 31, 2012 that h
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenally affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

ITEM 16A AUDIT COMMITTEE FINANCIAL EXPERT

Our Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Therd. Toy qualifies as an “audit committee finaheigert” as defined in Item 16,
of Form 20-F. Each of the members of the Audit Cattem is an “independent director” as defined i Masdaq Marketplace Rules.

ITEM 16B CODE OF ETHICS

Our board of directors has adopted a code of ethatsapplies to our directors, officers, employard agents. We have previously f
our code of business conduct and ethics, and ptis¢éecbde on our websitgtp://www.hanwha-solarone.conWe hereby undertake to prov
to any person without charge, a copy of our codeusiness conduct and ethics within ten workingsdafyer we receive such perssntritter
request.

ITEM 16C PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The following table sets forth the aggregate feesdiegories specified below in connection withtaiarprofessional services renderet
Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP, our principal exterrealditors, for the periods indicated.

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012 2012

(RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (US$)
Audit fees® 5,250,001 6,000,001 5,900,00!I 947,01
Tax fee<@ 260,00( 102,65( 1,070,00I 171,74
All other fees 1,500,00! — — —

Notes:

(1) “Audit fees”"means the aggregate fees billed in each of thalfigars listed for professional services rendéredur principal auditor
In 2011 and 2012, RMB6.0 million and RMB5.9 milligyS$0.9 million), respectively, are for the audifsour annual consolidat
financial statements and our internal control direncial reporting pursuant to Section 404(b)hef Sarban«-Oxley Act of 2002

(2) “Tax fee” means the aggregated fees for services rendeahivection with technical tax advice in 2010 to 2(

The policy of our audit committee is to pre-appreyeaudit and noraudit services provided by Ernst & Young Hua MingA., including
audit services and other services as describedealotiver than those fale minimusservices which are approved by the Audit Commipeer
to the completion of the audit.
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ITEM 16D EXEMPTIONS FROM THE LISTING STANDARDS FORAUDIT COMMITTEES
None.

ITEM 16E PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE ISSBHR AND AFFILIATED PURCHASERS
None.

ITEM 16F CHANGE IN REGISTRANTS CERTIFYING ACCOUNTANT
Not applicable.

ITEM 16G CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Nasdaq Marketplace Rule 5605(e)(1)(B) requires thatDirector nominees must either be selectedecommended for the Boasd’
selection, either by: (A) independent directorsstibuting a majority of the Board’independent directors in a vote in which onlyejpehder
directors participate, or (B) a nominations comedticomprised solely of independent directors. Ngddarketplace Rule 5635(b) requi
shareholder approval prior to the issuance of $esiwwhen the issuance or potential issuanceredllilt in a change of control of the compi
Marketplace Rule 5635(d) requires shareholder agbnorior to the issuance of securities in conmecivith a transaction other than a pu
offering involving the sale, issuance or potentgguance by the company of common stock (or séesirtonvertible into or exercisa
common stock) equal to 20% or more of the commoaoksor 20% or more of the voting power outstandiefpre the issuance for less thar
greater of book or market value of the stock. HosveiNasdaq Marketplace Rule 5615(a)(3) allows aifr private issuer to follow its hol
country practice in lieu of the requirement undeistlag Marketplace Rules 5605(e)(1)(B), 5635(b)%685(d).

Except as stated above, we have followed and interabntinue to follow the applicable corporate gmance standards under Nas
Marketplace Rules.

ITEM 16H MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.
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PART Il
ITEM 17 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We have elected to provide financial statementsyant to ltem 18.
ITEM 18 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following financial statements are filed astparthis Annual Report on Form Z8-together with the report of the indepen:
auditors:

» Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfging
» Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,881 2017
e Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incoménéo¥ears Ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and
+ Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEaded December 31, 2010, 2011 and
» Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareh’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 20112012
* Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem
ITEM 19 EXHIBITS

The following exhibits are furnished along with aahreport or are incorporated by reference asatdd.

Exhibit
Number Description of Document
1.1 Memorandum and Articles of Association of SolarRmwer Holdings Co., Ltd. (incorporated by referetec&xhibit 3.1 from our
F-1 registration statement (File No. -139258), as amended, initially filed with the Corasidon on December 11, 20(
1.2 Form of Amended and Restated Memorandum and Astamé\ssociation of Solarfun Power Holdings Cod.l{incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 from our F-1 registratiiatement (File No. 33839258), as amended, initially filed with the Coragidn
on December 11, 200
1.3 Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles obd&aton of Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd., as adopie8ecial Resolution
passed on December 18, 2006 and effective on Dearedlh 2006, as amended by Special Resolution gassEebruary 21, 20:
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.3 from 80rF annual report, as amended, initially filedhattte Commission on June 3,
2011)
2.1 Specimen Certificate for Ordinary Shares of Solafwwer Holdings Co., Ltd. (incorporated by refemto Exhibit 4.2 from our
F-1 registration statement (File No. -139258), as amended, initially filed with the Corasidn on December 11, 20(
2.2 Form of American Depositary Receipt of Solarfun Bowoldings Co., Ltd. (incorporated by referenc&xibit 4.1 from our F-1
registration statement (File No. :-139258), as amended, initially filed with the Coragidn on December 11, 20(
2.3 Form of Deposit Agreement Form of Deposit Agreemantong Solarfun Power Holdings Co., Ltd., the dépoy and owners

and holders of the American Depositary Shares (parated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 from our Fegistration statement (File
No. 33:-139258), as amended, initially filed with the Coragidn on December 11, 20(
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Exhibit
Number Description of Document
4.1 2006 Share Incentive Plan (incorporated by refexr¢adxhibit 10.1 from our F-1 registration statemn@-ile No. 333-139258), as
amended, initially filed with the Commission on @etber 11, 200€
4.2 2007 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by refeesto Exhibit 99.2 from our Form S-8 registratioatement (File No. 333-
147644), as amended, initially filed with the Coragidn on November 27, 200
4.3 Form of Employment Agreement between Solarfun Pddadings Co., Ltd. and a Senior Executive Offioéthe Registrant
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 from Bt registration statement (File No. 333-139258)amended, initially filed
with the Commission on December 11, 20
4.4 Equipment Sales Agreement, dated April 30, 2018yden SMIC Energy Technology (Shanghai) and Jiahgsgang Solarfun
Co., Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibitf®m our 20-F annual report, as amended, injtifilikd with the Commission
on May 25, 2010
4.5 Lease Agreement, dated April 2010, between Qidonghdng Electronics Co., Ltd. and Jiangsu Linyanigri@m Co., Ltd.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.35 from 80# annual report, as amended, initially filed witle Commission on May 2
2010)
4.6 Shareholders Agreement between Solarfun Power kigddCo., Ltd. and Hanwha Solar Holdings Co., Lated September 16,
2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2rfieorm ¢-K submitted with the Commission on November 9, 2(
4.7 Share Purchase Agreement between Solarfun PowedirtdslCo., Ltd. and Hanwha Chemical Corporatioted&ugust 3, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 fromrAd-K submitted with the Commission on November 9, 2(
4.8 Share Issuance and Repurchase Agreement betwesmfuBd?ower Holdings Co., Ltd. and Hanwha Solardit@s Co., Ltd. date
September 16, 2010 (incorporated by reference hibix09.3 from Form 6-K submitted with the Comniisson November 9,
2010)
4.9 Purchase Agreement between Ya An Yongwang Silicon IGd. and Jiangsu Linyang Solarfun Co., LtdedaSeptember 15,
2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.18rfrour 20-F annual report, as amended, initiallgdfilvith the Commission on
June 3, 2011
8.1* Subsidiaries of Solarfun Power Holdings Co., |
111 Code of Business Conduct and Ethics of Solarfund?dtoldings Co., Ltd. (incorporated by referenc&ihibit 99.1 from our &
registration statement (File No. -139258), as amended, initially filed with the Coragidn on December 11, 20(
12.1* CEO Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 2002
12.2* CFO Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of theb8ae-Oxley Act of 200z
13.1* CEO and CFO Certification Pursuant to Section 90Bi® SarbaneOxley Act of 2002
23.1* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking
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Exhibit

Number Description of Document

101* Interactive data files pursuant to Rule 405 of Ratipn S-T: (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets aseddmnber 31, 2012 and 2011;
(ii) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Irefon the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 @h@t i) Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended Desmedih 2012, 2011 and 2010; (iv) Consolidated 8tatds of Changes in
Equity for the years ended December 31, 2012, 200112010; (v) Notes to Consolidated Financial $tet&s, tagged as blocks
text; and (vi) Schedule— Condensed Financial Information Of Registri

Note:

* Filed with this Annual Report on Form-F.
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SIGNATURE

The registrant hereby certifies that it meets althe requirements for filing on Form ZD-and that it has duly caused and authorize
undersigned to sign this annual report on its Behal

HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.

/sl Ki-Joon Hong
Name:; Ki-Joon Hong
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

Date: April 29, 2013
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INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfding

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&0d 2017

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomthéo¥ears Ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEaded December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2z

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareh’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2011201~

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem

F-1

Page

F-2

F-4

F-5-F-6

F-8— F-56



Table of Contents

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsheets of Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd. (the “Cormipaas of December 31, 2012 ¢
2011, and the related consolidated statementsropezhensive income, changes in sharehold=yaity, and cash flows for each of the tl
years in the period ended December 31, 2012. THiesacial statements are the responsibility of thempan’s management. C
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebta@asonable assurance about whether the finaptaggments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digidg in the financial statements. An @
also includes assessing the accounting princigded and significant estimates made by managenmemtelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredbove present fairly, in all material respedts, tonsolidated financial position of Han
SolarOne Co., Ltd. at December 31, 2012 and 20id tlee consolidated results of its operations &nddsh flows for each of the three yea
the period ended December 31, 2012, in conformitly W.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@united States), the Company’
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2012, based on the criteria establighéatérnal Control —ntegrated Framewo
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohshe Treadway Commission and our report datedil A9, 2013 expressed
unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP
Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China
April 29, 2013
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO,, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31

Note 2011 2012 2012
(RMB’000} (RMB’000; (UsS¢ 000
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalel 1,976,55! 676,47t 108,58:
Restricted cas 281,62t 150,46: 24,15
Accounts receivabl— net 3 537,54( 956,96¢ 153,60«
Notes receivabl 3 60,20¢ 2,681 43C
Inventories— net 4 684,04¢ 838,72 134,62!
Advance to supplier— net 5 475,64! 166,83t 26,77¢
Other current asse— net 6 528,57 356,78 57,26¢
Deferred tax asse— net 23 264,59( 150,29 24,12
Derivative contract 16 29,09: — —
Amount due from related parti— net 24 241,45 420,61( 67,51:
Total current asse 5,079,322 3,719,84. 597,07¢
Non-current assets:
Long-term prepayment 5 204,57( 184,06! 29,54
Fixed asset— net 7 4,715,96. 4,779,87. 767,22.
Intangible asset— net 8 334,98 335,04 53,77¢
Deferred tax asse— net 23 16,49: 107,30 17,22
Long-term deferred expens 10 49,70: 25,20( 4,04¢
Total nor-current asset 5,321,71 5,431,48! 871,81«
Total assets 10,401,04 9,151,33. 1,468,899
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Shor-term bank borrowing 11 1,764,25 1,162,37; 186,57:
Long-term bank borrowings, current porti 11 242,60 467,20: 74,99:
Accounts payabl 1,024,94 1,061,72: 170,41t
Notes payabl 15 462,60: 314,51 50,48:
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 12 375,23t 400,53 64,29:
Customer deposit 14 84,87: 36,31« 5,82¢
Unrecognized tax bene 23 143,47: 143,47 23,02¢
Derivative contract 16 30,67( 17,311 2,77¢
Amount due to related parti 24 42,34 72,04% 11,56
Total current liabilities 4,170,99 3,675,491 589,95!¢
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term bank borrowing 11 1,352,37: 2,285,101 366,78!
Long-term payabl¢ 22 50,00( 50,00( 8,02¢
Deferred tax liabilities 23 25,387 24,79¢ 3,98(
Convertible bond 21 498,64t 368,59( 59,16:
Total nor-current liabilities 1,926,40! 2,728,49 437,95:
Total liabilities 6,097,40. 6,403,99 1,027,91.
Commitments and contingenci 27

Redeemable ordinary sharei(par value US$0.0001 per share; 20,070,375 and@@(B®5 shares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2011 and 2012, respectiv 20 24 24 4

Shareholders equity
Ordinary shares (par value US$0.0001 per shar80000,000 and 1,000,000,000 shares authorize¢3942232

shares and 423,395,432 shares issued and outglatddecember 31, 2011 and 2012, respecti 31E 31€ 51
Additional paic-in capital 3,996,41i 4,004,19 642,71t
Statutory reserve 18 174,45t 174,45t 28,00:
Retained earnings (accumulated defi 132,42¢ (1,430,43) (229,60()
Accumulated other comprehensive i — (1,219 (197)

Total shareholde’ equity 4,303,61! 2,747,31 440,97:

Total liabilities, redeemable ordinary shares andlsareholders’ equity 10,401,04 9,151,33 1,468,891

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftimsolidated financial statements.
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO,, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Note

Net revenues:
Third parties
Related partie 24

Total net revenue 28
Cost of revenues

Gross profit (loss)

Operating expenses
Selling expense
General and administrative expen
Provision for doubtful accounts receivable and otkeeivable
Research and development exper
Impairment of goodwil 9

Total operating expens:

Operating profit (loss)
Interest expens
Interest incomt
Exchange gains (losse

Changes in fair value of derivative contrg 16
Changes in fair value of conversion feature of avtible bonds 21
Loss on extinguishment of de 21

Other income
Other expense

Income (loss) before income taxe

Income tax (expenses) bene 23

Net income (loss) attributable to Hanwha SolarOne @., Ltd.
shareholders

Net income (loss) attributable to Hanwha SolarOne @., Ltd.
shareholders per share:

Basic 29
Diluted 29
Number of shares used in computation of net incomioss) per share;

Basic 29
Diluted 29

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Foreign currency translation adjustm:

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Hanwh&olarOne Co.,
Ltd. shareholders

For the year ended December 3.

2010

2011

2012

2012

(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’'000) (US$000)
7,072,78°  5832,62  2,639,45: 423,66
475,75¢ 583,85  1,038,92 166,75
754854 641648 _ 3,678,38 590,42
(5,869,50)  (6,633,54)  (4,003,88) (642,66
1,679,04 (217,05) (325,509 (52,24
(269,20 (279,789 (348,569 (55,949
(172,11) (340,409 (278,03)) (44,629
27¢ (56,23 (137,679 (22,099)
(53,500) (68,21) (90,82 (14,579
— (134,73Y) — _
(494,54)) (879,379 (855,09Y) (137,25))
1,184,50.  (1,096,43)  (1,180,60) (189,50
(161,67) (171,059 (299,519 (48,079
6,141 11,76: 15,84 2,54¢
(89,27) (3,965) 8,87t 1,42t
77,53 (70,779 5,32¢ 85¢E
31,62 264,38 (5,697) (914)
— (82,71) (13,276
12,39¢ 5,14¢ 9,26¢ 1,487
(5,909) (14,10 (18,39 (2,957)
1,055,341 (1,075,04)  (1,547,60) (248,40
(297,98)) 144,941 (15,25 (2,449)
757,35’ (930,10  (1,562,85) (250,85)
RMB 2.4: RMB (221 RMB(3.70 RMB (0.59
RMB 2.3¢ RMB (221 RMB (3.70 RMB (0.59
311,263,30 420,325,70 422,167,50 422,167,50
357,272,60 420,325,70 422,167,50 422,167,50
— — (1,219 (197)
757,35’ (930,10  (1,564,07) (251,05))

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO,, LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Note

Cash flows from operating activities:

Consolidated net income (los

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to resthcprovided by (used in)
operating activities

Unrealized loss from derivative contra 1€
Changes in fair value of conversion feature of @tible bonds 21
Loss from disposal of fixed asst

Loss on extinguishment of de 21

Amortization of convertible bonds discot
Depreciation and amortizatic

Impairment of goodwil

Amortization of lon¢-term deferred expen:

©

Stock compensation expen: 19

Write-down of inventorie! 4

Provision for doubtful collection of accounts recdile 3

Reversal of doubtful debt for accounts receiv:

Provision for doubtful collection of advance to pligrs 5

Provision for doubtful collection of other receiVes 6

Provision for doubtful collection of amount duerfra related part 24

Deferred tax (benefit) expen 23

Warranty provisior 13

Warranty settlements and revers 13

Unrecognized tax bene 23
Changes in operating assets and liabilit

Restricted cas

Accounts receivabl

Notes receivabl

Inventories

Advance to suppliers and lc-term prepayment

Other current asse

Intangible assetl 8

Long-term deferred expen:

Long-term payable 22

Amount due from related parti
Accounts payabl

Notes payabli

Accrued expenses and other liabilit
Amount due to related parti
Customer deposit

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of fixed assel
Change in restricted ca

Net cash used in investing activiti

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended December 3:

2010 2011 2012 2012

(RMB'000) (RMB’000) (RMB’'000) (US$000)
757,35 (930,109  (1,562,85)  (250,85()
6,77( 1,021 15,73: 2,52¢
(31,629 (264,38 5,69: 914
957 1,714 8,497 1,36¢

— — 82,71 13,27¢
60,40¢ 75,59t 88,50 14,20°
187,58° 218,64 373,15 59,89¢
— 134,73! — —

7,19¢ 11,40¢ 21,57 3,46:
31,96 38,33 7,78¢ 1,24¢
134,48 583,09° 326,05 52,33
— 1,77¢ 87,62t 14,06¢

(279) — — —
117 287,74 170,01 27,28¢

— 54,45¢ 50,04¢ 8,03:

— — 15,96( 2,56
(32,055  (173,30) 22,89: 3,67t
67,61¢ 64,73( 33,10¢ 5,31¢
(9,386) (34,28¢) (17,37 (2,789)
116,08 — — —
(5,29¢) (28,699 12,37¢ 1,987
(695,04 743,48 (508,27 (81,589
(10,000) (50,20%) 57,52 9,23¢
(141,28  (476,37) (480,729 (77,16
(178,701 85,88: 159,301 25,56¢
(75,11 (206,409 135,52 21,75¢
(1,679 (134,719 (7,102) (1,140
— (2,322) (1,48/) (23¢)

— 50,00 — —
(30,36)  (198,63)  (19511) (31,319
(12,257) 121,86¢ 175,12 28,11
(5,656) 259,97 (126,97¢ (20,38
154,68( (60,025) 17,34° 2,78¢
(3,587) 29,15¢ 29,70: 4,76¢
(26,147 51,33 (48,557 (7,799
266,76 255,49  (1,052,21) (168,89)
(634,50() (2,400,48) (597,979 (95,98
(34,659 (37,44%) 63,46 10,18¢
(669,159 (2,437,92)  (534,51) (85,79
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO,, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — CONT'D

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of redeemable ordinary Siparsuant to the

Share Issuance and Repurchase Agreement with HaBolha
Holdings Co., Ltd

Payment for repurchase of redeemable ordinary shenech were issuec

pursuant to the Share Issuance and Repurchasemegnégvith
Hanwha Solar Holdings Co., Lt

Net proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares toMHa Solar Holdings

Co,, Ltd.
Net proceeds from issuance of ordinary sh
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti
Proceeds from sh¢-term borrowings
Repayment of shc-term borrowings
Change in restricted ca
Repurchase of convertible bor
Repurchase of redeemable ordinary sh
Proceeds from lor-term borrowings
Repayment of lor-term borrowings
Arrangement fee for lor-term loans
Arrangement fee for sh-term loans

Net cash provided by financing activiti

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivake
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Interest paic
Income taxes pai
Realized gain (loss) from derivative contre
Supplemental schedule of r-cash activities

Acquisition of fixed assets included in accountggide, accrued expens

and other liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftimsolidated financial statements.
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Note

For the year ended December 3:

2010 2011 2012 2012

(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)

26 21 9 — —
26 — (16) — —
17 1,059,81: — — —
17 521,30 — — —
12,16¢ 1,13¢ — —
1,098,91  3,322,48  2,661,17, 427,14
(1,184,75)  (1,877,14) (3,263,05) (523,750

— (115,00() 55,32 8,88(
21 — — (299,27) (48,039
20 — (18) — —
—  1,594,97 1,369,371 219,79
(120,000 (350,000  (212,03) (34,039
— (42,58¢) (18,35 (2,946)
— (5,625) (6,50)) (1,049

1,387,45  2,528,20: 286,65: 46,01
985,05 345,77¢  (1,300,07) (208,67)
645,72(  1,630,77  1,976,55' 317,25
1,630,77  1,976,55 676,47t  108,58:
89,85t 54,82 164,53 26,41

160,61 152,68: 47,21: 7,57¢

84,30 (69,75) 21,05¢ 3,38(
48,61 446,31 (159,459 (25,59
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Note

Balance as of January 1, 2C
Exercise of stock options and vesting of restricted
stock units 19
Settlement of stock options exercised with share
held by depository bar
Shar-based compensatic 19
Shares issued to depository bi
Net proceeds from issuance of ordinary shart

Hanwha Solar Holdings Co., L 17
Net proceeds from issuance of ordinary shart

public 17
Net income for the perio
Appropriation of statutory reserv 18

Balance as of December 31, 2(

Exercise of stock options and vesting of restricte
stock units 19
Settlement of stock options exercised with shares
held by depository bar
Shar-based compensatic 19
Shares issued to depository bi
Net loss for the perio
Appropriation of statutory reserv 18

Balance as of December 31, 2(

Vesting of restricted stock uni
Settlement of restricted stock units vested with
shares held by depository be
Shar-based compensatic 19
Shares issued to depository b
Net loss for the perio
Other comprehensive lo

Balance as of December 31, 2(

Balance as of December 31, 2012, in '000

HANWHA SOLARONE CO,, LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’' EQUITY

Accumulated

other

Additional Retained earning: comprehensivi Total

Number of shareholders
ordinary paid-in Statutory (accumulated loss-foreign
shares Amount capital reserves deficit) currency equity
(RMB’000,  (RMB’000;  (RMB’'000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)

290,708,73 227 2,331,79 69,56« 410,06! — 2,811,65:
1,762,501 — 12,16¢ — — — 12,16¢
(1,762,50i) — = = — — —
— — 31,96¢ — — — 31,96
1,500,00! 1 (2) — — — —
82,436,69 55 1,059,75 — — — 1,059,81:
46,000,00 31 521,27: — — — 521,30:
— — — — 757,35 — 757,35
— — — 100,43t (100,43¢) — —
420,645,43 31« 3,956,95: 170,00( 1,066,98 — 5,194,25:
2,358,20! 1 1,13¢ — — — 1,13t
(2,358,20i) — — — — — —
— — 38,33: — — — 38,33
1,750,001 — — — — — —
— — — — (930,109 — (930,109
— — — 4,45¢ (4,45€) — —
422,395,43 31t 3,996,41: 174,45¢ 132,42t — 4,303,61!
1,090,611 1 (1) — — — —
(1,090,61i) — — — — — —
— — 7,782 — — — 7,782
1,000,00! — — — — — —
— — — — (1,562,85) — (1,562,85)
_ _ — = — (1,219 (1,219
423,395,43 31€ 4,004,19 174,45¢ (1,430,43) (1,219 2,747,31
51 642,71¢ 28,002 (229,600) (197) 440,974

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO,, LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2012 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 202011 AND 2012

1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd. (the “Companwas incorporated under the laws of the Caymandslam June 12, 2006 and its principal act
is investment holding. The principal activitiesitsf subsidiaries are described in the table belthe Company together with its subsidia
listed below are referred to as the “Group” heritara

In May 2010, the Group established Hanwha SolactEtePower Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Solar Enginegf). The registered capital of Sa
Engineering is RMB50,000,000, contributed by theo@ on May 25, 2010. The principal activity of Solngineering is to provic
construction services to build solar power systambke People’s Republic of China (“PRC” or “Chipa”

On April 15, 2011, the Group established two whallyned subsidiaries, Hanwha SolarOne (Nantong) ad., (“SolarOne Nantong”anc
Nantong Hanwha Import & Export Co., Lt¢“‘Nantong Hanwha I&E") The registered capital of SolarOne Nantong and dtaptHanwha &t
is US$40,000,000 and RMB5,000,000, respectivelyickvinas been received as of December 31, 2012.pfiheipal activity of SolarOr
Nantong is to develop, manufacture and sell phdtaio(‘PV”) products to both domestic and overseas customarstoNg Hanwha 1&E
mainly engaged in import and export business. Swlar Nantong and Nantong Hanwha I&E have not yetngented operations as
December 31, 2012.

On April 26, 2012, the Group established a whollyaed subsidiary, Hanwha Solar Canada Inc. (“Solanada”).The registered capital
Solar Canada is Canadian Dollar (“CADR¥#30,000, which has been received as of Decemb&(3P. The principal activity of Solar Canad
to sell PV products in Canada.

On May 1, 2012, the Group acquired 100% equityr@dis in Hanwha Solar Australia Pty Ltd. (“Solarsfralia”) from Hanwha Corporatic
with a total cash consideration of Australian Dof&AUD”) 16,732, which was the total carrying value of tlsseds and liabilities in So
Australia at the point of acquisition. Solar Auravas established in January 2012 by Hanwha ResslAustralia Pty Ltd., a whollgwnec
subsidiary of Hanwha Corporation. Before the adtjais the registered and paid-capital of Solar Australia was AUD50,000. Suhsaat tc
the acquisition, the Company invested additionalD¥80,000 in Solar Australia. As of December 31, 20the registered capital of Sc
Australia was AUD500,000, which has been receivedfdDecember 31, 2012. The principal activity ofe8 Australia is to sell PV products
Australia.
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO,, LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2012 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 202011 AND 2012

1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION (CONT’D)

As of December 31, 2012, the Company’s subsidiangaded the following entities:

Date of incorporatiol

Place of

establishment/ incorporation/

Percentage

shareholding

Name of subsidiar acquisition establishmer ownershig Principal activities
Hanwha SolarOne Investment Holding Ltd. (“Solar@meestment”) May 17, 2006 British Virgin 10(%  Investment holding
Islands
Hanwha SolarOne Hong Kong Limited (“SolarOne HK") May 16, 2007 Hong Kong 10% Investment holding and international
procurements/sale
Hanwha SolarOne U.S.A. Inc. (“SolarOne USA”) (pmsly known as September 18, 2007 United States « 10(%  Sales in USA
Solarfun USA, Inc.)
America
Hanwha SolarOne Gmbl}* SolarOne Gmb”) February 14, 200 Germany 10(%  Representation offic
Solar Canad April 26,2012 Canade 10(% International sale
Solar Australie May 1, 201z Australia 10% International sale
SolarOne Nantong April 15, 2011 PRC 10%  Development, manufacturing and sales of
PV products to both domestic and overseas
customer
Hanwha SolarOne (Qidong) Co., Ltd. (“SolarOne Q@idn August 27, 2004 PRC 10(%  Development, manufacturing and sales of
PV products to both domestic and overseas
customer
Hanwha SolarOne (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (“SolarOnen§hai”) previously March 29, 2006 PRC 10%  Sales of PV products to PRC customers
known as Shanghai Linyang Solar Technology Co..)|
Hanwha Solar Engineering Research and Developmemte€Co., Ltd. April 9, 2007 PRC 10(%  Research and development
(“Solar R&L")
Hanwha SolarOne Technology Co., Lt*SolarOne Technolo(”) July 31, 2007 PRC 10C%  Manufacturing of silicon ingots and wafe
Solar Engineering May 25, 2010 PRC 10C%  Provide construction services to build solar
power systems and sales of PV products in
the PRC
Nantong Hanwha I&E April 15, 2011 PRC 10C%  Import and export busine
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO,, LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2012 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 202011 AND 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentatiol

The consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with U.S. generally accepted accogmrinciples (‘US GAAP”).
Principles of Consolidatior

The consolidated financial statements include thantial statements of the Company and its subigdiaAll significant intereompan’
transactions and balances between the Companysasubisidiaries are eliminated upon consolidation.

Comparative Information

Certain items in the consolidated financial statethehave been reclassified to conform to the ctiryeyars presentation to facilite
comparison.

Foreign Currency

The functional currency of the Company and eacltsofubsidiaries is Renminbi as determined basethercriteria of ASC 830F-oreigr
Currency Translatiorexcept SolarOne USA, Solar Australia and Solar @anahich have determined their functional curretwybe thei
respective local currency. The reporting currenfythe Company is also Renminbi. Transactions denated in foreign currencies
remeasured into the functional currency at the amgk rates prevailing on the transaction date®ifioicurrency denominated financial as
and liabilities are remeasured at the balance gfeget exchange rate. Exchange gains and lossesepagately reported in the consolid:
statements of comprehensive income. The Company thecaverage exchange rate prevailing during s gnd the exchange rate at
balance sheet date to translate its operatingtsesndl financial position, respectively. The raagltranslation adjustments are recorded in «
comprehensive loss.

Convenience Translation

Amounts in United States dollars are presentedHerconvenience of the reader and are translatédeanoon buying rate of US$1.0C
RMB6.2301 on December 31, 2012, the last businagsim fiscal year 2012, in the City of New York foable transfers of Renminbi
certified for customs purposes by the Federal ResBank of New York. No representation is made that Renminbi amounts could hi
been, or could be, converted into United Statekadoéat such rate.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial st&tets in conformity with US GAAP requires managetrtermake estimates and assumpt
that affect the reported amount of assets anditiabiand disclosures of contingent assets ariiliias at the date of the financial statem
and the reported amounts of revenues and expeunseg the periods. Actual results could differ frohese estimates. Significant estimates
assumptions reflected in the Grosifinancial statements include, but are not limiiedprovision for doubtful debts, provision forvathce ti
suppliers, provision for warranty, inventory wridewn, useful lives of fixed assets and intangildsess, impairment of fixed assets, intanc
assets and goodwill, valuation allowances on defetax assets, stoddased compensation expenses, fair values of deevedntracts and fe
value of conversion feature of convertible bonds.
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2012 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 202011 AND 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, vagiploximates fair value, and consist of cash ondhand bank deposits, which
unrestricted as to withdrawal and use and havénalighaturities less than 90 days.

Restricted Casl

Restricted cash represents amounts held by a lms&arity for letters of credit facilities, noteayable and bank borrowings and, there
are not available for the Growupuse. Changes in restricted cash that relateetpuirchase of raw materials or sale of goods assifled withi
cash flows from operating activities, changes strieted cash that relate to the purchase of fixegkets are classified within cash flows f
investing activities and changes in restricted dhsi relate to bank borrowings are classified imittash flows from financing activities. T
restriction on cash is expected to be releasedmiitle next twelve months.

Accounts and Notes Receivak

Accounts and notes receivable are recognized amgdat original invoiced amounts less an alloveafar potential uncollectible amounts.
allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded inpleiod in which collection is determined to be pobbable based on historical experie
account balance aging, prevailing economic conaitiand an assessment of specific evidence indicatiubled collection. A receivable
written off after all collection efforts have cedse

Debt Issuance Cost

Debt issuance costs represent the incurred coststlgi attributable to the issuance of the conbatibonds. These costs are deferred
amortized ratably using the effective interest rodtfrom the debt issuance date over the life ofcthrevertible bonds. Upon the conversio
the bonds, the related debt issuance costs wikbéted to shareholders’ equity.

Arrangement Fee:

Arrangement fees represent the incurred coststljirettributable to the bank borrowings. These s@st deferred and amortized ratably u
the effective interest method over the term oflihek borrowings.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or etavialue. Cost is determined by the weighawdrage method. Raw material cost is base
purchase costs while work-jprogress and finished goods comprise direct médewdérect labor and an allocation of manufacturingrhea
costs.

F-11



Table of Contents

HANWHA SOLARONE CO,, LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2012 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 202011 AND 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost and are depreugitegithe straight-line method over the estimaiszful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 20 years

Plant and machiner 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and office equipme 5 years

Computer softwar 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Leasehold improvemen Over the shorter of the lease term or their estohatseful live:

Repair and maintenance costs are charged to expdwseincurred, whereas the cost of renewals attdrb@ents that extend the useful life
fixed assets are capitalized as additions to thete@ assets. Retirement, sale and disposal ofsaase recorded by removing the cost
accumulated depreciation with any resulting gaitoes reflected in the consolidated statement®ofzehensive income.

Cost incurred in constructing new facilities, irgilug progress payments, interest and other colstsng to the construction are capitalized
transferred to fixed assets upon completion andedégtion commences when the asset is availablgsfortended use.

Interest costs are capitalized if they are incutedng the acquisition, construction or productmia qualifying asset and such costs ¢
have been avoided if expenditures for the assets hat been made. Capitalization of interest costamences when the activities to pre
the asset are in progress and expenditures anawing costs are being incurred. Interest costsapéalized until the assets are ready for
intended use. Total interest costs incurred du@fg0, 2011 and 2012 were RMB 167,054,000, RMB23&)@® and RMB340,583,0
(US$54,667,341) and interest capitalized during02@011 and 2012 amounted to RMB5,377,000, RMB5R@® and RMB41,068,0
(US$6,591,869), respectively.

Intangible Asset:
Land use rights

Land use rights represent amounts paid for thet tigluse land in the PRC and are recorded at psechast less accumulated amortiza
Amortization is provided on a straight-line basigothe lives of the land use rights agreementsctwhave terms of tenure and weighted
average amortization period of 50 years.

Goodwill

Gooduwill represents the excess of the purchase prier the amounts assigned to the fair valuesftsets acquired and the liabilities asst
of the acquired business.

Goodwill is reviewed at least annually for impaimheor earlier if there is an indication of impagnt, in accordance with ASC 358podwill
and Other Intangible AssefBhe Group assigns and assesses goodwill for impatrat the reporting unit level.
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO,, LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2012 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 202011 AND 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Goodwill (cont'd)

The performance of the impairment test involvewa-dtep process. The first step of the impairmentitestlves comparing the fair value
the reporting unit with its carrying amount, indlogl goodwill. Fair value is primarily determined lspmputing the future discounted ¢
flows expected to be generated by the reporting ifrthe reporting unis carrying value exceeds its fair value, goodwidlynibe impaired.
this occurs, the Group performs the second stéipeojoodwill impairment test to determine the antainmpairment loss.

The fair value of the reporting unit is allocatedts assets and liabilities in a manner similaa fourchase price allocation in order to deter
the implied fair value of the reporting umitgoodwill. If the implied goodwill fair value ise$s than its carrying value, the differenc
recognized an impairment loss.

In accordance with ASC 350, the Group assigned assgssed goodwill for impairment at the reporting level. A reporting unit is ¢
operating segment or one level below the operategment. The Group has determined that goodwilhig allocable to one of our reporti
units, SolarOne Technology. As of December 31, 2@4 Group performed impairment tests on goodwilh twostep process. The Grc
determined the fair value of the reporting uniingsihe income approach based on the discountectidpiture cash flows associated with
reporting unit. The discounted cash flows for thparting unit were based on fiyear projections. Cash flow projections were basegas
experience, actual operating results and managésneest estimates about future developments, asawalertain market assumptions. C
flow after the fifth year were estimated using mrti@al value calculation, which considered termivalue growth rate at 3%, considering long
term revenue growth rates for entities in the rafgévndustries in the PRC. The discount rate of@gmately 16% was used in the valuati
which reflect the market assessment of the riskgifip to the Group’s industry and is based onwleightedaverage cost of capital for tl
particular reporting unit.

The Group recognized nil, RMB134,735,000, and hi§oodwill impairment expense for the years endettdber 31, 2010, December
2011 and December 31, 2012, respectively.

Impairment of Lon¢-Lived Assets

The Group evaluates its lotiged assets or asset groups, including intangéssets with finite lives, for impairment wheneveems o
changes in circumstances (such as a significargradwchange to market conditions that will imphetfuture use of the assets) indicate the
carrying amount of a group of lodiged assets may not be recoverable. When thesetewecur, the Group evaluates for impairmer
comparing the carrying amount of the assets tduhee undiscounted net cash flows expected toltrésum the use of the assets and t
eventual disposition. If the sum of the expectediscounted cash flows is less than the carryinguaof the assets, the Group wc
recognize an impairment loss based on the excebg afarrying amount of the asset group over its/idue.

During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2B&Xignificant decline in the market price of ¢ products provided indication that
carrying value of its londjved assets, including fixed assets and intangalskets, may not be recoverable. As of Decembe2@1, and 201
based on the impairment assessment performedythetthe expected future undiscounted cash floas fthe longlived assets exceeded
carrying amount; therefore, the Company concluded darrying amount of the loriyed assets is recoverable, and no impairment i
recognized.
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO,, LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2012 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 202011 AND 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments include cash and cash ecqerivs| restricted cash, accounts and notes recejvatxtounts and notes payable, skemt-
bank borrowings, amounts due to/from related psrtiengterm bank borrowings and convertible bonds. Theyoay amounts of the:
financial instruments other than long-term bank®aings and convertible bonds approximate theiralues due to the shagrm maturity ©
these instruments. The lotwgrm bank borrowings also approximate their failugasince they bear interest rates which approxannaarke
interest rates.

The conversion option was bifurcated from the cotible bonds at its fair value and the residualieahllocated to the convertible bonds
accreted to the redemption amount using the efiedtiterest method. The Group determined the falues of the conversion option us
binomial model with the assistance of an indepehtterd-party valuation firm.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2012, the fair valukaarying value of the convertible bonds is atofes:
As of December 31

Note 2011 2012 2012
(RMB'000,  (RMB'000]  (USY000]

Fair value* 532,50t 486,76 78,13:
Carrying value 30 498,64t 368,59( 59,16:

* The fair value of the convertible bonds is deterdirusing binomial model with reference to markebtquon the trade price of 1
convertible bonds as of December 31, 2011 and

Financial Instruments — Embedded Foreign Currencydbivatives

Certain of the Groug' sales contracts are denominated in a currencghwidiinot the functional currency of either of fyeties to the contre
nor the currency in which the products being sakel imutinely denominated in international commerecordingly, the contracts conti
embedded foreign currency forward contracts whiehraquired to be separately accounted for in @zswre with ASC 815-1M@erivative:
and Hedging: OverallThe embedded foreign currency derivatives are s¢gigraccounted for and measured at fair value ahiginges in fa
value reported as “Changes in fair value of deiveatontracts’in the consolidated statements of comprehensiveniec Embedded forei
currency derivatives are presented as currentsassétbilities. The Group does not enter intohsderivative contracts for speculative purp:
and hedge accounting has not been applied.

Financial Instruments — Foreign Currency Derivativ€ontracts, Commodity Contracts and Interest Ratgep Contract

The Groups primary objective for holding foreign currencyrigative contracts, commaodity derivative contraatsl interest rate swap conti
is to manage its foreign currency risks principalising from sales contracts denominated in Eutesstability of the purchase price for sil
and aluminum (which are two kinds of raw materiaiguired in the production of PV products), andittterest rate risk for the lorigrm ban
borrowings. The Group records these derivativarumsents as current assets or current liabilitiesasared at fair value.
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO,, LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2012 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 202011 AND 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Financial Instruments — Foreign Currency Derivativ€ontracts, Commodity Contracts and Interest Ratga® Contract (cont'd)

During the years ended December 31, 2010, 201128ad, the Group entered into crazsrency exchange rate agreements to receive
and sell other currencies, commodity agreemengaitohase silver and aluminum, and an interests@tm agreement to pay fixed interest
rather than floating rate. Changes in the fair gahf these derivative instruments are recognizedhim consolidated statements
comprehensive income. The Group has elected napply hedge accounting to these derivative instnimeAs of December 31, 2012,
Group had outstanding crossfrency exchange rate contracts with notional artsowf Euro44,000,000 (2011: Euro50,000,000)
US$46,250,000 (2011: US$120,000,000), commoditytracts with a quantity of 140,000 ounces of sil{2011: 330,000 ounces) and nil
aluminum (2011: 4,000 ounces), and an interestswatgp contract with notional amount of US$50,000,011: US$50,000,000). The Grt
estimates the fair value of its foreign currenaymeodity and interest rate swap derivatives usipgi@ng model based on market observ
inputs.

Revenue Recognitio

The Groups primary business activity is to produce and B¥limodules. The Group periodically, upon speciglest from customers, sells
cells and silicon ingots. The Group records revaelsgted to the sale of PV modules, PV cells alicosi ingots when the criteria of ASC 605-
10, Revenue Recognition: Overake met. These criteria include all of the follogipersuasive evidence of an arrangement exidisgdehas
occurred; the sales price is fixed or determinadtet collectability is reasonably assured.

More specifically, the Group’sales arrangements are evidenced by framewak agleements and/or by individual sales agreeneméscl
transaction. The shipping terms of the Group’s salerangements are generally “Cost, Insurance aeyh’ (“CIF”) and “Free ol
Board” (“FOB”) shipping point whereby the customer takes title asglimes the risks and rewards of ownership gftheéucts upon delive
to the shipper. The customer bears all costs @kd of loss or damage to the goods from that pbintler some sales arrangements, the C
requires its customers to prepay prior to shipméné Company performs ongoing credit assessmesaaif customer, including reviewing
customers latest financial information and historical payrmeecord and performing necessary due diligencéetermine acceptable cre
terms. In instances where longer credit terms aamtgd to certain customers, the timing of reveragognition was not impacted as
Company has historically been able to collect uritleroriginal payment terms without making conaassi Other than warranty obligatic
the Group does not have any commitments or obtigatio deliver additional products or serviceshi ¢ustomers. Based on the above
Group records revenue related to product sales dpbivery of the product to the shipper, assumilhgther revenue recognition criteria
met.

Payments received from customers for shipping ardllng costs are included in net revenues. Shippimd handling costs relating to si
and purchases are included in selling expenses@stdf revenue, respectively.

The Group entered into a processing service arraegeto process PV cells into PV modules. For Hasvice arrangement, the Grt
“purchases” PV cells from the customer and conteampeously agrees to “sellf’ specified quantity of PV modules back to the saostome!
The quantity of PV modules sold back to the custsmeder these processing arrangements is cortsigterthe amount of PV cells purcha:
from the customer based on current production cmiwe rates. In accordance with ASC 845-A8¢ounting for
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Revenue Recognition (co'd)

Purchases and Sales of Inventory with the Same t€manrty,the Group records the amount of revenue on theseegsing transactions ba
on the amount received for PV modules sold lessatheunt paid for the PV cells purchased from th&taer. These sales are subject to
the above-noted criteria relating to revenue reitimgn

The Company recognizes revenue related to long-teotar systems integration services on the pergermthcompletion method. Tl
Company estimates its revenues by using the cestgbmethod, whereby it derives a ratio by compatite costs incurred to date to the 1
costs expected to be incurred on the project. Toampgany applies the ratio computed in the costetst- analysis to the contract price
determine the estimated revenues earned in eadbdpéy contract may beegarded as substantially completed if remainingtca@re nc
significant in amount. When the Company determitines total estimated costs will exceed total reesnunder a contract, it records a
accordingly. Unbilled amounts are included in thasolidated balance sheets as “unbilled solar systetegration revenue”.

Revenue is recognized net of all value-added tarpssed by governmental authorities and collectethfcustomers concurrent with revenue
producing transactions. The Group does not offeplicit or explicit rights of return, regardless wfhether goods were shipped to
distributors or shipped directly to the end uségothan due to product defect.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue includes direct and indirect préidaccosts.
Research and Development Co

Research and development costs are expensed a®adhcu
Advertising Expenditure:

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred ara iacluded in “selling expenses.Advertising expenses were RMB742,C
RMB13,087,000 and RMB29,255,000 (US$4,695,751}Heryears ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 284 atively.

Warranty Cost

The Group primarily provides standard warranty cage on PV modules sold to customers. Before 20i2standard warranty provides fc
2 to 5-year warranty against technical defect9)-gelar warranty against a decline from initial poweneration capacity of more than 10%
a 20 to 25year warranty against a decline from initial povgemeration capacity of more than 20%. From JanliaB012, the stande
warranty provides a 12-year warranty against te@indefects, and a 2gear linear warranty, which guarantees: 1) no thas 96% of th
initial power generation capacity for PV moduledhie first year, 2) an annual output degradationcomore than 0.7% thereafter, and 3) by
end of the 25th year, the actual power output sfeto less than 82% of initial power generatiquacity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Warranty Cost (cont'd)

The estimate of the amount of warranty obligatisrpiimarily based on the following consideratioh$:the results of technical analys
including simulation tests performed on the produmt an industryecognized external certification body as wellrgsiinally developed testi
procedures conducted by the Company’s engineedamt2) the Compang’historical warranty claims experience, 3) theramly accru:
practices of other companies in the industry thatddpce PV products that are comparable in engingediesign, raw material input
functionality to the products, and which sell protduto a similar class of customers, and 4) thesebgal failure rate and future costs to sel
failed products. The results of the technical asedysupport the future operational efficiency ef v modules at levels significantly above
minimum guaranteed levels over the respective wiyrnaeriods. The estimate of warranty costs arecségfl by the estimated and actual pra
failure rates, the costs to repair or replace daileoducts and potential service and delivery cimstisrred in correcting a product failure. Ba
on the above considerations and managemaiility and intention to provide repairs, replaeats or refunds for defective products, the G
accrues for warranty costs for the 2 toyE2ar warranty against technical defects based oroflBévenue for PV modules. No warranty 1
accrual has been recorded for the 10-year or 2ZZbtgear warranties for decline from initial power geateon capacity because the Gr
determined the likelihood of claims arising fronesle warranties to be remote based on internal xednal testing of the PV modules
strong quality control procedures in the productiacess. The basis for the warranty accrual véllréviewed periodically based on ac
experience. The Group does not sell extended wgrcaverage that is separately priced or optional.

Government Grants

Government grants received by the Company conbistrestricted grants and subsidies. The amoustici government grants are determ
solely at the discretion of the relevant governnarihorities and there is no assurance that theg3nall continue to receive these governn
grants in the future. Government grants are reeegiwhen all the conditions attached to the graat® been met, and the grants are rece
For the government grants that is of a non-opagatiature and with no further conditions to be ntleé amounts are recorded as a nol
operating income by offsetting to its operating @xgpes when received; whereas for the governmentsgrath certain operating conditions,
amounts are recorded as liabilities when receivetvell be recorded as an operating income wherctimgitions are met.

During the years ended December 31, 2010, 201128i@, the Group recorded RMB18,755,000, RMB14,43Y,6nd RMB25,911,0(
(US$4,159,002), respectively, of government subsidis an offset to its operating expenses, betla@se government grants were receivec
to the reason that the Group qualifies as a “higth mew technology enterpris@i Jiangsu Province in the PRC. During the yeardee
December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, the Group ret&¥4B9,595,000, nil and nil, respectively, as reimgzment for interest expense incu
for imported equipment, which are recorded as othesme. The government grants recorded in operakpense or other income are
subject to adjustment and do not have any restnistas to the use of funds.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2012, the Group recoRIB50,000,000 and RMB50,000,000 (US$8,025,5538pectively, of governme
grants received as long-term payable because thepGras not fulfilled the conditions required bg dovernment.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Accounting for Income Taxes and Uncertain Tax Pasis

The Group accounts for income taxes in accordarite ASC 740,Accounting for Income Taxednder this method, deferred tax assets
liabilities are determined based on the differebeeveen the financial reporting and tax bases sétasand liabilities using enacted tax r
that will be in effect in the period in which théfdrences are expected to reverse. The Group dsawaluation allowance to offset defe
tax assets if, based on the weight of availabldenge, it is more-likely-thanet that some portion, or all, of the deferred aasets will not t
realized. The effect on deferred taxes of a cham¢gex rates is recognized in income in the pethat includes the enactment date.

The Group applies ASC 740-18¢counting for Uncertainty in Income Taxegyich clarifies the accounting for uncertainty ntome taxes t
prescribing the recognition threshold a tax positi® required to meet before being recognized & fthancial statements. The Group
elected to classify interest and/or penalties egldb an uncertain position, if and when requieesipart of “other operating expensés'the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Value-Added Tax (“VAT")

In accordance with the relevant tax laws in the PRET is levied on the invoiced value of sales amgayable by the purchaser. The Grot
required to remit the VAT it collects to the taxtlaarity, but may deduct the VAT it has paid on #llg purchases. To the extent the Group
more than collected, the difference representd & A& recoverable balance at the balance sheet date

Leases

Leases are classified at the inception date asregtitapital lease or an operating lease. Forabgek, a lease is a capital lease if any ¢
following conditions exist: a) ownership is transésl to the lessee by the end of the lease terrthedsg is a bargain purchase option; ¢
lease term is at least 75% of the propertystimated remaining economic life; or d) the pnévalue of the minimum lease payments a
beginning of the lease term is 90% or more of #ievialue of the leased property to the lessohairiception date. A capital lease is accot
for as if there was an acquisition of an assetamnthcurrence of an obligation at the inceptionthaf lease. All other leases are accounted 1
operating leases wherein rental payments are egfdens a straighiine basis over the periods of their respectivedsaRental expenses w
RMB9,400,000, RMB10,270,000 and RMB12,787,000 (U8%2,455) for the years ended December 31, 20101 20d 2012, respective
The Group had no capital leases during any of éneg@s stated herein.

Net Income (Loss) Per Shat

Net income (loss) per share is calculated in aamwrd with ASC 2€-10, Earnings Per ShareBasic income (loss) per ordinary shar
computed by dividing income attributable to holdefordinary shares by the weightaderage number of ordinary shares outstanding g
the period. Diluted income (loss) per ordinary shegflects the potential dilution that could ocdlusecurities or other contracts to is
ordinary shares were exercised or converted irdmary shares. Ordinary shares issuable upon tineecsion of convertible bonds are inclu
in the computation of diluted income (loss) perioady share on an “if-convertedjasis, when the impact is dilutive. Dilutive ordiy
equivalent shares consist of ordinary shares issugion the exercise of
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Net Income (Loss) Per Share (ccd)

outstanding share options and restricted stoclsuBitdinary share equivalents are excluded fronctimputation of diluted income (loss)
share if their effects would be anti-dilutive.

Stock Compensatio

Stock awards granted to employees and non-emplogeesaccounted for under ASC 718-Bhare-Based Paymerand ASC 5050,
Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issue@®ther Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Congimt with Selling, Goods or Servic
respectively.

In accordance with ASC 718-10, all grants of stigotons to employees are recognized in the finduistédements based on their grdate fai
values. The Group has elected to recognize compensaxpense using the straiglte method for all share options granted with B
conditions that have a graded vesting schedule.

ASC 71840 requires forfeitures to be estimated at the tifngrant and revised, if necessary, in subsegpenobds if actual forfeitures diff
from initial estimates. Shatgased compensation expense was recorded net ofagsti forfeitures such that expense was recordgdfor
those share-based awards that are expected to vest.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In July 2012, the FASB issued ASU No. 2012-02 (“A8012-02"), Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for linpeent , which is
intended to reduce the cost and complexity of perfiog the impairment test for indefinitered intangible assets other than goodwill
providing entities an option to perform a qualitatassessment to determine whether further quawgitampairment testing is necessary. I
entity believes, as a result of its qualitativeeassnent, that it is more-likely-tharot that an indefinite lived intangible asset ipaired, th
guantitative impairment test is required. Otherwise further testing is required. This standardffective for annual and interim impairm
tests performed for fiscal years beginning aftept&mber 15, 2012, with early adoption permittede Wompany will adopt ASU 201@2
beginning January 1, 2013 and does not expectdbjgtian to have a material impact on its consoiddinancial statements and disclosures.

In January 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-0AS{J 2013-01"), Clarifying the Scope of Disclosures about Offsgttissets ar
Liabilities , which clarifies that the scope of Accounting Skamls Update No. 2011%, Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Litéd
would apply to derivatives including bifurcated esdded derivatives, repurchase agreements and eenegrsrchase agreements, and sect
borrowing and securities lending transactions #nateither offset in accordance with Section 2142®@r Section 815-1@5 or are subject tc
master netting arrangement or similar agreement) 2813901 is effective for annual periods beginning orafter January 1, 2013 and inte
periods within those annual reports. Entities stiquiovide the disclosures required by this ASUastectively for all comparative peric
presented. The Company will adopt ASU 2@iI3beginning January 1, 2013 and does not expeadbption to have a material impact ol
consolidated financial statements and disclosures.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-02SU 2013-02"), Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumdlddhe
Comprehensive Incomevhich requires an entity to provide informatidsoat the amounts reclassified out of accumulatedratomprehensi
income by component. In addition, an entity is ieggito
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Recent Accounting Pronouncements (c(d)

present, either on the face of the statement wheténcome is presented or in the notes, signifiemmounts reclassified out of accumul:
other comprehensive income by the respective temas of net income but only if the amount reclasgifs required under U.S. GAAP to
reclassified to net income in its entirety in tlaeng reporting period. For other amounts that ateeguired under U.S. GAAP to be reclassi
in their entirety to net income, an entity is reqdito crosseference to other disclosures required under G/AAP that provide addition
detail about those amounts. For public entitieis, $kandard is effective prospectively for repagtperiods beginning after December 15, 2
The Company will adopt ASU 201 beginning January 1, 2013 and does not expecadbption to have a material impact on its codatdi
financial statements and disclosures.

Concentration of Risks
Concentration of credit risk

Assets that potentially subject the Group to sigaift concentration of credit risk are primarilyshaand cash equivalents, accounts receiv
advances made to suppliers and long-term prepagment

The Group has RMB600,144,000 (US$96,329,754) off eesl bank deposits in the PRC, which constituuaB9% of total cash and ci
equivalents. Historically, deposits in Chinese lzamke secured due to the state policy on protecéppsitors’interests. However, Chi
promulgated a new Bankruptcy Law in August 2006 tizane into effect on June 1, 2007, which contairseparate article expressly sta
that the State Council promulgates implementatieasures for the bankruptcy of Chinese banks basé#ueoBankruptcy Law when necess
Under the new Bankruptcy Law, a Chinese bank caimtgabankruptcy. In addition, since Chisaoncession to the World Trade Organiz:
(“WTQ"), foreign banks have been gradually permitted to apein China which has led to increased competfitorChinese banks. Furth
the global financial crisis arising in the thirdagter of 2008 has increase the risk of bank barikyup the PRC. In the event of bankruptcy,
uncertain whether the Group will be able to receisedeposits back in full since it is unlikely b@ classified as a secured creditor base
PRC laws. The Group mitigates its risk of loss bytiuing to monitor the financial strength of tfieancial institutions in which it mak
deposits.

Advances made to suppliers are typically unsecuaned arise from deposits paid in advance for fujpmechases of raw materials. A
percentage of total advances to suppliers, inctudtimgterm prepayments, the five suppliers with largehtamce balance accounted fol
aggregate of 73.1% and 79.3% of total advancesippliers balance as of December 31, 2011 and 2@kpectively. Due to the Groug’
concentration of advances made to a limited nurobsuppliers and the significant prepayments thatnaade to them, any negative even
deterioration in financial strength with respecttie Group$ suppliers may cause a material loss to the Gaodphave a material adverse ef
on the Grougs financial condition and results of operationsteNS). The risk with respect to advances made ppl&rs is mitigated by cre«
evaluations that the Group performs on its supplior to making any advances and the ongoing toong of its suppliers’ performance.

With respect to accounts receivable, the Group gctsdperiodic credit evaluation of its customers$ toes not require collateral or ot
security from its customers.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Concentration of Risks (cont'd)
Concentration of customers

The Group currently sells a substantial portiont®fPV products to a limited number of customers.aApercentage of revenues, the top
customers accounted for an aggregate of 51.9%%A%fd 29.8% for the years ended December 31, 2, and 2012, respectively. T
loss of sales from any of these customers woule lzasignificant negative impact on the Graupusiness. Sales to customers are mostly
through non-exclusive, short-term arrangements. Dude Groups dependence on a limited number of customers naggtive events wi
respect to the Group’s customers may cause mafkrédliations or declines in the Grogp’evenue and have a material adverse effect «
Group’s financial condition and results of operasio

Concentration of suppliers

A significant portion of the Group’raw materials are sourced from its five largéd&tos material suppliers who collectively accouhtier ar
aggregate of 40.0%, 40.6% and 72.4% of the Gotgial silicon and silicon wafer purchases forybars ended December 31, 2010, 201:
2012, respectively. Failure to develop or maintailationships with these suppliers may cause ttausto be unable to source adequate
materials needed to manufacture its PV producty. disruption in the supply of raw materials to tBeup may adversely affect the Grosip’
business, financial condition and results of openat

3. ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE
The Group’s accounts receivable is net of the alowe for doubtful accounts. The allowance for diullaiccounts activity is as follows:

As of December 31

2011 2012 2012

(RMB’000; (RMB'000; (US$000;
Beginning balanc 3,74¢ 1,462 23t
Provision for doubtful dek 1,77¢ 87,62¢ 14,06:
Written-off (4,067) — —
Ending balanc: 1,462 89,08¢ 14,30(

Notes receivable represents bank drafts that an-interest bearing and due within four months. Suahkbdrafts have been arranged 1
third-party financial institutions by certain customesssettle their purchases from the Company. Theyiceyramount of notes receiva
approximates fair value.
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4. INVENTORIES — NET
Inventories consist of the following:
As of December 31

2011 2012 2012
(RMB'000, (RMB'000,  (US¥000)

Raw materials 194,02t 187,39. 30,07¢
Work-in-progres: 45,36: 26,80( 4,30z
Finished good 444 ,65¢ 624,53! 100,24!

684,04! 838,72 134,62!

As of December 31, 2011 and 2012, raw materialRMB1,097,000 and RMB10,989,000 (US$1,763,856), eetypely, of the Group we
held in custody by other parties for processinge Mritedown of inventories amounted to RMB134,489,000, FF@®B097,000 ar
RMB326,051,000 (US$52,334,794) for the years erdietember 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively.

5. ADVANCE TO SUPPLIERS AND LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS

Advance to suppliers and long-term prepaymentsesgmt interesfree cash deposits paid to suppliers for futureclpases of raw materie
These deposits are required in order to securdysoppilicon due to limited availability.

The multiyear supply agreements entered into between thepGand its suppliers typically state minimum quigedi with associated prici
set for the annual periods under the agreements deitiveries to be made over a general timeframigjest to change based on the Graup
purchasing needs and/or the suppliers’ productatvitify.

The risk of loss arising from ngmerformance by or bankruptcy of the suppliers geased prior to making the deposits and crediftguafl the
suppliers is continually assessed. If there isrition in the creditworthiness of the supplidt®e Group may seek to recover the adve
from the suppliers and will provide for losses alvances in cost of revenue where the Group belitheesuppliers will be unable to fulfill th
supply obligations. In such cases, a charge toafastvenue will be recorded in the period in whicloss is determined to be probable an
amount can be reasonably estimated. The Groupdtasded charges to cost of revenue amounting to RM®00, RMB287,742,000 a
RMB170,012,000 (US$27,288,808), for the years eridedember 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectivelyeftect the probable loss aris
from the suppliers’ failure to perform under thentacts.

In circumstances where a supplier is in contraatiedhult and the Group has termination rights teguire repayment of its remaining dep
and the Group has asserted such rights, the advameereclassified to other current assets in tmsalidated balance sheets. Similarly,
Group reclassifies advances to other current agets 6) when legal proceedings have commencedeivhthe Group is claiming a breact
contract and is seeking monetary recovery of tineameing deposit. A provision for loss is recognidedperating expenses in the perio
which the loss on such assets is determined tadimple and the amount can be reasonably estimated.
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6. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS — NET
Other current assets consist of the following:
As of December 31

2011 2012 2012
(RMB'000, (RMB'000'  (US$ 000

VAT recoverable 282,56( 162,19! 26,03
Income taxes recoverak 57,54¢ 48,26¢ 7,74¢
Unbilled solar systems integration revel — 60,82: 9,76:
Other receivable— net 128,11! 20,06¢ 3,22(
Prepaid expenst 60,34¢ 65,43: 10,50:

528,57: 356,78¢ 57,26¢

VAT recoverable represents the excess of VAT expdrah purchases over the VAT collected from sdlags amount can be applied aga
future VAT collected from customers or may be reumged by the tax authorities under certain circamsts.

Income taxes recoverable represent the excessafni|m taxes paid to tax authority over the curreotine taxes. This amount can be ap|
against income taxes in future years or may belreised by the tax authorities.

Unbilled solar systems integration revenue reprssamounts recognized as revenue for which invdiee® not yet been sent to custome
of the balance sheet date.

The balance of other receivables as of Decembe2(@ll] includes RMB57,021,000 and RMB104,505,008peetively, for export VAT refur
receivable and an advanced payment to one supglieh was reclassified from advance to supplierstteer receivables in 2011 because
Group has claimed the counterpastypreach of a supply contract and thus is seekimgetary recovery of the outstanding deposit thrdega
methods. A provision of RMB54,456,000 and RMB50,088 (US$8,033,258) are recorded for the yearscebdember 31, 2011 and 2C
respectively, as a result of the Group’s assessofgrbbable loss.
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7. FIXED ASSETS — NET

Fixed assets consist of the following:

As of December 31

2011

2012

2012

(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)
Buildings 825,82( 1,181,04. 189,57:
Plant and machinet 2,977,45I 3,787,27. 607,89¢
Furniture, fixtures and office equipme 75,145 83,33( 13,37t
Computer softwar 15,81: 28,10° 4,512
Motor vehicles 17,44: 16,77¢ 2,69:
Leasehold improvemel 6,352 562 9C
3,918,02: 5,097,09: 818,13¢
Less: Accumulated depreciati (643,979 (990,487 (158,989
3,274,041 4,106,60! 659,15!
Constructiorin-progress 1,441,91. 673,26 108,06
4,715,96. 4,779,87. 767,22:

Depreciation expense amounted to RMB182,490,000,BRMN3,146,000 and RMB366,111,000 (US$58,764,867) tfee years end:
December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively.

As of December 31, 2011, buildings with a net boodue of RMB28,668,000 were pledged for sherth bank borrowings
RMB315,477,000, and lontggrm bank borrowings of RMB126,018,000 (Note 113.0% December 31, 2012, buildings with a net boaki® o
RMB109,386,000 (US$17,557,664), and plant and nmachiwith a net book value of RMB364,783,000 (US$5&,709), were pledged -
short-term bank borrowings of RMB498,148,000 (US$%8,267), and longerm bank borrowings of RMB1,169,480,000 (US$18%,283
(Note 11).

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — NET
Intangible assets consist of the following:

As of December 31

2011

2012

2012

(RMB'000, (RMB'000; (US¥ 000,

Land use right:
Cost 351,48: 358,58! 57,55’
Less: Accumulated amortizatic (16,49¢) (23,539 (3,779%)
334,98 335,04 53,77¢
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8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — NET (CONT'D)

Land use rights represent amounts paid for thagighuse eleven parcels of land in the PRC whezeGroups premises are located. Th
land use rights were acquired from Huaerli (NanjoRtpctronics Co., Ltd., a company whose contrglliowner was also a significi
shareholder of the Company prior to September @802

As of December 31, 2011, land use rights with a @bk value of RMB30,713,000 was pledged for shemta bank borrowings
RMB315,477,000 and longerm bank borrowings of RMB126,018,000 (Note 113. & December 31, 2012, land use rights with aboe
value of RMB56,076,000 (US$9,000,819) was pledgedshort-term bank borrowings of RMB498,148,000 $0%,958,267), and longgrm
bank borrowings of RMB540,930,000 (US$86,825,25@)té 11).

The amortization expense for the years ended DeeeB81y 2010, 2011 and 2012 was RMB4,500,000, RMERADO and RMB7,044,0
(US$1,130,640), respectively. For each of the figetyears, the estimated annual amortization espearf intangible assets is RMB7,163,
(US$1,149,741).

9. GOODWILL
Gooduwill of the Group is as follows:
As of December 31

2011 2012 2012
(RMB'000)  (RMB'000)  (US§000)

Goodwill — gross 134,73! 134,73! 21,62¢
Accumulated impairment los (134,73)  (134,73Y) (21,626

Goodwill — net — — —

As of December 31, 2011, the Company assessed rimgrati on its goodwill derived from its acquisitiaf SolarOne Technology. As
December 31, 2011, the Company had determinedtbatarrying value of the reporting unit exceedsdmplied fair value, estimated usin
discounted cash flow methodology, and recordedngmairment loss of RMB134,735,000 for the year enBedember 31, 2011, which
included in “Impairment of goodwill” in the consdited statements of comprehensive income.

10. LONG-TERM DEFERRED EXPENSES

As of December 31

2011 2012 2012
(RMB'000; (RMB'000; (US$ 000,
Convertible bond issuance costs (Note 19,71¢ 4,08( 65E
Arrangement fees for n-current bank borrowing 25,58( 20,93: 3,36(
Others 4,404 18¢ 30
49,70: 25,20( 4,04t
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10. LONG-TERM DEFERRED EXPENSES (CONT'D)

During the year ended December 31, 2011 and 20A€, Group paid arrangement fees of RMB42,586,000 RiuB18,355,00
(US$2,946,181), respectively, to several bankstuiie longterm bank borrowings, which are amortized basetherduration of the relat
bank borrowings using the effective interest ratghud. As of December 31, 2011 and 2012, the aerargt fee expected to be amortized
one year is recorded as a long-term deferred egpens

11. BANK BORROWINGS

As of December 31

2011 2012 2012

(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US¥ 000)

Total bank borrowing 3,359,22i 3,914,68. 628,35(
Comprised of

Shor-term 1,764,25. 1,162,37 186,57

Long-term, current portiol 242,60:- 467,20 74,99:

2,006,85! 1,629,571 261,56!
Long-term, nol-current portior 1,352,37. 2,285,101 366,78!

3,359,22i 3,914,68. 628,35(

The shortterm bank borrowings outstanding as of DecembeRB11 and 2012 bore an average interest rate 86%%nd 4.204% per annt
respectively, and were denominated in Renminbildt®l Dollar. These borrowings were obtained fromaficial institutions and have term:
one month to one year.

The longterm bank borrowings outstanding as of Decembe311 and 2012 bore an average interest rate 68%%5nd 4.245% per annt
respectively, and were denominated in Renminbildu®1 Dollar. These borrowings were obtained fronaficial institutions.

As of December 31, 2012, the Group breached ceb@ik covenants on its lorigem borrowing agreements with Bank of ShanghaijiNg
Branch (as the lead lenders in the agreement)d&tdrChartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited (as thelllsmders in the agreement), and K
Asia Limited (as the lead lenders in the agreemuwiitf) outstanding borrowings of RMB421,440,000 (B8%%45,784), RMB628,550,0
(US$100,889,231), and RMB1,131,390,000 (US$1816M®), respectively.

In April 2013, the Group obtained waiver lettersnfr Bank of Shanghai Nanjing Branch, Standard Chadt8ank (Hong Kong) Limited a
KDB Asia Limited as remedies for the breach of tbspective loan covenant, effective until Januargdil4. Accordingly, RMB142,798,0
(US$22,920,659), RMB628,550,000 (US$100,889,231) BvB1,131,390,000 (US$181,600,616.36) under thek b@orrowing agreemer
with Bank of Shanghai Nanjing Branch, Standard @&wad Bank (Hong Kong) Limited and KDB Asia Limitegspectively, continue to
classified as non-current as of December 31, 2012.
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11. BANK BORROWINGS (CONT'D)

The current and non-current portions of ldegn bank borrowings as of December 31, 2012 wveildbe in installments between the perioc
January 1, 2013 to December 30, 2013, and Jany2@14 to September 30, 2016, respectively.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2012, unused loanitfasilfor short-term and lontgrm borrowings amounted to RMB1,672,853,000
RMB1,191,722,000 (US$191,284,570), respectively.

Bank borrowings as of December 31, 2011 and 20¥2 secured/guaranteed by the following:
December 31, 2011

Amount

Secured/guaranteed by

(RMB’000)
2,161,62!

441,49!

630,09(
126,01t

3,359,22i

Guaranteed by the Company and other subsidiariggedbrour.

Jointly guaranteed by (i) the Company and (ii)@reup’s premises and land use rights with net badike of
RMB28,668,000 and RMB30,713,000, respectively (Matand 8

Guaranteed by the Gra’'s equipmen

Guaranteed by letters of credit for lenders isdueBank of Shanghai Nanjing Branch, which was vdlas US$20,000,0(
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11. BANK BORROWINGS (CONT'D)
December 31, 2012

Amount

Secured/guaranteed by

(RMB’000)
1,131,399
1,003,78,

634,77.
628,55(
404,30!

111,88:

3,914,68:

Guaranteed by Hanwha Chemical Corporat“Hanwha Chemic”)
Guaranteed by the Company and other subsidiariggedbrouy.

Jointly guaranteed by (i) the Company and othesislidries of the Group ,and (ii) the Group’s pregsisind land use rights
with net book value of RMB53,127,000 (US$8,527,4a1) RMB22,660,000 (US$3,637,181), respectivelytésl@ and
8)

Guaranteed by the Gra's plant and machinery with net book value of RMB3838,000 (US$58,551,709) (Notes

Jointly guaranteed by (i) the Company, and (ii) 8reup’s premises and land use rights with net h@die of
RMB56,259,000 (US$9,030,192) and RMB33,416,000 @&)$43,638), respectively (Notes 7 anc

Guaranteed by letters of credit for lenders isdueBank of Shanghai Nanjing Branch, which was vdlas US$20,000,0(

As of December 31, 2012, the maturities of theag+term bank borrowings were as follows:

December 31
2012 2012
(RMB’000) (US$000)

Within 1 year 467,20: 74,99!
Between 1 and 2 yea 376,40¢ 60,41¢
Between 2 and 3 yea 1,654,13. 265,50°
Between 3 and 4 yea 254,56: 40,86(
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12. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
The components of accrued expenses and otheitiebére as follows:
As of December 31

2011 2012 2012
(RMB'000, (RMB'000'  (US$ 000

Accrued warranty costs (Note 1 162,13: 177,86 28,55(
Accrued wages and other employee wel 77,207 81,51« 13,08¢
Accrued freight and export related expe 14,25: 38,93¢ 6,25(
Accrued professional service fe 35,27¢ 26,97: 4,32¢
Accrued interest expense for bank borrowi 5,47: 14,49¢ 2,32
Interest payable for convertible bor 17,54« 10,06¢ 1,61¢€
Taxes payabl 7,531 9,84¢ 1,57¢
Accrued utility expense 11,04: 9,26: 1,48¢
Accrued arrangement fee and other expense relategitk borrowing: 7,54¢ 1,211
Accrued advertising fe 10,90¢ 1,582 254
Share Issuance and Repurchase Agreement with HaBathaHoldings Co., Ltd. (“Hanwha SolarNdte

26) 13 13 2
Other accrued expenses and liabili 33,85¢ 22,42 3,60:

375,23t 400,53 64,29

13. ACCRUED WARRANTY COSTS
The Group’s warranty activity is summarized below:

For the year ended December 3:

2011 2012 2012
(RMB'000; (RMB'000; (US$ 000
Beginning balanc 131,68¢ 162,13: 26,02«
Warranty provisior 64,73( 33,10¢ 5,31«
Warranty reverse (30,615 (9,959 (1,59¢)
Warranty claims (3,679 (7,419 (1,190
Ending balanc 162,13: 177,86¢ 28,55(

14. CUSTOMER DEPOSITS

Customer deposits represent cash payments redeoraccustomers in advance of the delivery of PV oled. These deposits are recognize
revenue when the conditions for revenue recognitiave been met. The customer deposits arerefomdable unless the Group fails to fu
the terms of the sales contract.
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15. NOTES PAYABLE

As of December 31, 2012, notes payable were namest bearing and were secured by RMB56,625,000691088,939) of the Groug’
restricted cash. The Group did not pay any comwomisg the banks to obtain the notes payable fesslitAs of December 31, 2012, these r
are due for payment over the next 12 months.

16. DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

The Group is exposed to certain risks relatedstbitsiness operations. The risks that the Grougsdeananage by using derivative instrum
are fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, theclpage price for silver and aluminum and interesstaThe Group recognizes all deriva
instruments as either assets or liabilities at ¥alue in the consolidated balance sheets (NoteT3® Groups$ derivatives are not designe
and do not qualify as hedges and are adjustedrtediae through current earnings.

The following table reflects the location in thensolidated statements of comprehensive income lamdimount of realized and unreali
gains/(losses) recognized in income for the derieatontracts not designated as hedging instrunfentthe years ended December 31, 2
2011 and 2012:

Statement of comprehensivi

income location Year ended December 31
2010 2011 2012
(RMB’000] (RMB’000; (RMB’000) (US¥ 000,
Foreign exchange derivative contracts (not desegha
as hedging Changes in fair value of
instruments— realized derivative contract 78,96¢ (50,599 38,83t 6,23:
Foreign exchange derivative contracts (not deseghat
as hedging Changes in fair value of
instruments— unrealizec derivative contract (9,43%) 32,31¢ (36,829 (5,910
Commodity derivative contracts (not
designated as hedging Changes in fair value of
instruments— realized derivative contract 5,33t (19,169 Q7,777 (2,859
Commodity derivative contracts (not designated as
hedging Changes in fair value of
instruments— unrealizec derivative contract 2,667 (28,55() 24,07« 3,86¢
Interest rate swap derivative contracts (not desiggh
as hedging Changes in fair value of
instruments— unrealizec derivative contract — (4,787) (2,987) (47¢)
77,53. (70,779 5,32¢ 85E
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16. DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS (CONT'D)

The following table reflects the fair values of idatives included in the consolidated balance shastof December 31, 2011 and 2012:

Balance sheet locatiol Fair value as of December 31
2011 2012
(RMB’000; (RMB’000; (US$000;
Derivative assets (not designated as hedging mstnts):
Foreign exchange derivative contracts Current assets: Derivative
contracts 29,09: — —
Derivative liabilities (not designated as hedgingtiuments)
Foreign exchange derivative contracts Current liabilities:
Derivative contract — 7,73 1,241
Commodity derivative contracts Current liabilities:
Derivative contract 25,88: 1,80¢ 291
Interest rate swap derivative contracts Current liabilities:
Derivative contract 4,787 7,77( 1,24
30,67( 17,31: 2,77¢

17. ISSUANCE OF ORDINARY SHARES FROM EQUITY OFFERIN G

In September 2010, in connection with the Sharaalsse and Repurchase Agreement with Hanwha Solate 26), the Company isstL
36,455,089 of the Company’s ordinary shares.

In November 2010, the Company issued in a publieriofy 9,200,000 ADSs, representing 46,000,00chef Companys ordinary shares.
order for Hanwha Solar to maintain the same beiaftavnership percentage in the Company after phislic offering, the Company isst
45,981,604 of the Company’s ordinary shares apé#revalue per share of US$0.0001 to Hanwha Solar.

The Company’s share issuance activities in 201G@anmemarized as follows:

Number of Number of
Date Issuance ta ADSs ordinary shares Total proceeds Net proceeds
(US¢¥000) (RMB’000) (US¢¥000) (RMB’000)
September 201 Hanwha Sola * 36,455,08 78,17 524,60¢ 76,04« 510,33:
November 201! Hanwha Sola * 45,981,60 82,76 549,48 82,761 549,48

* 82,436,69 160,93t 1,074,08 158,81 1,059,81.
November 201( Public 9,200,001 46,000,00 82,80( 549,85t 78,50¢ 521,30:

9,200,001 128,436,69 243,73t 1,623,94' 237,31 1,581,11.

* Not applicable since the Company directly issuetinary shares to Hanwha Sol
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18. STATUTORY RESERVES

In accordance with the PRC Regulations on Entegpnigith Foreign Investment, an enterprise estaddish the PRC with foreign investmen
required to provide for certain statutory reserveamely (i) General Reserve Fund, (ii) Enterprigpdnsion Fund and (iii) Staff Welfare ¢
Bonus Fund, which are appropriated from net prasdireported in the enterprise’'s PRC statutory atso@ wholly-owned foreign enterpri
(“WOFE") is required to allocate at least 10% «f @&nnual aftetax profit to the General Reserve Fund until thiamee of such fund h
reached 50% of its respective registered capitaloA wholly-owned foreign invested enterprise is permittedrtvigle for the above allocati
at the discretion of its board of directors. Appiapons to the Enterprise Expansion Fund and Stéélfare and Bonus Fund are at
discretion of the board of directors for all foneimpvested enterprises. The aforementioned researe®nly be used for specific purposes
are not distributable as cash dividends.

SolarOne Qidong became a WOFE in May 2006 andetfiwey, is subject to the above mandated restristan distributable profits. Prior
May 2006, although SolarOne Qidong was a Sino-fr@int venture enterprise, it was required tocdke at least 10% of its aftex profit tc
the General Reserve Fund in accordance with th# jeénture agreements entered into among the tbiem yenture partners and
appropriations to the Enterprise Expansion Fund3taéf Welfare and Bonus Fund were at the disanedicthe board of directors.

For other subsidiaries incorporated in PRC, inelgdBolarOne Technology, SolarOne Shanghai, Solab,R8olar Engineering, SolarC
Nantong and Nantong Hanwha I&E, the General Resewel was appropriated based on 10% of net praiteeported in each subsidi's
PRC statutory accounts.

The Group provided RMB100,436,000 and RMB4,456,§60eral reserve fund for the year ended Decemhe2(®B0 and 2011, respective
There were no statutory reserves provided for trer ynded December 31, 2012 as all of the GeoBRC subsidiaries incurred net losse
the year.

19. SHARE OPTION PLANS

In November 2006, the Company adopted a stock omaheme (the “2006 Option Planflhich allows the Company to offer a variety
incentive awards to employees, directors and ctanstsl of the Company (the “2006 Option Plan Paodiots”). Under the 2006 Option Pl:
the Company may issue options to the 2006 Optian Phrticipants to purchase not more than 10,79%6@inary shares. All options gran
under the 2006 Option Plan would expire on Noven3@er2016 and generally vest over 3 to 5 years.

On August 22, 2007, the Company’s Board of Dirextapproved the 2007 Equity Incentive Plan (the 720@centive Plan”).The 200
Incentive Plan permits the grant of Incentive Std@gtions, Nonstatutory Stock Options, Restricted Stock, Stockowpiation Right:
Restricted Stock Units, Performance Units, PerforeeaShares, and other stdzksed awards to employees, directors and consultdirthe
Group (the “Participants”}Under the 2007 Incentive Plan, the Company mayeisguto 10,799,685 ordinary shares plus an annaegase (
2% of the outstanding ordinary shares on the diast of the fiscal year, or such lesser amount afeshas determined by the Board of Direc
The 2007 Incentive Plan will expire on August 2Q12.

By a resolution of the Board of Directors on Nove&mBO, 2007, 59,994 Restricted Stock Units (“RSUsBre granted to the Compasy’
existing three independent directors and 7,500 R&is authorized to be granted to each of the iedégnt directors annually from Januat
2008. Each RSU represents one ADS of the Compahighws equal to five ordinary shares. As of Decentil, 2009, the 59,994 RSUs h
vested. The 7,500 RSUs granted on January 1, 2088ch of the independent directors vest in batoh2$00 RSUs each
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19. SHARE OPTION PLANS (CONT’D)

year beginning on January 1, 2009. The 7,500 RS&lsted respectively on January 1, 2010, 2011 ad@ B®each of the independent dire
vest in batches of 1,250 RSUs each half year bagnon July 1, 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectivelyriiy 2011 and 2012, the Board
Directors also approved grant of 1,337,625 andGDRSUSs, respectively, to certain of the Participa

The following tables summarized the Company’s slogteon activity under 2006 Option Plan and 2003elmtive Plan:

Weighted-
Weighted- average
average remaining
Number of exercise contractual Aggregate
options price life intrinsic value
(Us$) (Years) (Us$)
Outstanding, January 1, 20 9,551,58! 1.9¢ 6.7€ 0.0C
Grantec —
Exercisec —
Forfeited (5,364,861 2.02
Expired —
Outstanding, December 31, 20 4,186,72! 1.8¢ 5.52 0.0C
Vested and expected to be vested at December 32, 4,186,72! 1.8¢ 5.5 0.0C
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 3,750,60: 1.72 5.3¢€ 0.0C
Weighted-
Number of average grant-
options date fair value
(US$)
Unvested, January 1, 20 2,364,25! 0.9¢
Grantec —
Vested (827,619 1.04
Forfeited (1,100,52) 0.91
Unvested, December 31, 20 436,12 0.94

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table aboygesents the total intrinsic value (the aggregéferdnce between the Compasytlosing
stock price of US$0.202 per ordinary share as afeD®er 31, 2012 and the exercise price for inatlogey options) that would have b
received by the option holders if all in-the-morogtions had been exercised on December 31, 2012.

The aggregate fair value of share options thatedesturing 2010, 2011 and 2012 was US$4,043,806,3|18%,594 and US$862,7
respectively. The weighted-average grdate fair value of share options granted during020dnd 2011 was US$1.13, and US$!
respectively. No share options were granted d2iDiR.
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19. SHARE OPTION PLANS (CONT’D)

The aggregate intrinsic value of share options @sed during 2010, and 2011 was US$1,324,179, a8$60,481, respectively. No sh
options were exercised during 2012.

The aggregate fair value of the share options andéhg as of December 31, 2012 measured basedspreci&ve grantiate fair values wi
US$5,199,548 and such amount shall be recognizezbmpensation expense using the straligiet-method with graded vesting basec
service conditions.

As of December 31, 2012, there was US$350,095 ifangnized sharbased compensation cost related to share optioichvghexpected -
be recognized over a weightaderage vesting period of 3.52 years. To the extiemtactual forfeiture rate is different from therren
estimation, actual share-based compensation refatibegse awards may be different from the expiectat

The following table summarized the Company’s RStiviag under 2007 Incentive Plan:

Weighted-average Aggregate intrinsic
Number of RSUs grant date fair value value
(US$) (US$)
Unvested, January 1, 20 793,75( 5.3C 777,87
Grantec 450,00( 1.1C
Vested (218,12) 5.1C 241,55!
Forfeited (359,06)) 5.4€
Unvested, December 31, 20 666,56! 2.4k 673,23:

The aggregate fair value of vested RSUs for 2000,12and 2012 measured based on respective dadatfair values was US$627,5
US$3,583,331 and US$1,105,941, respectively. Thgeagte fair value of the unvested RSUs as of Dbeel, 2012 was US$1,631,¢
based on the quoted market price of the Companytinary shares at the respective grant datek,sach amount shall be recognize:
compensation expenses using the straight-line rdetyith graded vesting based on service conditidine weighted-average gradi#te fai
values of RSUs granted during 2010, 2011 and 2042 wWS$8.00, US$6.26 and US$1.10, respectively. tdta intrinsic value of RSL
vested during 2010, 2011 and 2012 was US$407,48821533,282 and US$241,553, respectively.

As of December 31, 2012, there was US$1,856,75mofcognized shafgased compensation cost related to RSUs whichgsated to b
recognized over a weightexierage vesting period of 3.91 years. To the extemtactual forfeiture rate is different from cunrestimatior
actual share-based compensation related to themelsway be different from the expectation.

For stock options granted before January 1, 20@8fdir value of each share option grant was estichan the date of grant using the Black

Scholes option pricing model. For share optionsig after January 1, 2008, the fair value of emghrd is estimated on the date of g
using a binomial-lattice option valuation model.eThinomiallattice model considers characteristics of fairueabption pricing that are r
available under the Black-Scholes model. Similathi® Black-Scholes model, the binomiaftice model takes into account variables suc
volatility, dividend yield, and risk-free interesite. However, in addition, the binomial-lattice
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19. SHARE OPTION PLANS (CONT’D)

model considers the contractual term of the optio@,probability that the option will be exercigatbr to the end of its contractual life, and
probability of termination or retirement of the mpt holder in computing the value of the optionr Beese reasons, the Company believes
the binomial-lattice model provides a fair value fts sharebased compensation plans that is more represemtatiactual experience &
future expected experience than the value calallaténg the Black-Scholes model.

The Company calculated the estimated fair valustafre options on the grant date using the binolaitite model for 2010, and 20
respectively, with the following assumptions. Naushoptions were granted in 2012.

Granted in 2010 Granted in 2011
Risk-free interest rat 0.25%-— 3.31% 3.3%
Expected dividend yiel 0% 0%
Expected volatility 80% 80%
Suk-optimal early exercise fact 3-4 time: 2.5 time:
Fair value of ordinary shares From US¢ 1.3¢
to US$ 2.4¢ US$1.7:

Risk-ree interest rate is based on a zero coupon W& ate for the terms consistent with the expelitef the award at the time of gre
Expected dividend yield is determined in view of fiompanys historical dividend payout rate. The Companynesties expected volatility
the date of grant based on a combination of hisabeand implied volatilities from comparable publiisted companies. Forfeiture rate of 0¢
estimated based on historical forfeiture pattemd adjusted to reflect future change in facts antlimstances, if any. The swptimal earh
exercise factor is determined based on the expgcieel multiple at which employees are likely t@mise stock options.

Total compensation expense relating to share opaiod RSUs recognized for the years ended Dece3iitb@010, 2011 and 2012 is as follo

For the year ended December 3.

2010 2011 2012 2012

(RMB'000; (RMB’'000; (RMB’000; (US$000;

Cost of revenue 7,89¢ 517 2,971 477
Selling expense 4,18¢ 4,22: 971 15€
General and administrative expen 18,36¢ 27,92¢ 3,26¢ 524
Research and development exper 1,51¢ 1,00z 57€ 92
31,96: 38,33: 7,782 1,24¢

20. REDEEMABLE ORDINARY SHARES

On January 29, 2008 and concurrently with the cdible bond issuance (Note 21), the Company issunebisold 9,019,611 ADSs, represen
45,098,055 of the Company’s ordinary shares ap#tresalue per share of US$0.0001.
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20. REDEEMABLE ORDINARY SHARES (CONT’D)

The Company is entitled to repurchase any or althef ADSs at par value on any business day afeeretitire principal amount of t
convertible bonds ceases to be outstanding. Sghtsrwill expire one month after the maturity of ttonvertible bonds. In addition, the holc
of the ADSs have the right to request the Compamepurchase the ADSs at par value at any timeiagggprior notice. Since the holdt
have the ability to require the repurchase of tf¥SA, which is outside the control of the Compahg, ardinary shares underlying the Al
have been classified as mezzanine equity. The iolale entitled to receive all cash and wash distributions that an ordinary sharehc
would receive but such distributions are requirete paid back to the Company upon repurchasecoAbSs.

The adoption of ASU 2009-15Accounting for Owrghare Lending Arrangements in Contemplation of @dible Debt Issuance or Otr
Financing,on January 1, 2010 revised the Comparg¢counting for the redeemable ordinary shares.ddmpany evaluated the redeem
ordinary shares concurrently with the bonds uparptidn of ASU 2009t5 and determined that the redeemable ordinaryeshssued qualifie
as an own-share lending arrangement because thegauof issuance of the shares was to increasevikability of the Companyg' shares ar
facilitate the ability of the holders to hedge ttmaversion option in the Compasytonvertible debt and the Company is entitlecefmurchas
any or all of the ADSs at par value on any busimessafter the entire principal amount of the catilbée bonds ceases to be outstanding.

Accordingly, the share-lending arrangement uporptido of ASU 200915 is measured at fair value, and recognized assamnce cost with .
offset to redeemable ordinary shares. ASU 208%equires the Company to recognize the cumulaffect of the change in account
principle as an adjustment to the opening balarfceemined earnings. An adjustment of US$3,076 @xmately RMB22,000), whic
represents the fair value that would have beengrézed if the guidance in ASU 20a% had been applied from the issuance da
January 29, 2008, was recorded on January 1, 20i68uance cost with an offset to redeemable orgisizares.

On October 25, 2011, the Company repurchased amzklbad 5,005,536 ADSs, representing 25,027,68@®fCompanys ordinary shares
the par value per share of US$0.0001.

21. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On January 29, 2008, the Company issued in aggrguatcipal amount of US$172,500,000 Convertibl@i@eNotes (the “Notes”due
January 15, 2018 to third-party investors (the ‘déot”). The Notes bear interest at a rate of 3.5% per appagable on January 15 and Jul
of each year, commencing on July 15, 2008.

The Holders may require the Company to redeemradl portion of the Notes on January 15, 2015, atiée equal to 100% of the princi
amount of the Notes to be repurchased plus acameédinpaid interest. The Holders may also reqgheeompany to redeem all or a portio
the Notes at a price equal to 100% of principal am@f the Notes to be repurchased plus accruediapdid interest upon the occurrence
fundamental change, which is defined as a changeritrol or a termination of trading. In additidhe Company may redeem part or all of
Notes on and after January 20, 2015, at a pricaléquL00% of the principal amount of the Notedbéorepurchased plus accrued and ur
interest, provided the Company’s ADSs trading prieaets certain conditions. At the Holdeogtion, the principal amount of the Notes ma
converted into the ComparsyADSs initially at a conversion rate of 52.2876 2d€)(equivalent to an initial conversion price oprgximately
US$19.125 per ADS) per US$1,000 principal amourthefNotes, at any time prior to maturity. The &ggdlle conversion rate will be subj
to adjustment in certain circumstances.
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21. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONT'D)

The Notes were initially recorded at the principalount of US$172,500,000. Direct debt issuancesanisSRMB40,459,198 are deferred .

amortized over the life of the Notes using the affe interest rate method. At the commitment dateJanuary 29, 2008, the Comp

evaluated and determined that the redemption ahdpiions do not require bifurcation from the Notesler the requirements of ASC 816-
because they are clearly and closely related tod#t® host instrument. No beneficial conversiontuieawas recognized as the effec

conversion price per ADS of US$19.125 was highantthe fair value per ADS of the Company at the mitment date (January 29, 2008

US$17.73.

The adoption of ASC 815-40Q Derivatives and Hedging: Contracts in Entity’'s ®vEquity, on January 1, 2009 revised the Company
accounting for the conversion option of the NofHse Company evaluated the conversion option ofNbtes upon adoption of ASC 81&
and determined that the conversion option qualiftedierivative accounting because the conversption, if freestanding, is not considere:
be indexed to the Company’s own stock.

Accordingly, the conversion option was bifurcateshi the Notes upon adoption of ASC 84G-as a derivative liability at an initial fair ve o
RMB962,993,000. Changes in fair value of the cosiogr options are recognized through the staten@rdemprehensive income. For the y
ended December 31, 2012, the Company recorded a1d3MB5,692,000 (US$913,629) (2011: a gain of R2@8,384,000) resulting from t
change in fair value of the conversion option. A®ecember 31, 2012, the conversion option, whiab Ibeen combined with the Notes or
balance sheet, was recorded at a fair value of RMEB/000 (US$1,269,322) (2011: RMB13,182,000).

In the year ended December 31, 2012, the Compapyraieased the Notes with total principal amountUs$$71,900, 000 with tot
consideration of RMB299,271,000 (US$48,036,308)mfrthe open market, and recognized a loss on thmgexshment of debt
RMB82,713,000 (US$13,276,352) as a result of thenehase.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the interpsinse for the Notes was RMB118,690,000 (US$19085).
22. LONG-TERM PAYABLE

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Group recorRiB50,000,000 (US$8,025,553) of government greeteived as a lontgprm payabl
because the Group has not fulfilled the conditioeguired by the local government. According to #greement with the administrat
committee of Nantong Economic and Technological é&@yment Zone, SolarOne Nantong will need to achiartain specified requireme
on its production capacity in three years afterdbmpletion of its construction. Failure to meet thquirement upon assessment date (i.e.
years from the receipt of the grant) may result jproportional refund of the government subsidéeeived for any actual production capa
not achieved in accordance with the capacity stiggdl in the agreement. As of December 31, 2012;dghstruction has not been completed.
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23. INCOME TAXES
Current taxation

The Company is a tagxempt company incorporated in the Cayman Islandscanducts substantially all of its business tgtoits subsidiarie
located in the PRC. In addition, the Group alsog®&ral norPRC subsidiaries, including SolarOne Investmeniar®@me HK, SolarOne US.
SolarOne GmbH, Solar Canada and Solar Australigestito corporate income tax rates ranging frono e 35%.

The Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRCsabject to PRC enterprise income tax (“El®f) the taxable income as reported in
PRC statutory accounts adjusted in accordancereiivant PRC Income Tax Laws. Pursuant to the ARRGnhe Tax Laws, the GroupPRC(
subsidiaries are subject to EIT at a statutory o0d®5%.

During 2008, SolarOne Qidong received approval ftbedPRC taxation authorities as a “High and Newhfelogy Enterprise” (“HNTE"janc
obtained an HNTE certificate. In 2011, the Compangcessful renewed its HNTE status for anothesetlgears. In accordance with the F
Income Tax Laws, an enterprise awarded with the HISfatus may enjoy a reduced EIT rate of 15%. Rer2010, 2011 and 2012 tax ye
the income tax rate for SolarOne Qidong was 15%.

SolarOne Shanghai, SolarOne Technology, Solar Eeging, Solar R&D, SolarOne Nantong and Nantong wen I&E, the domest
companies in the PRC, are subject to EIT at ack®5% for the years ended December 31, 2010, 26i12012.

In accordance with the new PRC Enterprise Income Oaws (the “PRC Income Tax LawsBffective from January 1, 2008, enterpr
established under the laws of foreign countriesegions and whose “place of effective managementdcated within the PRC territory
considered PRC resident enterprises and subjabtet®RC income tax at the rate of 25% on worldwid®me. The definition of glace o
effective managementshall refer to an establishment that exercisesulsstance, overall management and control ovepitheéuction an
business, personnel, accounting, properties, étancenterprise. As of December 31, 2012, no dedaithterpretation or guidance has t
issued to define “place of effective managemertrthermore, as of December 31, 2012, the admiingér practice associated with interpre
and applying the concept of “place of effective mgement’is unclear. The Group has analyzed the applicghofithis law and will contint
to monitor the related development and application.

Income (loss) before income taxes consists of:

For the year ended December 3:

2010 2011 2012 2012
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)
Non-PRC (94,107 (334,47 (948,41)  (152,23)
PRC 1,149,44. (740,57 (599,18) (96,176

1,055,341  (1,075,04) (1,547,60) (248,40)
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23. INCOME TAXES (CONT'D)
Current taxation (cont’d)

The income tax (expense) benefit is comprised of:

For the year ended December 3:

2010 2011 2012 2012
(RMB’000) (RMB’000] (RMB’000] (US$000
Current (330,03) (28,359 7,63¢ 1,22¢
Deferred 32,05 173,30: (22,899 (3,675
(297,98) 144,94 (15,255 (2,449)

The reconciliation of tax computed by applying #tatutory income tax rate of 25% applicable to Pép@rations to income tax (exper
benefit is as follows:

For the year ended December 3:

2010 2011 2012 2012

(RMB’000) (RMB'000; (RMB’000) (US$000)

Income tax computed at the statutory tax rate &6 (263,83 268,76: 386,90 62,10:
Non-deductible expenst¢ (13,567 (55,004 (17,727 (2,845
Preferential tax treatme 148,63 4,23 2,18¢ 352
Research and development expe 6,16 4,02( 5,22i 83¢
Tax rate difference (42,869 (21,15) (54,217 (8,702)
Unrecognized tax bene (116,089 — — —
Changes in the valuation allowar (16,437 (55,915 (337,639 (54,195
(297,98) 144,94! (15,25%) (2,449
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23. INCOME TAXES (CONT'D)
Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) reflect the téfeets of temporary differences between the cagymounts of assets and liabilities for finar
reporting purposes and the amounts used for in¢armpurposes. The components of deferred tax adisdtiities) are as follows:

As of December 31

2011 2012 2012
(RMB’000! (RMB’000) (US$000)
Deferred tax assets
Current:
- Warranty provisior 40,53: 44,46 7,131
- Inventory write-off 115,14¢ 45,62¢ 7,32¢
- Allowance for advance to supplie 116,92t 157,84( 25,33t
- Allowance for doubtful accoun 13,98( 47,58 7,630
- Allowance for amount due from related part — 3,99( 641
- Derivative contract 4,92¢ 2,29¢ 36¢
- Tax loss carried forwar 8,48: — —
- Others 20,85¢ 11,60: 1,86:
Valuation allowanct (56,259 (163,109 (26,187)
Net current deferred tax ass 264,59( 150,29 24,12«
Non-current:
- Tax losse:! 84,82« 383,64( 61,57¢
- Fixed asset 16,37 39,21 6,29¢
- Others 11¢ 63 10
Valuation allowanct (84,82¢) (315,61 (50,659
Net nor-current deferred tax asst 16,49: 107,30: 17,22«
Deferred tax liabilities:
Non-current:
- Land use right 25,38 24,79¢ 3,98(
Non-current deferred tax liabilitie 25,38’ 24,79¢ 3,98(

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax &sdbe Group has considered whether it is momgylikhannot that some portion or all of t
deferred tax assets will not be realized. The @tarealization of deferred tax assets is depengwmon the generation of future taxable inc
during the periods in which those temporary diffees become deductible. The Group records a vaftuatiowance to reduce deferred
assets to a net amount that management beliewesréslikely-than-not of being realizable based lea weight of all available evidence.
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23. INCOME TAXES (CONT'D)
Deferred taxation (cor'd)

As of December 31, 2011 and 2012, the Group ha tar operating loss from its PRC subsidiarieR®IB42,671,000 and RMB627,705,(
(US$100,753,599), respectively, which starts toirexim 2016. As of December 31, 2011 and 2012 Ghaup has a net tax operating loss f
its non-PRC subsidiaries of RMB322,288,000 and RB¥BB32,000 (US$141,977,175), respectively, whieltsto expire in 2029.

As of December 31, 2012, the Group intends to peemtly reinvest the undistributed earnings fromfaseign subsidiaries to fund futt
operations. The amount of unrecognized deferrediadities for temporary differences related tovéstments in foreign subsidiaries is
determined because such a determination is notigmbte.

Uncertain Tax Positions

As of December 31, 2012, the Grosipinrecognized tax benefit is RMB143,473,000 (US®%23004) which related to tax incentives rece
and tax resident status.

It is possible that the amount accrued will chamg¢he next 12 months as a result of new interpeetuidance released by the PRC
authorities; however, an estimate of the rangénefpossible change cannot be made at this timeumtecognized tax benefits, if ultimat
recognized, will impact the effective tax rate. Bediliation of accrued unrecognized tax benefitasdollows:

2010 2011 2012 2012
(RMB'000;  (RMB'000;  (RMB'000,  (US$000;
Beginning balanc 27,38¢ 143,47: 143,47: 23,02¢
Incurred during the ye: 116,08t — — —
Ending balanc 143,47: 143,47: 143,47: 23,02¢

Based on existing PRC tax regulations, the taxoperiof SolarOne Qidong, SolarOne Shanghai, Solarf@wénology, Solar R&D, Sol
Engineering, SolarOne Nantong and Nantong Hanwha 18 the years ended December 31, 2008 to Decegihe2012 remain open
potential examination by the tax authorities. Téve ieriods for the Company’s non-PRC subsidiaf@sthe years ended December 31, 20(
December 31, 2012 also remain open to potentiah&aion by the respective tax authorities.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Group dichootue any penalties and interests related tarthecognized tax benefits.
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24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Name and Relationship with Related Parti

Name of related party

Hanwha Chemice

Hanwha L&C Trading (Shanghai) Co., Lt“Hanwha L&C")

Hanwha L&C Corporatiol

Hanwha L&C Canada In

Hanwha International LLC“Hanwha Internation”)

Hanwha Chemical Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd (“HaavW&hemical
Tradinc”)

Hanwha Q.Cells GmbFQ.Cell<") (previously known as -Cells SE)*

Ya An Yongwang Silicon Co., Ltd. (“Ya An")

Hanwha Corporatio

Hanwha TechM Co., Ltd“Hanwha Techl")
Hanwha Europe GmbF Hanwha Eurog”)
Hanwha Japan Co., Ltc*Hanwha Jape”)
Food1st Food Culture Co., Ltc*Food1s”)
Hanwha 63 City C., Ltd. (“Hanwha 63 City")

Hanwha Q CELLS Korea Corp. (“Hanwha Solarenergpteyiously
known as Hanwha SolarEnergy Co., L

Komodo Enterprise Inc*Komodc")

Hanwha S&C Co., Ltd.“Hanwha S&(")

Hancomm, Inc.“Hancomn”)

Linyang Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Linyang Electroniys

Qidong Huahong Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Qidong Huah9**

Nantong Huahong Ecological Gardening Co., L“Nantong Huahong”

*%k

Nantong Linyang Labor Service Compal‘Linyang Labor Service”)**
Q-Cells International GmbH (“QCI")**

SMIC Energy Technology (Shanghai) Corporation (“SMET")***

Semiconductor Manufacturing International (ShangBairporation
(“SMIC Shanghai”) ***

Relationship with the Group

Holding company of Hanwha Sol

A wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanwha Chemi

A wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanwha Chemi

A wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanwha Chemi

A wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanwha Chemi

A wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanwha Chemical

A wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanwha Chemi

A wholly-owned subsidiary of HongKong YongWang &iin
Investment Co., Ltd., whose significant shareholgétanwha
Chemical

Holding company of Hanwha Chemic

A wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanwha Corporat

A wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanwha Corporat

A wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanwha Corporat

A wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanwha Corporat

A wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanwha Life Insurare.,Ltd.,
whose significant shareholder is Hanwha Corpore

A subsidiary of Hanwha Corporation

A significant shareholder is Hanwha Solarene

A company controlled by Hanwha Corporat

A company whose significant shareholder is Hanw&e !

Controlling owner was also a significant shareholafehe
Company

Controlling owner was also a significant shareholufehe
Company

Controlling owner was also a significant shareholufehe
Company

Controlling owner was also a significant shareholafehe
Company

Controlling owner was also a significant shareholafehe
Company

A wholly owned subsidiary of Semiconductor Manutaitg
International Corporation (“SMIC”) where David N.MVang,
one of the Company’s independent directors, seagguresident
and chief executive office

A wholly owned subsidiary of SMIC where David N.W.ang, one
of the Company’s independent directors, servedesigent and
chief executive office

* Before September 16, 2010, Q.Cells was a relateg pathe Group because its controlling owner D a significant shareholder
the Company. Subsequent to the completion of dgnansfer on September 16, 2010 (Note 26), Q.Cebsed to be a related party to
Group. On October 24, 2012, as a result of Hanwentical acquiring a 100% interest in Q.Cells frasndriginal shareholders, Q.C¢

became as a related pai

**  Subsequent to the completion of share transfer epietnber 16, 2010 (Note 26), these companies ceaskd related parties to !

Group.
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24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)
Name and Relationship with Related Parties (c'd)
***  Subsequent to David N.K. Wa's resignation from SMIC in July 2011, these comesigeased to be related parties of the Gr
Significant Related Party Transactior
The Group had the following significant relatedtgdransactions and balances during the years ipiese
For the year ended December 3:

2010 2011 2012 2012
(RMB'000 (RMB'000] (RMB'000]  (US¥000

Advance paid to related partie

- Hanwha Techl — — 6,54¢ 1,051
-Ya An 367,61¢ 108,44¢ — —
- Hanwha Chemice 7,67¢ 76,43¢ — —
- Hanwha L&C — 43,48 — —

375,29¢ 228,36 6,54¢ 1,051

Purchase of raw materials froi

- Hanwha L&C 1,14z 63,12¢ 68,79: 11,04:
- Hanwha L&C Corporatiol — — 63,24 10,15
- Hanwha Internatione — — 10,35¢ 1,66:
-Ya An 339,12: 116,94 6,44( 1,03¢
- Q.Cells — — 4,08( 65E
- Hanwha Chemice 1,88: 86,73¢ — —
- Linyang Electronic: 79,187 — —
-SMIC ET 4,60z — — —

425,93t 266,80° 152,91: 24,54¢

Purchase of services froi

- Food1st — 8,17 27,14° 4,357
- Hancomm — 27,23¢ 14,99: 2,407
- Hanwha S&C — 5,87¢ 2,24¢ 361
- Hanwha Solarenerc — 57C — —
- SMIC Shangha 1,801 — — —
- Linyang Electronic: 68C — — —
- Linyang Labor Servic 88¢ — — —

3,37( 41,85¢ 44,38¢ 7,12¢

Purchase of fixed assets fro

- Hanwha Techl — 30,02¢ 3,58¢ 57¢€
-SMIC ET 33,66: _ — _
- Linyang Electronic: 1,51¢ — — —
- Nantong Huahon 99C — — _

36,16 30,02¢ 3,58¢ 57¢€
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24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)

Significant Related Party Transactions (ccd)

For the year ended December 3.
2010 2011 2012 2012
(RMB’000; (RMB’000; (RMB’000) (US¢$000)

Sales of products t

- Hanwha Solarenerc — 87,70 281,25:. 45,14
- Hanwha Corporatio — 468,38: 250,01: 40,13(
- Hanwha Japa — 67 248,04° 39,81«
- Hanwha Europ: — 22¢ 147,58 23,68¢
- Hanwha Internatione — — 82,54¢ 13,25(
- Komodo — — 29,29¢ 4,70z
- Hanwha Chemical Tradin — — 12t 20
- Hanwha Chemice — 24,10¢ 62 10
- Hanwha 63 City — 3,361 — —
- Q.Cells 442,83. — — —
- QCI 32,92/ — — —
- Others — 6 — —

475,75t 583,85 1,038,92 166, 75¢

Buildings leased from

- SMIC Shangha 1,22¢ 4,291 — _
- Linyang Electronic: 2,85¢ — — _
- Qidong Huahon 1,36¢ — — —

5,45 4,291 — —

On May 1, 2012, the Group acquired 100% equityr@sis in Solar Australia from Hanwha Corporatiothwa total cash consideration
AUD16,732 (Note 1).

Balances with Related Partie
As of December 31, 2011 and 2012, balances witlieelparties are comprised of the following:
As of December 31

2011 2012 2012
(RMB'0000 (RMB'000,  (US§000!

Amount due from related part-net:

- Hanwha Solarenerc 51,88: 137,28t 22,03¢
- Hanwha Japa 67 130,00t 20,86¢
- Hanwha Europ 18¢€ 94,21 15,12:
- Komodo — 23,10: 3,70¢
- Hanwha Corporatio 153,95¢ 15,31: 2,45¢
- Hanwha Internatione — 14,84« 2,38¢
- Hanwha Chemice 6,34+ 4,86¢ 781
- Hancomm 88t 884 142
- Others — a0 14
-Ya An* 20,00( — —
- Hanwha L&C 8,13¢ — —

241,45 420,61( 67,51
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24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)
Balances with Related Parties (ccd)

* In the year ended December 31, 2012, the Groupd®dvull provision of RMB15,960,000 (US$2,561,75@) the advanced payment
Ya An, due to the liquidation of Ya An during 20:

As of December 31

2011 2012 2012
(RMB’000' (RMB’000] (US$ 000
Amount due to related partie

- Hanwha L&C Corporatiol — 49,20" 7,89¢
- Q.Cells — 6,38¢ 1,02¢
- Hanwha Chemice 5,911 447" 71€
- Hanwha L&C 29,32¢ 3,68 591
- Hanwha Internationz — 2,241 36C
- Hancomm 411 2,01¢ 324
- Hanwha S&C 56C 1,73¢ 27¢
- Hanwha L&C Canada Int — 1,34¢ 217
- Hanwha Tech 5,98¢ 717 11&
- Food1sit — 232 37
- Hanwha Europ: 14¢ — —
42,34: 72,04t 11,56«

As of December 31, 2011 and 2012, all balances neitited parties were unsecured, non-interestiagitg and repayable on demand.
25. EMPLOYEE DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Full-time employees of the Company’s subsidiariethe PRC participate in a governmemindated defined contribution plan pursual
which certain pension benefits, medical care, udeympent insurance, employee housing fund and otbedfare benefits are provided
employees. Chinese labor regulations require tt@PRC subsidiaries of the Company make contribatio the government for these ben
based on about 41% of the employees’ salaries morahly basis. The Group’PRC subsidiaries have no legal obligation for ibaefit:
beyond the contributions made. The total amountssich employee benefits, which were expensed asred, were RMB52,369,0(
RMB84,493,000 and RMB79,464,000 (US$12,754,851}Heryears ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and gésictively.

26. SHARE ISSUANCE AND REPURCHASE AGREEMENT

On August 3, 2010, a major shareholder of the Camp@&ood Energies Investments (Jersey) Limited ¢G&nergies”entered into a She
Purchase Agreement (the “GE Sales Agreememit) Hanwha Chemical, a Korean Company, pursuamthitiich Good Energies agreed to
its 81,772,950 ordinary shares and 1,281,011 Ab%$ahwha Chemical. Concurrently with the executtbthe GE Sales Agreement, Han
Chemical entered into (i) a Share Purchase Agreemih the Company (the “Issuer Sales Agreemergl)isuant to which the Compe
agreed to sell to Hanwha Chemical 36,455,089 orgishares and (ii) a Share Purchase Agreement Ywtighua Solar Power Investm
Holding Ltd. (“Yonghua), pursuant to which Yonghua
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26. SHARE ISSUANCE AND REPURCHASE AGREEMENT (CONT’D)

agreed to sell to Hanwha Chemical 38,634,750 ordishares (the “Yonghua Sales Agreemertiagnwha Chemical subsequently assignec
transferred to Hanwha Solar, a wholly owned subsydof Hanwha Chemical, its rights and obligatiomsler the Issuer Sales Agreement
GE Sales Agreement and the Yonghua Sales Agreemmentnnection with the transaction, Hanwha Soéqjuested the Company to is
45,080,019 new ordinary shares at par value of UB®Q per share in a Share Issuance and Repuréggsement (Share Issuance a
Repurchase Agreement”).

Pursuant to the GE Sales Agreement and the Yon§lales Agreement, Hanwha Solar paid cash considerafi approximately US$2!
million and US$90 million to Good Energies and Ybuog, respectively. Concurrently, pursuant to tiseidés Sales Agreement, the Comg
received net proceeds of approximately US$76 milfiar the issuance of 36,455,089 ordinary sharesS€ptember 16, 2010, the respe
parties to the GE Sales Agreement, the Issuer @aje=ement and the Yonghua Sales Agreement constedrize purchase and sale of
ordinary shares and ADSs contemplated thereby. fesalt, Good Energies and Yonghua ceased to owroatinary shares or ADSs of
Company as of September 16, 2010.

The Company recorded the shares issued in the 8sar@nce and Repurchase Agreement with Hanwha &®la liability in accordance A¢
480-10,Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments witha@acteristics of both Liabilities and Equitgs there is an unconditional obligat
that requires the Company to redeem the sharesahgferring assets at a determinable date at theghae per share of US$0.0001. At
December 31, 2010, the Company has issued 30,8¥2@Bnary shares to Hanwha Solar and recordedhility of RMB20,554 in othe
current liabilities in connection with the Sharedance and Repurchase Agreement.

In March 2011, the Company issued 14,407,330 ordishares to Hanwha Solar in connection with thar8Hssuance and Repurclk
Agreement and recorded an additional liability ¢8$1,441 in other current liabilities in connectiwith the Share Issuance and Repurc
Agreement.

On October 25, 2011, in connection with the repasehof redeemable ordinary shares (Note 20), thap@oy repurchased and cance
25,017,671 ordinary shares in connection with ther8& Issuance and Repurchase Agreement and revarsemount of US$2,5(
Accordingly, as of December 31, 2011, the Compaasy 20,062,348 outstanding shares issued to Hanalaa @hder the Share Issuance
Repurchase Agreement with a corresponding liabdftyRMB13,000 (US$2,087) recorded in other curdetiilities (Note 12). Such balar
remained unchanged in 2012.

27. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Acquisition of fixed asset

As of December 31, 2012, the Group had commitmehépproximately RMB376,978,000 (US$60,509,141ated to the acquisition of fix
assets. The commitment for acquisition of fixecetsss expected to be settled within the next tev@honths.
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27. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONT'D)
Operating lease commitments

The Group has entered into leasing arrangemerdatinglto office premises and other facilities the¢ classified as operating leases. Fi
minimum lease payments for non-cancelable operémees as of December 31, 2012 are as follows:

As of December 31, 201

(RMB’000) (US$ 000
Year 2013 3,991 641
Year 2014 1,00¢ 162
Year 2015 and thereaft —
Total 5,00( 80¢Z

The terms of the leases do not contain rent egcalat contingent rent.
Purchase of raw material
The commitments related to framework contractsuiipase raw materials as of December 31, 201 2ssi@aws:

As of December 31, 201

(RMB’000) (US$000)

Year 20172 168,88: 27,107
Year 2014 and thereaft — —
168,88: 27,107

The above listing of amounts and timing of purcses® based on managemsiiiest estimate using existing terms in the framkwontracts
as amended or supplemented. To the extent the w@frthg contracts are revised through negotiatioagreement between the Group an
suppliers, the amount or timing of purchases cehlzhge.

Litigation

The Group was involved in certain cases pendingamous PRC and U.S. courts and arbitration as eddinber 31, 2012. For cert
proceedings, the Group is currently unable to extnthe reasonably possible loss or a range obmeh$y possible losses. The Group is ¢
unable to estimate the possible loss or range sxf imtil developments in such matters have proviidticient information to support
assessment of the range of possible loss, suchuastification of a damage demand from plaintifféscdvery from other parties a
investigation of factual allegations, rulings by ttourt on motions or appeals, analysis by expertde progress of settlement negotiations
an annual basis, the Group reviews relevant infanawith respect to litigation contingencies, anpdates its accruals, disclosures
estimates of reasonably possible losses or rarffgessobased on such reviews.
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27. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONT'D)
Litigation (Cont'd)

For certain proceedings that the Group is involasdthe plaintiff and expects favorable outcome,eatimated gain from a g:
contingency is not reflected in the statement ofifficial position or statements of comprehensivenre until the realization of the g
contingency.

Income Taxes

Effective from January 1, 2007, the Group adopte’iCA740-10, which prescribes a more-likely-thrant-threshold for financial statem
recognition and measurement of a tax position taketihe tax return. ASC 740-10 also provides gutgann derecognition of income te
assets and liabilities, classification current deerred income tax assets and liabilities, acdongrfor interest and penalties associated witl
positions, accounting for income taxes in interieripds and income tax disclosures. As of Decembe?B11 and 2012, the Group
recorded an unrecognized tax benefit for RMB143 @03 (US$23,029,004).

28. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group operates in a single business segmeithgthe development, manufacturing, and sale\6felated products. The following ta
summarizes the Group’s net revenues by geograpgion based on the location of the customers:

For the year ended December 3.

2010 2011 2012 2012
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)
Germany 4,706,76 2,652,15! 1,489,49! 239,08:
USA 436,74 859,29( 513,16 82,36¢
The PRC 612,69! 599,24’ 382,46¢ 61,39:
India — 136,24¢ 263,22¢ 42,25
South Koree 6,76¢ 76,954 260,88’ 41,87¢
Japar 83 13,50¢ 248,04° 39,81«
Italy 572,42( 358,12: 149,19¢ 23,94¢
Greece 19,22¢ 44 93¢ 80,38: 12,90:
France 94,69 303,32¢ 62,507 10,03:
Belgium 83,43: 132,93: 4494 7,214
Australia 407,26: 448,49¢ 27,77: 4,45¢
Spain 131,16¢ 152,13¢ 7,045 1,13(
Canade 92,06: 157,65( 1,50¢ 242
Netherland:s — 330,92( — —
The Czech Republi 165,90¢ 78t — —
Others 219,31¢ 149,77 147,74( 23,71¢
Total net revenu 7,548,54! 6,416,48! 3,678,38! 590,42(

All of the long-lived assets of the Group are lechin the PRC.
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28. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONT'D)

For the year ended December 31, 2012, there wereustomers that accounted for 10% or more of to&dlrevenue. The customers
accounted for 10% or more of total net revenudteryear ended December 31, 2010 and 2011 arél@s<o

For the year ended December 3.

2010 2011
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
Schueco International K 2,526,51. 967,39¢
MEMC Singapore Pte Ltc * 695,68(

* Less than 109

29. INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share &mheperiod presented are calculated as followgh@usands, except share and per ¢

amounts):
For the year ended December 3!
2010 2011 2012 2012
RMB RMB RMB Us$

Numerator:
Income (loss) attributable to ordinary sharehol— basic 757,35 (930,109 (1,562,859 (250,85¢)
Interest expense of convertible bonds and chantgrimalue of

conversion feature of convertible bor 87,351 — — —
Income (loss) attributable to ordinary sharehol— diluted 844,71 (930,109 (1,562,859 (250,85¢)
Denominator:
Weightec-average number of shares outstanding, ope 289,087,58 419,318,03 421,676,23 421,676,23
Weightec-average number of shares issued during the 21,236,34 — — —
Weighted-average number of new ordinary sharegdssu

connection with exercise of options and vesting8tJs 939,37: 1,007,66! 491,27: 491,27:
Weightec-average number of shares outstan— basic 311,263,30 420,325,70 422,167,50 422,167,50
Weighted-average number of stock options and RSaisted in

connection with the stock option pl 917,77¢ — — —
Weighted-average number of shares to be issuedthpon

conversion of convertible boni 45,091,51 — — —
Weighte-average number of shares outstan— diluted 357,272,60 420,325,70 422,167,50 422,167,50
Basic net income (loss) per shi RMB2.4: (RMB2.27) (RMB3.70)  (US§ 0.59)
Diluted net income (loss) per sh: RMB2.3€ (RMB2.21) (RMB3.70)  (US§ 0.59)
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29. INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE (CONT'D)

During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2B&2Company issued 1,750,000 and 1,000,000 ordstzanes, respectively, to its st
depository bank which have been and will contirméé used to settle stock option awards upon thaircise. No consideration was rece
by the Company for this issuance of ordinary sharbese ordinary shares are legally issued andamutiig but are treated as escrowed sl
for accounting purposes and, therefore, have beeluded from the computation of earnings per share; ordinary shares not used in
settlement of stock option awards will be returteethe Company.

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 201poteatial dilutive effect in relation to the stooktions, unvested RSUs and conver
bonds were excluded as they have an dihitive effect. The redeemable shares have beeludsd in both basic and diluted net income (|
per share as they are not entitled to the earmhtiee Company.

30. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

ASC subtopic 820-10 (“ASC 820-10Fair Value Measurements and Disclosurestablishes a thret@er fair value hierarchy, which prioritiz
the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows:

Level 1 — Observable inputs that reflect quotedgsi(unadjusted) for identical assets or liabgitieactive markets
Level 2 — Include other inputs that are directlyiratirectly observable in the marketplace
Level 3 — Unobservable inputs which are supportetittle or no market activity

ASC 820410 describes three main approaches to measurirfgithelue of assets and liabilities: (1) markppaach; (2) income approach; i
(3) cost approach. The market approach uses paicgsother relevant information generated from mtati@nsactions involving identical
comparable assets or liabilities. The income apgrasses valuation techniques to convert future antsoto a single present value amount.
measurement is based on the value indicated byrumarket expectations about those future amoihts.cost approach is based on
amount that would currently be required to replaceasset.

Foreign currency and commodity derivatives andré@gerate swap are classified within Level 2 beeahsy are valued using models utiliz
market observable and other inputs.

The inputs used to measure the fair value of thevexsion option of convertible bonds were largeholoservable, and, accordingly,
measurement was classified as Level 3. The fairevaf the conversion option of convertible bonds wstimated using the binomial appro
The following assumptions were used for estimatirggfair value:

As of December 31

2011 2012
Underlying share price US$ 0.9¢ USt 1.01
Conversion prict Us§ 19.12¢ Uss 19.12¢
Time to maturity 6.04 year 5.04 year
Risk-free rate 1.1% 0.7%%
Expected volatility 102.6% 99.7%%
Comparable yield to maturi 16.2¢% 17.3%
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30. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT'D)

Underlying share price is the Compamylosing price as listed on NASDAQ on DecemberZ11,1 and 2012. The conversion price is
initial conversion price of the convertible bondsme to maturity is the remaining years from batamsheet date to January 15, 2018
maturity date of the convertible bonds. The rigefrrate is derived from the United States Treagerp coupon riskree rates with tt
remaining terms equal to the time to maturity asDeicember 31, 2011 and 2012. The Company estintate®xpected volatility ar
comparable yield to maturity based on a combinatibthe Company historical performance and the performance of pamable publicl
listed companies.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value oacairring basis as of December 31, 2011 and 204 8wanmarized below:

Fair value measurements at December 31, 2011 usir
Quoted prices in

active markets for Significant other Significant
observable input: unobservable
identical assets inputs Total fair value at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 December 31, 201
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
Cash and cash equivalel
- Time deposit: 1,976,55! — — 1,976,55
- Restricted cas 281,62t — — 281,62¢
Foreign currency / commodity / interest rate
swap derivative
- Financial assetl — 29,09: — 29,09:
- Financial liabilities — 30,67( — 30,67(
Conversion option of
convertible bond — — 13,18: 13,18
Fair value measurements at December 31,120using:
Quoted prices in
active markets for Significant other Significant
identical assets observable input: unobservable inputs Total fair value at
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) December 31, 2012
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000; (US$000)
Cash and cash equivalel
- Time deposit: 676,47¢ — — 676,47¢ 108,58.
- Restricted cas 150,46 — — 150,46 24,15
Foreign currency / commodity / interest
rate swap derivative
- Financial liabilities — 17,31 — 17,31 2,77¢
Conversion option of
convertible bond — — 7,90¢ 7,90¢ 1,26¢
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30. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT'D)

The following is a reconciliation of the liabilisemeasured at fair value on a recurring basis usgngficant unobservable inputs (Level 3)
the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2012.

Conversion option o

convertible bonds

(RMB’000)
Balance as of January 1, 2C 277,56¢
Unrealized gait (264,389
Balance as of December 31, 2( 13,18
Repurchase of convertible bor (10,96¢)
Unrealized los: 5,692
Balance as of December 31, 2( 7,90¢

The amount of realized or unrealized gain/lossidduided in the consolidated statements of compaterincome in Changes in fair value
conversion feature of convertible bonds.”

In accordance with ASC 820, goodwill was writterwaioto the fair value of zero, resulting in an impaent loss of RMB134,745,000, wh
was included in “Impairment of goodwillth the consolidated statements of comprehensiveniecfor the year ended December 31, 2
Upon impairment, goodwill is classified within Ldv@ because it is valued using an income approaafgudiscounted cash flows deri
based on management’s assumptions and estimates.

31. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Issuance of floating rate notes

On January 14, 2013, SolarOne HK entered into acsigiion agreement with Samsung Securities (Alsid) and Kookmin Bank Hong Kol
Ltd, pursuant to which SolarOne HK issued thyear US$100 million floating rate notes to the pubThe floating rate notes were guaran
by Hanwha Chemical and will mature on January D3,62with payment of principal at maturity. The irest rate is based on the threentt
LIBOR rate and the interest will be paid on a gedytbasis. The proceeds from the issuance of thesnwill be used for general work
capital purposes.
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32. ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Under PRC laws and regulations, the CompafRC subsidiaries are restricted in their abitityransfer their net assets to the Company i
form of dividend payments, loans, or advances. éterinined pursuant to PRC generally accepted atioguprinciples, net assets of
Company’'s PRC subsidiaries which are restrictethfo@nsfer amounted to RMB2,726,247,000 (US$4378&%) as of December 31, 2012.

Condensed Balance Sheets

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalel
Other receivable
Deferred expense
Amount due from subsidiarie
Derivative contract

Total current asse
Non-current assets:

Long-term deferred expens
Investment in subsidiarie

Total nor-current assel

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Other payable
Derivative contract
Amount due to subsidiari¢

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities:
Convertible bond
Loss in excess of investmet
Total nor-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Redeemable ordinary sharey(par value US$0.0001 per share; 20,070,375 and@(B@5 shares issued and outstandin
December 31, 2011 and 2012, respectiv

Shareholders equity

Ordinary shares (par value US$0.0001 per share01000,000 and 1,000,000,000 shares authorizeg392232 shares
and 423,395,432 shares issued and outstandingcetiber 31, 2011 and 2012, respectiv

Additional paic-in capital

Retained earnings (accumulated defi

Accumulated other comprehensive |

Total shareholde’ equity
Total liabilities, redeemable ordinary shares andlsareholders’ equity

F-53

As of December 31

Note 2011 2012 2012
(RMB'000} (RMB’000! (US¥ 000,

6,77¢ 3,21€ 51€

10C 8 15

212 3,96¢ 637

b 3,925,19: 3,600,27! 577,88
18,12: = =

3,950,40; 3,607,55! 579,05;

c 19,72 4,09 65€
a 872,62 = =
892,35: 4,09( 65¢€

4,842,75. 3,611,64! 579,70

d 19,33: 11,65 1,87¢
= 8,121 1,308

b 21,13 21,07 3,38:
40,46¢ 40,85¢ 6,55

498,64t 368,59 59,16

— 454,86: 73,01

498,641 823,45: 132,17:

539,11 864,30 138,73(

24 24 4

31E 31€ 51

3,996,41i 4,004,19! 642,71

306,88: (1,255,97) (201,599

— (1,219 (197)

4,303,61! 2,747,31: 440,97
4,842,75. 3,611,64! 579,70
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32. ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY  (CONT'D)

Condensed Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended December 3:

Note 2010 2011 2012 2012
(RMB'000)  (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)
Net revenue — — — —
Cost of revenue — — — —
Gross loss — — — —
Operating expense (7,827) (20,579 (7,759 (1,244
Operating loss (7,827 (20,57¢) (7,759 (1,249
Share of profit (loss) from subsidiari 924,74( (843,70  (1,336,80) (214,57
Interest incom 5 3 10 1
Interest expens (118,98() (142,40) (118,690 (19,057
Changes in fair value of derivative contrz 7,082 (7,50¢) (4,789 (76¢)
Changes in fair value of conversion feature of @tible bonds 31,62: 264,38: (5,692 (919
Loss on extinguishment of de — — (82,717 (13,27¢)
Exchange losse (79,297 (180,299 (7,65)) (1,229
Income (loss) before tay 757,35’ (930,109 (1,564,07) (251,05)

Income tax expens —_ — — —

Net income (loss 757,35 (930,109 (1,564,07) (251,05)

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 3:

2010 2011 2012 2012
(RMB’000) (RMB'000] (RMB'000] (US¥000;
Net cash used in operating activit (9,919 (56,387) (41,176 (6,609)
Net cash used in investing activiti (1,602,24) (5,10%) (13,009 (2,087
Net cash provided by financing activiti 1,634,37. 40,44¢ 50,62: 8,12¢
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 22,21¢ (21,039 (3,559 (577)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 5,59: 27,80¢ 6,77( 1,08i
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 27,80¢ 6,77( 3,21¢ 51€
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32. ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY  (CONT'D)

Notes to the Condensed Financial Statements of @mnpany

(a) Basis of presentation

In the Company-only condensed financial statemehts,Companys investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost ptusty in undistribute
earnings of subsidiaries since inception or actiarsi The Companynly condensed financial statements should beireadnjunction with th
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

The Company records its investment in its subdeBannder the equity method of accounting as pitestiin ASC 323-10lnvestmentg&quity
Method and Joint VentureSuch investment is presented on the condenseddeakdreets as “Investment in subsidiariastl share of tt
subsidiaries’ profit or loss as “Share of profiags$) from subsidiariesin the condensed statements of comprehensive inddnuer the equi
method of accounting, the Company shall adjustctireying amount of the investment for its shareéhef subsidiarys cumulative losses ur
the investment balance reaches zero, unless dnisactually obligated to continue to pick up thibsidiarys losses. The Company confirn
its unlimited financial support to its subsidiaridsr their operations. Consequently, the Compangogaized RMB454,862,0!
(US$73,010,385) of its share of cumulative losgesxicess of its investment in “Losses in excesswastments” as of December 31, 2012.

The subsidiaries did not pay any dividends to tben@any for the periods presented.

Certain information and footnote disclosures notynaicluded in financial statements prepared inoadance with US GAAP have be
condensed or omitted.

(b) Related party transactions and balances

As of December 31, 2011 and 2012, the Company paidbehalf of its subsidiaries of RMB3,925,198,00¢d aRMB3,600,276,0(
(US$577,884,143), respectively. For the years endedember 31, 2011 and 2012, the Company paid drmlbef its subsidiaries
RMB44,632,000 and RMB34,466,000 (US$5,532,174peetvely.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2012, subsidiarieshef @Gompany paid on behalf the Company of RMB21(®Y,and RMB21,073,0(
(US$3,382,450), respectively. For the years endecebber 31, 2011 and 2012, subsidiaries of the @oynpaid operating expenses, inte
expense and consideration for repurchase of cablettonds of RMB313,974,000 and RMB359,325,000%0/5675,639), respectively,
behalf of the Company.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2012, all balances neltited parties were unsecured, non-interestiagmge and repayable on demand.
(c) Long-term deferred expenses

The longterm deferred expenses as of December 31, 2012GkRImainly included the cost related to issuarfamovertible bonds (Note 2
to be amortized over 10 years using the effectiterést rate method. These issuance costs haverbeerded as “Longerm deferre
expenses.As of December 31, 2011 and 2012, the unamortinstsaelated to the issuance of convertible bonusuated to RMB19,718,0!
and RMB4,080,000 (US$654,885), respectively.
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32. ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY  (CONT'D)

Notes to the Condensed Financial Statements of @@mpany(cont'd)

(d) Other payables

As of December 31, 2011 and 2012, other payabléslynacluded interest payable to the holders & tonvertible bonds of RMB17,544,(
and RMB10,068,000 (US$1,616,025), respectively.

(e) Commitments

The Company did not have any significant commitraeatt longterm obligations, other than the convertible boradsof any of the perio
presented.

(f) Convenience translation

Amounts in United States dollars are presentedHerconvenience of the reader and are translatédeanoon buying rate of US$1.0C
RMB6.2301 on December 31, 2012 in the City of Newrkrfor cable transfers of Renminbi as certified dastoms purposes by the Fed
Reserve Bank of New York. No representation is nthdé the Renminbi amounts could have been, ordcbel converted into United Ste
dollars at such rate.
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Exhibit 12.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Ki-Joon Hong, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-F of Hanwha SolarOne Co., Lt

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omittaie a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets under which such statements were made, nteadisg with respect to the per
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, ather financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the company as of, andtffierperiods presented in this rep:

The company other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifile establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15(k)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange Act Rt
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the company and hav

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurédm tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatneg to the company, including its consolidatetsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangardang the reliability of financial reporting aride preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the comparisclosure controls and procedures and presémtihis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls amutgutures, as of the end of the period covered lsy réport based on sL
evaluation; an

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the canys internal control over financial reporting thatooed during the period covel
by the annual report that has materially affectadis reasonably likely to materially affect, thengpanys internal control ov
financial reporting; an

The company other certifying officer(s) and | have discloseédsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrob over financie
reporting, to the company’s auditors and the aadimittee of companyg’ board of directors (or persons performing theiveden!
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal controéiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the comy’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpzanhcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a simifiole in the compans’
internal control over financial reportin

/sl Ki-Joon Hong

Ki-Joon Hong

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
April 29, 2013




Exhibit 12.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Jung Pyo Seo, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-F of Hanwha SolarOne Co., Lt

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omittaie a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets under which such statements were made, nteadisg with respect to the per
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, ather financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of opereat and cash flows of the company as of, andtfar,periods presented in this ani
report;

The company other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifile establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15€k)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange Act Rt
13e15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the company and hav

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and proceduréde tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the company, including its consolidatedsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr; or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangardiang the reliability of financial reporting aride preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the compamjsclosure controls and procedures and presémtiiis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls amutgutures, as of the end of the period covered lsy réport based on sL
evaluation; an

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the canys internal control over financial reporting thatooed during the period covel
by the annual report that has materially affectadis reasonably likely to materially affect, thengpanys internal control ov
financial reporting; an

The company other certifying officer(s) and | have discloseédsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrob over financie
reporting, to the company’s auditors and the aadimmittee of companyg’ board of directors (or persons performing theivedent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal controéiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the comy’s ability to record, process, summarize and refprahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the company’
internal control over financial reportin

/s/ Jung Pyo Seo
Jung Pyo Se

Chief Financial Office
April 29, 2013




Exhibit 13.1

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarba@etey Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of gectl350, chapter 63 of title 18, United St
Code), each of the undersigned officers of Hanwtlar®ne Co., Ltd. (the “Company”), hereby certifitssuch officers’ knowledge, that:

The Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year endextdinber 31, 2012 (the “Reporttf the Company containing the finani
statements fully complies with the requirementseixtion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeok 1934 and that information contail
in the Report fairly presents, in all material rests, the financial condition and results of opgerat of the Company.

Date: April 29, 2013 /sl Ki-Joon Hong

Ki-Joon Honc
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

Date: April 29, 2013 /s/ Jung Pyo Seo
Jung Pyo Se
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference infélewing Registration Statement:

1) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-644), as amended, pertaining to the 2007 Edpigntive Plan and the 2006 Share Or
Plan of Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd., ¢

2) Registration Statement (Forn-3 No. 33:-170539), as amended, of Hanwha SolarOne Co.,

of our reports dated April 29, 2013, with respecttte consolidated financial statements of Hanwdlar®ne Co., Ltd. and the effectivenes
internal control over financial reporting of HanwlsmlarOne Co., Ltd., included in this Annual Rep@¥orm 20F) for the year end:
December 31, 2012.

/sl Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP
Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China
April 29, 2013



